
Page 1 of 3 
 

 

REVISED AGENDA | REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING 

May 09, 2023 at 6:00 PM 

Council Chambers - Apex Town Hall, 73 Hunter Street 
The meeting will adjourn when all business is concluded or 10:00 PM, whichever comes first 

Town Council and Administration 
Mayor: Jacques K. Gilbert | Mayor Pro Tempore: Audra Killingsworth 

Council Members: Brett D. Gantt; Terry Mahaffey; Edward Gray; Arno Zegerman 
Town Manager: Catherine Crosby | Deputy Town Manager: Shawn Purvis  

Assistant Town Managers: Demetria John and Marty Stone 
Town Clerk: Allen Coleman | Town Attorney: Laurie L. Hohe 

COMMENCEMENT 

Call to Order | Invocation | Pledge of Allegiance 

CONSENT AGENDA 
All Consent Agenda items are considered routine, to be enacted by one motion with the adoption of the Consent Agenda,  

and without discussion. If a Council Member requests discussion of an item, the item may be removed from the 
 Consent Agenda and considered separately. The Mayor will present the Consent Agenda 

 to be set prior to taking action on the following items: 

CN1 Agreement - North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) - Salem St and 

Chatham St - Review Traffic Signal Modifications 

Russell H. Dalton, PE, Traffic Engineering Manager, Transportation and Infrastructure Dept.  

CN2 Annexation No. 753 - 7612 Green Level Church Road - 1.74 acres 

 Allen Coleman, Town Clerk 

CN3 Council Meeting Minutes – Multiple 

 Allen Coleman, Town Clerk 

CN4 Encroachment Agreement - 1718 Wimberly Road Lot 181 

Chris Johnson, PE, MPA, Director, Transportation & Infrastructure Development Department 

CN5 Encroachment Agreement - 2918 Alderson Court Lot 259 

Chris Johnson, PE, MPA, Director, Transportation & Infrastructure Development Department 

CN6 Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between Wake Technical Community College 

and the Town of Apex - LaunchAPEX Educational Training 

 Barbara Belicic, Small Business Specialist, Economic Development Department  

CN7 Position Authorization - Additional 0.5 FTE - Public Works Department 

Mary Beth Manville, Director, Human Resources Department  



Page 2 of 3 
 

CN8 Purchase of Real Property - 1125 Wimberly Road and Budget Ordinance Amendment 

No. 17 

Craig Setzer, Director, Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources Department, and  

Steve Adams, Utilities Acquisition Specialist, Transportation and Infrastructure Department  

CN9 Resolution - Designating Deputy Finance Officers 

 Antwan Morrison, Director, Finance Department  

CN10 Resolution - Right-of-Way (ROW) Road Closure Request - Set Public Hearing 

 Allen Coleman, Town Clerk  

CN11 Rezoning Case No. 23CZ01 - Cash Corporate Revised Uses - Statement and Ordinance 

Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager, Planning Department  

CN12 Rezoning Case No. 23CZ02 - Triangle Home Services Phase II - Statement and 

Ordinance 

Shelly Mayo, Planner II, Planning Department 

CN13 Rezoning Case No. 23CZ03 - Veridea Expansion - Statement and Ordinance 

Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager, Planning Department 

CN14 Tax Reports - February and March 2023 

 Allen Coleman, Town Clerk 

CN15 2023 Revised Council Meeting Calendar (ADDED) 

 Allen Coleman, Town Clerk 

 

PRESENTATIONS 

PR1 (REMOVED) Presentation by the Apex Public School Foundation - Quarterly Peak 

S.T.A.R. Awards – 3rd Qtr 

Councilmember Terry Mahaffey, Sponsor  

PR2 Proclamation - Asian American and Pacific Islander Heritage Month - May 2023 

 Mayor Jacques K. Gilbert  

PR3 Proclamation - National Police Week and Peace Officers' Memorial Day Proclamation - 

May 14 through May 20, 2023 

Mayor Jacques K. Gilbert 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
Mayor Gilbert will call for additional Agenda items from Council or Staff and set the  

Regular Meeting Agenda prior to Council actions. 



Page 3 of 3 
 

PUBLIC FORUM 
Public Forum allows the public an opportunity to address the Town Council.  The speaker is requested not to address items 

that appear as Public Hearings scheduled on the Regular Agenda.  The Mayor will recognize those who would like to speak at the  
appropriate time.  Large groups are asked to select a representative to speak for the entire group. 

Comments must be limited to 3 minutes to allow others the opportunity to speak. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

PH1 Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Greenways and Open Space 

Angela Reincke, Parks Planning Project Manager, Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources 

Department; and Shweta Naneker, Project Manager, McAdams Company (Consultant)  

AND 

PH2 Master Plan Amendments for Parkland Acquisition and Indoor Facility Search Areas 

Angela Reincke, Parks Planning Project Manager, Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources 

Department 

AND 

PH3 Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan Map Amendments - Related to Master Plan for 

Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Greenways and Open Space 

Angela Reincke, Parks Planning Project Manager, Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources 

Department; and Jenna Shouse, Senior Long-Range Planner, Planning Department  

  

NEW BUSINESS 

NB1 Richardson Road – Traffic Safety 

Mayor Jacques K. Gilbert and Councilmembers  

UPDATES BY TOWN MANAGER 

CLOSED SESSION 

Council will enter into closed session pursuant to: 
 
CS1 Steve Adams, Utilities Acquisition Specialist, Transportation and Infrastructure Dept.   

NCGS §143-318.11 (5): 
“To instruct staff concerning the acquisition of real property.” 

 
 

ADJOURNMENT 



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: May 9, 2023 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Russell H. Dalton, PE, Traffic Engineering Manager 

Department(s): Transportation & Infrastructure Development 

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve an Agreement with NCDOT for review and inspection of traffic signal modifications 

proposed by the Town of Apex at the intersection of Salem Street and Chatham Street in the Salem 

Streetscape project, and to authorize the Town Manager to execute the agreement on behalf of the Town. 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

This agreement is required by NCDOT for their review and inspection of traffic signal modifications at the 

intersection of Salem Street and Chatham Street as planned in the Salem Streetscape project currently in 

final design.  These modifications include adjustments to the existing wood pole traffic signal to 

accommodate expanded sidewalk and ramps which will affect intersection geometry and location of 

pedestrian signal equipment.  Once the project is complete and the traffic signal work is accepted by 

NCDOT, the signal will continue to be maintained by NCDOT. 

 

The agreement requires a $5000.00 deposit payable to NCDOT.  NCDOT staff time will be billed against 

the deposit.  In the event the entire deposit is not used NCDOT will reimburse the unused amount.  In the 

event their internal billing exceeds $5,000.00, NCDOT will invoice Apex for the additional amount.  Based 

on the experience of the Town’s design consultant, NCDOT actual billing rarely exceeds $2,500.00 for this 

type of agreement.   

 

This agreement includes a requirement for the Town to indemnify NCDOT for damages to property arising 

out of the project. The Town is also indemnifying NCDOT for damages arising out of right-of-way and 

easement acquisition, neither of which are expected to be necessary to complete this project. NCDOT is 

unlikely to remove the indemnity and the Town Attorney is happy to answer any questions council may have 

concerning the indemnity. 

- Page 4 -



 

Attachments 

 CN1-A1: NCDOT Review and Inspection Agreement 

 

- Page 5 -



1.2022 

______: I acknowledge that upon execution of this Agreement, we will be required to submit a down payment, if 
required. I also acknowledge that we may pre-pay any portion of the estimated cost noted in this Agreement, 
prior to final billing by the Department. 

Please refer to your Agreement’s PAYMENT TERMS to correctly remit any payment due to the Department. 

PAYMENT TERMS: PAYMENT TIMING: 

PAYMENT UPON AGREEMENT 
EXECUTION 

Please submit the amount of agreed upon payment via one of 
the below methods, once you have received notice of execution 
of the Agreement. 

PAYMENT PRIOR TO LETTING (OR 
START OF PHASE) 

You will be notified by the Project Manager when payment will 
be due.  Please remit payment within 60 days of notification. 

PAYMENT UPON BILLING 
The Department will bill at the completion of the Project (or 
when defined in the Agreement).  All payments are due within 
60 days of invoicing. 

NOTE: You may pre-pay any portion of an estimated cost, prior to Departmental Billing.  The Department 
will adjust final billing to account for any pre-payments made. 

LATE PAYMENTS AND INTEREST RATES: 

For payments not received within 60 days, the Department must charge a statutory interest rate of prime plus 
one percent (1%) on all Utility Relocation Agreements.  For any other Receivable Agreement, the Department 
may charge a late fee and/or interest. 

PAYMENT METHODS 

1. SEND PAYMENT BY CHECK     OR

MAIL TO:
NCDOT – Accounts Receivable 
1514 Mail Service Center 
Raleigh, NC 27699-1514 

INCLUDE: 
• Agreement ID (10000xxxxx)
• WBS Element

2. SEND PAYMENT VIA ACH (Automated Clearinghouse)

Initiate ACH through your bank* and send an e-mail to: 

 Judith Dever - jadever@ncdot.gov
 Kay Lee - klee@ncdot.gov

INCLUDE: 
• Agreement ID# (10000xxxxx)
• WBS Element
• Amount of Payment

*If you need NCDOT’s Account information, contact
Tammy Court at tlcourt@ncdot.gov

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Failure to follow the above steps and remit payment per the terms in the Agreement may result in delays to project 
delivery.  Please contact your Division Project Manager for questions regarding payment terms. 

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AGREEMENTS 
 PAYMENT TERMS AND METHODS 

1
- Page 6 -

mailto:jadever@ncdot.gov
mailto:klee@ncdot.gov
mailto:tlcourt@ncdot.gov


ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 
DOT REVIEW / INSPECTION 

1000017627

AGREEMENT OVERVIEW

2/7/2023

PROJECT NUMBERS 

WBS ELEMENTS: 36249.4635 

DATE: 
NORTH CAROLINA 
WAKE COUNTY 

PARTIES TO THE AGREEMENT: 

NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION ("DEPARTMENT") 

AND 

TOWN OF APEX ("MUNICIPALITY")

SCOPE OF PROJECT: The Project consists of a signal modification at the intersection of Salem Street and 
Chatham Street (SR 1307) due to streetscape project on Salem Street.  This will involve pedestrian signal 
modifications, temporary signal plans.

COSTS TO OTHER PARTY:  $5,000.00
DEPARTMENT'S FUNDING:  $0.00

PAYMENT TERMS: Town of Apex provides check upon execution of agreement.

MAINTENANCE: Department

EFFECTIVE DATES OF AGREEMENT: 
START: Upon Execution of this Agreement. 
END: When work is complete and all terms are met.

This AGREEMENT is made and entered into on the last date executed below, by and between the North 
Carolina Department of Transportation, an agency of the State of North Carolina, hereinafter referred to as the 
DEPARTMENT; and TOWN OF APEX, hereinafter referred to as the MUNICIPALITY; and collectively referred 
as the PARTIES.

The parties to this Agreement, listed above, intend that this Agreement, together with all attachments, 
schedules, exhibits, and other documents  that both are referenced in this Agreement and refer to this 
Agreement, represents the entire understanding between the parties with respect to its subject matter and 
supersedes any previous communication or agreements that may exist. 

2
- Page 7 -



ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 
DOT REVIEW / INSPECTION 

1000017627

I. WHEREAS STATEMENTS

WHEREAS, this Agreement is made under the authority granted to the Department by the North Carolina General 
Assembly under General Statutes of North Carolina (NCGS), particularly Chapter 136-66.18(27); and, 

WHEREAS, the DEPARTMENT and the MUNICIPALITY have agreed that the jurisdictional limits of the Parties, as of 
the date of entering agreement for the above-mentioned project, are to be used in determining the duties, 
responsibilities, rights and legal obligations of the Parties hereto for the purposes of this Agreement; and, 

WHEREAS, the MUNICIPALITY has requested that the DEPARTMENT perform work or provide services; and, 

WHEREAS, the Parties hereto wish to enter into an agreement for scoped work to be performed or provided by the 
DEPARTMENT (including reviews, goods or services) with reimbursement for the costs thereof by the MUNICIPALITY 
as hereinafter set out; and, 

NOW, THEREFORE, this Agreement states the promises and undertakings of each party as herein provided, and the 
parties do hereby covenant and agree, each with the other, as follows:

II. STANDARD PROVISIONS

AGREEMENT FOR IDENTIFIED PARTIES ONLY

This Agreement is solely for the benefit of the identified parties to the Agreement and is not intended to give any rights, 
claims, or benefits to third parties or to the public at large. 

OTHER AGREEMENTS

The MUNICIPALITY is solely responsible for all agreements, contracts, and work orders entered into or issued by the 
MUNICIPALITY to meet the terms of this Agreement.  The DEPARTMENT is not responsible for any expenses or 
obligations incurred for the terms of this Agreement except those specifically eligible for the funds and obligations as 
approved by the Department under the terms of this Agreement. 

AUTHORIZATION TO EXECUTE

The parties hereby acknowledge that the individual executing this Agreement has read this Agreement, conferred with 
legal counsel, fully understands its contents, and is authorized to execute this Agreement and to bind the respective 
parties to the terms contained herein. 

DEBARMENT POLICY

It is the policy of the DEPARTMENT not to enter into any agreement with parties that have been  debarred by any 
government agency (Federal or State).  By execution of this agreement, the MUNICIPALITY certifies that neither it nor 
its agents or contractors are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily 
excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal or State Agency or Department and that it will not enter 
into agreements with any entity that  is debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily 
excluded from participation in this transaction. 

3
- Page 8 -



ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 
DOT REVIEW / INSPECTION 

1000017627

AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS 
All terms and conditions of this Agreement are dependent  upon, and, subject to the allocation of funds for the purpose 
set forth in the Agreement and the Agreement shall automatically terminate if funds cease to be available. 

GIFT BAN 
By Executive Order 24, issued by Governor Perdue,  and NCGS 133-32, it is unlawful for any vendor or  contractor (i.e. 
architect, bidder, contractor, construction manager, design professional, engineer, landlord, offeror, seller, subcontractor, 
supplier, or vendor),  to make gifts or to give favors to any State employee  of the Governor’s Cabinet Agencies (i.e. 
Administration, Commerce, Environmental Quality, Health and Human Services, Information Technology, Military and 
Veterans Affairs, Natural and Cultural Resources, Public Safety, Revenue, Transportation, and the Office of the 
Governor).

III. RESPONSIBILITIES

A. The DEPARTMENT and/or the MUNICIPALITY shall be responsible for all phases of project delivery to 
include planning, design, right of way acquisition, utility relocation, and/or maintenance as shown in the 
PROJECT DELIVERY Provision.

B. The MUNICIPALITY shall be responsible for payment as shown in the COSTS AND FUNDING Provision.

IV. COSTS AND FUNDING

The MUNICIPALITY shall reimburse the DEPARTMENT 100% of the actual cost of all work performed by the 
DEPARTMENT, including administrative costs. Based on the estimated cost of $5,000, the MUNICIPALITY shall 
submit payment for $5,000 to the Department's Fiscal Section upon execution of this Agreement, per the guidance in 
the attached cover page. Both parties understand that this is an estimated cost and is subject to change. Upon 
completion of the project, if actual costs exceed the amount of payment, the MUNICIPALITY shall reimburse the 
DEPARTMENT any under payment within sixty (60) days of invoicing by the DEPARTMENT. The DEPARTMENT 
will charge a late payment penalty and interest on any unpaid balance due in accordance with G. S. 147-86.23. If the 
actual cost of the work is less than $5,000, the DEPARTMENT will reimburse the MUNICIPALITY any overpayment. 

V. PROJECT DELIVERY

TRAFFIC REVIEW AND INSPECTION:

DEVELOPMENT OF PLANS

Project plans and traffic signal designs shall be prepared by the MUNICIPALITY, including electrical and programming 
details, (if applicable) metal poles with mast arm shop drawings, foundation designs, utility make-ready plans, 
communications cable routing plans, traffic signal coordination timing plans and Project Special Provisions (including, but 
not limited to: providing Synchro/TruTraffic files and programming data sheets; coordination timing plans, graphics 
package, downloading coordination timing plans onto system cabinets and/or onto central computer). All work shall be 
performed in accordance with Departmental standards and specifications. Said plans and design shall be submitted to 
the DEPARTMENT for review and approval prior to any work being performed by the MUNICIPALITY. 

PURCHASE OF EQUIPMENT

The MUNICIPALITY shall purchase or furnish from stock all traffic signal equipment necessary for the traffic signal 
revision. Said equipment shall be in reasonably close conformity with the standards and specifications of equipment and 
materials used by the DEPARTMENT. The DEPARTMENT reserves the right to reject the use of any equipment and 
materials it deems functionally inferior. 

4
- Page 9 -



ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 
DOT REVIEW / INSPECTION 

1000017627

RELOCATION OF UTILTIES: 

The MUNICIPALITY shall accomplish the relocation or adjustment of any any and all utilities in conflict with the construction 
of the project. Said work shall be accomplished in a manner satisfactory to the DEPARTMENT. 

RIGHT OF WAY:

It is understood by the parties hereto that all work shall be contained within existing right of way.  However, should it 
become necessary, the MUNICIPALITY, shall provide any required right of way and/or construction easements at no liability 
whatsoever to the DEPARTMENT. Acquisition of right of way shall be accomplished in accordance with State procedures. 
The MUNICIPALITY shall indemnify and save the Department harmless from any and all claims for damages that might 
ariseon account of damage to public or private property and right of way acquisition, drainage, and construction easements 
for the construction of the project. 

CONSTRUCTION / INSTALLATION:

The MUNICIPALITY shall enter into and administer the contract for the installation of all equipment and perform such other 
work as required on the project in accordance with the approved project plans, the NCDOT “Standard Specifications for 
Roads and Structures”, January 2018, “Roadway Standard Drawings”,January 2018 and any addendum,all local codes and 
ordinances, and the procedures set out herein below shall be followed: 

A. All Preliminary and construction engineering, supervision, and labor pertaining to the signal installation will be 
furnished by the MUNICIPALITY.

B. No work shall be performed by the MUNICIPALITY prior to approval of the traffic signal design by the 
DEPARTMENT.

C. Installation shall be done by a licensed electrical contractor familiar with traffic signal construction.

D. The DEPARTMENT'S Division Engineer shall have the right to inspect, sample or test, and approve or reject any 
materials or construction methods used during the construction of the project.

E. During installation of the signal equipment, the DEPARTMENT shall inspect the work being performed by the 
MUNICIPALITY to ensure compliance with the project plans, the current NCDOT traffic signal specifications, and the 
terms of this Agreement.

F. Upon completion of the project, and prior to final acceptance by the Department, the MUNICIPALITY will furnish to 
the Department's Division Engineer one (1) signal inventory control sheet and one (1) set of "Plan of Record" plans.

G. Prior to final acceptance by the Department, the Division Engineer shall have the right to make a final inspection of 
the completed work.

H. Failure on the part of the MUNICIPALITY to comply with any of these provisions will be grounds for the Department 
to terminate the project.

I. The MUNICIPALITY agrees to pursue the completion of the work covered by this Agreement as expeditiously as 
feasible and to complete all work within 90 Days of notice to proceed.

J. The MUNICIPALITY shall install thermoplastic pavement markings where pavement markings are required on the 
project.

MAINTENANCE: 

A. Upon completion of the project, the DEPARTMENT shall own the traffic signal. Control and maintenance of the traffic 
signal will be accomplished in the same manner as maintenance of other state system signalized
intersections.

B. In the event of damage to the metal poles, the DEPARTMENT shall install “in-kind” metal poles if funding is available 
from the damage claim or the MUNICIPALITY. However, if said funding is not available, the DEPARTMENT reserves 
the right to install wooden poles in lieu of metal poles (if applicable).

5
- Page 10 -



ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 
DOT REVIEW / INSPECTION 

1000017627

SIGNATURE PAGE 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF,  this Agreement has been executed the day of year heretofore set out, on 
the part of the DEPARTMENT and the MUNICIPALITY by authority duly given.

FED TAX ID NO:___________________ 

REMITTANCE ADDRESS: 
PO Box 250       
APEX, NC 27502-0250

AUTHORIZED SIGNER: ________________________ 

PRINT NAME:_________________________________ 

TITLE: _______________________________________ 

DATE SIGNED: ________________________________

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

BY: ____________________________________

             (CHIEF ENGINEER) 

Date Signed:_____________________________

(Date)PRESENTED TO BOARD OF TRANSPORTATION ITEM O: 

6
- Page 11 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: May 9, 2023 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Allen Coleman, Town Clerk  

Department(s): Town Clerk’s Office  

Requested Motion 

Motion to adopt a Resolution Directing the Town Clerk to Investigate Petition Received, to accept the 

Certificate of Sufficiency by the Town Clerk, and to adopt a Resolution Setting the Date of a Public Hearing 

for May 23, 2023, on the Question of Annexation - Apex Town Council's intent to annex 1.74 acres located at 

7612 Green Level Church Road, Annexation No. 754 into the Town Corporate limits. 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

The Town Clerk certifies to the investigation of said annexation. Adoption of the Resolution authorizes the 

Town Clerk to advertise said public hearing by electronic means and on the Town of Apex’s website.  

 

Attachments 

 CN2-A1: Resolution Directing the Town Clerk to Investigate Petition 
 Certificate of Sufficiency by the Town Clerk 
 Resolution Setting Date of Public Hearing 

 CN2-A2: Legal Description – Satellite Annexation No. 753 
 CN2-A3: Aerial Map – Satellite Annexation No. 753 
 CN2-A4: Plat Map – Satellite Annexation No. 753 

 CN2-A5: Annexation Petition – Satellite Annexation No. 753 
 

 

- Page 12 -



    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE TOWN CLERK 

TO INVESTIGATE PETITION RECEIVED UNDER G.S.§ 160A-58.1 

 

Annexation Petition No. 753 

7612 Green Level Church Road – 1.74 acres 

 

   WHEREAS, G.S. §160A- 58.2 provides that the sufficiency of the petition shall 

be investigated by the Town Clerk before further annexation proceedings may 

take place; and 

 

  WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Apex deems it advisable to 

proceed in response to this request for annexation; 

 

   NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of 

Apex, that the Town Clerk is hereby directed to investigate the sufficiency of the 

above-described petition and to certify to the Town Council the result of his 

investigation. 

 

This the 9th day of May, 2023. 

 

 

______________________________________ 

Jacques K. Gilbert 

Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Allen L. Coleman, CMC, NCCCC 

Town Clerk 

 

  

- Page 13 -



  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATE OF SUFFICIENCY BY THE TOWN CLERK 

 

Annexation Petition No. 753 

7612 Green Level Church Road – 1.74 acres 

 

 

 

 

To:     The Town Council of the Town of Apex, North Carolina 

 

    I, Allen L. Coleman, Town Clerk, do hereby certify that I have investigated the 

annexation petition attached hereto, and have found, as a fact, that said petition 

is signed by all owners of real property lying in the noncontiguous area described 

therein, in accordance with G.S.§ 160A-58.1(b), as amended. 

 

    IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the 

Town of Apex, North Carolina this 9th day of May, 2023. 

 

 

 

 

                                                                      

________________________________ 

Allen L. Coleman, CMC, NCCCC 

Town Clerk 

    

 

 

 
         (Seal) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- Page 14 -



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION SETTING DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

ON THE QUESTION OF ANNEXATION PURSUANT TO G.S.§ 160A-58.2 AS AMENDED 

 

Annexation Petition No. 753 

7612 Green Level Church Road – 1.74 acres 

 

WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of the non-contiguous area 

described herein has been received; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of Apex, North Carolina has by Resolution 

directed the Town Clerk to investigate the sufficiency thereof; and 

 

         WHEREAS, Certification by the Town Clerk as to the sufficiency of said petition 

has been made; 

 

      NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of Apex, 

North Carolina that: 

 

     Section 1.   A public hearing on the question of annexation of the area 

described herein will be held at the Apex Town Hall at 6 o’clock p.m. on the 23rd day 

of May, 2023.  

 

      Section 2.   The area proposed for annexation is described as attached. 

 

      Section 3.   Notice of said public hearing shall be published on the Town of 

Apex Website, www.apexnc.org, Public Notice, at least ten (10) days prior to the date 

of said public hearing. 

 

     This the 9th day of May, 2023. 

 

 

                ________________________________________ 

              Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor  

 

ATTEST:                        

 

 

__________________________________________ 

Allen L. Coleman, Town Clerk 

 

 

Attachment: Legal Description 

- Page 15 -

http://www.apexnc.org/


Beginning at a point, said point being an existing iron pipe located at the southernmost corner of Lot 1 

as shown on a plat recorded in Book of Maps 1988, Page 439 in the Wake County Registry, said point 

also being on the northern 60 foot right of way margin of Green Level Church Road and having North 

Carolina State Plane coordinates of N=731,168.49 and E=2,030,190.35; Thence, along said right of way 

N52°19’46”W, 229.95 feet to a point, said point being a magnetic reading under a tree root; Thence, 

leaving said right of way of Green Level Church Road along the southern edge of a 60 foot private right 

of way, access easement and common use of land the following courses and distances:  Thence, 

N18°42’44”E, 112.51 feet to an existing iron pipe; Thence, N38°43’46”E, 43.44 feet to an existing iron 

pipe; Thence, N60°52’14”E, 46.92 feet to an existing iron pipe; Thence, N80°12’05”E, 66.54 feet to an 

existing iron pipe; Thence, N89°50’39”E, 256.72 feet to a point, said point being an existing iron pipe at 

the easternmost corner of said Lot 1 and the northwest corner of Lot 2 as shown on a plat recorded in 

Book of Maps 1982, Page 822 in said registry; Thence, along the common line between said Lots 1 and 2 

S37°44’51”W, 399.43 feet to the Place and Point of Beginning, containing an area of 76,033 square feet 

or 1.74 acres, more or less. 

- Page 16 -



- Page 17 -



- Page 18 -



- Page 19 -



- Page 20 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: May 9, 2023 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Allen Coleman, Town Clerk 

Department(s): Town Clerk’s Office 

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve, as submitted or amended, Meeting Minutes from the following meetings:  

 April 18, 2023 – Town Council Work Session Meeting Minutes  

 April 25, 2023 – Regular Town Council Meeting Minutes  

 

Approval Recommended? 

The Town Clerk recommends the Town Council approve the meeting minutes as presented or amended.  

 

Item Details 

In accordance with 160A-72 of North Carolina General Statutes (NCGS), the Governing Board has the legal 

duty to approve all minutes that are entered into the official journal of the Board’s proceedings. 

 

Attachments 

 CN3-A1: DRAFT Minutes – April 18, 2023 – Town Council Work Session Meeting Minutes  
 CN3-A2: DRAFT Minutes – April 25, 2023 – Regular Town Council Meeting Minutes  

 

- Page 21 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 1 of 40 

 

TOWN OF APEX 1 
TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION   2 

TUESDAY, APRIL 18, 2023 3 
3:30 P.M.  4 

The Apex Town Council met for a work session on Tuesday, April 18, 2023 at 3:30 p.m. at the 5 
Apex Town Hall located at 73 Hunter Street in Apex North Carolina. 6 

This meeting was open to the public.  Members of the public were able to attend this 7 
meeting in-person or watch online via the livestream on the Town’s YouTube Channel: 8 
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=F2WwI1L6fTQ 9 

 10 

[ATTENDANCE] 11 

 12 
Elected Body  13 
Mayor Jacques K. Gilbert (presiding)  14 
Mayor Pro-Tempore Audra Killingsworth  15 
Councilmember Brett Gantt  16 
Councilmember Ed Gray  17 
Councilmember Terry Mahaffey 18 
Councilmember Arno Zegerman  19 
Absent: None 20 

 21 
Town Staff  22 
Town Manager Catherine Crosby 23 
Deputy Town Manager Shawn Purvis  24 
Assistant Town Manager Demetria John  25 
Assistant Town Manager Marty Stone 26 
Town Attorney Laurie Hohe 27 
Town Clerk Allen Coleman  28 
Deputy Town Clerk Ashley Gentry  29 
Electric Tech Services Manager Rodney Smith  30 
Stormwater Utility Coordinator Evan Kirk  31 
Electric Utilities Director Eric Neumann 32 
Budget and Performance Management Director Amanda Grogan 33 
Finance Director Antwan Morrison 34 
Consultant w/1898 & Co. Part of Burns and McDonnell Craig Brown 35 
All other staff members will be identified appropriately below.  36 

 37 

 38 

 39 

- Page 22 -

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=F2WwI1L6fTQ


DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 2 of 40 

 

[COMMENCEMENT] 1 

 Mayor Gilbert called the meeting to order at 3:37 p.m. and led the Pledge of 2 
Allegiance.  3 

 4 

[AGENDA ITEM NO. 1 – STORMWATER UTILITY-FEE UPDATE AND POTENTIAL 5TH TIER] 5 

Evan Kirk, Stormwater Utility Coordinator provided an overview of the Stormwater 6 
Utility Fee and potential 5th Tier Options.  7 

[SLIDE 1] 8 

 9 

[SLIDE 2] 10 

 11 

 12 

 13 

 14 

- Page 23 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 3 of 40 

 

[SLIDE 3] 1 

 2 

[SLIDE 4] 3 

 4 

 Mr. Kirk said the proposed projected rollout would be January 1, 2024.  5 

[SLIDE 5] 6 

 7 

- Page 24 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 4 of 40 

 

 Councilmember Gantt asked if a 5500 square foot home roughly turns out to be $10 1 
or $20 fee.  2 

 Mr. Kirk said Tier 4 stops at 5400 square feet, anyone who has a 5,401 square feet 3 
home would get a charge of $10 and “one-ish” cents. He said that’s why 5400 square feet is 4 
the cutoff point because if you charge them as a non-residential customer, their bill would be 5 
above $10. 6 

 Councilmember Gantt confirmed that it’s not a step change, but rather a gradual 7 
change. 8 

 Mr. Kirk said at that point the bill becomes prorated for every single square foot and 9 
multiply that by $5.  10 

[SLIDE 6] 11 

 12 

[SLIDE 7] 13 

 14 

 15 

- Page 25 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 5 of 40 

 

[SLIDE 8] 1 

 2 

 3 

 Councilmember Zegerman asked if measurements like 5400 square foot are looking 4 
at any impervious surface like driveways, home itself, and patios. 5 

 Mr. Kirk said yes sir.  6 

 Councilmember Gantt said this was his idea. He said what bothers him the most is a 7 
ten thousand square foot impervious property or bigger is getting charged the same as a five 8 
thousand square foot impervious.  9 

 Mr. Kirk said that option 2 doesn’t do a good job of capturing that tail because we’re 10 
charging everybody that same rate but the cutoff point can be changed. He said additional 11 
tiers could still be added in the future. He said he could get the data of how many people 12 
would fall into any potential tier. 13 

 Councilmember Zegerman asked what the gain would be from this. He said it would 14 
be equitable, and that was good, but the costs would likely offset the revenue. 15 

 Councilmember Gantt said he didn’t think that was right. 16 

 Mr. Kirk said that in the first year, the cost would offset the revenue in the form of 17 
increased staff time, but even in the future the revenue gains would be insignificant. He said 18 
that they weren’t doing this for revenue purposes. 19 

 Councilmember Zegerman said this adds more time having to be dedicated towards 20 
administrative work, in order to monitor the tiers, that could be used for other things. He 21 
asked why they were wanting to do this if it didn’t come up with more funding to help fix 22 
stormwater management. 23 

 Councilmember Gantt asked for Mr. Kirk to clarify what the increase in administrative 24 
costs would be above current.  25 

 Mr. Kirk said it was essentially the same. He said he looks at the aerial imagery, which 26 
has polygons drawn over the property to represent impervious surface, and extends the 27 

- Page 26 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 6 of 40 

 

polygon if necessary to add new impervious surface, such as a patio. He said once this is 1 
edited, the area of impervious surface will be calculated automatically in GIS, so he can see if 2 
it changes the bill. He said in his experience, even when a property changes its amount of 3 
impervious surface, fewer than 10 percent of those instances actually trigger a bill change. He 4 
said the work is not as tedious as they may think, as he’s already doing this process. He said 5 
the $24,000 dollars would more than cover the additional cost.  6 

 Councilmember Killingsworth said that’s part of the reason why they requested 7 
option two, since it would require less administration and add less work to staff. 8 

 Councilmember Mahaffey asked what problem this is actually seeking to solve. He 9 
said lots of town have a flat fee, and equity was why Apex decided to institute a tier system. 10 
He asked if the town has gotten any feedback on four tiers not being enough, and at that 11 
point how many tiers would actually be enough. He said this doesn’t decrease the costs for 12 
people in lower tiers or who have less impervious surface, as he feels they would care more 13 
about paying less than people with more impervious surface paying more. He said this is 14 
essentially a change for the sake of a change, for an issue that isn’t a big problem and 15 
wouldn’t provide much additional revenue. He said this was a year where many fees were 16 
being changed or increased, and this was already a difficult budget to communicate to 17 
citizens. He said he isn’t opposed, it just seems like this change would impact very few people 18 
and require more effort than it’s worth. He said it would add to the narrative that Council is 19 
raising all the rates just for the sake of doing so.  20 

 Councilmember Gantt asked if Mr. Kirk could speak more on the ongoing revenue 21 
increase. He asked if he had an estimate of a five-year average revenue.  22 

 Mr. Kirk said he does not have that information. He said when someone adds 23 
impervious surface to the parcel, it typically is less than a thousand square feet of additional 24 
impervious added. He said a thousand square feet is less than two dollars per month. He said 25 
this would increase revenue some, accounting for administrative costs, in the long run. 26 

 Councilmember Mahaffey said if there was a larger upfront cost to adding 27 
impervious surface, then maybe people would think twice about adding more, versus the 28 
slight monthly increase. He asked if the town has any authority to charge for these things at 29 
permitting time. 30 

 Mr. Kirk said costs like that had to proportional to the administrative costs incurred by 31 
the town  32 

 Councilmember Mahaffey asked if the permit costs have to be fixed with the town’s 33 
costs instead of being based on impact or another measure. 34 

 Mr. Kirk said that this could be the case if the town had to implement a specific 35 
project that was directly caused by an increase in impervious surface. He said he’s never 36 
heard of an upfront fee for impervious.   37 

- Page 27 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 7 of 40 

 

 Councilmember Zegerman asked how many units are in the first tier. He asked if the 1 
town can add tier 5 and set the rates for tier 1 to zero dollars.  2 

 Mr. Kirk said it could be set lower, but it would be legally dubious to set it at zero 3 
dollars because the town can’t set a fee based off of income or other protected classes. If it 4 
lowered it could possibly be a dollar and twenty-five cents. 5 

 Councilmember Gantt said when he proposed this, he was projecting additional 6 
revenue of $25,000 a year, which isn’t a lot but it adds up. He said after four years, this could 7 
potentially bring in $100,000 to do a big project. He also liked that this money would be 8 
coming in from the top 1% of the bracket. 9 

 Councilmember Zegerman said he likes the idea, but he’s trying to figure out why 10 
they would be doing this if the net effect and impact of it is small.  11 

 Councilmember Mahaffey said it sounds like a solution in search of a problem. 12 

 Councilmember Gantt said it was $25,000 a year from the top one percent. 13 

 Councilmember Mahaffey said yes, but that he doesn’t believe that they care and 14 
that it’s a conversation that they Council didn’t have to have if they didn’t want to. He said he 15 
is not opposed to it at some point in the future or raising rates with assumption that they go 16 
up eventually, but he said believes the rates should be tied to increased service or a specific 17 
project.  18 

 Councilmember Gantt said he thinks there are millions of dollars’ worth of 19 
stormwater projects that need to be done, and every little bit helps.  20 

 Mayor Pro Tempore Killingsworth said she doesn’t disagree, and there are a lot of 21 
stormwater projects that need to be done that can be very costly.  22 

 Councilmember Gantt said he imagined every year the town would use this on some 23 
of the smaller projects.  24 

 Director Grogan said for fiscal year 2024 there is an assessment that’s in the budget 25 
to help identify what these projects are so the town can begin to map out what the CIP for 26 
stormwater funds looks like. She said it’s hard to speak on it right now until the assessments 27 
are completed, and phase one of that is coming up in the upcoming year.  28 

 Councilmember Gantt asked if there were a bunch of twenty thousand-dollar 29 
projects that could be done. 30 

 Mr. Kirk said there was a stabilization of a culvert project in the downtown area and 31 
that project would cost about $15000, and that’s an example of a stormwater project that 32 
stormwater dollars were used for. He said there are projects already identified that have work 33 
orders in the system for the upcoming years.  34 

 Mayor Gilbert said this is a great discussion and asked what does Mr. Kirk needs from 35 
Council today.  36 

- Page 28 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 8 of 40 

 

 Mr. Kirk said he didn’t necessarily need a decision today if further discussion is 1 
needed. He said he would accept a decision if there was one so he can start preparing.   2 

 Councilmember Gantt wanted to clarify that if the town wanted to start in January of 3 
next year, then it needs to be in the budget for FY 24-25. 4 

 Mr. Kirk said yes.  5 

 Mayor Pro Tempore Killingsworth said she’d like to make it easy as possible, so 6 
option two or three is what she would prefer. 7 

 Councilmember Mahaffey said another thing he wanted to point out was that this 8 
program just started and is in its second year. He said it has been fairly complicated already, 9 
and coming back this year with a new tier and the other rating without actually solving a 10 
problem, he said he doesn’t think is useful. He said we need to raise 50 to 100 thousand a 11 
year to do it and that’s a directed action to get behind. He said that’s something he could get 12 
behind. He said with other things going on in this year’s budget it’s a discussion to have 13 
further when there are more concrete plans in place.  14 

 Councilmember Gantt asked Councilmember Mahaffey if he wanted the 15 
communication plan to state the examples of projects. 16 

 Councilmember Mahaffey said he’s sharing option three this year. 17 

 Councilmember Gray said he is thinking of the long-term impact of this because the 18 
town can always add on, and he’s in favor of option two.    19 

 Assistant Town Manager Stone asked right now in the system if staff have to go back 20 
and look based on the permit that’s applied for to do an addition, then go back and look at 21 
that particular residence to determine how much it’s going to change their tiers.  22 

 Mr. Kirk said yes, there are both permitted changes in impervious structures addition 23 
tools and there are unpermitted changes that impervious, such as a patio. 24 

 Assistant Town Manager Stone asked what the approach is to reviewing this, and if 25 
it’s every 5 years. 26 

  Mr. Kirk said the town has planning districts. He said until he can get a good sense to 27 
what the workload is actually going to be he is looking at 20 percent of the town per year, 28 
with 12 districts, which leaves about 3 planning districts per year.  29 

 Assistant Town Manager Stone said when doing this work, he is having to look at 30 
previous percentages, and then would only be taking out a small amount of work because 31 
people don’t come in for additions. He said once you get into the fifth tier you don’t have to 32 
do anything. He pointed out that 500 or so customers are going to go up and instead of 33 
going up less than a dollar, they would be going up five dollars. He said this is kind of a 34 
reverse equitable thing where there is 827 that pay exactly what’s owed and for impervious 35 
that would go up less than a dollar, those 827 are going to go up five dollars or 2.50 right out 36 
of the gate, which is Council’s decision. He said it looks like there’s more impact going to a 37 

- Page 29 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 9 of 40 

 

set fee than doing a five dollar per fee. He said from a professional perspective, it’s more 1 
standard to charge per impervious once people get to the cutoff of the ERU. He said it isn’t 2 
usual to go above the ERU, and charge residents less than commercial. He said for 3 
stormwater fees, they have to be defendable.  4 

 Councilmember Mahaffey asked why five tiers of flat fees is indefensible and four 5 
tiers of flat fees is defensible. 6 

 Assistant Town Manager Stone said the gaps are much smaller. He said it is more 7 
defendable in his opinion for customers to pay for anything about their ERU. 8 

 Councilmember Gray said he was convinced and changed his mind to option 1.  9 

 Councilmember Zegerman asked if the town had enough funds to do additional 10 
projects does it have the staff capacity. 11 

 Assistant Town Manager Stone said stormwater is unique and has an operational 12 
side and an engineering side. There’s Public Works and Water Resources, so there’s a lot of 13 
work that can be done internal. It will help address the cost of dissipator pads, energy pads, 14 
and buying other things. He said he’s currently in the process of conditional assessments and 15 
getting the contract going where the town will be looking at that in phases, which will define 16 
maintenance projects like things that needs to be addressed versus projects that may be new 17 
in the project system. 18 

 Councilmember Zegerman asked if the larger impervious services are typically the 19 
bigger homes.  20 

 Mr. Kirk said yes. 21 

Councilmember Zegerman asked if Council raises property tax rates, could the 22 
money be used for stormwater management. 23 

 Mr. Kirk said they legally they can, but are not going to because of stormwater utility 24 
rates. 25 

Assistant Town Manager Stone said the direction was to set up a utility phone for 26 
stormwater that would be self-supported and fully funded using stormwater fees to do 27 
stormwater activities. The direction that was worked on previously in the town would not use 28 
tax dollars for stormwater, he said Council can do that if that’s your direction, but what cannot 29 
be done is using stormwater fees that we collect for anything except stormwater. 30 

Councilmember Zegerman said he’s struggling with this one because if it had a 31 
bigger benefit or a list of projects that can be pointed out it would be more attractive. He said 32 
if they’re going to do it he would say option 2 for five dollars. He said he would like to make it 33 
big enough to be meaningful in some way.  34 

 Mayor Pro Tempore Killingsworth said she likes option 2 because it’s simpler, but 35 
option 1 does seem easier to defend.  36 

- Page 30 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 10 of 40 

 

 Mr. Kirk said option 1 takes out the need to modify the rate structure in the future. He 1 
said option 2 leaves it open to potentially having to change the rate structure in the future.  2 

 Councilmember Gantt said option 1 captured a long tail and is interested in that. He 3 
said this would bring in a very small amount of money, but the fact that it’s an ongoing thing 4 
is why it’s worth discussing. He said $25,000 adds up over time. He asked are there a lot of 5 
small projects that could have more impact than the big ones, he said what he values in this is 6 
more if there’s a ton of small projects that could do a lot of good. 7 

 Assistant Town Manager Stone said he couldn’t answer that because it depends on 8 
where it rains.  9 

 Mr. Kirk said the system assessment is going to allow the town to begin an asset 10 
management program and that asset management program combined with the CIP will allow 11 
staff to rank those projects. He said this will provide a priority ranking. 12 

 Councilmember Gantt said there would be a media pushback from any increase, he 13 
said the pushback would be stronger for the people with the most impervious surface if they 14 
went with option 1 and had to pay 10 or more extra dollars a month. 15 

 Councilmember Mahaffey said he would rather raise rates in three different ways 16 
than in four different ways. He said this would likely cause pushback from people who are 17 
pre-disposed to doing that. He wondered what the justification would be from Council if any 18 
of them were asked why they did this.  19 

 Councilmember Gray said adding to the larger conversation about how to tell 20 
people about this, he says it’s much more of an educational basis. He said the money we’re 21 
getting out of this to help kind of build the fund that education is something that can give us 22 
bigger dividends down the road. He said people will always complain about increases to 23 
fees, and that it comes down to explain what they’re doing and why they’re doing it.  24 

 Mayor Gilbert said there are three members who seem in favor of option one, so 25 
there is a majority.    26 

[AGENDA ITEM #2 – [SOLAR AND EV RATE DESIGN] 27 

Craig Brown, Consultant w/1898 & Co. Part of Burns and McDonnell, gave an 28 
overview of Solar and Electric Vehicle Rate Design.  29 

 30 

 31 

 32 

 33 

 34 

 35 

 36 

- Page 31 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 11 of 40 

 

[SLIDE 1] 1 

 2 

[SLIDE 2] 3 

 4 

[SLIDE 3] 5 

 6 

 Councilmember Gantt said Duke has been in the news recently for votes that were 7 
had along these lines, he asked what Duke is doing versus what they do affect us at all. 8 

- Page 32 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 12 of 40 

 

 Mr. Brown said Duke is changing their net near program just from a flat rate like we 1 
do now to a time of use-based rate. He said details of that are still being worked out 2 

[SLIDE 4] 3 

 4 
SLIDE 5] 5 

 6 

 7 

 8 

 9 

 10 

 11 

 12 

 13 

- Page 33 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 13 of 40 

 

[SLIDE 6] 1 

 2 

[SLIDE 7] 3 

 4 

[SLIDE 8] 5 

 6 

 7 

- Page 34 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 14 of 40 

 

[SLIDE 9] 1 

 2 

 3 

 Assistant Town Manager Stone asked Mr. Brown to explain how our power bills are 4 
made up and the breakdown of costs.  5 

 Mr. Brown said it’s based on the concept of demand charges and energy charge, the 6 
demand charge is set based on the maximum kilowatt load at the peak, in this case its 7 
whenever Duke’s system peaks and what the town’s load is at an hour that sets your demand 8 
charge for the month. Demand charge is going down, it’s 21 dollars per kW, it’s a very high 9 
fixed charge, but energy cost is only 2.689 cents. He said the goal is to incentive people to 10 
use less energy during peak hours.  11 

[SLIDE 10] 12 

 13 

 14 

 15 

 16 

- Page 35 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 15 of 40 

 

[SLIDE 11] 1 

 2 

[SLIDE 12] 3 

 4 

[SLIDE 13] 5 

 6 

 7 

- Page 36 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 16 of 40 

 

[SLIDE 14] 1 

 2 

 Deputy Town Manager Purvis said Apex tends to see people oversize their solar 3 
installation for their property. 4 

 Mr. Brown said the average kW size in Apex was 8.5, while the state average was 6.1. 5 
He said this is largely developer driver, as they know this is an attractive are for solar meter 6 
rates. 7 

[SLIDE 15] 8 

 9 

 10 

 11 

 12 

 13 

 14 

 15 

- Page 37 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 17 of 40 

 

[SLIDE 16] 1 

 2 

[SLIDE 17] 3 

 4 

[SLIDE 18] 5 

 6 

- Page 38 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 18 of 40 

 

[SLIDE 19] 1 

 2 

[SLIDE 20] 3 

 4 

[SLIDE 21] 5 

 6 

 7 

- Page 39 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 19 of 40 

 

Councilmember Zegerman asked to explain what Non-Coincident (NP) peak is.  1 

Mr. Brown said regardless of the system, the individual customers’ peak for the 2 
month is the Non-Coincident Peaker. Coincident Peak (CP) is a customer’s peak at the time of 3 
the case.  4 

[SLIDE 22] 5 

 6 

 7 

 Councilmember Gantt said the best case for Apex solar customers is to have their 8 
panels pointed toward the sun in the morning in the winter and in the evening try to capture 9 
the sun before it goes down in the summer. He said he would incentivize that option to lower 10 
the costs for everybody because of the peak.  11 

 Mr. Brown said it doesn’t have to be just for solar customers, this can be transformed 12 
to all residential customers so everyone is in the same boat.  13 

 Councilmember Zegerman asked are we using differentiated rates for on and off-14 
peak rates.  15 

 Mr. Brown said it’s an option.  16 

 Councilmember Gantt asked if the meter shortage is temporary.  17 

 Director Neumann said the current system that reads the meters is now un-18 
expandable and it doesn’t cover certain areas. He said there are a few meters that are being 19 
saved for commercial customers only.  20 

 Councilmember Zegerman asked if it’s single rates. 21 

 Mr. Brown said yes, currently now everything is at nine and a half cents.  22 

 Councilmember Zegerman said he thinks there is an education issues around 23 
getting this information out as well. 24 

 25 

 26 

- Page 40 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 20 of 40 

 

[SLIDE 23] 1 

 2 

[SLIDE 24] 3 

 4 

[SLIDE 25] 5 

 6 

- Page 41 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 21 of 40 

 

[SLIDE 26] 1 

 2 

[SLIDE 27] 3 

 4 

[SLIDE 28] 5 

 6 

- Page 42 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 22 of 40 

 

 Councilmember Gantt asked if the cost structure in place with the peak being much 1 
higher than the regular is reflective of how much it costs to produce energy.  2 

 Mr. Brown said yes, the town pays the same rate as all their wholesalers. It is a formula 3 
rate that’s updated every year.  4 

[SLIDE 29] 5 

 6 

 Councilmember Gantt asked if it will encourage investment in battery storage.  7 

 Mr. Brown said yes.  8 

 Councilmember Zegerman asked to clarify the hours of peak hours.  9 

 Councilmember Mahaffey said the peak is the peak when the sun is out at its highest 10 
around noon, but the peak usage is at 4 p.m.  11 

 Councilmember Zegerman said the town still has the fixed costs of all our 12 
distribution, he said if you net zero or not you rely on the grids and asks if $25 will cover all 13 
that.  14 

 Mr. Brown said, no, it covers the customer piece.  15 

 Mayor Pro Tempore Killingsworth asked if it’s on the down slope when they’re 16 
providing some offset to the peak charge with our demand charge, is that showing cost 17 
difference. 18 

 Mr. Brown said it actually captures the negative number of power supply where 19 
they’re actually contributing and getting paid for that demand by almost by lowering the 20 
system average. 21 

 Councilmember Gantt asked if time use is the only thing offered, what would the 22 
number be.  23 

 Mr. Brown said that’s the next step in the process is trying to figure out where it goes.   24 

 Councilmember Gantt asked how would adding in heat pumps in Apex over the next 25 
10 years effect this. 26 

- Page 43 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 23 of 40 

 

 Mr. Brown said it’s beneficial because it adds winter kilowatt hour sales which 1 
increase the overall load factor for the system. He said it’s good for the overall system load 2 
factor, but if its in line with your coincident peak it can be harmful.  3 

 Councilmember Gantt said this would maybe increase usage on peak usage on 4 
winter mornings. 5 

 Mr. Brown said yes. 6 

 Councilmember Mahaffey said we have the most solar friendly policy in North 7 
Carolina. He said Duke is making their changes in 2027 not in 2024. He said there is an 8 
opportunity here to see what happens with Duke and learn from that and see what the 9 
impacts are. He said he cares about total revenue versus the subsidy amount, and wants to 10 
look at that ratio. He said currently energy bills are about 1% higher than they would be, due 11 
to the solar incentives put in place for customers who use that. He said there needs to be a 12 
decision made on what that number would be before they felt it was too unfair for the 13 
customers paying the regular rate. He said he feels it is appropriate to put a policy in place 14 
that drives solar adoption, up to the point that solar adoption level is substantial enough or 15 
the standard rate becomes too high because of the subsidy. He said there are several things 16 
they can do if the solar subsidy is getting too expensive. 17 

 Town Manager Crosby said she wanted to clarify that all the customers that are 18 
being charged are getting credits back. She asked if the customer will get the 25-dollar fee 19 
that’s all captured or is the town keeping it the way it is.  20 

 Councilmember Mahaffey said he is okay paying people to get solar panels. He 21 
wants them to get solar panels. He said he wants to see the solar adoption of Apex to a point 22 
where people notice solar panels everywhere. He said once that’s done there is no need to 23 
subsidize anymore and then if costs get too much where everyone’s bills are above a certain 24 
percent then that would be unfair then it would have to be changed at that point. He said 25 
there are ways to make sure it doesn’t get to 5 percent or 10 percent. He said time of use was 26 
presented long term and is absolutely the right thing to do because there are other policy 27 
benefits that have an economic impact. He said he would like to wait to see what Duke 28 
Energy does because he wants to do it better than Duke.  29 

 Mayor Gilbert asked how many ElectriCities municipalities are using the same model 30 
Apex does.  31 

 Mr. Brown said Clayton wants to be similar to Apex. He said Greenville has three 32 
options, they are less solar friendly. He said they have a net billing option, buy and sell 33 
option, they have a net metering option with a demand charge.  34 

 Councilmember Gantt asked if time of use can be the only choice.  35 

 Mr. Brown said that’s where he thinks the town should go and make this a mandatory 36 
rate for all residential customers. 37 

- Page 44 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 24 of 40 

 

 Councilmember Gantt said he thinks the solar adoption curve is going to be ramping 1 
up quickly, and in turn so will the increase to the non-solar energy billing per customer. 2 

 Councilmember Mahaffey said he didn’t think it would be that quick, as not all 3 
homes would be suitable for solar adoption. He said his feedback is he doesn’t want to make 4 
any drastic change today. He said the key number is the revenue loss and he wants to track 5 
certain points it reaches because he wants to make a policy change.  6 

 Mayor Pro Tempore Killingsworth said she would like to look at all of these other 7 
policy change options as part of the recommendation. She said she doesn’t want to make any 8 
changes until AMA goes online and the exact numbers are out to know how much to offset 9 
were getting and not estimates.  10 

 Councilmember Zegerman asked what is the timeline.  11 

 Assistant Town Manager Stone said hopefully the town will get the contract in May. 12 
He said the first thing that has to happen is they start with our infrastructure building for the 13 
meters, and having our meters Apex specific. He said then there is a pilot program to make 14 
sure everything is working. It would be a solid year before the phase actually started.  15 

 Mayor Gilbert asked if it was a possibility to raise electric rates. He said some people 16 
can’t afford the solar, and it does impact a large number of residents. He said he has to speak 17 
on behalf of the residents that can’t continue to afford the rate increases.  18 

 Councilmember Gantt said he thinks time of use should be used for everybody 19 
anyway and it’s a bonus that it helps with the solar incentives.  20 

 Councilmember Mahaffey said he agrees, but it’s impractical to have everyone go to 21 
time of use. He said it’s actually a lifestyle change to save money, but if nothing is changed, 22 
time of use would be a big bill increase.  23 

 Councilmember Gantt said it should be a gradual switch. 24 

 Mr. Brown said it’s also a marketing plan. He said they would need to educate their 25 
customers. He added that in the first year of implementing something like these where 26 
customers could potentially change habits to save money on time of use, they could see how 27 
their electric bill changes over that first year, but still pay the original rate if time of us ended 28 
up being higher, in order to provide a sort of buffer period. 29 

 Director Grogan said they talked about piloting the possible rates out to people in 30 
order to educate people on the options and get public feedback. 31 

 Councilmember Zegerman said the rates can be changed over time. 32 

 Director Neumann explained how the rates have changed over the years and how 33 
rates are going now. He said the current rates do not disincentivize people from using energy 34 
at peak hours. He said demand is the most important factor. He said if people could be 35 
incentivized to use less energy during peak time either through CP or time of use rates, the 36 
town can reduce energy bills drastically. He said the problem is they’re trying to recover 37 

- Page 45 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 25 of 40 

 

energy cost through a variable that isn’t related to how they are being billed. He said EV 1 
chargers and solar are messing with the way that cost used to be recovered.  2 

 Mayor Pro Tempore Killingsworth asked if we have someone who is looking at the 3 
numbers so the town can recover more accurately. 4 

 Mr. Brown said it’s less risky to have the flat CP rate rather than using time of use, 5 
because of time of use has to have the proper timing of peak hours, and that can end up not 6 
working out if the peaks aren’t aligned. 7 

 Director Neumann said unfortunately the town is stuck with Duke Energy’s peak that 8 
we don’t know about until the month closes. He said the morning time is good to turn on 9 
generators for an hour or two before the peak is going to hit. He said the entire load 10 
management program needs to be overhauled. He said he would like to mandate 11 
participation, or charge people at a different rate. 12 

 Councilmember Mahaffey said it seemed important to get people to not be 13 
charging EVs during Peak Hours. 14 

[SLIDE 30] 15 

 16 

[SLIDE 31] 17 

 18 

 19 

 20 

- Page 46 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 26 of 40 

 

[SLIDE 32] 1 

 2 

[SLIDE 33] 3 

 4 

 Councilmember Mahaffey asked if there were ways to tell how many EVs or being 5 
charged or who had them 6 

 Mr. Brown said they could get data analysts to find patterns in large spikes which can 7 
show peak hours and can extrapolated to determine large energy-use items such as EVs 8 

 Councilmember Mahaffey said the important thing is to show people the 9 
comparison over a period of time for on-peak versus off-peak rates. 10 

 Director Neumann said the town needs to look at the customers its going to affect 11 
and educate them.  12 

 Councilmember Mahaffey said that once the AMI came in, they could see the 13 
customers who contribute the most to on-peak usage, and communicate directly with them 14 
about potentially changing their energy use habits to lower their bill significantly and 15 
decreased the overall peak usage. 16 

 Director Neumann said once they get the systems in to capture and utilize this data, 17 
they can work with the customers with high energy usages and help them work on that. 18 

 Councilmember Mahaffey said he’s looking more of a direct outreach to the people 19 
as it could likely change their behavior if someone tells them how to save money. He 20 

- Page 47 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 27 of 40 

 

suggested a pilot program where people can “trial” a time of use program where they would 1 
be charged the lower of the two between flat rate and time of use. He said this is 2 
complicated, and it would be difficult to get people to fully understand this. 3 

[SLIDE 34] 4 

 5 

[SLIDE 35] 6 

 7 

[SLIDE 36] 8 

 9 

- Page 48 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 28 of 40 

 

 Councilmember Zegerman asked what is the benefit of having a separate meter 1 
compared to load management 2 

 Mr. Brown said it gives the customer more control, and that they don’t have to 3 
expose their entire house to time of use. He said load management works well, but has a 4 
higher administrative burden. 5 

 Councilmember Mahaffey said he would want to hook up as many things as possible 6 
to a time of use system knowing what the advantages and timings are. asked how 7 
implementable is EV Chargers, and if permits are required.  8 

 Assistant Town Manager Stone said if customers are getting a 240 Volt Plug-In. they 9 
are supposed to get a permit. He said once we have AMI, that will show who has them.  10 

[SLIDE 37] 11 

 12 

[SLIDE 38] 13 

 14 

 15 

 16 

 17 

- Page 49 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 29 of 40 

 

[SLIDE 39] 1 

 2 

 Director Neumann said the CP rate guarantees that the town captures the peak 3 
period, and if the system goes to time of use, there may be occasions where peak is going to 4 
float into a period that wasn’t covered. He said the impact on this would be significant. He 5 
said usually the highest demands are going to be in the same time of year and day, but 6 
there’s still risk that it wouldn’t be. He said the CP rate guarantees no risk. 7 

 Councilmember Mahaffey said the risk is pushed to the customer and they would 8 
get a high bill. He said he thinks it’s appropriate for the town to take on the risk and mitigate 9 
all customers so no one suddenly gets a high bill.  10 

[SLIDE 40] 11 

 12 

 13 

 14 

 15 

- Page 50 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 30 of 40 

 

[SLIDE 41] 1 

 2 

 Councilmember Gray gave his perspective since he owns a Tesla. He said if he plugs 3 
his car into an ordinary plug he would add five miles every one hour, if he plugs it in a home 4 
charger he would add 40 miles, and if he goes to a Tesla supercharger that’s operating at 5 
350 kilowatts he would add 300 miles every half hour. He said the middle ground is the level 6 
2 charger. 7 

[SLIDE 42] 8 

 9 

 10 

 11 

 12 

 13 

 14 

- Page 51 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 31 of 40 

 

[SLIDE 43] 1 

 2 

[SLIDE 44] 3 

 4 

[SLIDE 45] 5 

 6 

 7 

- Page 52 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 32 of 40 

 

[SLIDE 46] 1 

 2 

[SLIDE 47] 3 

 4 

 5 

 Councilmember Gray usually people who plug in at an EV charger do so because 6 
they are on critically low battery. He said since they charge so slow, there’s no advantage to 7 
using it over one at home He added that the ones on Saunders get a lot of traffic because 8 
people can plug in during meals, but even then, they can only add about 20 miles to their 9 
range during a meal. He noted that for him as an EV owner, the number one problem and 10 
deterrent is the risk of pulling up to a charger and having it not work.  11 

 Mr. Brown said level 2 publics chargers could be on time of use, but any business 12 
who adopts the level 3 DCFC charger should be mandated to be on the CP rate, in his 13 
opinion. He said the CP rate changes monthly in line with the peak, but can’t really be 14 
predictable. He said if the CP rate was expanded, their would likely need to be good 15 
communication with customers to inform them of the possibility of a certain day being on a 16 
CP rate.  17 

- Page 53 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 33 of 40 

 

 Councilmember Zegerman asked how to explain to a customer why their rates 1 
changed and they got an unexpectedly high bill if they started charging 10 minutes before 8, 2 
then left it on until 8:30.  3 

 Mr. Brown said the expected rates throughout the day shown on the chargers, they 4 
would stay consistent throughout each season and people would have a much better idea of 5 
what to expect. 6 

 Councilmember Mahaffey said he would want to incentivize private EV station 7 
operators to utilize a much higher charging rate. 8 

[SLIDE 48] 9 

 10 

[SLIDE 49] 11 

 12 

Mayor Gilbert asked if a decision needs to be made or if this is for information only.  13 

 Councilmember Mahaffey asked did Council want to try the three-tier time use 14 
policy, he said he doesn’t want to make it mandatory but nothing is stopping from trying it 15 
out.  16 

Mr. Brown suggested to do the certified pilot program this year and they could 17 
design the rate.  18 

- Page 54 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 34 of 40 

 

Director Grogan said these are decisions she needs for the budget. She said right 1 
now at a minimum the town is going to have a four percent increase for electric. She said an 2 
impact at residential rates that’s being looked at is set $25 charge so everyone pays to cover 3 
distribution costs and asked that it can’t go negative for the year. 4 

Mr. Brown said you could be under one month and it would roll over the next month.  5 

Deputy Town Manager Purvis said an issue with this is that it has been being done 6 
manually, and it can’t be automated until more resources come into play for the town to use.  7 

Councilmember Gantt clarified that Council was wanting to go one decision at a 8 
time. 9 

Councilmember Mahaffey said he was a hard no, as this would position the town as 10 
worse than Duke. 11 

Assistant Town Manager Stone said they wanted to get 90 days’ worth of cash on 12 
hand in case of unexpected energy costs. 13 

Mayor Gilbert said it sounds like a lot of numbers and forecasting and asked if this 14 
can be looked at and come back at another time to make a more informed decision 15 

Councilmember Zegerman said he hasn’t seen the rate impacts or how it would 16 
affect the budget with the rate proposals. 17 

Councilmember Mahaffey said the 4% increase was a 3% pass-through from the 18 
supplier, then 1% from the town, which he said was great.  19 

Mayor Gilbert said they have a subject matter expert in the room, and he wanted to 20 
know if the discussion would be factoring in demand for solar, of if Council wanted to 21 
continue going in the direction they felt was right.   22 

Councilmember Mahaffey said he is listening to the conversation, and he would 23 
consider incremental changes to the solar surcharge for non-solar customers. He said he 24 
didn’t want that charge to get too large for those people, and that wouldn’t be fair. He said 25 
the town has a chance to learn from Duke and possibly model after them. He said they are 26 
moving towards a time of use structure, and he is willing to do that as well over time. He said 27 
if the town can change behaviors alongside implementing time of use, it would be a win-win 28 
for them and customers. 29 

Director Neumann said one thing to keep in mind there is really no relationship 30 
between the town’s rates and how Duke does their business model.  He said a lot of this 31 
conversation consists of “what does Duke do”. He said Duke does things for financial reasons 32 
and are driven by a lot of other things that the Town of Apex has nothing to do with. He said 33 
we cannot make our policy match Duke’s; the town does not have those drivers and is not 34 
getting compensated. He said the town can keep rates in line with Duke, but right now the 35 
town’s rates are 13% cheaper than Duke’s residential rates. 36 

- Page 55 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 35 of 40 

 

Councilmember Mahaffey said he wanted to be clear that he wasn’t comparing the 1 
town to Duke to say any decision they make would also be good for the town. He said he 2 
didn’t care what their motivation for doing things was. He said what is important is what our 3 
citizens see and the comparison of Duke and the Town’s bill amount. He said if the town’s bill 4 
isn’t lower than Duke’s, then it shouldn’t be a public utility. He said the town have to provide 5 
better service at lower cost or roughly the same cost to justify the existence of the electric 6 
department in the town. He said there was no reason to do any of that if the town wasn’t 7 
doing better than Duke for rates and value. He said the town is currently much better than 8 
Duke, and he wants to stay much better than Duke in every way. 9 

 Mayor Gilbert said he really loves that the Town of Apex has their own Electric 10 
Utilities. He said if things continue going the direction they are going, the town would lose 11 
out on that. 12 

 Councilmember Mahaffey said he wouldn’t let that happen. He said if it gets to a 13 
point where the town is worse than Duke, they could make changes to rectify that.   14 

 Councilmember Gantt said Councilmember Mahaffey’s position on the electric 15 
utilities discussion has made him skeptical the town should continue with providing the 16 
public utility. He said he has become concerned about the long-term direction the town is 17 
heading.  18 

 Councilmember Mahaffey said with the current level of solar subsidy of today, he’s 19 
comfortable with it. He said he would be growing uncomfortable as it grows, and is willing to 20 
consider changes. particularly the time of use changes. He would like to keep an eye on what 21 
the number is exactly. He said he was trying to communicate that he is willing to change it in 22 
the future but today he doesn’t think we have a problem but as the adoption grows it can 23 
become a problem.  24 

 Councilmember Gantt said the curve looks to be exponential and not linear.  25 

 Mayor Gilbert said when it comes to building the budget, people are suffering. He 26 
said he gets a lot of calls of people wondering if there is going to be a tax increase or an 27 
electric rate increase, and said all those dollars add up and everyone can’t afford it. He said 28 
he wants to make some adjustments. 29 

 Councilmember Gantt said he was ready to start voting on some of these proposals. 30 

 Councilmember Zegerman said he felt like the $25 is meaningless unless the budget 31 
impact is known. He asked what is the $25 minimum dollar bill going to do for the town. He 32 
asked what does it help and what would the offset be on a potential rate increase. He said a 33 
complete conversation needs to be discussed and not just about weather $25 is a good 34 
number. 35 

 Town Manager Crosby asked Councilmember Zegerman if he wants to understand 36 
what is the fixed cost rate per customer to understand how that covers our fixed costs for 37 
utility.   38 

- Page 56 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 36 of 40 

 

 Councilmember Zegerman said yes.  1 

 Town Manager Crosby said right now until the new ERP the town cannot separate 2 
the charge and the fix rate because our system does the credit to the bill. 3 

 Councilmember Mahaffey said that once the ERP comes into play, the credits that 4 
cannot be applied in one month because of the minimum charge could be rolled over to be 5 
applied in a different month. 6 

 Councilmember Zegerman said the conversation he would like to have is if the town 7 
is looking at a four percent increase on electric grades and if it does a $25 minimum, how 8 
would it be implemented. 9 

 Mr. Brown said the main question for today was if Council was willing to go above the 10 
system average for residents based on cost of service. He said case of service is a study which 11 
tells how relative the system average to what each class of share of that revenue department 12 
is.  13 

Director Grogan said it was found that the large service was subsidizing residential 14 
and the plan is to offset that so the different types of services do a cost recovery. That’s some 15 
of the rates that were looked at from the Finance Committee and had those large general 16 
services frozen because the other increase would make up the revenue rate as it is already 17 
overcompensating. 18 

Mr. Brown said he would cap it as a percentage of the system average.  19 

Director Grogan asked Councilmember Zegerman what information does he need.  20 

Councilmember Mahaffey said he wanted to be clear this a different conversation 21 
than the one they were just on. He said there has been a concern about residential customers 22 
subsidizing other residential commercials. He said he thinks it is good that large commercial 23 
customers help subsidize residential customers. He said as long as large customers are 24 
getting a better deal than if they were with Duke, and it additionally helps residential 25 
customers, he likes that overall. He said he doesn’t feel a need for larger customers to have a 26 
more equitable distribution. He said he does not want to change the deal that people who 27 
bought solar panels already have. He said the capital investment they made assumed there 28 
would not be something like the 25-dollar minimum charge being proposed.  29 

Director Grogan said there are about 24,000 residential customers, but less than 20 30 
large customers in this conversation.  31 

Town Manager Crosby said there is confusion because some information that was 32 
presented to the Finance Committee hasn’t been presented to the entire field. She said today 33 
the biggest thing is the impact on the budget which is something that will have more 34 
discussion on May 5th. She said the three main things that need to be addressed are the rates 35 
between LGC and residential customers, the 25-dollar minimum electric fee, and the Solar EV 36 
subsidies and their impacts.  37 

- Page 57 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 37 of 40 

 

 Councilmember Zegerman said he wants a comparison between current electric 1 
funds and what could be brought in or changed based on possible policy levers. Then based 2 
on what he understood he said there needs to be a conversation on how the gaps are going 3 
to be closed. He said he can’t make a call right now on one specific conversation about one 4 
specific grade without all the other numbers. He said he didn’t have all the information to 5 
make an informed decision. 6 

 Councilmember Gray said that’s the component of the budget retreat is to talk these 7 
discussions out. He said a policy recommendation in terms of how to provide either 8 
assistance options like to opt out. He asked Town Manager Crosby to add to the list of 9 
discussion topics the feeling that customers with the lowest means have a life raft of sorts for 10 
this kind of rate change, and how to manage that through assistance or opt-out options. He 11 
said equity is a big part of this conversation, and he wants to ensure that is discussed as well. 12 

 Town Manager Crosby asked Council if they would be amenable to splitting up the 13 
conversation.  14 

 Councilmember Zegerman said the conversation of management costs has not been 15 
talked about it. He said if it has, he doesn’t know about it. He said the conversation has been 16 
centered on the revenue side. 17 

 Town Manager Crosby said Finance Committee has.  18 

 Councilmember Mahaffey said the number he thought was a 1% increase in 19 
operating costs year over year for electric. 20 

 Director Grogan said it’s higher than one percent. She said the town did substantially 21 
reduce expenditures and looked at that and inflation, she said specific requests related to 22 
new positions or crews were looked at as part of recommendations. 23 

 Councilmember Zegerman said he wasn’t part of the Finance Committee and his 24 
observation is based on today’s conversation. He said it seems he’s being asked to make 25 
decisions based on partial as incomplete information. He said he cannot do that. He said he 26 
needed the full package of information or he would have to be counted out for the vote. He 27 
said he can’t sit there and say “yeah, this is fine” or “this is not good”, since he doesn’t 28 
understand the complete impact it would have on residents. He said he’s frustrated because 29 
he’s not getting the information needs to make a proper budget decision.  30 

 Town Manager Crosby said that this work session technically is not part of the town’s 31 
budget process, it’s a session that was set to circle back on a conversation regarding rates. 32 
She said part of the frustration is probably because this is falling in the middle of the budget 33 
process.  34 

 Councilmember Zegerman said that the conversation was being treated as having 35 
budget means. He said Director Grogan is asking about specifics in order to model the 36 
budget, which he says makes complete sense. He said because of this being tied in, all 37 
information needs to be given before making a decision. 38 

- Page 58 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 38 of 40 

 

 Director Grogan said the meeting was just geared to part of the rate study for the 1 
impact of solar subsidies and EV charging because the town is seeing a huge uptick. She said 2 
a vote is not necessarily needed but she needs direction on these different things. She’s also 3 
trying to get some direction in terms of budget because of the draft budget and wants 4 
Council informed with all information for them to be prepared on May 5th.  5 

 Town Manager Crosby said the challenge is there are two conversations going on, 6 
one is a conversation is being followed up from last year and then secondly, she’s following 7 
up from the Personnel Meeting. She said to Councilmember Zegerman that’s why he’s 8 
missing some information, since not everyone was in on the previous discussions.  9 

 Councilmember Zegerman said they need to develop a viewpoint on how to handle 10 
these discussions will have an impact in the future. 11 

 Councilmember Mahaffey said he felt they had, with the discussion around time of 12 
use. 13 

 Councilmember Zegerman said yes that is true, but there hasn’t been a follow up on 14 
everything such as what would happen with the 25-dollar minimum fee. 15 

 Mayor Pro Tempore Killingsworth said it use to be a day and a half of budget 16 
retreat where Council would combine all this information into that day and decide based on 17 
that policy or budget related item. She said spreading it out like this is better for everybody 18 
that we don’t have to spend a day and a half analyzing all this stuff all at once. She said it’s not 19 
about giving feedback, it’s about seeing where the policy is and getting the information 20 
needed so Council can form a direction to go in. She said the information Councilmember 21 
Zegerman is looking for is going to come in the next budget session, and that is based on 22 
some of the background information that has been talked about. 23 

 Councilmember Zegerman said he’s not part of the Finance Committee or the 24 
Personnel Committee so some of the documentation and information being referenced he 25 
has not seen, and so he doesn’t know what to do with what he is being asked. 26 

 Councilmember Gray said something that had been done before with stormwater is 27 
a conversation that was had in committee was determined to be useful to expand to the 28 
larger body. He said the issue ultimately needs to be addressed in the budget meeting. He 29 
said getting the information earlier helps Council understand things before it’s being 30 
discussed in a budget meeting.  31 

 Councilmember Zegerman asked if a decision needed to be made or if the 32 
conversation could move on for now.  33 

 Deputy Town Manager Purvis said this information will help build out a plan 34 
because the systems needed to fully implement these discussions aren’t available yet, such as 35 
the ERP and the AMI that are expected down the road. He said talking about it now helps 36 
plan out for the future. He said the immediate effect is that the town is not changing the rate 37 
structure, the rates might change, but the structure will stay the same.  38 

- Page 59 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 39 of 40 

 

 Mayor Pro Tempore Killingsworth said the next time Council talks about solar or any 1 
changes that policy and things like the size of the system could also be discussed as possible 2 
limitations.  3 

 Deputy Town Manager Purvis said there’s a lot of factors that go into this discussion. 4 
He to set the future model rate, they need to know what model is going to be used.  5 

 Councilmember Zegerman said now that Council has all these variables in play, 6 
scenarios should be run. He said it was a great presentation and that he learned a lot. He said 7 
he wanted to understand how far the spread between time of use rates should be in various 8 
versions.  9 

[SLIDE 50] 10 

 11 

 12 

[CLOSED SESSION] 13 

 14 

 A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tempore Audra Killingsworth, seconded by 15 
Councilmember Arno Zegerman, to go into Closed Session pursuant to:  16 

NCGS § 143-318.11 (6) 17 

“To consider the qualifications, competence, performance, character, fitness, conditions of 18 
appointment, or conditions of initial employment of an individual public officer or employee 19 
or prospective public officer or employee; or to hear or investigate a complaint, charge, or 20 
grievance by or against an individual public officer or employee.” 21 

VOTE: 5-0 (UNANIMOUS) 22 
 23 
Council entered into closed session at 5:48 p.m.  24 
 25 
Council returned into open session at 6:21 p.m.  26 

 27 

- Page 60 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 40 of 40 

 

[ADJOURNMENT] 1 
Mayor Gilbert declared the meeting adjourned at 6:21 p.m. 2 
 3 
 4 
 5 
 6 

Jacques K. Gilbert  7 
Apex, Mayor 8 

 9 
 10 
Allen Coleman, CMC, NCCCC 11 
Apex, Town Clerk  12 
 13 
Submitted for approval by Apex Town Clerk Allen Coleman.  14 
 15 
Minutes approved on _______ of ___________, 2023. 16 

- Page 61 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 1 of 18 
 

TOWN OF APEX 1 
REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING 2 

TUESDAY, APRIL 25, 2023 3 
6:00 PM 4 

 5 
The Apex Town Council met for a Regular Town Council Meeting on Tuesday, April 25, 2023 at 6:00 6 
PM in the Council Chambers at Apex Town Hall, located at 73 Hunter Street in Apex, North Carolina. 7 
 8 
This meeting was open to the public.  Members of the public were able to attend this meeting in-9 
person or watch online via the livestream on the Town’s YouTube Channel. The recording of this 10 
meeting can be viewed here: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=fbUCRG149Wo 11 
 12 
[ATTENDANCE] 13 
 14 
Elected Body 15 
Mayor Pro-Tempore Audra Killingsworth (presiding) 16 
Councilmember Brett Gantt  17 
Councilmember Ed Gray  18 
Councilmember Terry Mahaffey 19 
 20 
Absent: Mayor Jacques K. Gilbert and Councilmember Arno Zegerman 21 
 22 
Town Staff 23 
Town Manager Catherine Crosby 24 
Deputy Town Manager Shawn Purvis  25 
Assistant Town Manager Marty Stone 26 
Town Attorney Laurie Hohe 27 
Town Clerk Allen Coleman  28 
Deputy Town Clerk Ashley Gentry 29 
Planning Director Dianne Khin 30 
All other staff members will be identified appropriately below 31 
 32 
[COMMENCEMENT] 33 
 34 
 Mayor Pro Tempore Audra Killingsworth called the meeting to order and welcomed all 35 
those attending and watching on livestream. She wanted to remind people that Apex was currently 36 
celebrating its 150th year. She discussed the Think Apex initiative, which helps celebrate those who 37 
make a difference in Apex, and encourages other to do so as well. She said Apex was made stronger 38 
by the variety of individuals that live here. She asked people to think about how they have given, 39 
how they do give, and how they will give to the Town of Apex. She said the town sees diversity as a 40 
strength, and asked everyone to join her in observing a personal moment of silence. 41 
 42 
 Mayor Pro Tempore Killingsworth then led Council and those in attendance in a recitation 43 
of the Pledge of Allegiance. 44 

- Page 62 -

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=fbUCRG149Wo


DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 2 of 18 
 

 1 
[SLIDE 1] 2 

 3 
 4 
[CONSENT AGENDA] 5 
 6 
 A motion was made by Councilmember Ed Gray, seconded by Councilmember Terry 7 
Mahaffey, to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. 8 
 9 
 VOTE: 4-0 (UNANIMOUS)  10 
 11 
CN1 Agreement - Converge One - Microsoft Teams Phone Services (REF: CONT-2023-098) 12 

Council voted to approve a three-year Agreement between the Town and Converge One as a 13 

vendor to provide telephone services and to authorize the Town Manager to execute the agreement 14 

on behalf of the Town. 15 

CN2 Agreement – Supplement No. 4 - North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) 16 

- Lake Pine Drive Improvements - Completion Date 12/31/2024 (REF: CONT-2023-099) 17 

Council voted to approve a 4th Supplemental Agreement with NCDOT to extend the project 18 

completion deadline to 12/31/24 for U-5537, Lake Pine Drive Improvements, and to authorize the 19 

Town Manager to execute the agreement on behalf of the Town.   20 

CN3 Agreement - North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) - Saunders St and 21 

Hinton St Sidewalk Project - BL-0095 (REF: CONT-2023-100) 22 

Council voted to approve a Review and Oversight Agreement with NCDOT for design review and 23 

project oversight activities for project BL-0095, Saunders St and Hinton St Sidewalk, requiring 24 

payment of a $10,000.00 deposit, and to authorize the Town Manager to execute the agreement on 25 

behalf of the Town. 26 

CN4 Contract Technical Amendment - Itron, Inc. - Water and Electric Meter Software  27 

 (REF: CONT-2023-101) 28 

- Page 63 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 3 of 18 
 

Council voted to approve the Amendment to the Itron Field Deployment Manager (FDM) and Field 1 

Tools Agreement and to authorize the Town Manager to execute the Amendment on behalf of the 2 

Town. 3 

CN5 Council Meeting Minutes – Various  4 

Council voted to approve, as submitted or amended, the Regular Town Council Meeting Minutes of 5 

April 11, 2023. 6 

CN6 Design and Development Manual Updates (REF: OTHER-2023-038) 7 

Council voted to approve the removal of details from the Design and Development Manual that were 8 

added to the Standard Specifications and Standard Details on February 28, 2023. 9 

CN7 Encroachment Agreement - 2553 Silas Peak Lane Lot 30 (REF: CONT-2023-102) 10 

Council voted to approve an encroachment agreement between the Town and property owner 11 

Upright Builders, Inc to install a driveway that will encroach 55 square feet (SF) onto the Town of 12 

Apex 20’ Public Drainage Easement and authorize the Town Manager to execute the same. 13 

CN8 Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) System - Various Agreements, Budget Ordinance 14 

Amendment No. 16 and Capital Project Ordinance Amendment No. 2023-7  15 

(REF: ORD-2023-033, ORD-2023-034, VARIOUS CONTRACTS) 16 

Council voted to approve enterprise resource planning (ERP) system contracts, authorize the Town 17 

Manager to execute said contracts, and approve corresponding Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 18 

16 and Capital Project Ordinance Amendment No. 2023-7. 19 

CN9 Surplus Badge and Service Weapon - Retiring Police Officer Joseph S. Gianni 20 

Council voted to declare one (1) badge and (1) service weapon (Glock Model 17 9mm handgun, 21 

Serial Number XTA-784) as surplus property; and, award to Retiring Officer Joseph S. Gianni who 22 

retired from the Apex Police Department. 23 

 24 

[PRESENTATIONS] 25 

 26 

PR1 Proclamation – Apex Small Business Week – April 30 through May 6, 2023  27 

(REF: PRO-2023-011) 28 

 Mayor Pro Tempore Killingsworth and the rest of Council read the Apex Small Business 29 

2023 Proclamation in unity.  30 

 Colleen Merays, Small Business Manager, invited up the owner of Apex Gallery in 31 

Downtown Apex, Nick Bryant, to receive the proclamation. 32 

- Page 64 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 4 of 18 
 

 Mr. Bryant then gave a few comments, saying on behalf of the downtown businesses and 1 

other small businesses in Apex, they appreciate the town’s support and look forward to its future 2 

support. He encouraged people to continue shopping in Apex.  3 

  4 

PR2 Proclamation – Civilian Law Enforcement Professionals Week – April 23 through April 5 

29, 2023 (REF: PRO-2023-012) 6 

 Mayor Pro Tempore Killingsworth, along with the rest of Council, then read the Civilian 7 

Law Enforcement Professionals Week 2023 Proclamation in unity.  8 

 Police Chief Jason Armstrong then accepted the proclamation, and expressed his gratitude 9 

to Council for accepting their request to acknowledge the Civilian Law Enforcement Professionals. 10 

He said there are a lot of people who contribute to keeping the community safe, and he said he 11 

appreciated Council committing to recognizing them.  12 

 13 

PR3 Proclamation - Public Service Recognition Week - May 7 through May 13, 2023  14 

(PRO-2023-013) 15 

 Mayor Pro Tempore Killingsworth, along with the rest of Council, read the Public Service 16 

Recognition Week 2023 Proclamation in unity.  17 

 Mary Beth Manville, Human Resources Director, wanted specifically recognized Town of 18 

Apex employees present, and asked them to stand and be recognized. She thanked everyone for 19 

their support of town employees. 20 

 21 

PR4 Proclamation – Think Apex Day – Saturday, April 29, 2023 (PRO-2023-014) 22 

 Mayor Pro Tempore Audra Killingsworth, along with the rest of Council, read the Think 23 

Apex Day 2023 Proclamation in unity.  24 

 Barbara Belisic, Small Business Specialist, introduced a representative from Cambridge 25 

Village, and Tim Ahler, President of Western Wake Crisis Ministry, who are recipients of two of the 26 

activities at Think Apex Day. They accepted the proclamation. 27 

 Mr. Ahler thanked the Council for their support of Western Wake Crisis Ministry, and 28 

encouraged everyone to come volunteer and help in their work. 29 

 Ms. Belicic added that residents can find the Think Apex website by googling “Think Apex” 30 

(NOTE: Think Apex Website Link - https://www.apexnc.org/946/Think-Apex) 31 

 32 

[REGULAR MEETING AGENDA] 33 

- Page 65 -

https://www.apexnc.org/946/Think-Apex


DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 5 of 18 
 

 1 

 A motion was made by Councilmember Ed Gray, seconded by Councilmember Brett 2 

Gantt, to approve the Regular Meeting Agenda as presented. 3 

 4 

 VOTE: UNANIMOUS (4-0) 5 

 6 

[PUBLIC FORUM]  7 

(NOTE: To view sign-up sheets, see OTHER-2023-040) 8 

 9 

[SLIDE 2] 10 

 11 

 12 

 First to speak was Ashley Solis of 1272 Brown Velvet Lane (NOTE: Ms. Solis provided 13 

handouts to Council - REF: OTHER-2023-039) 14 

 15 

“Sort of the continuation of the last five time we’ve been here, I kind of collated everything that we’re 16 

requesting from the Town. Where we would like some painted crosswalks put in, rectangular rapid 17 

flashing beacons, I know that’s been something that’s been newly installed at different intersections 18 

in Apex, it seems to be successful. Still with the reduction of the speed limit between, we’re asking 19 

specifically that Richardson between US 64 and Olive Chapel, from 45 to 35. And that wouldn’t be all 20 

of Richardson, just that specific stretch. We’re also asking, the more I’m researching and looking into 21 

this, bringing in specifically a pedestrian safety consultant of some kind, because I know everyone is 22 

doing the best they can, but if they’re not trained specifically for pedestrian, I’m not as concerned 23 

with city traffic, I’m concerned with children on the street getting hit. And the main presser for this is, 24 

I’m really hoping we can get this done before Richardson is turned out to Departments of 25 

Transportation, because I think we all know it’s dead in the water then, we’ll never get anything 26 

done. So, there’s a lot going on, and I feel it’s the town’s responsibility because the commercial site 27 

- Page 66 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 6 of 18 
 

of Sweetwater was approved, and it’s awesome and I can’t wait, but with that you can’t approve 1 

outdoor venues, outdoor concert areas, farmer’s markets, and all these things and not do anything 2 

for safety, and I don’t think anyone did this on purpose, but we know it’s a problem, so there’s a 3 

huge amount of liability and pressure that I feel as a concerned citizen, and I’m sure you feel, for the 4 

safety of the kids in Apex. The apartments will be done at the end of this year, one of the buildings, 5 

and that’s 240 additional units. So that’s more traffic, more kids, more families crossing the street to 6 

get to the food trucks, more families crossing to get to the pool which open in 3 weeks for us, so it 7 

may not seem like it, but this is an extremely pressing matter, and I would ask that you consider 8 

making at least several of these in the interim. It’s not that hard to paint lines for crosswalks, and then 9 

maybe we can get somebody out there to look at doing the flashing crosswalks. Because that 10 

wouldn’t interfere with anything, unless someone is crossing the street. As you know from the speed 11 

study, there’s over 4,000 cars a day going through, and I don’t even want to tell you how much that is 12 

going to increase after 64 is open back up, and after the commercial site is in. I’ve noticed increased 13 

police presence in Abbington and Linden around us as Richardson has been closed for construction, 14 

and if they’re having problems with people speeding through their neighborhoods, we’ve just 15 

shifted our problem to them for a little while. And it’ll be our problem again in 6 weeks when 16 

Richardson opens back up. So, I’d ask you to seriously consider it, and again if anyone else wants to 17 

come out and take a look sometime, I would be happy to show you. Thank you.” 18 

 19 

Next to speak was Marvin Hymanson of 2907 Sunflower Road: 20 

 21 

“Good Evening, Mayor Pro Tem and Town Councilmembers. Thank you for giving me the 22 

opportunity to speak. I would like to make 4 quick points. I am here to promote safety on Richardson 23 

Road, in support of my fellow residents of Smith Farm, and nearby Sweetwater development that are 24 

sitting in the back. As I stated at the last meeting, the schools in Wake County are at capacity, and it 25 

will take years to build them, so why are we allowing such rapid growth in the community? There 26 

needs to be an ordinance amendment that if we don’t have adequate room in the schools, no new 27 

development should be approved. There also needs to be more family-friendly activities in Apex. 28 

We, as a town, need to prove family-friendly developments, such as putt-putt golf, bowling, rope 29 

courses as examples, and cultural events such as movies, concerts and live theater, similar to what 30 

Cary is also developing. Finally, I would like to know why Apex Peakway is not completed after the 31 

bonds have been approved. Thank you for your time, I appreciate the opportunity to speak.” 32 

 33 

- Page 67 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 7 of 18 
 

 With no more sign-ups for public forum, Mayor Pro Tempore Killingsworth moved the 1 

meeting to Public Hearings. 2 

 3 

[PUBLIC HEARINGS]  4 

(NOTE: To view sign-up sheets, see OTHER-2023-040) 5 

 6 

PH1 Annexation No. 754 - Prestwick (Morris Tracts) - 14.129 acres (REF: ORD-2023-035) 7 

 Dianne Khin, Planning Director, gave the following presentation regarding Annexation No. 8 

754 – Prestwick (Morris Tracts). She said staff recommended approval. 9 

[SLIDE 3] 10 

  11 

[SLIDE 4] 12 

 13 

[SLIDE 5] 14 

- Page 68 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 8 of 18 
 

 1 

 2 

 3 

[SLIDE 6] 4 

 5 

[SLIDE 7] 6 

 7 

 Mayor Pro Tempore Killingsworth opened public hearing for this item. With no sign ups, 8 

she closed public hearing and moved discussion back to Council. 9 

 10 

 A motion was made by Councilmember Ed Gray, seconded by Councilmember Terry 11 

Mahaffey, to adopt Annexation No. 754 – Prestwick (Morris Tracts). 12 

 13 

 VOTE: 4-0 (UNANIMOUS) 14 

- Page 69 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 9 of 18 
 

 1 

PH2 Rezoning Case No. 23CZ01 – Cash Corporate Center (revised uses) 2 

 Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager, gave the following presentation on Rezoning 3 

Case No. 23CZ01 – Cash Corporate Center (Revised Uses). She offered to answer any questions 4 

Council had. 5 

 6 

 7 

[SLIDE 8] 8 

 9 

[SLIDE 9] 10 

 11 

[SLIDE 10] 12 

 13 

 14 

- Page 70 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 10 of 18 
 

[SLIDE 11] 1 

 2 

[SLIDE 12] 3 

 4 

[SLIDE 13] 5 

 6 

 7 

[SLIDE 14] 8 

- Page 71 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 11 of 18 
 

 1 

 Councilmember Gantt asked about the thought process behind adding new uses versus the 2 

new uses bringing in less “good jobs”. 3 

 Ms. Bunce said they looked at the proposed uses, and one of the issues they were seeing 4 

was having to evaluate uses that were essentially a blend of multiple uses. She said providing 5 

additional flexibility makes it easier for certain businesses to locate within Cash Corporate Center. 6 

She said the list of proposed uses was reviewed with the Economic Development Director, and staff 7 

worked with the applicant to shorten the list to what they felt was appropriate to provide flexibility 8 

for the parcels.  9 

 Ashley Honeycutt Terrazas of Parker Poe, on behalf of the applicant, gave a presentation. 10 

 Mayor Pro Tempore Killingsworth opened public hearing for this item. With no sign-ups, 11 

she closed public hearing and moved discussion back to Council.  12 

 Councilmember Gray said the initial plan for Cash Corporate Center was to attract more 13 

human-capital based businesses, but that it’s important to note that the market is shifting the desired 14 

uses to something consistent with the zoning plan, but just outside of permitted uses. He said the 15 

additional proposed uses are still consistent with the current zoning policy. He said it will attract 16 

additional businesses outside of the original vision of what the development would be, but that they 17 

are making it an attractive spot for supporting businesses here or other regional businesses. He feels 18 

like this is something they should be able to support, and he would be voting in favor.  19 

 20 

 A motion was made by Councilmember Ed Gray, seconded by Councilmember Terry 21 

Mahaffey, to approve Rezoning Case No. 23CZ01 – Cash Corporate Center (Revised Uses).  22 

 23 

 VOTE: 4-0 (UNANIMOUS) 24 

 25 

- Page 72 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 12 of 18 
 

PH3 Rezoning Case No. 23CZ02 Triangle Home Services Phase II 1 

 Shelly Mayo, Planner II, gave the following presentation on Rezoning Case No. 23CZ02 – 2 

Triangle Home Services Phase II. She said staff recommends approval. She offered to answer any 3 

questions. 4 

[SLIDE 15] 5 

  6 

[SLIDE 16] 7 

 8 

[SLIDE 17] 9 

 10 

 11 

[SLIDE 18] 12 

- Page 73 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 13 of 18 
 

 1 

[SLIDE 19] 2 

 3 

[SLIDE 20] 4 

 5 

[SLIDE 21] 6 

 7 

- Page 74 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 14 of 18 
 

 Mayor Pro Tempore Killingsworth asked if this property provides connectivity to the parcel 1 

where there might be a school, or if there’s another parcel that needs to be added in before that 2 

happens. 3 

 Ms. Mayo said this parcel is immediately adjacent to the one that would have the school. She 4 

said it was highly unlikely the applicant would be willing to do that, because they have access to the 5 

future major collector on the western side of their parcel. She said they are participating in the 6 

construction of that road and sharing the right-of-way with Legacy along their shared north-south 7 

property line. 8 

 Councilmember Gantt said it seemed like the uses would bring in a lot of truck traffic. He 9 

wondered about what planning thought regarding that kind of use within tech-flex in close proximity 10 

to future apartments. He asked if there was potential for heavy trucking across the street from 11 

residential areas, and how does planning evaluate that.  12 

 Ms. Mayo said the parcel to the north was zoned as Tech-Flex without any additional 13 

conditions. She said on this site, they were looking to have the applicant remove uses to make certain 14 

that if the two properties develop together, that anything that results from the combined development 15 

is appropriate for the area. She said by restricting some uses on this site, they de facto restrict those 16 

uses on the northern site as well, since any use that isn’t appropriate in one zone can’t be in the other 17 

zone at all through the combined development.  18 

 Councilmember Gantt asked if both parcels had been included in this rezoning, would the 19 

equation have been different for some of the uses suggested in this one. 20 

 Ms. Mayo said that was difficult to say, since this was Tech-Flex, but that most of the uses they 21 

took out were heavier trucking options. She said warehousing generally doesn’t bring in much traffic, 22 

since it is separate from distribution centers now. 23 

 Councilmember Gantt asked if there were examples in Apex that could help illustrate that 24 

point.  25 

 Ms. Mayo said there were several near Pristine Water Drive, one off of Lufkin near 55, and that 26 

there are multiple sections within the warehouses for different companies, and there is minimal traffic 27 

to and from those locations. She said it’s normally a handful of trucks on a daily basis. 28 

 Jeff Roach, of Peak Engineering and Design, gave a presentation. He offered to answer any 29 

questions. 30 

 Councilmember Gantt asked him to remove self-storage, even if it’s only for parking and SCM. 31 

He asked if that was under consideration.  32 

 Mr. Roach said they wanted to leave it just in case they use it. He said he and the owners see 33 

the property as more of office-type uses, but they want to leave their options open. 34 

- Page 75 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 15 of 18 
 

 Mayor Pro Tempore Killingsworth opened public hearing for this item. With no sign-ups, she 1 

closed public hearing and moved discussion back to Council.  2 

 Councilmember Mahaffey said he views this as a simple matter. He said they already own the 3 

parcel to the north which has been zoned as Tech-Flex, and what they’re proposing is compatible with 4 

that. He said this was a small addition to that. He said under different conditions he may give them 5 

more of a hard time, but he feels this is different to a case where they are looking at a completely new 6 

property and fundamentally changing the uses of the area.  7 

 Councilmember Gray said he was viewing it the same way. He said it is just a continuance of 8 

the use on the north side. He said it’s a consistent use, and cleans up a donut hole.  9 

 Councilmember Gantt said he doesn’t like self-storage, and the self-storage unit would be 10 

smaller if they didn’t allow them at all. He said in his opinion, self-storage is a waste of land. He said 11 

he would be voting no. 12 

  13 

 A motion was made by Councilmember Gray, seconded by Councilmember Mahaffey, to 14 

approve Rezoning Case No. 23CZ02 – Triangle Home Services Phase II. 15 

 16 

 VOTE: 3-1, Councilmember Gantt dissenting 17 

 18 

PH4 Rezoning Case No. 23CZ03 Veridea Expansion 19 

 Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager, gave the following presentation regarding 20 

Rezoning Case No. 23CZ03 – Veridea Expansion. She said staff recommended approval, and offered 21 

to answer any questions. 22 

 23 

 24 

[SLIDE 22] 25 

 26 

[SLIDE 23] 27 

- Page 76 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 16 of 18 
 

 1 

[SLIDE 24] 2 

 3 

 Councilmember Gantt asked if staff has been approached by any landowner within 2000 4 

feet from this property, but not connected to the main development, that wanted join on this special 5 

zoning, and if so, how would planning would deal with that. 6 

 Ms. Bunce said they have not been approached by anyone yet who meets the criteria and 7 

would be a satellite property within this zoning. She said staff would have to evaluate things based 8 

on where the property was. She said she couldn’t see a situation where a property with a request like 9 

that would be completely detached from this property. 10 

 Councilmember Gantt asked if any property owner would be entitled to ask for those zoning 11 

conditions within 2000 feet, even if they were disconnected. 12 

 Ms. Bunce said they would be entitled to ask for it, but they would still need to come to 13 

Council to receive approval.  14 

 Jason Barron of Morningstar Law Group, gave a presentation and offered to answer any 15 

questions. 16 

 Mayor Pro Tempore Killingsworth opened public hearing for this item. With no sign-ups, 17 

she closed public hearing and brought discussion back to Council. 18 

 Councilmember Mahaffey said he called this case “viral zoning”, because of how it expands 19 

to other properties.  20 

- Page 77 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 17 of 18 
 

 Councilmember Gantt said he hoped it would be a helpful virus. 1 

 2 

 A motion was made by Councilmember Brett Gantt, seconded by Councilmember Terry 3 

Mahaffey, to approve Rezoning Case No. 23CZ03 – Veridea Expansion. 4 

 5 

 VOTE: 4-0 (UNANIMOUS) 6 

 7 

[UPDATES FROM TOWN MANAGER] 8 

 9 

 Town Manager Catherine Crosby wanted to reiterate what Director Manville communicated 10 

about public service. She said she is grateful to work on a stellar team that contributes so much to 11 

the town. She said the town will be celebrating employees in a couple of weeks. She said there 12 

would be some cool t-shirts and other things that employees will receive. She wanted to 13 

congratulate Fire Chief Tim Herman and the new cadets, who were sworn in on Friday. She said 14 

hopefully soon they will be in their new fire station. She encouraged everyone to come out Saturday 15 

for Think Apex Day, and that it would be a great opportunity to give back to the community. She said 16 

the public could go to the town’s website to find a link for “Peak Connections”, which is an 17 

opportunity for residents and stakeholders to schedule time with her. She said the list of times will 18 

be updated every month, and that anyone who wishes to speak with her or get to know her was 19 

welcome.  20 

 Mayor Pro Tempore Killingsworth said she wanted to go down the line of Council, and ask 21 

what groups they have been meeting with or what other things they have been doing in the 22 

community over the past few weeks. 23 

 Councilmember Gray thanked the Apex Youth Council for being present for another 24 

meeting, and that is inspiring to see them involved in government. He led a round of applause for 25 

them. 26 

 Councilmember Mahaffey said the firefighter swearing-in ceremony was great. He said he 27 

had the opportunity to meet with artists at the Apex Art Walk at the Halle Cultural Arts Center. He 28 

said there were some local people participating this year. He said an app should be coming out 29 

soon that will provide a tour of the Halle. He said EarthFest was some fantastic last-minute changing 30 

of plans by staff to accommodate for weather, and that the event turned out great. He said there was 31 

cool vendors and a lot of attendance. He said he spoke with a lot of constituents at Council’s booth, 32 

and was looking forward to the event next year. 33 

- Page 78 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 18 of 18 
 

 Councilmember Gantt said he helped organize Pig Fest through his work with Apex Sunrise 1 

Rotary Club, and noted how great the town was to work with for festivals. He said he heard good 2 

things about staff interactions and their quality. He said he was looking forward to PeakFest, and 3 

encouraged everyone to appreciate town staff for the work they put into festivals. 4 

 Mayor Pro Tempore Killingsworth mentioned PeakFest and the upcoming Home Repair 5 

Fair. She said it is being hosted May 4th at the Apex Senior Center, and would help inform and help 6 

people regarding making repairs to their home through affordable means. She encouraged 7 

everyone to take a look at the Apex website to see all of the upcoming events, and mentioned the 8 

150th year Passports, which provide a way to participate in these events and earn passport stickers to 9 

earn memorabilia. 10 

 11 

[ADJOURNEMENT] 12 

Mayor Pro Tempore Killingsworth declared the meeting adjourned at 7:09 PM 13 

 14 

 15 

 16 

Jacques K. Gilbert  17 

Apex, Mayor  18 

 19 

 20 

Allen Coleman, CMC, NCCCC 21 

Apex, Town Clerk  22 

 23 

Submitted for approval by Apex Town Clerk, Allen Coleman.  24 

 25 

Minutes approved on _______________ of _________________, 2023.  26 

- Page 79 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: May 9, 2023 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Chris Johnson, PE, MPA, Transportation & Infrastructure Development Director   

Department(s): Transportation & Infrastructure Development  

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve an encroachment agreement between the Town and property owner Taylor Morrison of 

Carolinas, Inc. to install a driveway that will encroach 9 square feet (SF) onto the Town of Apex 20’ Public 

Storm Drainage Easement and authorize the Town Manager to execute the same.  

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

The proposed Encroachment Agreement is between the Town and property owner Taylor Morrison of 

Carolinas, Inc. (Grantee) for the property described as a residential lot known as Wake County PIN #0722-

76-7803, Book of Maps 2021, Page 01569, lot is also known as 1718 Wimberly Road, Apex, NC 27523.  

Grantee wishes to install certain improvements, more particularly described as a driveway that will encroach 

9 square feet (SF) onto the Town of Apex 20’ Public Storm Drainage Easement.  

 

 

Attachments 

 CN4-A1: Encroachment Agreement – 1718 Wimberly Road Lot 181 

 CN4-A2: Exhibit A - Encroachment Agreement – 1718 Wimberly Road Lot 181 

 

- Page 80 -



- Page 81 -



- Page 82 -



- Page 83 -



- Page 84 -



- Page 85 -



- Page 86 -



This map is of an existing parcel of land
and is only intended for the parties and

purposes shown. This map not for
recordation. No title report provided.

SCALE:
1" = 20 ft.

Bateman Civil Survey Company
Engineers     Surveyors     Planners

2524 Reliance Avenue, Apex, NC 27539   Ph: 919.577.1080  Fax: 919.577.1081

www.batemancivilsurvey.com         info@batemancivilsurvey.com

NCBELS Firm No. C-2378

TOWNES AT WESTFORD PH. 3B - LOTS 181-185
WIMBERLY ROAD, APEX, NC

WHITE OAK TOWNSHIP, WAKE COUNTY

DATE: 12/8/22 DRAWN BY: ALT      CHECKED BY: SPC

LEGEND

PO = PORCH
SP = SCREENED PORCH
CP = COVERED PORCH
WD = WOOD DECK
SW = SIDEWALK
DW = CONC DRIVEWAY
P = CONC PATIO

     = COMPUTED POINT
     = IRON PIPE FOUND
     = IRON PIPE SET (IPS)
     = DRILL HOLE FOUND

      = WATER METER
CO = CLEAN OUT
AC = AIR CONDITIONER
      = SEWER MANHOLE
       = ELECTRIC BOX
       =  CABLE BOX
       = TELEPHONE PEDESTAL
E = ELECTRIC METER
G = GAS METER

       = LIGHT POLE

EB

T

WM

C

S

REFERENCE: BM 2021, PG. 1565-1569           BCS# 190363          SCALE: 1" = 20'

WIMBERLY ROAD
VARIABLE WIDTH PUBLIC R/W

BUILDING SETBACKS:

FRONT = 3 ft
REAR = 5 ft
SIDE = 0'

CB = CATCH BASIN
DI = DROP INLET

VICINITY MAP
(Not to Scale)

M
A
G
N
E
T
I
C

SITE
I-540

U.S. HWY 64

CLAUDE E. POPE

MEMORIAL HWY

     = FIRE HYDRANT

NOTES:

1. THIS SURVEY WAS PREPARED BY BATEMAN CIVIL SURVEY
CO., UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF STEVEN P. CARSON,
PLS.

2. THIS PLAN HAS BEEN PREPARED FOR LAYOUT AND
PERMITTING PURPOSES ONLY.

3. PROPERTY LINES SHOWN WERE TAKEN FROM EXISTING
FIELD EVIDENCE, EXISTING DEEDS AND/OR PLATS OF
PUBLIC RECORD, AND INFORMATION SUPPLIED TO THE
SURVEYOR BY THE CLIENT.

4. ALL DISTANCES ARE HORIZONTAL GROUND DISTANCES
AND ALL BEARINGS ARE NORTH CAROLINA  STATE PLANE
COORDINATE SYSTEM UNLESS OTHERWISE SHOWN.

5. THIS MAP IS NOT FOR RECORDATION AND SHOULD BE
REVIEWED BY A LOCAL GOVERNMENT AGENCY FOR
COMPLIANCE WITH ANY APPLICABLE LAND
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS.

6. THE BASIS OF NORTH AND ALL EASEMENTS,
RIGHTS-OF-WAYS, BUFFERS, SETBACKS AND ADJOINERS,
ETC. REFERENCED IN TITLE BLOCK.

7. NO INVESTIGATION INTO THE EXISTENCE OF
JURISDICTIONAL WETLANDS OR RIPARIAN BUFFERS
PERFORMED BY THIS FIRM.

8. SURVEYOR HAS MADE NO INVESTIGATION OR
INDEPENDENT SEARCH FOR EASEMENTS OF RECORD,
ENCUMBRANCES, RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS, OWNERSHIP
TITLE EVIDENCE OR ANY OTHER FACTS THAT AN
ACCURATE AND CURRENT TITLE SEARCH MAY DISCLOSE.

9. THIS PROPERTY IS NOT LOCATED IN A SPECIAL FLOOD
HAZARD ZONE. IT IS LOCATED IN ZONE "X" AS DEFINED
BY HUD F.I.R.M. MAP  3720072200K DATED 7/19/2022.

10. ZONING IS :  PUD-CZ
11. PROPERTY OWNER:  TAYLOR MORRISON
                                             15501 WESTON PARKWAY, SUITE 100
                                             CARY, NC   27513

CURVE RADIUS LENGTH CHORD DIRECTION CHORD

CURVE TABLE

C11 630.00' 11.97' 11.97'N84°59'12"E

C63 13.62' 13.62'S84°59'12"W

S = 3' X 3' STOOP

716.50'

SIDEWALK

5' TOWN OF
APEX PUBLIC

UTILITY
EASEMENT

PRESCOTT RIDGE ALLEY
26' PUBLIC R/W

180

5
.0

'

20' PUBLIC STORM
DRAINAGE EASEMENT

PROPOSED
MIRFIELD B

SLAB

20' GARAGE
SETBACK

PROPOSED
EASTWOOD D

SLAB

PROPOSED
NEWBURY A

SLAB

5' REAR

SETBACK DI

185
2,955 SF
0.068 AC

184
2,076 SF
0.048 AC

183
2,076 SF
0.048 AC

182
2,076 SF
0.048 AC

181
2,968 SF
0.068 AC

186

C11

C63

20.0'

20' PUBLIC STORM
DRAINAGE EASEMENT

20.0'

DI

PROPOSED
MIRFIELD C

SLAB

PROPOSED
NEWBURY B

SLAB

SW SW SW SW SW

PO PO
PO

PO PO

DW

DW
DW

DW

DW

NOTE: DRIVEWAY IS
IN 20' PUBLIC

STORM DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

3.5' R 3.5' R 3.5' R 3.5' R

G E
G E

G E
G E

G E

3.5' R 3.5' R

AC

AC
AC AC

AC

8.3'

8.3'

1
2
. 8

'

1
0
. 8

'

1
2
. 8

'

1
1
. 0

'

1
2
. 8

'

7.9'

8.9'

2
0
. 5

'

2
2
. 5

'

2
0
. 5

'

2
2
. 5

'

2
0
. 5

'

P
:\

2
0

1
9

 P
ro

je
ct

s\
1

9
0

3
6

3
 T

o
w

n
e
s 

a
t 

W
e
st

fo
rd

\d
w

g
\1

9
0

3
6

3
 W

E
S
T
FO

R
D

 P
H

 3
 B

.d
w

g
, 1

2
/1

2
/2

0
2
2
 1

1
:0

5
:4

1
 A

M
, F

o
xi

t 
R

ea
d

e
r 

P
D

F 
P
ri

n
te

r

- Page 87 -

nmaynard
Polygon

nmaynard
Callout
Driveway will encroach 9 SF onto the 20' Public Storm Drainage Easement 

nmaynard
Text Box
EXHIBIT A

nmaynard
Text Box
NOTE:
THIS MAP MAY NOT BE A CERTIFIED SURVEY AND HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED BY A LOCAL GOVERNMENT AGENCY FOR COMPLIANCE WITH ANY APPLICABLE LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS AND HAS NOT BEEN REVEIWED FOR COMPLIANCE WITH RECORDING REQUIREMENTS FOR PLATS. 



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: May 9, 2023 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Chris Johnson, PE, MPA, Transportation & Infrastructure Development Director   

Department(s): Transportation & Infrastructure Development  

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve an encroachment agreement between the Town and property owners Shantanu Kaprekar 

and spouse Divya Namjoshi to install a fence that will encroach 132 linear feet (LF) onto the Town of Apex 

Sanitary Sewer Easement and authorize the Town Manager to execute the same.  

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

The proposed Encroachment Agreement is between the Town and property owners Shantanu Kaprekar 

and spouse Divya Namjoshi (Grantees) for the property described as a residential lot known as Wake 

County PIN #0720-29-8455, Book of Maps 2022, Page 00639, lot is also known as 2918 Alderson Court, 

Apex, NC 27502.  Grantees wish to install certain improvements, more particularly described as a fence that 

will encroach 132 linear feet (LF) onto the Town of Apex Sanitary Sewer Easement.  

 

 

Attachments 

 CN5-A1: Encroachment Agreement – 2918 Alderson Court Lot 259 

 CN5-A2: Exhibit A – Encroachment Agreement – 2918 Alderson Court Lot A 

 

- Page 88 -



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
After Recording Mail To:   Development Services 
        Town of Apex  
       PO Box 250 
      Apex, NC 27502 
 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA         ENCROACHMENT AGREEMENT 
COUNTY OF WAKE            
 

 THIS ENCROACHMENT AGREEMENT, being made this _____ day of ________________, 2023, by 

and between Shantanu Kaprekar and spouse Divya Namjoshi, hereinafter referred to as “Grantees,” and 

the Town of Apex, hereinafter referred to as the “Town.” 

 

WHEREAS, the Grantees are the owners of a certain residential lot of land in the County of 

Wake, State of North Carolina, which is designated as PIN #0720-29-8455 by the Wake County Revenue 

Department and more particularly described as Lot 259 of the subdivision known as Friendship Station 

Phase 3A as shown on that certain plat recorded in Book of Maps 2022, Page 00639, Wake County 

Registry (hereinafter the “Subdivision Plat”).  The residential lot is also known as 2918 Alderson Court, 

Apex, NC 27502.  The residential lot described in this paragraph is hereinafter referred to as the 

“Residential Lot." 

 

WHEREAS, the Town is the owner of a Variable Width Sanitary Sewer Easement as shown on the 

Subdivision Plat hereinafter referred to as the “Sanitary Sewer Easement”. 

 

WHEREAS, Grantees wish to install certain improvements, more particularly described as a fence 

that will encroach 132 linear feet onto the Sanitary Sewer Easement, which serves the Residential Lot, 

hereinafter referred to as the “Encroachment,” all as shown on the attached Exhibit A.  Grantees desire 

to make certain agreements and covenants regarding the Encroachment.  

 

- Page 89 -



 WHEREAS, the Town, under the terms and conditions herein set forth, is willing to allow the above-

described Encroachment upon the Sanitary Sewer Easement. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of these promises and other consideration, the receipt and 

sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, Grantees and the Town hereby covenant and agree: 

 

 1. Subject to the terms herein, the Town agrees to allow Grantees, and Grantees’ successors and 

assigns at Grantees’ sole risk and expense, to encroach into the Sanitary Sewer Easement of the Town 

as shown in the attached Exhibit A, and incorporated by reference as though fully set forth herein. 

 

 2. The Encroachment shall not be enlarged or increased beyond the Encroachment shown in the 

Exhibit A and described in this Encroachment Agreement.  Grantees are responsible for any and all 

expenditures of labor or materials required for the installation, erection, repair, removal, or 

maintenance of the above-referenced Encroachment. 

 

 3. Grantees are to be fully responsible for any and all property damage or injury or death of any 

person which results from any and all negligence, omission, defect in design, maintenance, or 

workmanship created by the Encroachment described herein, or any cause of action arising out of the 

installation, maintenance, removal, destruction, or location of said Encroachment. 

 

 4. Grantees agree to and do hereby hold the Town, its officers, council members and employees 

harmless from any and all liability arising out of such negligence, omission, defect or other cause of 

action; that it will defend the Town, its officers, council members and employees, and pay all attorney 

fees in any and all actions brought as a result of such; and that it will indemnify the Town, its officers, 

council members, and employees against any and all loss sustained by reason of such negligence, 

omission, defect, or other cause of action, claim, cost, or expense arising out of the installation, 

maintenance, removal, or location of said Encroachment. 

 

 5. Sections 3 and 4 shall survive the termination of this Encroachment Agreement for any reason. 

 

 

 

- Page 90 -



 6. All notices required herein shall be deemed given by depositing such in the United States mail, 

first class, and addressed to: 

 To Town:  Town Manager 
    Town of Apex 
    PO Box 250 
    Apex, NC 27502 
 

 To Grantees: Shantanu Kaprekar & Divya Namjoshi 
    2918 Alderson Court  
    Apex, NC 27502   

 

 7. In the event there is a dispute between the parties concerning the interpretation of the terms 

of this Encroachment Agreement or their respective rights and obligations hereunder, such dispute or 

controversy shall be adjudged pursuant to the laws of the State of North Carolina. 

 

 8. Grantees agree to abide by all applicable laws, regulations, statutes and ordinances. 

 

 9. This Encroachment Agreement shall not divest the Town of any rights or interest in said 

Sanitary Sewer Easement and the Town may terminate this Encroachment Agreement by giving 

Grantees ninety (90) days written notice of termination.  Prior to the termination date, Grantees shall 

remove, at their own expense, all or part of the Encroachment as specified by the Town. 

 

10. If the Town deems, within its sole discretion, that there is not time to give Grantees notice as 

provided in Paragraph 9 and that removal of the Encroachment is necessary in order to operate, protect, 

maintain, modify, replace, add-to or improve its facilities located within the Sanitary Sewer Easement, 

then no notice shall be required and the Town may remove the Encroachment from the Sanitary Sewer  

Easement without cost, risk or liability to the Town. 

 

11. Grantees agree to pay and reimburse the Town the entire expense and cost of removal of the 

Encroachment in the event that the Town removes the Encroachment as provided in Paragraph 10 or if 

Grantees fail to remove the Encroachment within the time limit after receiving notice under Paragraph 

9. 

 

 

 

- Page 91 -



12. Grantees, if not self-performing the installations that are the subject of this Agreement, agree 

to purchase or cause to be procured from a responsible insurance carrier or carriers authorized under 

the laws of the State of North Carolina, valid general liability insurance in the minimum amount of 

$500,000 and provide a certificate of such insurance naming the Town of Apex as additional insured by 

endorsement to the policy.  Where the Grantees are self-performing the installations, Grantees shall 

show proof of homeowner’s insurance with personal liability coverage in a minimum amount of at least 

$300,000.  Grantees shall provide notice of cancellation, non-renewal or material change in coverage to 

the Town of Apex within 10 days of their receipt of notice from the insurance company. 

 

 13. Notwithstanding Section 14 below, Grantees shall be released from its obligation under this 

Encroachment Agreement only upon the assumption of said obligations either by a successor in title to 

real property known as Wake County PIN #0720-29-8455, 2918 Alderson Court, Apex, NC, 27502.  The 

Town’s consent to such assumption and release shall be required but shall not be withheld, conditioned 

or delayed if, as reasonably determined by the Town, the party assuming Grantees obligations possesses 

adequate financial resources and ownership interest, and Grantees delegate and proposed assignee 

assume and agree to fulfill, in writing, all of Grantees duties set forth in this Encroachment Agreement.  

 

 14. The right to encroach is appurtenant to and runs with the land hereinabove referred to and 

shall forever be subject to the conditions above agreed on between the parties.  This Encroachment 

Agreement is binding upon the heirs, assigns, transferees, and successors in interest of the Grantees and 

shall, upon execution, be recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds of Wake County, North 

Carolina. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

- Page 92 -



- Page 93 -



TOWN OF APEX 

 

      ____________________________________ 
Catherine Crosby   
Town Manager 

(Corporate Seal)  
 

 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Allen Coleman, CMC, NCCCC 
Town Clerk 
 

 
 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF        [county in which acknowledgement taken] 

 
I,         , a Notary Public of      County, North Carolina, 
certify that Allen Coleman personally came before me this day and acknowledged that he is the 
Town Clerk for the Town of Apex, a North Carolina Municipal Corporation, and that by authority 
duly given and as the act of the corporation, the foregoing instrument was signed in its name by 
its Town Manager, sealed with its corporate seal and attested by him as Town Clerk.   
 
Witness my hand and official stamp or seal, this _____ day of __________________, 2023.   
 
            
[Signature of Notary Public]                            
 
 
My Commission Expires: _______________________ 

               
     (Seal) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- Page 94 -



- Page 95 -

nmaynard
PolyLine

nmaynard
Text Box
EXHIBIT A

nmaynard
Text Box
NOTE:
THIS MAY NOT BE A CERTIFIED SURVERY AND HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED BY A LOCAL GOVERNMENT AGENCY FOR COMPLIANCE WITH ANY APPLICABLE LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS AND HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED FOR COMPLIANCE WITH RECORDINGREQUIREMENTS FOR PLATS.


nmaynard
Text Box
2918 Alderson Court
Lot 259 Friendship Station Phase 3A

nmaynard
Callout
Fence will encroach 132 LF onto the 40' TOA Sanitary Sewer Easement 



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: May 9, 2023 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Barbara Belicic, Small Business Specialist  

Department(s): Economic Development  

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between Wake Technical Community College 

(WTCC) and the Town of Apex to conduct educational training to small businesses in the Apex community 

through the LaunchAPEX program; and authorize the Town Manager to execute the MOU.      

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

LaunchAPEX is dedicated to assisting current Apex residents who want to take their business to the next level. 

The goal of LaunchAPEX is to develop successful Apex entrepreneurs and small businesses by delivering 

access to business training, financial resources, business networking, and business mentoring. 

 

This collaborative partnership between the Town of Apex and Wake Technical Community College ensures 

that small business owners receive training and resources necessary to succeed.   

 

Attachments 

 CN6-A1:  Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between Wake Technical Community College and 
the Town of Apex – LaunchAPEX Educational Training   

 

- Page 96 -



 

 

   

 

 

Memorandum of Understanding 

        This agreement entered on _______________, 2023, for the purpose of establishing a collaborative partnership 

between the “Town of Apex” hereafter referred to as the “Agency” and “Wake Tech Community College” hereafter 

referred to as the “College” to conduct “LaunchAPEX” educational training to Small Businesses in the community served 

by the Agency.  

 The Agency Agrees To:  

1. Agree to adhere to the policies established for curriculum delivery and make students and space available for 

orientation, 30 hours of classroom instruction, and graduation.  

2. Provide or coordinate suitable facility usage for conducting educational training for up to 20 learners when 

curriculum is delivered in a classroom setting. 

3. Be responsible for opening the facility on the scheduled class dates at a time mutually agreeable to the parties 

to facilitate the arrival and check-in of students. 

4.  Allow College personnel access to supervise and monitor the courses/programs of instruction. 

5.  Provide a copy of the Certificate of Insurance to the College. 

6. Be responsible for marketing and recruiting for Launch training courses.  

7. Communicate any program changes promptly to ensure that Instructors can make necessary adjustments. 

8.  Communicate and evaluate programs periodically for effectiveness. 

9.  Work with College to maintain mutual respect and an effective partnership. 

10.  Provide a survey at the closing of the course and share feedback with the college. 

 

        The College Agrees To:  

1. Work with Agency in the identification, screening, and selection of students when requested. 

2.  Ensure that Wake Tech faculty, staff and students adhere to all Agency’s schedules, policies, rules and 

regulations. 

3.  Provide instructors, administration, supervision, and support staff for the training. 

4. Ensure that facilities and classrooms are left in their original condition at the end of each training session. 

5. Provide payment for Instructors and for associated software necessary to complete the LAUNCH program. 

6.  Immediately notify the Agency of any changes to the agreed upon dates and times. 

7.  Assist in marketing and recruiting for LAUNCH courses using traditional and digital means. 

8. Work with Agency to maintain mutual respect and an effective partnership.  

- Page 97 -



 

 

   

 

9. Communicate and evaluate programs periodically for effectiveness. 

10.  Both parties shall have the right to terminate this agreement by giving the other party sixty (60) days written 

notification of the intent to terminate. 

 

 

Jointly Agreed Upon:  

 

 ____________________________________________ 

Catherine Crosby                                    Date 

Manager, Town of Apex 

 

_____________________________________________  

Wake Tech Representative              Title                    Date 

- Page 98 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: May 9, 2023 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Mary Beth Manville, Human Resources Director 

Department(s): Human Resources 

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve an additional 0.5 FTE part-time, benefited Public Works Attendant, Market Range 04, 

position for the Public Works Department. 

Approval Recommended? 

 

Item Details 

This position is being requested as a part-time benefited, 20 hours/week position. The primary purpose is 

to maintain, deliver, and retrieve waste bins to Apex businesses and residents who subscribe to town waste 

services. 

 
 

Attachments 

 

 None 

- Page 99 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: May 9, 2023 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Craig Setzer, PRCR Director; Steve Adams, Acquisition Specialist 

Department(s): Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources 

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve purchase of real property located at 1125 Wimberly Road, authorize the Town Manager 

to execute associated contracts, and approve corresponding Budget Ordinance Amendment 17. 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

The property located at 1125 Wimberly Road is adjacent to and surrounded on three sides by property 

previously purchased by the Town for the purpose of developing a park in the northwest part of town. This 

property will provide additional road frontage onto Wimberly Road for the proposed park. The 

accompanying budget amendment ($640,000) will cover the cost to purchase the property and associated 

transaction costs related to the purchase. 

 

Attachments 

 CN8-A1: Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 17 FY 22-23 

 

- Page 100 -



Recreation Capital Reserve Fund

Section 1. Revenues:

$640,000

$640,000

Section 2. Expenditures:

77-0000-49610: Transfer to General Fund $640,000

$640,000

General Fund

Section 1. Revenues:

$640,000

$640,000

Section 2. Expenditures:

 10-6200-47100: Capital Outlay Land $640,000

$640,000

Attest:

Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor Allen L. Coleman, CMC, NCCCC

Town Clerk

Adopted this the 9th day of May, 2023.

Total Revenues

Total Expenditures

Town of Apex 

Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 17

BE IT ORDAINED, by the Council of the Town of Apex that the following Budget Amendment for the Fiscal

Year 2022-2023 Budget Ordinance be adopted:

10-0000-39777: Transfer from Recreation Reserve

Section 7. Within five (5) days after adoption, copies of this Amendment shall be filed with the Finance

Officer and Town Clerk.

77-0000-39902: Appropriated Fund Balance

Total Revenues

Total Expenditures

- Page 101 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: May 9, 2023 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Antwan Morrison, Finance Director 

Department(s): Finance 

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve a resolution designating the Accounting and Finance Manager, and Purchasing Manager 

positions with the authority of deputy finance officer for the purposes of complying with the Local 

Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act. 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

North Carolina General Statute 159-25 outlines the duties of the finance officer of a local government. North 

Carolina General Statute 159-28(a) requires the finance officer or deputy finance officer to sign all purchase 

orders, contracts, or agreements, which include the preaudit certificate to verify sufficient funds exist to meet 

the obligation. Having designated Deputy Finance Officers will ensure the smooth running of the business of 

the Town in the absence of the Finance Officer.  

 

Attachments 

 CN9-A1:  Resolution Designating Deputy Finance Officers for the Town of Apex  

 

- Page 102 -



 
TOWN OF APEX TOWN COUNCIL  

Resolution Designating Deputy Finance Officers  
for the Town of Apex, North Carolina  

 
 

 
WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statutes §159-24 specifics and directs that 

each local government shall appoint a Finance Officer to hold office and carry out the 
duties as prescribed by law; and  
 

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statutes §156-25 outlines the specific duties 
of the Finance Officer of a local government; and  
 

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statutes §159-28(a) requires the Finance 
Officer or Deputy Finance Officer to sign all purchase orders, contracts, or agreements 
which includes a certificate stating that the instrument has been pre-audited to verify 
sufficient funds exist to meet the obligation; and  
 

WHEREAS, there will be occasions when the Finance Officer is unable to be 
present in order to approve certain actions or sign preaudit certificates thus creating a 
need to designate Deputy Finance Officers.   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that we, the Town Council of the Town 
of Apex do herby designate and appointment the following positions as Deputy Finance 
Officers for the purposes of complying with the Local Government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act:  Purchasing Manager and Accounting and Finance Manager; and,  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Deputy Finance Officers are hereby 

designated as authorized signers on behalf of the Town and have authority to sign and 
pre-audit financial documents such as purchase orders, contracts, or agreements which 
a certificate stating that the instrument has been pre-audited to verify sufficient funds 
exist to meet the obligation.  

 
 ADOPTED, this the 9th day of May 2023.  
 
 
 
                         ______________________________________ 

       Jacques K. Gilbert 
Attest:             Mayor  
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Allen Coleman, CMC, NCCCC 
Town Clerk 

- Page 103 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: May 9, 2023 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Allen Coleman, Town Clerk 

Department(s): Town Clerk’s Office 

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve a Resolution of Intent for the closing of a right-of-way (ROW) on a portion of Burma Drive 

located South of Goodworth Drive and North of Pristine Water Drive and between two tracts owned by Apex 

Industrial Owner 3 LLC (See Survey Map Included); and to set a Public Hearing for Tuesday, June 13, 2023, 

following the required 30-day public notice period.  

Approval Recommended? 

The Town Clerk recommends the Town Council approve the resolution of intent and schedule the public 

hearing for Tuesday, June 13, 2023, pursuant to North Carolina General Statutes 160A-299 and the Town’s 

adopted Policy on Closing Public Rights of Way for Streets, Roads, and Alleys.  

 

Item Details 

During the expansion of the Cash Corporate Center site in 2021, a bulb (e.g. cul-de sac) was created on 

Burma Drive for construction so the trucks could turn around in the street.  . As part of receiving the 

developer receiving their Certificate of Occupancy, they dedicated some other ROW to the Town and the 

Town is abandoning the bulb portion of Burma Drive. 

 

Essentially, this closure request is to correct an old plat that included a temporary cul-de-sac.  

Transportation and Infrastructure staff worked with the developer of the Cash Corporate Center to address 

the turnaround removal and realign Burma Drive as previously constructed.  

 

The Town’s Technical Review Committee (comprised of many departments including transportation and 

infrastructure, planning, and public safety) all reviewed the submitted request and recommends Council 

consider this request.   

 

Attachments 

 CN10-A1: Plat Map of Requested ROW Closure Area  
- Page 104 -



 CN10-A2: Resolution of Intent to Consider the Requested ROW Closure Area  

 CN10-A3: Policy on Closing Public Rights of Way for Streets, Roads, and Alleys  

 

- Page 105 -



- Page 106 -



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023 -  

 

A RESOLUTION OF INTENT OF THE TOWN COUNCIL TO CONSIDER THE 

CLOSING OF A PORTION OF BURMA DRIVE LOCATED SOUTH OF 

GOODWORTH DRIVE AND NORTH OF PRISTINE WATER DRIVE AND BETWEEN 

TWO TRACTS OWNED BY APEX INDUSTRIAL OWNER 3 LLC. 

 

WHEREAS, G.S. 160A-299 authorizes the Town Council to close public streets and 

alleys; and   

WHEREAS, the Town Council considers it advisable to conduct a public hearing for the 

purpose of giving consideration to the closing of a portion of Burma Drive;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council that:  

(1) A Public Hearing will held be at 6:00 p.m. on the 13th day of June, 2023, in the 

Town of Apex Town Council Chambers at the Apex Town Hall to consider a 

resolution closing of that portion of Burma Drive located south of Goodworth 

Drive and north of Pristine Water Drive and between two tracts owned by Apex 

Industrial Owner 3, LLC, designated as PIN # 0751-04-3020 and PIN # 0751-13-

2324 by the Wake County Revenue Department, and as shown on Book of Maps 

2021, Pages 0492-0493, Wake County Registry. 

(2) The Town Clerk is hereby directed to publish this Resolution of Intent once a 

week for four consecutive weeks in a newspaper of general circulation in the area.  

(3) The Town Clerk is further directed to transmit by registered or certified mail to 

each owner of property abutting upon that portion of said street a copy of this 

Resolution of Intent.  

(4) The Planning Director is directed to prominently post notices of this Resolution of 

Intent and the scheduled public hearing in at least two locations along Burma 

Drive in the area of the portions to be abandoned.  

(5) Upon motion duly made by Council Member_______________ , and duly 

seconded by Council Member ____________________, the above resolution was 

duly adopted by the Apex Town Council at the meeting held on the 9th day of 

May, 2023, in the Town Hall.  

 Upon call for a vote the following Council Members voted in the affirmative:   

 ____________________________________ 

 _____________________________________ 

 

 _____________________________________ 

- Page 107 -



 2 

 

 and the following Council Members voted in the negative:  

 ______________________________________ 

 ______________________________________ 

 ______________________________________ 

 

  This the _________day of    , 2023.   

 

 

   

        ______________________________ 

        Jacques K. Gilbert 

Mayor 

 

 ATTEST:  

 

 
 
 
      

Allen Coleman, CMC, NCCCC,  

Apex Town Clerk  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- Page 108 -



 

Adopted by Apex Town Council on April 5, 2016 

POLICY ON CLOSING PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY  

FOR STREETS, ROADS, AND ALLEYS 

 
 

1. Persons desiring to close a public right of way shall submit a letter (petition) to the Town Clerk 

describing the location of proposed closing, a list of adjacent property owners, a location map, 

and a non‐refundable fee established in the Town’s adopted fee schedule.  The Assistant Town 

Manager shall review the petition and distribute to appropriate staff for review. 

 

2. The petition and supporting documents shall be reviewed by the Town Attorney and staff in the 

Public Works and Utilities Department, Planning Department, and Construction Management and 

Engineering Department.  Staff will review the infrastructure and make a recommendation on 

continuing the process or denial.  The Assistant Town Manager shall inform the petitioner of the 

recommendation and the reasons for a denial recommendation if appropriate. 

 

If the petitioner wishes to continue, the petitioner shall provide a survey of the proposed 

abandonment and other supporting documentation requested by staff.  If any Town easement 

rights are required to be retained by the Town, the petitioner shall provide sufficient 

documentation to ensure survival of the easement rights.  In addition, a refundable fee based on 

the approximate cost of completing the process shall be paid to the Town by the petitioner.  

 

3. Once the fee is paid and documentation is supplied, the Town Attorney will prepare a resolution 

of intent to close the right of way.  The Town Clerk shall incorporate the proposed resolution into 

the next available Town Council Agenda with the staff recommendation and set the public 

hearing date.  The petitioner shall present their request to the Town Council. 

 

4. Upon an approval of the resolution of intent by the Town Council, the Town Clerk shall provide 

notice of the resolution and public hearing as required by North Carolina General Statue 160A‐

299.  The Planning Department will post required signs for the proposed abandonment.  

 

5. If the Town Council denies the resolution of intent, no notice shall be published, the refundable 

fee shall be returned and the issue shall not be considered again for 180 days.  

 

6. At the public hearing, the Town Council will consider the recommendation of the staff (which can 

change from original recommendation), the petitioner and the public and determine whether the 

closing is contrary to the public interest and any individual owning property in the vicinity of the 

street or alley would be deprived of reasonable means of ingress and egress to his property. 

 

7. Upon affirmative vote, the Town Clerk shall record the necessary documents. 

 

8. Upon a denial vote, the petition is closed and a new petition and fees shall be required for 

reconsideration.  180 days must pass from the date of denial prior to acceptance of a new 

petition.  

- Page 109 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: May 9, 2023 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager 

Department(s): Planning 

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve the Statement of the Town Council and Ordinance for Rezoning Application #23CZ01, 

Rockpoint Group, LLC and Oppidan, petitioners, for the properties located at 0 & 0 Pristine Water Drive and 

1251 Burma Drive (PINs 0751043020, 0751235497, & 0751132324). 

Approval Recommended? 

The Planning Department recommends approval. 

Item Details 

Rezoning Application #23CZ01 was approved at the April 25, 2023 Town Council meeting.  

 

Attachments 

 CN11-A1: Statement of the Town Council and Ordinance – Rezoning No. 23CZ01 

 CN11-A2: Attachment A - Legal Description – Rezoning No. 23CZ01 

 

 

- Page 110 -



STATEMENT OF TOWN COUNCIL AND ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING DISTRICT MAP OF 
THE TOWN OF APEX TO CHANGE THE ZONING OF APPROXIMATELY 83.03 ACRES LOCATED AT 0 & 0 
PRISTINE WATER DRIVE & 1251 BURMA DRIVE FROM LIGHT INDUSTRIAL-CONDITIONAL ZONING (LI-CZ 
#21CZ08) TO LIGHT INDUSTRIAL-CONDITIONAL ZONING (LI-CZ) 

 
#23CZ01 

WHEREAS, Apex Industrial Owner 3, LLC & Apex Industrial Owner 4, LLC/ Rockpoint Group, LLC & Oppidan, 
owner/applicant (the “Applicant”), submitted a completed application for a conditional zoning on the 1st 
day of February 2023 (the “Application”). The proposed conditional zoning is designated #23CZ01; 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Director for the Town of Apex, Dianne Khin, caused proper notice to be given (by 
publication and posting) of a public hearing on #23CZ01 before the Planning Board on the 10th day of April 
2023; 
 
WHEREAS, the Apex Planning Board held a public hearing on the 10th day of April 2023, gathered facts, 
received public comments and formulated a recommendation regarding the application for conditional 
zoning #23CZ01. A motion was made by the Apex Planning Board to recommend approval; the motion 
passed unanimously for the application for #23CZ01; 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C.G.S. §160D-601 and Sec. 2.2.11.E of the Unified Development Ordinance, the 
Planning Director caused proper notice to be given (by publication and posting), of a public hearing on 
#23CZ01 before the Apex Town Council on the 25th day of April 2023; 
 
WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council held a public hearing on the 25th day of April 2023. Amanda Bunce, 
Current Planning Manager, presented the Planning Board's recommendation at the public hearing; 
 
WHEREAS, all persons who desired to present information relevant to the application for #23CZ01 were 
allowed to present evidence at the public hearing before the Apex Town Council. No one who wanted to 
speak was turned away;  
 
WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council finds that the approval of the rezoning is consistent with the 2045 Land 
Use Plan and other adopted plans in that: The 2045 Land Use Map designates this area as Industrial 
Employment. This designation on the 2045 Land Use Map includes the zoning district Light Industrial-
Conditional Zoning (LI-CZ) and the Apex Town Council has further considered that the proposed rezoning 
to Light Industrial-Conditional Zoning (LI-CZ) will maintain the character and appearance of the area and 
provide the flexibility to accommodate the growth in population, economy, and infrastructure consistent 
with that contemplated by the 2045 Land Use Map; 
 

WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council finds that the approval of the rezoning is reasonable and in the public 
interest in that: The rezoning will provide additional flexibility in the types of uses allowed, encourage 
compatible development of the property, and allow for uses that will generate jobs and increase the tax 
base; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council by a vote of 4 to 0 approved Application #23CZ01 rezoning the subject 
tract located at 0 & 0 Pristine Water Drive & 1251 Burma Drive from Light Industrial-Conditional Zoning 
(LI-CZ #21CZ08) to Light Industrial-Conditional Zoning (LI-CZ). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF APEX 

 Section 1:  The lands that are the subject of the Ordinance are those certain lands described in 
Attachment “A” – Legal Description which is incorporated herein by reference, and said lands are 
hereafter referred to as the “Rezoned Lands.” 

Section 2:  The Town of Apex Unified Development Ordinance, including the Town of Apex North 
Carolina Official Zoning District Map which is a part of said Ordinance, is hereby amended by changing the 

- Page 111 -



Ordinance Amending the Official Zoning District Map #23CZ01 

Page 2 of 3 

zoning classification of the “Rezoned Lands” from from Light Industrial-Conditional Zoning (LI-CZ #21CZ08) 
to Light Industrial-Conditional Zoning (LI-CZ), subject to the conditions stated herein. 

Section 3:  The Planning Director is hereby authorized and directed to cause the said Official 
Zoning District Map for the Town of Apex, North Carolina, to be physically revised and amended to reflect 
the zoning changes ordained by this Ordinance. 

Section 4:  The “Rezoned Lands” are subject to all of the following conditions which are imposed 
as part of this rezoning: 

The Rezoned Lands may be used for, and only for, the uses listed immediately below. The permitted uses 
are subject to the limitations and regulations stated in the UDO and any additional limitations or 
regulations stated below. For convenience, some relevant sections of the UDO may be referenced; such 
references do not imply that other sections of the UDO do not apply.  
 
1. Security or caretaker quarters 
2. Government service 
3. Heliport or helipad 
4. Transportation facility 
5. Utility, minor 
6. Regional recreation complex 
7. Broadcast station (radio and television) 
8. Radio and television recording studio 
9. Medical or dental office or clinic 
10. Medical or dental laboratory 
11. Office, business or professional 
12. Pilot plant 
13. Research facility 
14. Laboratory, industrial research 
15. Machine or welding shop 
16. Woodworking or cabinetmaking 
17. Wholesaling distribution center 
18. Brewery 

 19. Distillery 
20. Dry cleaning and dyeing plant 
21. Laundry plant 
22. Manufacturing and processing 
23. Microbrewery 
24. Microdistillery 
25. Botanical garden 
26. Building supplies, wholesale 
27. Warehousing, general 
28. Warehousing fulfillment center 
29. Manufacturing and processing, minor 
30. Retail sales, general (%) 
31. Repair services, limited 
32. Repair and maintenance, general 
33. Monument sales, retail 
34. Artisan studio 
35. Contractor’s office and storage yard 
36. Commissary 

Zoning Conditions: 

1. EIFS cornices and parapet trim may be used. EIFS and stucco shall not be used within four (4) feet of 
the ground and shall be limited to 25% of each building façade. 

2. The front façade and any façade that faces a collector street shall be a minimum of 60% masonry. The 
remainder of such facades shall be high-quality aluminum composite metal panels or similar. 

3. The developer shall dedicate 30’ of public right-of-way along the southern property line for future 
construction of Pristine Water Drive in accordance with the Apex Transportation Plan. 

4. No buffer shall be required along major and minor collector streets. 
5. A continuous 10’ Side Path within the public right-of-way or 10’ Greenway within a 20’ Public 

Greenway Easement shall be constructed from Burma Drive at the northern property boundary to 
future Production Drive at the southern property boundary. 

- Page 112 -



Ordinance Amending the Official Zoning District Map #23CZ01 

Page 3 of 3 

6. The minimum parking requirement shall either be in accordance with UDO Sec. 8.3.2 Off-Street 
Parking Requirements or 1 parking space per employee on the maximum shift plus 2% additional for 
visitors, whichever is greater. 

7. With the exception of development on Lots 1 and 2, each development shall provide two (2) electric 
vehicle charging spaces. These spaces count toward minimum parking standards. 

8. Greenhouses accessory to a Research facility shall be exempt from the following: 
a. The building material and color standards of Sec. 4.5.3 Accessory Structures, Non-Residential 

Zoning Districts; and 
b. The limitation on percent of yard area occupied and setback requirements of Sec. 5.2.7.B 

Dimensional Standards for Detached Accessory Structures, Percentage of Required Yard Occupied 
and Required Setbacks. 

9. Outdoor storage shall be prohibited as a principal use. 
 

Section 5:  The “Rezoned Lands” shall be perpetually bound to the conditions imposed including the 
uses authorized, unless subsequently changed or amended as provided for in the Unified Development 
Ordinance. Site plans for any development to be made pursuant to this amendment to the Official Zoning 
District Map shall be submitted for site plan approval as provided for in the Unified Development Ordinance. 

Section 6:  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption. 

 Motion by Council Member___________________________________ 

 Seconded by Council Member__________________________________ 

 With ____ Council Member(s) voting "aye." 

 With ____ Council Member(s) voting "no." 

 This the _____ day of _________________ 2023. 

  TOWN OF APEX 

  
Jacques K. Gilbert 
Mayor 

ATTEST:   

Allen Coleman, CMC, NCCCC 
Town Clerk 

  

APPROVED AS TO FORM:   
   

Town Attorney   
 

- Page 113 -



AFFIDAVIT OF OWNERSHIP: EXHIBIT A – LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

Application #: Submittal Date: 

Last Updated: August 30, 2019 

Insert legal description below. 

10 of 11 Rezoning Application

23CZ01

- Page 114 -



AFFIDAVIT OF OWNERSHIP: EXHIBIT A – LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

Application #: Submittal Date: 

Last Updated: August 30, 2019 

Insert legal description below. 

10 of 11 Rezoning Application

23CZ01

- Page 115 -



AFFIDAVIT OF OWNERSHIP: EXHIBIT A – LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
Application #: Submittal Date: 

Last Updated: August 30, 2019 

Insert legal description below. 

10 of 11 Rezoning Application

23CZ01

- Page 116 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: May 9, 2023 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Shelly Mayo, Planner II 

Department(s): Planning 

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve Statement of the Town Council and Ordinance for Rezoning Case #23CZ02 Triangle 

Home Services Phase II.  The applicant is Peak Engineering & Design, PLLC for the property located at 0 US 

Hwy 64 West (PIN 0722047141). 

Approval Recommended? 

The Planning Department recommends approval. 

Item Details 

Rezoning Case #23CZ02 Triangle Home Services Phase II was approved at the April 25, 2023 Town Council 

meeting. 

Attachments 

 CN12-A1: Statement of the Town Council and Ordinance – Rezoning No. 23CZ02 

 CN12-A2: Attachment A - Legal Description – Rezoning No. 23CZ02 

 

- Page 117 -



STATEMENT OF TOWN COUNCIL AND ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING DISTRICT MAP OF THE 
TOWN OF APEX TO CHANGE THE ZONING OF APPROXIMATELY 4.55 ACRES LOCATED AT 0 US HIGHWAY 64 WEST 
FROM RURAL RESIDENTIAL (RR) TO TECH/FLEX–CONDITIONAL ZONING (TF-CZ) 

#23CZ02 

WHEREAS, Peak Engineering & Design, PLLC, owner/applicant (the “Applicant”), submitted a completed 
application for a conditional zoning on the 1st day of February 2023 (the “Application”). The proposed conditional 
zoning is designated #23CZ02; 

WHEREAS, the Planning Director for the Town of Apex, Dianne Khin, caused proper notice to be given (by 
publication and posting) of a public hearing on #23CZ02 before the Planning Board on the 10th day of April 2023; 

WHEREAS, the Apex Planning Board held a public hearing on the 10th day of April 2023, gathered facts, received 
public comments and formulated a recommendation regarding the application for conditional zoning #23CZ02. A 
motion was made by the Apex Planning Board to recommend approval; the motion passed unanimously for the 
application for #23CZ02; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C.G.S. §160D-601 and Sec. 2.2.11.E of the Unified Development Ordinance, the Planning 
Director caused proper notice to be given (by publication and posting), of a public hearing on #23CZ02 before the 
Apex Town Council on the 25th day of April 2023; 

WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council held a public hearing on the 25th day of April 2023. Shelly Mayo, Planner II, 
presented the Planning Board's recommendation at the public hearing; 

WHEREAS, all persons who desired to present information relevant to the application for #23CZ02 were allowed 
to present evidence at the public hearing before the Apex Town Council. No one who wanted to speak was turned 
away;  

WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council finds that the approval of the rezoning is consistent with the 2045 Land Use 
Plan and other adopted plans in that: The 2045 Land Use Map designates this area as Mixed Use: High Density 
Residential/Office Employment/ Commercial Services. This designation on the 2045 Land Use Map includes the 
zoning district Tech/Flex–Conditional Zoning (TF-CZ) and the Apex Town Council has further considered that the 
proposed rezoning to Tech/Flex–Conditional Zoning (TF-CZ) will maintain the character and appearance of the 
area and provide the flexibility to accommodate the growth in population, economy, and infrastructure consistent 
with that contemplated by the 2045 Land Use Map; 

WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council finds that the approval of the rezoning is reasonable and in the public interest 
in that: The rezoning will permit additional non-residential uses that are compatible with the surrounding 
properties, implement stricter environmental conditions than the UDO requires, and allow the property to be 
developed in conjunction with the property to the north. The rezoning will encourage compatible development 
of the property and increase the tax base; and  

WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council by a vote of 3 to 1 approved Application #23CZ02 rezoning the subject tract 
located at 0 US Highway 64 West from Rural Residential (RR) to Tech/Flex–Conditional Zoning (TF-CZ). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF APEX 

 Section 1:  The lands that are the subject of the Ordinance are those certain lands described in Attachment 
“A” – Legal Description which is incorporated herein by reference, and said lands are hereafter referred to as the 
“Rezoned Lands.” 

- Page 118 -



Ordinance Amending the Official Zoning District Map #23CZ02 

Page 2 of 4 

Section 2:  The Town of Apex Unified Development Ordinance, including the Town of Apex North Carolina 
Official Zoning District Map which is a part of said Ordinance, is hereby amended by changing the zoning 
classification of the “Rezoned Lands” from Rural Residential (RR) to Tech/Flex–Conditional Zoning (TF-CZ) District, 
subject to the conditions stated herein. 

Section 3:  The Planning Director is hereby authorized and directed to cause the said Official Zoning District 
Map for the Town of Apex, North Carolina, to be physically revised and amended to reflect the zoning changes 
ordained by this Ordinance. 

Section 4:  The “Rezoned Lands” are subject to all of the following conditions which are imposed as part 
of this rezoning: 

The Rezoned Lands may be used for, and only for, the uses listed immediately below. The permitted uses are 
subject to the limitations and regulations stated in the UDO and any additional limitations or regulations stated 
below. For convenience, some relevant sections of the UDO may be referenced; such references do not imply that 
other sections of the UDO do not apply.  

1. Security or Caretaker quarters  

2. Day care facility  

3. Drop-in or short- term day care  

4. Government service  

5. Veterinary clinic or hospital  

6. Vocational school  

7. Utility, minor  

8. Wireless support structure  

9. Wireless communication facility  

10. Botanical garden  

11. Entertainment, indoor  

12. Greenway  

13. Park, active  

14. Park, passive  

15. Youth or day camps  

16. Broadcasting station (radio and television)  

17. Radio and television recording studio  

18. Commissary  

19. Restaurant, general  

20. Dispatching office  

21. Medical or dental office or clinic   

22. Medical or dental laboratory  

23. Office, business or professional  

24. Pilot Plant (S)  

25. Publishing office  

26. Research facility  

27. Artisan Studio  

28. Glass sales  

29. Grocery, general  

30. Grocery, specialty  

31. Health/fitness center or spa  

32. Kennel  

33. Personal service  

34. Printing and copying service  

35. Real estate sales  

36. Repair services, limited  

37. Retail sales, bulky goods  

38. Retail sales, general (%)  

39. Self-service storage  

40. Studio for art  

41. Tailor shop  

42. Upholstery shop  

43. Pet services  

44. Automotive Accessory Sales and Installation  

45. Contractor's office and storage yard  

46. Laboratory, industrial research  

47. Warehousing, general  

48. Woodworking or cabinetmaking   

49. Wholesaling distribution center  

50. Microbrewery  

51. Microdistillery 

Zoning Conditions: 
1. Non-residential architectural standards:  

a. The building exterior shall be high quality materials, including but not limited to brick, wood, stacked 

stone, other native stone, and tinted/textured concrete masonry units.  

- Page 119 -



Ordinance Amending the Official Zoning District Map #23CZ02 

Page 3 of 4 

b. EIFS or synthetic stucco shall not be used in the first forty inches (40”) above grade.  

c. The building exterior shall have more than one material color.  

d. The buildings shall have more than one parapet height.  

e. Only full cut-off lighting fixtures and fixtures with external house-side shields shall be allowed where 

non-residential properties are adjacent to residential properties.  

2. A buffer shall not be required along the northern boundary adjacent to PIN 0722-04-7652). 

3. If the uses “Commissary”, “Contractor’s office and storage yard”, and/or “Wholesale distribution center” 

are proposed within the zoned property, an 8-foot opaque fence shall be installed to provide additional 

screening of the stored business vehicles from the American Tobacco Trail. This requirement is above and 

beyond the required buffer along the American Tobacco Trail. 

4. A note shall be added to plans and plats regarding the existing Deck Air Park generally as noted:  

"AVIATION NOTICE: Deck Air Park, an active, general aviation airport open to the public, is located within 
close proximity to the proposed development. The flight path of aircraft landing, taking off, and flying 
nearby pass directly over this development. The property identified on this plat may be subject to the 
impacts of the aviation uses being conducted to, from, at and nearby Deck Air Park for so long as that 
airport may continue to be used."   

5. The use “Glass Sales” shall be all indoors except where materials are stored on trucks. Outdoor truck 

parking for Glass Sales use must be fully screened from any public rights-of-ways.  

6. “Self-service storage” shall be limited to parking, drive aisles, and SCMs on the rezoned parcel. 

7. “Contractor’s office and storage yard” shall not permit an outdoor storage yard on the zoned parcel with 

the exception of any company vehicles stored when not in use. 

8. Post development peak runoff shall not exceed pre-development peak runoff for the 24-hour, 1-year, 10-

year, and 25-year storm events in accordance with the Unified Development Ordinance. 

9. No clearing or land disturbance shall be permitted within the riparian buffer, except the minimum 

necessary to install required sewer infrastructure and SCM outlets. The SCM water storage and treatment 

area shall not be permitted with the riparian buffer. The sewer shall be designed to minimize impacts to 

the riparian buffer. 

10. Plant deciduous shade trees on the southern side of buildings. 

11. Plant evergreen trees as a windbreak on northern side of buildings. 

12. The project shall select and install tree, shrub and perennial species with special attention to providing 

diverse and abundant pollinator and bird food sources, including plants that bloom in succession from 

spring to fall. 

13. Of the vegetation used with the development, 75% shall be native species including those planted within 

the perimeter buffers. Species shall be submitted to the Planning Department in coordination with the 

Apex Design & Development Manual). 

14. To reduce irrigation requirements, the project shall select and plant only warm season grasses. 

15. A minimum of three (3) hardwood tree species shall be used for the landscaping on site. 

16. A minimum of two (2) Electric Vehicle Charging Stations shall be installed. 

17. Include International Dark Sky Association compliance standards within the design, including:  

a. Outdoor lighting shall be shielded in a way that focuses lighting to the ground. 

b. Lighting that minimizes the emission of blue light to reduce glare shall be used. 

c. Lighting with a color temperature of 3000K or less shall be used for outside installations. 

18. All non-residential buildings shall provide solar conduit for future installation of rooftop solar panels. 

Section 5:  The “Rezoned Lands” shall be perpetually bound to the conditions imposed including the uses 
authorized, unless subsequently changed or amended as provided for in the Unified Development Ordinance. Site 
plans for any development to be made pursuant to this amendment to the Official Zoning District Map shall be 

- Page 120 -



Ordinance Amending the Official Zoning District Map #23CZ02 

Page 4 of 4 

submitted for site plan approval as provided for in the Unified Development Ordinance. 

Section 6:  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption. 

 Motion by Council Member___________________________________ 

 Seconded by Council Member__________________________________ 

 With ____ Council Member(s) voting "aye." 

 With ____ Council Member(s) voting "no." 

 This the _____ day of _________________ 2023. 

  TOWN OF APEX 

  
Jacques K. Gilbert 
Mayor 

ATTEST:   

Allen Coleman, CMC, NCCCC 
Town Clerk 

  

APPROVED AS TO FORM:   
   

Town Attorney   
 

- Page 121 -



 

 
Triangle Home Services / Shelton Property Investments LLC 

Rezoning Legal Description 
 

All those certain parcels of land, situated in White Oak Township, Wake County, Apex, North 
Carolina, being known and designated as PIN 0722-04-7141, Wake County Records Deed Book 
1992 Page 1523 and being more particularly described as follows: 
 
Beginning at an Existing Iron Pipe on the Northeast Property Corner of PIN 0722-03-7373 N/F 
John W. Long & Faye Long (Deed Book 2070 Page 631) and the Southeast Property Corner of 
Graydon Holdings, LLC property PIN 0722-04-7141 (Deed Book 17531 Page 1052) Wake County 
Records having State Plane Coordinates N:723,906.79, E:2,021,015.94 as shown on a certain map 
entitled “Exempt Subdivision Plat for Graydon Holdings Parcel” made by VHB and recorded in 
Book of Maps 2021 Page 522 and Deed Book 18414 Page 2323, said point being the POINT OF 
BEGINNING: 
 
thence N88°56’26"W 508.99' to an Existing Iron Pipe being a Common Property Corner with 
PIN:0722040381 (N/F Deannas Dowry, LLC); 
 
thence N01°57’01"E 417.06' to an Existing Iron Pipe being a Common Property Corner with 
PIN:0722047652 (N/F Shelton Property Investments, LLC); 
 
thence S87°00’24"E 439.95' to an Existing Iron Pipe along the Common Property Boundary with 
PIN:0722047652 (N/F Shelton Property Investments, LLC); 
 
thence S87°00’24"E 20.68' to an Existing Iron Pipe being a Common Property Corner with 
PIN:0722047652 (N/F Shelton Property Investments, LLC) and PIN:0711986221 (N/F North 
Carolina Department of Transportation – more commonly the American Tobacco Trail property); 
 
thence S04°55’57"E 403.67' to an Existing Iron Pipe being a Common Property Corner with 
PIN:0722037373 (N/F John W. Long & Faye Long), said point being the POINT OF 
BEGINNING. 
 
Triangle Home Services / Shelton Property Investments LLC Rezoning contains 198,211 square 
feet or 4.55 acres more or less. 
 

- Page 122 -

smayo
Typewritten Text
Attachment A: Legal Description



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: May 9, 2023 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager 

Department(s): Planning 

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve the Statement of the Town Council and Ordinance for Rezoning Application #23CZ03, 

Rebecca D’Eloia, RXR Realty, petitioner, for the properties located at 0 & 0 E Williams Street and 0 & 0 Veridea 

Parkway (PINs 0740982630, 0740982659, 0740240814, 0740052449). 

Approval Recommended? 

The Planning Department recommends approval. 

Item Details 

Rezoning Application #23CZ03 was approved at the April 25, 2023 Town Council meeting.  

 

Attachments 

 CN13-A1: Statement of the Town Council and Ordinance – Rezoning No. 23CZ03 – Veridea 
Expansion 

 CN13-A2: Attachment A - Legal Description – Rezoning No. 23CZ03 – Veridea Expansion 

 CN13-A3: Attachment B - Sustainable Development Plan for Veridea 
 CN14-A4: Attachment C – Environmental Enhancement Plan for Veridea  

 

 

- Page 123 -



STATEMENT OF TOWN COUNCIL AND ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING DISTRICT MAP OF 
THE TOWN OF APEX TO CHANGE THE ZONING OF APPROXIMATELY 24.92 ACRES LOCATED AT 0 & 0 E 
WILLIAMS STREET AND 0 & 0 VERIDEA PARKWAY FROM RURAL RESIDENTIAL (RR) AND RESIDENTIAL 
AGRICULTURAL (RA) TO SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT-CONDITIONAL ZONING (SD-CZ) FOR VERIDEA 

 
#23CZ03 

WHEREAS, RXR Len Apex Owner, LLC/Rebecca D’Eloia, RXR Realty, owner/applicant (the “Applicant”), 
submitted a completed application for a conditional zoning on the 1st day of February 2023 (the 
“Application”). The proposed conditional zoning is designated #23CZ03; 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Director for the Town of Apex, Dianne Khin, caused proper notice to be given (by 
publication and posting) of a public hearing on #23CZ03 before the Planning Board on the 10th day of April 
2023; 
 
WHEREAS, the Apex Planning Board held a public hearing on the 10th day of April 2023, gathered facts, 
received public comments and formulated a recommendation regarding the application for conditional 
zoning #23CZ03. A motion was made by the Apex Planning Board to recommend approval; the motion passed 
unanimously for the application for #23CZ03; 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C.G.S. §160D-601 and Sec. 2.2.11.E of the Unified Development Ordinance, the 
Planning Director caused proper notice to be given (by publication and posting), of a public hearing on 
#23CZ03 before the Apex Town Council on the 25th day of April 2023; 
 
WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council held a public hearing on the 25th day of April 2023. Amanda Bunce, Current 
Planning Manager, presented the Planning Board's recommendation at the public hearing; 
 
WHEREAS, all persons who desired to present information relevant to the application for #23CZ03 were 
allowed to present evidence at the public hearing before the Apex Town Council. No one who wanted to 
speak was turned away;  
 
WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council finds that the approval of the rezoning is consistent with the 2045 Land 
Use Plan and other adopted plans in that: The 2045 Land Use Map designates this area as Regional Mixed 
Use: Medium Density Residential/High Density Residential/Office Employment/Commercial 
Services/Industrial Employment. This designation on the 2045 Land Use Map includes the zoning district 
Sustainable Development-Conditional Zoning (SD-CZ) and the Apex Town Council has further considered that 
the proposed rezoning to Sustainable Development-Conditional Zoning (SD-CZ) will maintain the character 
and appearance of the area and provide the flexibility to accommodate the growth in population, economy, 
and infrastructure consistent with that contemplated by the 2045 Land Use Map; 
 
WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council finds that the approval of the rezoning is reasonable and in the public 
interest in that: The rezoning will encourage more efficient and compatible development of the properties, 
provide for the same development standards as applicable to the undeveloped adjacent properties, and 
allow for uses that will generate jobs and increase the tax base; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council by a vote of 4 to 0 approved Application #23CZ03 rezoning the subject 
tract located at 0 & 0 E Williams Street and 0 & 0 Veridea Parkway from Rural Residential (RR) & Residential 
Agricultural (RA) to Sustainable Development-Conditional Zoning (SD-CZ) for Veridea. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF APEX 

 Section 1:  The lands that are the subject of the Ordinance are those certain lands described in 
Attachment “A” – Legal Description which is incorporated herein by reference, and said lands are hereafter 
referred to as the “Rezoned Lands.” 

- Page 124 -



Ordinance Amending the Official Zoning District Map #23CZ03 

Page 2 of 2 

Section 2:  The Town of Apex Unified Development Ordinance, including the Town of Apex North 
Carolina Official Zoning District Map which is a part of said Ordinance, is hereby amended by changing the 
zoning classification of the “Rezoned Lands” from Rural Residential (RR) & Residential Agricultural (RA) to 
Sustainable Development-Conditional Zoning (SD-CZ) for Veridea, subject to the conditions stated herein. 

Section 3:  The Planning Director is hereby authorized and directed to cause the said Official Zoning 
District Map for the Town of Apex, North Carolina, to be physically revised and amended to reflect the zoning 
changes ordained by this Ordinance. 

Section 4:  The “Rezoned Lands” are subject to the conditions in Attachment “B” Veridea SD Plan 
which are imposed as part of this rezoning and Attachment “C” Veridea Environmental Enhancement Plan. 
At the request of the applicant and pursuant to UDO Sec. 2.3.16.D, the zoning of these parcels to the Veridea 
SD-CZ district shall not increase the number of residential units on a pro-rata basis, based on the size of the 
parcels added to the district. 

Section 5:  The “Rezoned Lands” shall be perpetually bound to the conditions imposed including the 
uses authorized, unless subsequently changed or amended as provided for in the Unified Development 
Ordinance. Site plans for any development to be made pursuant to this amendment to the Official Zoning 
District Map shall be submitted for site plan approval as provided for in the Unified Development Ordinance. 

Section 6:  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption. 

 Motion by Council Member___________________________________ 

 Seconded by Council Member__________________________________ 

 With ____ Council Member(s) voting "aye." 

 With ____ Council Member(s) voting "no." 

 This the _____ day of _________________ 2023. 

  TOWN OF APEX 

  
Jacques K. Gilbert 
Mayor 

ATTEST:   

Allen Coleman, CMC, NCCCC 
Town Clerk 

  

APPROVED AS TO FORM:   
   

Town Attorney   
 

- Page 125 -



Veridea Expansion - Metes and Bounds Legal Description 

PARCEL 1 

PID: 0740982659 

BEING A PORTION OF LOT 13 AS SHOWN ON BOOK OF MAPS 1948, PAGE 18 OF THE WAKE 
COUNTY REGISTRY. MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS:  

BEGINNING AN IRON PIPE, THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 12 AS SHOWN ON BOOK OF 
MAPS 1948, PAGE 18 OF THE WAKE COUNTY REGISTRY, THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE 
NORTH 01°25'42" EAST A DISTANCE OF 49.75 FEET TO AN IRON PIPE, THE SOUTHWEST CORNER 
OF LOT 14 AS SHOWN ON THE AFORE SAID BOOK PF MAPS; THENCE WITH SAID COMMON LINE 
SOUTH 87°07'42" EAST A DISTANCE OF 125.64 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WESTERN RIGHT OF 
WAY OF NORTH CAROLINA HIGHWAY 55; THENCE WITH SAID RIGHT OF WAY SOUTH 01°45'44" 
WEST A DISTANCE OF 50.00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTH LINE OF SAID LOT 12; THENCE 
WITH SAID COMMON LINE NORTH 87°00'54" WEST A DISTANCE OF 125.36 FEET TO THE POINT 
OF BEGINNING. CONTAINING 6,258 SQUARE FEET OR 0.14 ACRES. 

PARCEL 2 

PID: 0740982630 

BEING A PORTION OF LOT 11 AS SHOWN ON BOOK OF MAPS 1948, PAGE 18 OF THE WAKE 
COUNTY REGISTRY. MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS:  

BEGINNING AT AN IRON PIPE, THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 12 AS SHOWN ON BOOK OF 
MAPS 1948, PAGE 18 OF THE WAKE COUNTY REGISTRY, THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE 
WITH SAID COMMON LINE SOUTH 86°50'20" EAST A DISTANCE DF 115.40 FEET TO A POINT ON 
THE WESTERN RIGHT OF WAY OF NORTH CAROLINA HIGHWAY 55; THENCE WITH SAID RIGHT 
OF WAY SOUTH 14°56'39" WEST A DISTANCE OF 51.10 FEET TO A CONCRETE RIGHT OF WAY 
MONUMENT ON THE NORTHERN LINE OF LOT 10 AS SHOWN ON THE AFORE SAID BOOK OF 
MAPS; THENCE WITH SAID COMMON LINE NORTH 86°52'56" WEST A DISTANCE OF 103.53 FEET 
TO AN IRON PIPE THE NORTHWESTERN CORNER OF LOT 10; THENCE NORTH 01 °30'52" EAST A 
DISTANCE OF 50.12 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. CONTAINING AN AREA OF 5,480 
SQUARE FEET OR 0.13 ACRES. 

Attachment A

- Page 126 -



4875-8344-5079, v. 1 

PARCEL 3 

BEING A PORTION OF THE PROGRESS ENERGY TRACT AS SHOWN ON BOOK OF MAPS 2007, 
PAGE 1132 IN THE WAKE COUNTY REGISTER OF DEEDS. BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED 
AS:  

BEGINNING AT A POINT AT THE INTERSECTION OF THE EASTERN RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF 
VERIDEA PARKWAY AND THE SOUTHERN RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF THE N.C. HIGHWAY 540 RAMP, 
AS DESCRIBED IN DEED BOOK 15539, PAGE 1855 IN THE WAKE COUNTY REGISTER OF DEEDS, 
THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE WITH THE SOUTHERN RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF THE N.C. 
HIGHWAY 540 RAMP, NORTH 48°17'55" EAST A DISTANCE OF 3.48 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE 
SOUTH 76°02'09" EAST A DISTANCE OF 316.69 FEET TO A CONCRETE MONUMENT; THENCE 
SOUTH 77°42'22" EAST A DISTANCE OF 224.13 FEET TO A CONCRETE MONUMENT; THENCE 
NORTH 74°21'52" EAST A DISTANCE OF 186.60 FEET TO A CONCRETE MONUMENT; THENCE 
NORTH 46°45'41" EAST A DISTANCE OF 297.04 FEET TO A CONCRETE MONUMENT; THENCE 
NORTH 47°49'13" EAST A DISTANCE OF 182.30 FEET TO A CONCRETE MONUMENT; THENCE 
NORTH 64°40'03" EAST A DISTANCE OF 179.28 FEET TO A POINT, BEING THE NORTHWEST 
CORNER OF LANDS NOW OR FORMERLY OWNED BY GREENWAY WASTE SOLUTIONS OF APEX, 
LLC, AS DESCRIBED IN DEED BOOK 9099, PAGE 1039; THENCE WITH SAID COMMON LINE, 
SOUTH 06°34'16" EAST A DISTANCE OF 760.63 FEET TO AN IRON PIPE ON THE NORTHERN LINE 
OF LANDS NOW OR FORMERLY OWNED BY HH TRINITY APEX INVESTMENTS, LLC, AS DESCRIBED 
IN DEED BOOK 12826, PAGE 2489; THENCE WITH SAID COMMON LINE, NORTH 78°40'10" WEST 
A DISTANCE OF 164.41 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE NORTH 77°01'58" WEST A DISTANCE OF 
181.30 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE NORTH 65°53'37" WEST A DISTANCE OF 301.08 FEET TO A 
POINT; THENCE NORTH 71°44'05" WEST A DISTANCE OF 452.53 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE 
NORTH 71°58'44" WEST A DISTANCE OF 280.51 FEET TO THE POINT AND PLACE OF BEGINNING, 
CONTAINING AN AREA OF 316,750 SQUARE FEET OR 7.27 ACRES. 

 

PARCEL 4  

BEING ALL OF THE LAND DESCRIBED IN DEED BOOK 15535, PAGE 1727 IN THE WAKE COUNTY 
REGISTER OF DEEDS. BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS:  

BEGINNING AT A CONCRETE MONUMENT ON THE NORTHERN LINE OF LANDS AS SHOWN ON 
BOOK OF MAPS 1986, PAGE 1865 IN THE WAKE COUNTY REGISTER OF DEEDS, THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING; THENCE WITH SAID COMMON LINE, NORTH 71°59'15" WEST A DISTANCE OF 
337.68 FEET TO AN IRON PIPE; THENCE NORTH 86°29'50" WEST A DISTANCE OF 829.07 FEET TO 
AN IRON PIPE, BEING THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LANDS NOW OR FORMERLY OWNED BY HH 
TRINITY APEX INVESTMENTS, LLC, AS DESCRIBED IN DEED BOOK 12651, PAGE 1128; THENCE 
WITH SAID COMMON LINE, NORTH 00°41'54" EAST A DISTANCE OF 661.29 FEET TO A POINT ON 
THE SOUTHERN LINE OF LANDS NOW OR FORMERLY OWNED BY HH TRINITY APEX 
INVESTMENTS, AS DESCRIBED IN DEED BOOK 12830, PAGE 1996; THENCE WITH SAID COMMON 

- Page 127 -



4875-8344-5079, v. 1 

LINE, SOUTH 89°13'28" EAST A DISTANCE OF 647.67 FEET TO AN IRON PIPE; THENCE NORTH 
02°26'42" EAST A DISTANCE OF 29.55 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTHERN RIGHT OF WAY LINE 
OF N.C. HIGHWAY 540; THENCE WITH THE SOUTHERN RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF N.C. HIGHWAY 
540, WITH A CURVE TO THE LEFT A RADIUS OF 4375.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 456.34 FEET, 
A CHORD BEARING OF SOUTH 65°10'37" EAST, A CHORD LENGTH OF 456.13 FEET TO A 
CONCRETE MONUMENT; THENCE SOUTH 49°00'55" EAST A DISTANCE OF 133.17 FEET TO A 
POINT AT THE INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTHERN RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF N.C. HIGHWAY 540 
AND THE WESTERN RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF VERIDEA PARKWAY, AS DESCRIBED IN DEED BOOK 
15539, PAGE 1885; THENCE WITH THE WESTERN RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF VERIDEA PARKWAY, 
WITH A CURVE TO THE LEFT A RADIUS OF 1680.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 355.38 FEET, A 
CHORD BEARING OF SOUTH 05°50'57" WEST, A CHORD LENGTH OF 354.72 FEET TO A POINT; 
THENCE WITH A CURVE TO THE LEFT A RADIUS OF 1680.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 205.93 
FEET, A CHORD BEARING OF SOUTH 03°43'21" EAST, A CHORD LENGTH OF 205.80 FEET TO THE 
POINT AND PLACE OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING AN AREA OF 757,143 SQUARE FEET OR 17.38 
ACRES. 

- Page 128 -



ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING DISTRICT MAP 
#09CZ07 

WHEREAS, the application of Lookout Ventures, Inc., petitioner, for the rezoning of lands 
hereinafter described was duly filed with the office of the Planning Director and thereafter public hearings 
were held hereon on the 13th day of December, 2010 and the 13 th day of January, 2011 before the Planning
Board and the 18th day of January, 2011, the 1st day and 15th of February, 2011, the 15th day of March,
2011 and the 10th day of May, 2011, before the Town Council, respectively, pursuant to due notice mailed
and published pursuant to G.S. § 160A-384. Thereafter, the Planning Board submitted its final report to the 
Town Council recommending approval of said application for the rezoning of the lands hereinafter 
described, all in accordance with the requirements of the Town of Apex Unified Development Ordinance and 
the provisions of Chapter 160A, Article 19, of the North Carolina General Statutes; NOW, THEREFORE, 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF APEX 

Section 1: The Town of Apex Unified Development Ordinance, including the Town of Apex North 
Carolina Official Zoning District Map which is a part of said Ordinance, is hereby amended by changing the 
zoning classification of the lands hereinafter described from Planned Unit Development Conditional 
Zoning (PUD-CZ), Light Industrial (LI), Rural Residential (RR) and Residential Agricultural (RA) to 
SD-CZ (Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning) District, said lands so rezoned being described 
as follows: 

See Attachement "A" (Legal Description) 

Section 2: The Planning Director is hereby authorized and directed to cause the said Official Zoning 
District Map for the Town of Apex, North Carolina, to be physically revised and amended to reflect the 
zoning changes directed by this Ordinance. 

Section 3: A request to amend the Official Zoning District Map is granted whereby the previously 
described property and the subject of the previously mentioned change in zoning classification is subject to 
the following limitations: 

See Attachment "B" (SD Plan and UDO Amendments) 

Section 4: 1bis property shall be perpetually bound to the uses authorized, unless subsequently 
changed or amended as provided for in the Unified Development Ordinance. Site plans for any development 
to be made pursuant to this amendment to the Official Zoning District Map shall be submitted for site plan 
approval as provided for in the Unified Development Ordinance. 

Attachment B

- Page 129 -



- Page 130 -



- Page 131 -



- Page 132 -



- Page 133 -



- Page 134 -



- Page 135 -



- Page 136 -



- Page 137 -



- Page 138 -



- Page 139 -



{00031941.DOC 31 }

Sustainable Development Plan

for

VERIDEA

A Sustainable Mixed-Use Community

Apex, North Carolina

10 MAY 2011

Responsible Person:

Lookout Ventures, Inc.

P. O. Box 1166

Zebulon NC

- Page 140 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 2

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT PLAN

DEVELOPER AND RESPONSIBLE PERSON

Lookout Ventures, Inc.

P. O. Box 1166

Zebulon NC 27597

Contact: Tom Hendrickson

tom@lookoutnc.com

EQUITY PARTNER

Hudson Realty Capital, L.L.C.

250 Park Avenue South, Third Floor

New York NY 10003

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE

CLH Design, P.A.

400 Regency Forest Drive, Suite 120

Cary NC 27518

MASTER PLANNING • PLACEMAKING

Shook Kelley, Inc.

2151 Hawkins Street, Suite 400

Charlotte NC 28036

ENVIRONMENTAL STRATEGY

RST Engineering, P.L.L.C.
5416 Orchard Oriole Trail
Wake Forest NC 27587

William G. Ross, Jr.

Brooks Pierce

150 Fayetteville Street

Raleigh, North Carolina 27601

CIVIL ENGINEERING

WSP Sells

15401 Weston Parkway, Suite 100

Cary NC 27513

BBM Associates, Inc.
407 Gorman Street, Suite 101
Raleigh NC 27607

TRANSPORTATION

Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

3001 Weston Parkway

Cary NC 27513

LEGAL

K&L Gates, L.L.P.

4350 Lassiter at North Hills Avenue, Suite 300

Raleigh NC 27609

Smith, Anderson, Blount, Dorsett, Mitchell & Jernigan,

L.L.P.

150 Fayetteville Street

Raleigh NC 27601

Styers & Kemerait, P.L.L.C.

1101 Haynes Street, Suite 101

Raleigh NC 27604

ENERGY PLANNING

Sanford Law Office, P.L.L.C

530 North Person Street

Raleigh NC 27604

PUBLIC RELATIONS

Mike Davis Public Relations, Inc.
303 West Jones Street
Raleigh NC 27603

SUSTAINABILITY AGENDA

BASED ON

PRINCIPLES AND GOALS

DEVELOPED BY

William McDonough + Partners

700 East Jefferson Street

Charlottesville VA 22902

- Page 141 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 3

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLES

1.0 DEFINITIONS OF CAPITALIZED TERMS USED IN THE SUSTAINABLE

DEVELOPMENT (SD) PLAN

2.0 THE DISTRICT

2.1 INTRODUCTION

2.2 CHANGE OF THE RESPONSIBLE PERSON

2.3 AUTHORIZED DEVELOPMENT

2.4 MASTER PROPERTY OWNERS’ ASSOCIATION

2.5 DECLARATION OF RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS

3.0 GENERAL SUSTAINABILITY STANDARDS AND FURTHER

DEVELOPMENT APPROVALS

3.1 PURPOSE OF THE PLAN

3.2 SUSTAINABLE FRAMEWORK

3.3 DEVELOPMENT APPROVALS

3.3.1 SITE PLANS

3.3.2 SUBDIVISION PLANS

3.3.3 WRITTEN STATEMENT FROM RESPONSIBLE PERSON REQUIRED

3.3.4 ADDITIONAL ELECTIVE STANDARDS

3.3.5 ENCROACHMENT AGREEMENTS

3.4 RESOURCE CONSERVATION - NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCE

STANDARDS

3.4.1 GENERAL

3.4.2 COMMUNITY RESOURCE STANDARDS

3.4.2.1 PARKS, RECREATION AND OPEN SPACE

3.4.2.2 SPECIFIC RECREATION REQUIREMENTS

3.4.2.3 GREENWAYS

3.4.2.4 PUBLIC SCHOOLS

3.4.3 RESOURCE CONSERVATION - ENVIRONMENTAL AND NATURAL

RESOURCE PROTECTION STANDARDS

3.4.3.1 RESOURCE CONSERVATION AREA

3.4.3.2 WATER

3.4.3.3 LAND

3.4.3.4 AIR

3.5 TRANSPORTATION INFRASTRUCTURE STANDARDS

3.5.1 GENERAL

3.5.2 ALTERNATIVE THOROUGHFARE STANDARDS

3.5.3 TRAFFIC

3.5.4 SCHEDULE OF INSTALLATION

3.6 UTILITY INFRASTRUCTURE STANDARDS

3.6.1 GENERAL

3.6.2 ALTERNATIVE UTILITY STANDARDS

3.6.3 SCHEDULE OF INSTALLATION

3.6.4 REGIONAL UTILITY STANDARDS

3.7 ENERGY STANDARDS

3.7.1 RENEWABLE ENERGY

3.7.2 ENERGY EFFICIENCY

3.8 NO OBLIGATION

- Page 142 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 4

4.0 COMMUNITY DESIGN STANDARDS

4.1 GENERAL

4.2 VERIDEA SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT MAP

4.3 SUSTAINABLE ZONES

4.4 CIVIC USES

4.5 THOROUGHFARE STANDARDS

4.5.1 GENERAL

4.5.2 VEHICULAR LANES

4.5.3 PUBLIC FRONTAGES

5.0 BUILDING STANDARDS

5.1 TABLES AND PLAN

5.2 CIVIC BUILDINGS

5.3 OPEN SPACE (OS) ZONES

5.4 BUILDING DISPOSITION

5.5 BUILDING CONFIGURATION

5.6 BUILDING FUNCTION

5.7 PARKING AND DENSITY STANDARDS

5.8 PARKING LOCATION STANDARDS

5.9 LANDSCAPE STANDARDS

5.10SIGNAGE

5.11COMMUNICATION TOWERS

5.12EXTERIOR LIGHTING

5.13PATTERN BOOK

6.0 TABLES

TABLE 1 SUSTAINABLE ZONE DESCRIPTIONS

TABLE 2 VERIDEA SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT MAP

TABLE 3A VEHICULAR LANE DIMENSIONS

TABLE 3B VEHICULAR LANE & PARKING ASSEMBLIES

TABLE 4A PUBLIC FRONTAGES – GENERAL

TABLE 4B PUBLIC FRONTAGES – SPECIFIC

TABLE 4C THOROUGHFARE ASSEMBLIES

TABLE 5 NOT USED

TABLE 6 PUBLIC PLANTING

TABLE 7 PRIVATE FRONTAGES

TABLE 8 BUILDING CONFIGURATION

TABLE 9 BUILDING DISPOSITION

TABLE 10 BUILDING FUNCTION & PARKING

TABLE 11 PARKING CALCULATIONS

TABLE 12 SPECIFIC FUNCTION & USE

TABLE 13 CIVIC SPACE

TABLE 14 FORM-BASED CODE SUMMARY

TABLE 15A FORM-BASED CODE GRAPHICS – OS – OPEN SPACE

TABLE 15B FORM-BASED CODE GRAPHICS–NG– NEIGHBORHOOD GENERAL

TABLE 15C FORM-BASED CODE GRAPHICS–NM– NEIGHBORHOOD MIXED-USE

TABLE 15D FORM-BASED CODE GRAPHICS–VC– VILLAGE CENTER

TABLE 15E FORM-BASED CODE GRAPHICS–UC– URBAN CORE

TABLE 16 NOT USED

TABLE 17 DEFINITIONS ILLUSTRATED

TABLE 18 SUSTAINABILITY - SOLAR ENERGY

TABLE 19 SUSTAINABILITY - FOOD PRODUCTION

TABLE 20 SUSTAINABILITY - COMPOSTING AND RECYCLING

- Page 143 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 5

ARTICLE 1.0 DEFINITIONS OF CAPITALIZED TERMS

USED IN THE SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT (SD) PLAN

A-Grid: cumulatively, those Thoroughfares that by virtue of their pedestrian-

supportive qualities, and their importance to pedestrian connectivity, are part

of multi-modal transportation network that is vehicle tolerant and is linked to

the contextual nature of the place. See B-Grid.

A-Grid Zones: areas of the Concept Map where A-Grids are required.

Accessory Structures: structures or buildings incidental to and appropriate

to support a Function or use (i.e., ticket booths and storage for outdoor

amphitheaters, and dugouts and storage for baseball and softball.)

Accessory Unit or Building: a dwelling not greater than 800 square feet

sharing ownership and shared or separate utility connections with a Principal

Building. See Table 10 and Table 17. (Syn: ancillary unit)

Advanced Materials: a broad technology category based on a rapidly

evolving area of science, with applications ranging from aircraft to computer

chips. Advanced structural materials can make products strong, lighter, and

more effective as well as enable the development of totally new products. The

materials can increasingly be designed and tailored to specific applications. A

material is said to be "advanced" if it is a new material for the application. See

Table 12.

Agricultural Plot: a parcel of land used for small-scale agricultural purposes

such as the raising of agricultural products or poultry. See Table 12 and Table

19.

Alleé: a regularly spaced and aligned row or rows of trees usually planted

along a Thoroughfare or Path.

Anticipatory Design: a development approach intended to predict and

facilitate the use of innovative technology and other best development

practices as they evolve and become practically and economically feasible

over time.

Arcade: a Private Frontage conventional for Retail use wherein the Facade is

a colonnade supporting habitable space that overlaps the Sidewalk, while the

Facade at Sidewalk level remains at the Frontage Line.

Avenue (“AV”): a Thoroughfare designed for high vehicular capacity and low

to moderate speed, acting as a short distance connector between Village

Centers, and usually equipped with a landscaped median.

B-Grid: cumulatively, those Thoroughfares that by virtue of their use or

location are vehicle supportive and pedestrian tolerant. See A-Grid.

B-Grid Zones: areas of the Concept Map where B-Grids are permitted.

- Page 144 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 6

Backbuilding: a single-Story structure connecting a Principal Building to an

Outbuilding. See Table 17.

Bed and Breakfast: an owner or manager controlled Lodging type, permitted

to serve breakfast in the mornings to guests in the Neighborhood General

(NG) zone and at all times in other Sustainable Zones.

Bicycle Lane (“BL”): a dedicated lane for cycling within a moderate-speed

vehicular Thoroughfare.

Bicycle Route (“BR”): a Thoroughfare suitable for the shared use of bicycles

and automobiles moving at low speeds. These routes are signed as “bike

route.”

Bicycle Trail (“BT”): a bicycle and pedestrian way running independently of a

vehicular Thoroughfare.

Biotechnology: the science of using living things and components of living

things to produce goods and services. It involves manipulating and modifying

organisms, often at the molecular level, to create new and practical

applications for agriculture, medicine and industry. See Table 12.

Block: the aggregate of private Lots, Passages, Rear Alleys and Rear Lanes,

circumscribed by Thoroughfares.

Boulevard (“BV”): a Thoroughfare designed for high vehicular capacity and

moderate speed, traversing an urbanized area. Boulevards are usually

equipped with Slip Streets buffering Sidewalks and buildings.

By Right: characterizing a proposal or component of a proposal for the

Development that is allowed by the SD Plan.

Civic Building: a building primarily dedicated to public functions such as arts,

culture, education, recreation, government, transit, and parking, or for other

public purposes. Civic Buildings are primarily operated by public or not-for-

profit entities.

Civic Space: land containing a Civic Building and/or an outdoor area

dedicated for public use including Parks but not including street rights of way.

Civic Space types are defined by the combination of certain physical

constants including the relationships among their intended use, their size,

their landscaping and their enfronting buildings. See Table 13.

Civic Use: Open Space that is designated for Civic Buildings and Civic Space

and Public Space.

Commercial: the term collectively defining workplace, Office, Retail, and

Lodging Functions.

Common Destination: an area of focused community activity. It may

include, without limitation, one or more of the following: a Civic Space, a Civic

Building, a Commercial center, or a transit station or stop, and may act as the

social center of a neighborhood.

- Page 145 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 7

Community Garden: a grouping of garden plots available for small scale

cultivation, generally to the residents of apartments and other dwelling types

without private gardens, permitting individual storage sheds, and providing a

locus of recreation and sociability greater than that of a private yard, thus

being a Common Destination.

Concept Map: See Veridea Sustainable Development Concept Map.

Concessions: a place where food, drinks and incidental retail items are sold

or rented.

Conference Center: a facility that is constructed for and devoted to meetings

and meeting space. See Table 12.

Configuration: the form of a building, based on its massing, Private

Frontage, and height or the geographic characteristics of an area of land.

Convention Center: a Facility designed to accommodate multiple groups or

large groups and consisting of exhibit halls, meeting rooms, ballrooms or

banquet space but not sleeping accommodations. See Table 12.

Corridor: a lineal geographic system incorporating transportation and/or

Greenway trajectories.

Curb: the edge of the vehicular pavement that may be raised or flush to a

Swale. It usually incorporates the drainage system. See Table 4A and Table 4B.

Density: the amount of development measured on the basis of a Gross Acre

of land area expressed in the number of Dwelling Units Per Acre (“DUA”) for

residential or Floor Area Ratio (“FAR”) for non-residential.

Design Speed: the velocity at which a Thoroughfare tends to be driven

without the constraints of signage or enforcement. There are four ranges of

speed: Very Low: (below 20 MPH); Low: (20-25 MPH); Moderate: (25-35

MPH); High: (above 35 MPH). Lane width is determined by desired Design

Speed. See Table 3A.

Design Standards: all of the provisions of the SD Plan, other than

authorized Density, related to the development of Veridea, including but not

limited to standards, designs, criteria, illustrations and other elements and

materials of both a descriptive and proscriptive nature.

Developable Areas: lands other than those in the OS Open Space Zone.

Development: refers to Veridea and the land encompassed by the Veridea

Sustainable Development Plan as a whole.

Disposition: the placement of a building on its Lot. See Table 9 and Table

17.

Drive (“DR”): a Thoroughfare along the boundary between an urbanized and

a natural condition, usually along a waterfront or Park. One side has the urban

character of a Thoroughfare, with Sidewalk and building, while the other has

the qualities of a Road or parkway, with naturalistic planting and rural details.

- Page 146 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 8

Dwelling Units Per Acre (“DUA”): the number of dwelling units per Gross

Acre.

Driveway: a vehicular lane within a Lot, often leading to a garage. See Article

5.8 and Table 3B.f.

Effective Parking: the amount of parking required for Mixed Use after

adjustment by the Shared Parking Factor. See Table 11.

Effective Turning Radius: the measurement of the inside Turning Radius

taking parked cars into account. See Table 17.

Elevation: an exterior wall of a building not along a Frontage Line. See Table

17. See: Facade.

Encroach: to break the plane of a vertical or horizontal regulatory limit with a

structural element so that it extends into a Setback, into an easement, into the

Public Frontage, or above a height limit.

Encroachment: any structural element that breaks the plane of a vertical or

horizontal regulatory limit, extending into a Setback, into an easement, into

the Public Frontage, or above a height limit.

Environmental Enhancement Plan: additional Sustainability Standards

related to environmental enhancement required to be submitted to the Town

Council for approval in accordance with UDO 2.3.16 F) 3) b).

Existing Communication Towers: towers that are currently in place within

Veridea, including any and all guy wires, anchors, supporting cables, tower

assembly, and ancillary buildings.

Expression Line: a line prescribed at a certain level of a building for the

major part of the width of a Facade, expressed by a variation in material or by

a limited projection such as a molding or balcony. See Table 8. (Syn:

transition line.)

Facade: the exterior wall of a building that is set along a Frontage Line. See

Elevation.

Farm: an active, usually commercial, agricultural operation, such as the

raising of agricultural products, livestock, poultry and dairying at a scale

requiring industrial sized machinery and farm buildings, consistent with the

requirements and limitations of the UDO. See Table 12 and Table 19.

Floor Area Ratio (“FAR”): the ratio of total building floor area per Gross

Acre.

Forecourt: a Private Frontage wherein a portion of the Facade is close to the

Frontage Line and the central portion is set back. See Table 7.

Frontage: the area between a building Facade and the vehicular lanes,

inclusive of its built and planted components. Frontage is divided into Private

Frontage and Public Frontage. See Table 4A and Table 7.

Frontage Line: a Lot Line bordering a Public Frontage. Facades facing

- Page 147 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 9

Frontage Lines define the public realm and are therefore more regulated than

the Elevations facing other Lot Lines. See Table 17.

Function: the use or uses accommodated by a building and its Lot,

categorized as Restricted, Limited, or Open, according to the intensity of the

use. See Table 10 and Table 12.

Gallery: a Private Frontage conventional for Retail use wherein the Facade is

aligned close to the Frontage Line with an attached cantilevered shed or

lightweight colonnade overlapping the Sidewalk. See Table 7.

Goal(s): the desired result of Veridea’s effort to achieve sustainability.

Green: a Civic Space type for unstructured recreation, spatially defined by

landscaping rather than building Frontages. See Table 13.

Green Roof: a building roof partially or completely covered with vegetation

and soil, or some other living medium, over a waterproofing membrane.

Green Technology: a continuously evolving group of methods and

materials, including—but not limited to—environmentally-sound techniques

for: generating energy, energy efficiency, chemistry, nanotechnology and

construction. See Table 12.

Greenway: a Corridor in largely natural conditions, which shall include trails

for bicycles or pedestrians.

Gross Acre: an acre of land within the Veridea Sustainable Development

District used for the purpose of Density calculation.

Guiding Principles: the Principles used to develop Veridea.

High Performance Computing: the use of supercomputers and computer

clusters to solve advanced computation problems. See Table 12.

Highway (“HW”): a rural and suburban Thoroughfare of high vehicular speed

and capacity. This type is allocated to the more rural Sustainable Zones (OS

and NG).

Home Occupation: non-Retail Commercial enterprises within or closely

associated with a dwelling.

Impermeable Surface: surfaces constructed using materials that allow no

infiltration of water into the soil. Impermeable surfaces include, but are not

limited to, public and private Thoroughfares, sidewalks, driveways, rooftops,

parking lots and patios constructed with asphalt, concrete, compacted

aggregate base course or other impervious materials. The surface area of

bodies of water (natural or man-made) and wooden decks shall be considered

permeable and shall not be included in the calculation of built-upon area.

Green Roofs, permeable pavements, and other surfaces constructed with

uniformly graded gravel, porous materials or pervious materials and designed

in accordance with the NC Division of Water Quality Stormwater Best

Management Practices Manual to accommodate the infiltration of water shall

not be considered impermeable surfaces and shall not be included in the

- Page 148 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 10

calculation of the built-upon area.

Independent Living: a Project, or a portion of a Project, consisting

of residences of any type or various types primarily accommodating age

targeted residents maintaining an independent lifestyle.

Industrial: the term collectively defining Manufacturing, warehousing and

storage uses.

Information Technology: the application of computer, communications and

software technology to the management, processing and dissemination of

information. See Table 12.

Internal Trip Capture: a concept used in transportation modeling to define an

automobile trip between different land uses within Veridea that would have

required an automobile trip external to the site.

Layer: a range of depth of a Lot, measured from the Frontage Line, within

which certain elements are permitted. See Table 17.

Lightwell: a Private Frontage type that is a below-grade entrance or recess

designed to allow light into basements. See Table 7. (Syn: light court.)

Liner Building: a building specifically designed to mask a blank building wall,

a service area, a parking lot, or a Parking Structure from a Frontage.

Live-Work: a Mixed Use unit consisting of a Commercial and Residential

Function. See Table 10.

Lodging: premises available for daily and weekly renting of bedrooms. See

Table 10 and Table 12.

Lot: a parcel of land accommodating a building or buildings of unified design.

The size of a Lot is controlled by its width in order to determine the grain (i.e.,

fine grain, as characterized by a tight-knit Thoroughfare grid, or coarse grain,

as characterized by a loose-knit street grid) of the urban fabric.

Lot Line: the boundary that legally and geometrically demarcates a Lot.

Lot Width: the length of the Principal Frontage Line of a Lot.

Manufacturing: all areas of manufacturing, including design, control,

fabrication, and assembly for uses where activities are conducted and

confined within a building or structure including, but are not limited to:

electronics, computers/IT, instrumentation, industrial equipment, medical,

pharmaceutical, telecom, aerospace, defense, government, appliances, food,

beverage and consumer products.

Medical Devices: products used for medical purposes for patients, in

diagnosis, therapy or surgery. See Table 12.

Mixed Use: multiple Functions within the same building through vertical

integration or adjacency, or in multiple buildings by adjacency.

Mixed Use Block: See Mixed Use and Block. See Table 12.

- Page 149 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 11

Modular Construction: single-family, multi-family or mixed use building

constructed on-site and composed of components substantially assembled in

a manufacturing plant and transported to the building site for final assembly

that complies with the requirements of the North Carolina State Building Code.

Nanotechnology: is an advanced technology involving the fabrication and

use of devices so small that the convenient unit of measurement is the

nanometer (one thousand-millionth of a meter); or, is the art of manipulating

and exploiting the properties of matter at a molecular level. See Table 12.

Natatorium: a building containing a swimming pool. See Table 12.

NCDENR: The North Carolina Department of the Environment and Natural

Resources, or any successor executive agency or agencies having the

powers and authority of such department.

Neighborhood General: A Sustainable Zone. See Table 1.

Neighborhood Mixed-Use: A Sustainable Zone. See Table 1.

Non-residential Uses: uses and building functions other than residential.

Vertically integrated residential and Non-residential uses will be considered

non-residential for the purposes of the SD Plan and the UDO. See Article

4.2.2 and Table 12.

Office: premises available for the transaction of general business, lab and

research uses but excluding Retail uses. See Table 10.

Open Space (“OS”): A Sustainable Zone. See Table 1.

Outbuilding: an Accessory Building, usually located toward the rear of the

same Lot as a Principal Building, and sometimes connected to the Principal

Building by a Backbuilding. See Table 17.

Park: a Civic Space type or type of Open Space used for active and/or

passive recreation purposes or natural preserve available for unstructured

recreation, including all examples in Table 13.

Parking Garage (deck): See Parking Structure.

Parking Management Plan: a plan setting forth various policies and

programs intended to optimize the efficient use of parking resources.

Parking Structure: a building containing one or more Stories of parking at,

above and/or below grade. A Parking Structure may be stand alone or may be

connected to or integrated with other uses. See Table 12.

Passage (“PS”): a pedestrian connector, open or roofed, that passes between

buildings to provide shortcuts through long Blocks and connect rear parking

areas to Frontages.

Path (“PT”): a pedestrian and/or bicycle way traversing a Park or rural area,

with landscape matching the contiguous Neighborhood General (NG) Zone,

ideally connecting directly with the urban sidewalk network.

- Page 150 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 12

Pattern Book(s): a book or books of text, diagrams and illustrations setting

forth the principles of design for Veridea or some portion thereof in order to

provide consistencies in characteristic form, massing, composition, style,

method, materials, lighting and signage while simultaneously allowing for

architectural and aesthetic diversity.

Planter: the element of the Public Frontage, which accommodates street

trees and other vegetation, whether continuous or individual.

Plaza: a Civic Space type designed for Civic purposes and Commercial

activities in the more urban Sustainable Zones, generally paved and spatially

defined by building Frontages.

Power Facility: A facility for the generation of electric or thermal power. See

Table 12.

Principal Building: the main building on a Lot, usually located toward the

Frontage. See Table 17.

Principal Entrance: the main point of access for pedestrians into a building.

Principal Frontage: on corner Lots, the Private Frontage designated to bear

the address and Principal Entrance to the building, and the measure of

minimum Lot width. See Frontage.

Principle(s): fundamental positions that serve as the foundation for the

creation of Veridea.

Private Frontage: the privately held Layer between the Frontage Line and the

Principal Building Facade. See Table 7 and Table 17.

Project: individual developments within the Veridea Sustainable Development

District to which the Sustainable Development Plan applies.

Public Frontage: the area between the Curb of the vehicular lanes and the

Frontage Line, possibly containing utility easements, for walkways. See Table

4A and Table 4B.

Public Parking Facility: a parking facility that may include decks, structures

or lots that may be publicly or privately owned and contain shared spaces

available for public use that are not allocated to other residential or non-

residential uses within Veridea.

Public School: A school operated by the Wake County Public Schools

System, a charter school, or other type of school sanctioned by the State of

North Carolina for public instruction and wholly or partially funded by the State

and/or Wake County.

Public Space: land accessible to the general public through dedication or

easement, but not including street rights of way.

Rear Alley (“RA”): a vehicular way, either public or private, located to the rear

of Lots providing access to service areas, parking, and Outbuildings and

possibly containing utility easements. See Table 4A and Table 4C.

- Page 151 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 13

Rear Lane (“RL”): a vehicular way, either public or private, located to the rear

of Lots providing access to service areas, parking, and Outbuildings and

containing utility easements. See Table 4A and Table 4C.

Rearyard: a building that occupies the full Frontage Line, leaving the rear of

the Lot as the sole yard. See Table 9. (Var: Townhouse, Apartment House)

Regional Public Transit System: a transit system operated by a public

agency that serves a geographic area that extends beyond the jurisdictional

limits of the Town of Apex that includes, as one of its elements, a fixed

guideway or comparable transit technology.

Renewable Energy Facility: a facility that either: i) generates thermal and/or

electric power primarily by the use of a Renewable Energy Resource; ii) uses

heat derived primarily from a Renewable Energy Resource to produce

electricity or useful, measurable thermal or mechanical energy; iii) is a solar

thermal energy facility; iv) specifically allows for co-firing with non-renewable

energy resources as long as non-renewable energy resources are not the

primary energy source; or v) provides energy storage capacity.

Renewable Energy Resource: a solar electric, solar thermal, wind,

hydropower, geothermal, or ocean current or wave energy resource; a

biomass resource, including agricultural waste, animal waste, wood waste,

spent pulping liquors, combustible residues, combustible liquids, combustible

gases, energy crops, or landfill methane; waste heat derived from a

renewable energy resource and used to produce electricity or useful,

measurable thermal energy; or hydrogen derived from a renewable energy

resource. Renewable Energy Resource does not include peat, a fossil fuel, or

nuclear energy resource.

Responsible Person: that person identified in the SD Plan and appointed

pursuant to UDO 2.3.16 D), or his successors or assigns, to make certain

decisions with respect to the SD Plan and the zoning of Veridea. The

Responsible Person is sometimes referred to in this SD Plan as the

“Developer.”

Retail: the sale, (other than wholesale), rental or repair of goods,

merchandise and services and food and beverage service and sales.

Retail Kiosk: a place where merchandise and food and drink may be sold or

rented. See Table 12.

Retail Storage within Retail Spaces: stock rooms and storage areas

located within retail spaces. See Table 12.

Road (“RD”): a local, rural and suburban Thoroughfare of low-to-moderate

vehicular speed and capacity. This type is allocated to the more rural, less

dense Sustainable Zones (OS-NG). See Table 3A and Table 4C.

School Authority: The Wake County Public Schools System or other entity

having state-sanctioned authority for public education.

School Dormitory: an educational building or a group of rooms in a building

- Page 152 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 14

used for institutional living and sleeping purposes for students. See Table 12.

Secondary Frontage: on corner Lots, the Private Frontage that is not the

Principal Frontage. As it affects the public realm, its First Layer is regulated.

See Table 17.

Setback: the area of a Lot measured from the Lot line to a building Facade or

Elevation that is maintained clear of permanent structures, with the exception

of Encroachments listed in Article 5.5. See Table 14.g. (Var: build-to-line.)

Shared Parking Factor: an accounting for parking spaces that are available

to more than one Function. See Table 11.

Shopfront: a Private Frontage conventional for Retail use, with substantial

glazing and sometimes an awning, wherein the Facade is aligned close to the

Frontage Line with the building entrance at Sidewalk grade. See Table 7.

Shopping Center: a building or multiple buildings consisting of a complex of

shops, with interconnecting walkways along with associated parking. See

Table 12.

Slip Street: an outer vehicular lane or lanes of a Thoroughfare, designed for

slow speeds while inner lanes carry higher speed traffic, and that may be

separated from them by a planted median. (Syn: access lane, service lane)

Smart Power: the system of generation, transmission, distribution and use of

energy through means that both increase efficiency throughout the system

and reduce the environmental impact of the cycle of production, delivery and

use. The referenced means include development, manufacture and

deployment of information technology, engineering, manufacturing,

construction techniques, building science, controls, and HVAC and lighting

systems. See Table 12.

Square: a Civic Space type designed for unstructured recreation and Civic

purposes, spatially defined by building Frontages and consisting of Paths,

lawns and trees, formally disposed. See Table 13.

Stoop: a Private Frontage wherein the Facade is aligned close to the

Frontage Line with the first Story elevated from the Sidewalk for privacy, with

an exterior stair and landing at the entrance. See Table 7.

Story: a habitable level within a building, excluding an attic, mezzanine, or

raised basement. See Table 8. Regardless of the number of stories, maximum

height of a multi-story building shall not exceed 400 feet.

Strategy: general approach to achieve desired goals for Veridea.

Street (“ST”): a local urban Thoroughfare of low speed and capacity. See

Table 3B and Table 4B.

Streetscreen: a freestanding wall or a free standing or attached trellis

system for supporting plants along the Frontage Line, or coplanar with the

Facade. It may mask a parking lot from the Thoroughfare, provide privacy to a

side yard, and/or strengthen the spatial definition of the public realm. (Syn:

- Page 153 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 15

streetwall.) See Article 5.5.5f.

Sustainability: the process and ultimately the benefits of implementing a

sustainable development program.

Sustainable: as used within the context of "sustainable development," and as

derived from the 1987 Brundtland report: "development that meets the needs

of the present without compromising the ability of future generations to meet

their own needs". In practice, to develop sustainably is to integrate the

economic, social and environmental dimensions to create human habitats that

contribute to a quality life now, and in the future based upon an evolution of

society, knowledge and technology.

Sustainable Zone: one of several areas described in the SD Plan and shown

on the Sustainable Development Concept Map (and thereafter more clearly

delineated in subdivision and site plans) analogous to Zoning Districts

established under the UDO. Allowable land uses and development regulations

applicable to such zones shall be as provided in the SD Plan.

Swale: a low or slightly depressed natural area for drainage.

Thoroughfare: a way for use, including a street, by vehicular and pedestrian

traffic and to provide access to Lots and Open Space, consisting of vehicular

lanes and the Public Frontage. See Table 3A, Table 3B, Table 4C and Table

17a.

Town Standards: any statement, codification or other document setting forth

standards, designs, directives or plans for the construction of roads, utilities,

parks, public facilities or infrastructure of any nature adopted by the Town of

Apex and regulating the development of property and the construction of

improvements and infrastructure within the jurisdiction of the Town. Town

Standards shall include, but shall not be limited to, the Town of Apex Code of

Ordinances, the Apex Unified Development Ordinance, Apex Comprehensive

Plan, Apex Watershed Overlay District, Apex 2025 Land Use Plan, Apex

Transportation Plans, NC 540 Land Use Plan, the Apex Standard

Specifications and Standard Details, Wastewater Master Plan, Water

Distribution Master Plan, and the Apex Parks and Recreation Master Plan.

Townhouse: a building that occupies the full Frontage Line, leaving the rear

of the Lot as the sole yard. See Rearyard Building.

Transit Oriented Development (“TOD”): those areas within an average 1/2

mile radius or 2640 feet of a transit stop (bus or rail) present or proposed as a

Common Destination, as set forth in Article 5.7.2d.

Transportation Demand Management (“TDM”): is a general term for

strategies that result in more efficient use of transportation resources. The

strategies include developing comprehensive plans for bus and rail transit,

bike/transit integration, car sharing, flex cars, and park and ride resources.

Turning Radius: the curved edge of a Thoroughfare at an intersection,

measured at the inside edge of the vehicular tracking. The smaller the Turning

- Page 154 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 16

Radius, the shorter the pedestrian crossing distance and the more slowly the

vehicle is forced to make the turn. See Table 3B and Table 17.

Unified Development Ordinance (“UDO”): The Apex Unified Development

Ordinance.

Urban Farm: agricultural land used for the production of fruits and

vegetables, livestock, poultry or other agricultural products, or some

combination thereof, consistent with the requirements and limitations of the

UDO. See Table 12 and Table 19.

Urbanism: collective term for the condition of a compact, Mixed Use

settlement, including the physical form of its development and its

environmental, functional, economic, and socio-cultural aspects.

Urban Core (“UC”): A Sustainable Zone. See Table 1.

Vegetable Garden: private agricultural land dedicated to food production to

be locally consumed, restricted to back yards. See Table 12 and Table 19.

Veridea Sustainable Development Concept Map: the map or set of maps

that depicts a concept for the development of a community and the conceptual

location of Sustainable Zones and Thoroughfares within it. See Table 2.

Veridea Sustainable Development District: the zoning district as depicted

by the Veridea Sustainable Development Concept Map and developed in

accordance with this SD Plan.

Vertical Farm: agricultural production in buildings not primarily within yards,

but as a part of or incidental to inhabited buildings, or as a stand alone

feature, utilizing container gardens or boxes, which may be associated with

windows, balconies and terraces, or roof gardens.

Village Center (“VC”): A Sustainable Zone. See Table 1.

Yield: characterizing a Thoroughfare that has two-way traffic but only one

effective travel lane because of parked cars, necessitating slow movement

and driver negotiation. Also, characterizing parking on such a Thoroughfare.

- Page 155 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 17

ARTICLE 2.0 THE DISTRICT

2.1 INTRODUCTION

This Sustainable Development Plan (the “SD Plan”) is submitted by the Responsible

Person and approved by the Town Council pursuant to UDO 2.3.16 of the Town of

Apex (the “Town” or “Apex”) with respect to the proposed rezoning of property within

the Town for the Sustainable, mixed-use development to be known as “Veridea.” The

SD Plan and its standards and applicable provisions of the UDO and other Town

Ordinances and Town Standards shall authorize, regulate, and control the

development of land within Veridea and shall establish the design and form for such

development. To the extent that the SD Plan varies from the provisions of the UDO,

other Town Ordinances, Town Standards or any document or policy referenced or

incorporated therein as they exist on the date of approval of the SD Plan and as they

may be amended from time to time by the Town Council, the SD Plan shall control.

2.2 CHANGE OF THE RESPONSIBLE PERSON

Pursuant to UDO 2.3.16 D), the Petition to Amend the Official Zoning District Map

requesting the rezoning of Veridea to Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning

District SD-CZ identified and appointed Lookout Ventures, Inc. as the Responsible

Person for the district. Any successor corporation to Lookout Ventures, Inc. by way of

merger or other reorganization shall become Responsible Person for the district, and

written notice of such succession shall be provided to the Planning Director. At any

time following the rezoning of Veridea as requested, Lookout Ventures, Inc. (or its

successor corporation) may appoint another person as the Responsible Person for the

district by providing notice of such change in writing to the Planning Director of the

Town. In the event of the death, incapacity or dissolution of the Responsible Person

without its appointment of a new Responsible Person, a new Responsible Person

shall be appointed by the owners of fifty-one percent (51%) of the land comprising

Veridea at the time of such appointment and written notice of such appointment shall

be provided to the Planning Director.

2.3 AUTHORIZED DEVELOPMENT

No development shall occur within Veridea, or any parcel added to Veridea, except as

is specifically authorized by this SD Plan with reference, when appropriate, to the

UDO.

2.4 MASTER PROPERTY OWNERS’ ASSOCIATION

- Page 156 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 18

Prior to the Developer’s conveyance of any of the Properties within Veridea by the

Developer or its assigns, a Master Property Owners’ Association (“MPOA”) will be

established. Membership in the MPOA will be mandatory for any property owner. The

MPOA will be funded by dues to be established in the Declaration or other duly

recorded document. The MPOA will be responsible for the enforcement of recorded

restrictive covenants and for the maintenance of certain common areas within

Veridea, including private Thoroughfares. Subassociations of property owners may be

established for individual development tracts within Veridea, which will be responsible

for the maintenance of the common area within that specific tract, unless otherwise

provided in documents relating to the respective subassociation. Should any

subassociation fail to perform its maintenance obligations, the MPOA shall be

responsible for such performance within a commercially reasonable timeframe. The

Town will maintain all Thoroughfares and any other real property that is properly

dedicated to and accepted by the Town.

2.5 DECLARATION OF RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS

Prior to the Developer’s conveyance of any property within Veridea subsequent to its

rezoning, the Developer shall record in the Wake County Registry with respect to the

Development a Declaration of Restrictive Covenants (the “Declaration”), duly executed

by the record owner or owners of each parcel included within the Development, stating

that the Development is within the zoning jurisdiction of the Town of Apex and is

zoned Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning (“SDCZ”) District and that (i) the

Development and the use of property therein are therefore subject to regulations

applicable to the SDCZ District described in Section 2.3.16 of the UDO and other

provisions of such Ordinance, a copy of which is available in the Planning Department

of the Town of Apex (the “Planning Department”) at the Apex Town Hall, 73 Hunter

Street, Apex, North Carolina 27502; (ii) the Development and the use of land within

the Development are also subject to the terms and provisions of a Sustainable

Development Plan approved upon the rezoning of the Development to SDCZ District,

a copy of which is available in the Planning Department; (iii) under applicable

provisions of the UDO and the aforementioned SD Plan, the Developer, its successors

and assigns, as Responsible Person, has the sole authority to make certain decisions

with regard to property comprising the Development; and (iv) upon acceptance and

recordation of any deed conveying property within Veridea, the grantee or grantees of

such deed shall become a member of the Master Property Owners’ Association for

Veridea established pursuant to Section 2.4 of this Plan and any subassociation

established pursuant to such section that relates to the property conveyed in the

respective deed. The Declaration shall further provide that (i) each deed conveying

land within Veridea recorded subsequent to the recordation of the Declaration shall

state that the respective conveyance is subject to the Declaration, but that the failure

to include such statement in a deed shall not affect the enforceability of the

Declaration with respect to the property conveyed or invalidate the respective

conveyance; and (ii) no rezoning petition shall be submitted or proposed with regard to

the Development, or any portion thereof, without the written consent of the Developer.

- Page 157 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 19

ARTICLE 3.0 GENERAL SUSTAINABILITY STANDARDS

AND FURTHER DEVELOPMENT APPROVALS

3.1 PURPOSE OF THE PLAN

3.1.1 The SD Plan has been adopted to facilitate the development of Veridea as a

community of safe, healthy, resource efficient and transit-oriented mixed-use

Projects planned and developed in accordance with Principles promoting

Sustainability. Accordingly, Veridea will be developed in view of the following

Guiding Principles:

a. Create economic value

b. Eliminate the concept of waste

c. Insist on a renewable future

d. Create delightful urban places

e. Integrate nature throughout the community

The Guiding Principles for Veridea have been developed in accordance with

The Hannover Principles, Design for Sustainability, which was authored by

William McDonough and Michael Braungart. The Hannover Principles are as

follows:

1. Insist on rights of humanity and nature to co-exist in a healthy,
supportive, diverse and Sustainable condition.

2. Recognize interdependence. The elements of human design interact
with and depend upon the natural world, with broad and diverse implications
at every scale. Expand design considerations to recognizing even distant
effects.

3. Respect relationships between spirit and matter. Consider all aspects
of human settlement including community, dwelling, industry and trade in
terms of existing and evolving connections between spiritual and material
consciousness.

4. Accept responsibility for the consequences of design decisions upon
human well-being, the viability of natural systems and their right to co-exist.

5. Create safe objects of long-term value. Do not burden future
generations with requirements for maintenance or vigilant administration of
potential danger due to the careless creation of products, processes or
standards.

6. Eliminate the concept of waste. Evaluate and optimize the full life-cycle
of products and processes, to approach the state of natural systems, in
which there is no waste.

- Page 158 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 20

7. Rely on natural energy flows. Human designs should, like the living
world, derive their creative forces from perpetual solar income. Incorporate
this energy efficiently and safely for responsible use.

8. Understand the limitations of design. No human creation lasts forever
and design does not solve all problems. Those who create and plan should
practice humility in the face of nature. Treat nature as a model and mentor,
not as an inconvenience to be evaded or controlled.

9. Seek constant improvement by the sharing of knowledge. Encourage
direct and open communication between colleagues, patrons,
manufacturers and users to link long term Sustainable considerations with
ethical responsibility, and re-establish the integral relationship between
natural processes and human activity.

In addition, the Guiding Principles are grounded in the belief that they can only
be achieved through a flexible development plan which recognizes the reality of
the time in which elements of the plan are developed. The Guiding Principles
will be pursued in an anticipatory manner, one which acknowledges that Veridea
will be developed over a sustained period of time and according to evolving
criteria that define accepted and attainable Sustainable development
practices. The SD Plan establishes a flexible framework of development
standards (collectively, the “Sustainability Standards”) that, by its very nature,
seeks to anticipate future trends and technologies and acknowledges that future
technologies and practices are, by definition, evolutionary. Accordingly, an
Anticipatory Design process shall be used in the planning and design of Veridea
and in the design of specific Projects within Veridea.

3.1.2 In order to achieve these Guiding Principles, Veridea shall be developed as
Sustainable Zones, as described in Table 1, in accordance with the SD Plan and the
Sustainability Standards. In accordance with UDO 2.3.16 F) 2), Sustainability
Standards include natural and cultural resource standards, transportation
infrastructure standards, utility infrastructure standards, energy standards,
community design standards, and building standards. Additional, modified or
elective Sustainability Standards shall be adopted in accordance with UDO 2.3.16 F)
3). Sustainability Standards contemplated for Veridea shall include an
Environmental Enhancement Plan and may include additional plans as follows:

Sustainability

Standards

Authority When Adopted

SD Plan UDO 2.3.16 Rezoning

Environmental

Enhancement Plan

UDO 2.3.16 F) 3) b) Prior to first site plan or

subdivision plan

Pattern Book UDO 2.3.16 F) 3) a) With first site plan

Transportation Demand

Management Plan

UDO 2.3.16 F) 3) a) With first site plan that

deviates from UDO

standards related to

parking

Parking Management

Plan

UDO 2.3.16 F) 3) a) With first site plan that

deviates from UDO

standards related to

parking

- Page 159 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 21

Additional Sustainability

Standards

UDO 2.3.16 F) 3) a) As appropriate,

subsequent to rezoning

Elective Sustainability

Standards

UDO 2.3.16 F) 3) c)

Figure 1. Sustainability Standards in Veridea

3.1.3 In addition to the total authorized development authorized by this SD Plan, a

minimum of 250 acres of land, in varying locations and varying scales and

forms, shall be designated by the Responsible Person during the site plan and

subdivision approval process as follows:

a. 100 acres shall be designated for Resource Conservation Area.

b. Sufficient acreage shall be designated to accommodate the recreation

requirements specifically set forth in Article 3.4.2.2; and

c. 150 acres less the acreage sufficient to accommodate the recreation

requirements of Article 3.4.2.2 shall be designated for Open Space, Public

Space, and Civic Space. Civic Buildings dedicated to government, transit or

parking and any portion of the respective lot not routinely accessible to the

public shall not be included in the acreage designated pursuant to this

subsection. Civic Buildings dedicated to arts, culture, education and social

activity and any portion of the respective lot routinely accessible to the

public shall be included in the acreage designated pursuant to this

subsection. Any privately-owned or operated buildings located in an Open

Space zone and any portion of the respective lot not routinely accessible to

the public shall not be included in the acreage designated pursuant to this

subsection.

3.2 SUSTAINABLE FRAMEWORK

3.2.1 The Veridea Sustainable Development District is utilized for Veridea to create a

framework for compact and connected Sustainable Urbanism. In view of its

scale and the Guiding Principles, the Veridea Sustainable Development District

is distinguished from the other districts within the UDO and offers an additional

lifestyle choice to Apex for current and future residents. Because technology

and the laws and regulations affecting sustainability are evolutionary, the SD

Plan recognizes the need to enable Anticipatory Design and to maintain

flexibility in order to incorporate and adapt to future best practices.

3.2.2 In view of the Guiding Principles, the Goals of Veridea are intended to capture

the spirit and intent of sustainability in order to achieve the following desired

results:

a. Economic Value

i. Create a model community of Sustainable design.

- Page 160 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 22

ii. Create a framework for the next generation version of the Research

Triangle Park that is a vibrant, urban, mixed-use transit-oriented

community.

b. Energy

i. Pursue renewably sourced energy supplies.

ii. Maximize energy efficiency.

iii. Pursue energy opportunities presented by the evolving regulatory

landscape and emerging renewable energy technologies.

c. Water

i. Release to the ecosystem only water that is clean and healthy.

ii. Treat water as a precious resource by conserving and reusing it to the

maximum extent practicable.

d. Community

i. Create a world class model of a safe, healthy, delightful, Sustainable

mixed-use urban environment that enables the community to live, work

and play.

ii. Facilitate a mix of housing types, sizes and tenure options that allow all

members of society to remain part of the community throughout the

human life cycle.

iii. Establish a full-service pedestrian-friendly transit-oriented community

that respects and encourages wellness and safety.

iv. Establish a community that respects the history of Apex and

compliments and expands its existing community infrastructure.

v. Set aside Open Space and Civic Space throughout the community.

vi. Reduce, re-use and recycle construction and demolition materials

whenever practicable.

3.3 DEVELOPMENT APPROVALS

3.3.1 Site Plans

a. The approval of site plans within the Development shall comply with the
procedures and standards of UDO 2.3.6 except as modified in the SD Plan.

b. Within the Development, notwithstanding any provision of UDO 2.3.6 D) 2),
only those individual site plans that propose 100,000 square feet or more of
nonresidential floor area or 200 residential units or more shall be considered
Major Site Plans and shall be processed and reviewed in accordance with
UDO 2.3.6 D) 3). Notwithstanding UDO 2.3.6 D) 2) a), multiple site plan
applications within any three year period for one property, or portions of the
same property, or neighboring properties if owned by the same entity, shall
be considered as individual site plans for the determination of the existence
of a Major Site Plan and shall not be considered cumulatively for any
purpose. All other site plans within the Development, shall be considered
Minor Site Plans and shall be processed and reviewed in accordance with
UDO 2.3.6 D) 1).

- Page 161 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 23

3.3.2 Subdivision Plans

The approval of subdivision plans shall comply with the procedures and
standards of UDO 2.3.7 except as modified in the SD Plan. A minor
Subdivision Plan, for the purposes of UDO 2.3.7 G), shall be defined as a
division of a tract or parcel into fewer than 200 lots. In approving a major
Subdivision Plan, the Town Council shall find that the area of the proposed
subdivision will be adequately served by public fire and law enforcement
personnel.

3.3.3 Written Statement from Responsible Person Required; Noncompliance

Any site plan or Subdivision Plan submitted to the Town for approval for a
Project to be undertaken by a party other than the Responsible Person must
be accompanied by a written statement from the Responsible Person
indicating its approval of the Project. Such written statement shall also state
the authorized development allocated to the Project (i.e., number of dwelling
units and/or square feet of non-residential Retail, Office and/or Industrial
Uses) as well as the development fee credits, if any, other credits, and/or
liabilities and responsibilities assigned to or assumed by the Project.

Any event of non-compliance with any requirement of this SD Plan or the
UDO that relates solely to a Project or Projects within Veridea shall not be
attributed to Veridea as a whole, but rather shall be attributed only to that
Project or Projects, such that any enforcement action taken by the Town
shall be limited to the Project or Projects at issue.

In addition to any other remedy that may be available to the Town, if a
violation of this SD Plan, Town Standards, Sustainability Standards
applicable to Veridea or the UDO remains in existence with respect to a
Project or Projects or a distinct area within Veridea after the Town complies
with the procedures of UDO 11.5, the Town may withhold the issuing,
approving or granting of grading permits, building permits, certificates of
compliance or occupancy, site plans, subdivision plans or plats and other
permits or approvals for the Project or Projects or distinct area in issue until
the non-compliance is corrected and cured.

In addition to any other remedy that may be available to the Town, if a
violation of this SD Plan, Town Standards, Sustainability Standards
applicable to Veridea or the UDO which applies to Veridea as a whole
remains in existence after the Town complies with the procedures of UDO
11.5, the Town may withhold the issuing, approving or granting of grading
permits, site plans and subdivision plans or plats throughout Veridea until
the non-compliance is corrected and cured.

3.3.4. Additional, Modified and Elective Sustainability Standards

All of the provisions of the SD Plan, including those related to development

approvals, may be affected by any standards applicable to SD-CZ districts

that may be adopted at any time or from time to time by the Town Council in

accordance with UDO 2.3.16 F) 3). Upon the consent of the Responsible

Person, any Sustainability Standards adopted or modified by the Town

- Page 162 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 24

Council in accordance with the provisions of UDO 2.3.16 F) 3) a), b) or c)

shall apply to subsequent site plans and Subdivision Plans and be

incorporated into the SD Plan. The Environmental Enhancement Plan shall

be the sole required additional Sustainability Standard under this SD Plan

and shall be adopted pursuant to UDO 2.3.16 F) 3) b).

3.3.5. Encroachment Agreements

Notwithstanding any other provision in this SD Plan, any encroachment into
a Town of Apex right-of-way or easement requires an encroachment and
maintenance agreement with the Town before such encroachment is made.

3.4 RESOURCE CONSERVATION – NATURAL AND CULTURAL

RESOURCE STANDARDS

3.4.1 General

The natural and cultural resource standards set forth herein, as a

component of the Sustainability Standards, provide certain community

resources and conserve and protect natural and cultural resources and the

quality of the water, land, and air within Veridea.

As set forth in Article 3.1.1 of the SD Plan, Veridea will be developed in view

of the Guiding Principles over time according to evolving criteria that will

define accepted and attainable sustainable development practices at the

time of site plan or Subdivision Plan submission. As set forth in Article 3.1.2

and elsewhere within the SD Plan, Veridea shall include both Open Space,

as an independent zone, and Developable Areas, generally identified as

Sustainable Development Zones. Accordingly, Environmental and Natural

Resource Protection Standards and Community Resource Standards shall

vary as to those that apply within the Open Space zones, and those that

apply within the Sustainable Development Zones. Further, due to the

different levels of development within each Sustainable Development Zone,

the Environmental and Natural Resource Protection Standards and

Community Resource Standards shall vary with the level of development

intensity within each zone. Also as set forth in Article 3.1.1 of the SD Plan,

development standards are intended to be flexible in order to anticipate

future trends and technologies, and yet acknowledge that future

technologies and practices are unknown.

The provisions of Section 9 (d) of Session Law 2006-246, which provide a

landward setback of 30 feet for built upon areas adjacent to certain surface

waters, shall be applicable to Veridea except to the extent exceptions are

granted by the Town Council in accordance with Section 11 (a) of such

Session Law. Otherwise, UDO 6.1 shall apply until the Environmental

Enhancement Plan is adopted by Town Council in accordance with UDO

2.3.16. F) 3) b).

- Page 163 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 25

3.4.2 Community Resource Standards

Veridea will achieve intensity of development within an environment of

Sustainability.

3.4.2.1. Parks, Recreation and Open Space

All of the landscape that comprises Veridea will be purposefully designed to

achieve a wide range of Goals to achieve Sustainability. The scale of

Veridea’s Parks will vary from small urban greens and squares, to active

recreation areas with playfields, to natural preserve areas conducive to

passive recreation. Within each Park, recreation, and open space site

setting, appropriate human activity, from the passive to the most active, will

be accommodated. Parks may be publicly or privately owned as

determined at the time of site plan or Subdivision Plan approval, however

only public parks will count toward recreation requirements. As Veridea is

developed, land shall be dedicated for parks, recreation, and open space or

fees in-lieu paid with respect thereto as contemplated by UDO 7.3.1 and

7.5.9 B). At any time, the Town Council and the Responsible Person may

agree upon a plan or plans that deal with parks, recreation and open space

for all or any portion of Veridea.

3.4.2.2. Specific Recreation Requirements

In accordance with the above and consistent with other requirements of the

SD Plan, the Developer shall, at a minimum, dedicate land parcels to

accommodate the following: i) four (4) lighted regulation softball fields in

keeping with the standards of the American Softball Association (ASA)

Men’s Slow-Pitch Open Division; ii) six (6) lighted tennis courts in keeping

with the standards of the United States Tennis Association (USTA); iii) a

22,500 square foot community center consistent with phase 1 of the existing

community center at 53 Hunter Street, Apex, North Carolina; and iv) a dog

park of at least one (1) acre. The Responsible Person shall have the

discretion to disperse items i – iv and any part of items i or ii. No later than

at the time 1000 residential units have received building permits, the

Responsible Person shall submit to the Town Council for approval a Master

Parks Plan depicting the location of the land parcels associated with items i,

ii, iii and iv. The land parcels for items i, ii, iii, and iv shall be dedicated to

the Town no later than at the time 2000 residential units have received

building permits. Once the Master Parks Plan has been approved, any

portion of the remaining obligation under Article 3.4.2.1. may be satisfied, at

the election of the Responsible Person, by the payment of fees in lieu

pursuant to UDO 7.3.1, which shall be utilized by the Town as soon as

practicable for the foregoing construction of items i, ii, iii and iv.

The Responsible Person shall receive credits from the Town Council

against fees in lieu payable under UDO 7.3.1 for the value of any historic or

- Page 164 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 26

cultural resource sites or facilities dedicated to and accepted by the Town

and for amounts which it expends in developing and improving land for

parks, recreation and open space pursuant to the recommendation of the

Parks, Recreation and Cultural Resources Advisory Commission and

approval by Town Council. Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, any

dedicated historic or cultural resource sites or facilities for which the

Responsible Person receives credits against fees in lieu cannot be credited

toward the RCA requirement set forth in Article 3.4.3 hereof.

3.4.2.3. Greenways

The Development will provide easements for Town of Apex greenways

generally consistent with the current Parks and Recreation Master Plan. To

the extent practicable, greenways will be constructed to Town Standards

and located along stream corridors and within Open Space and easements.

In cases where greenways generally follow public rights-of-way, greenways

may be either constructed as a multi-use trail in lieu of a sidewalk, or when

located within more urban areas, as pedestrian-oriented streetscapes

containing both hardscape elements (including but not limited to sidewalks,

decorative lighting, street furniture, and fountains) and street tree plantings

which do not have to meet typical island widths or sizes. Greenways may be

located within existing and future utility easements. Greenways may be

publicly or privately owned as determined at the time of site plan or

Subdivision Plan approval. Greenways may be dedicated to the Town as

linear Parks, subject to the Town’s approval.

3.4.2.4 Public Schools

The Development shall make available for purchase or lease by a School

Authority three (3) Public School sites within Veridea, each having a

minimum size of five (5) acres. Unless earlier purchased or leased by a

School Authority, one (1) of such school sites shall be reserved by the

Responsible Person upon the issuance of the 2,000
th

residential building

permit within Veridea, and a similar reservation shall occur on the issuance

of each of the 4,000
th

and 6,000
th

residential building permit within Veridea.

Each area reserved should meet site design standards of a School

Authority. Each such reservation shall exist for a period of ten (10) years,

and during such period no permanent construction shall occur within the

area reserved. The Public Schools constructed upon the areas so reserved

shall be of a compact urban form and design appropriate for Veridea and

meeting the standards of the State or the School Authority. There may be

arrangements with the Town for the shared use of recreational facilities.

3.4.3 Resource Conservation – Environmental and Natural Resource Protection

Standards

3.4.3.1 Resource Conservation Area (“RCA”)

- Page 165 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 27

UDO 8.1, Resource Conservation, and other provisions of the UDO dealing
with RCA not otherwise specifically dealt with in this SD Plan shall apply to
the Development until the Environmental Enhancement Plan is adopted by
Town Council in accordance with UDO 2.3.16.F) 3) b), except as follows:

a. UDO 8.1.2 A) shall apply to the Development as a whole as opposed to
individual site plans or Subdivision Plans.

b. UDO 8.1.2 B) 2) f) shall not apply.

c. The maximum impermeable surface area shall be as listed in Table 14.

d. Notwithstanding UDO 8.1.3, Tree and Vegetation Conservation, the

requirements for conservation of existing trees and vegetation and new

landscaping requirements are set forth in Article 5.9 of the SD Plan.

e. Not including the land parcels to be dedicated to the Town pursuant to SD

Plan 3.4.2.2, both: i) Open Space, excluding Civic Buildings and all

associated parking, municipal parking lots, and parking associated with

Open Space that exceeds the direct needs of such Open Space; and ii)

recreation area provided in Public Space or Civic Space within the

Development including, but not limited to, open space, pools, tennis courts,

tot lots, ball fields, and village greens shall be allowed to be counted as

partial credit toward the RCA requirement. The credit for such area shall be

50% of the area provided. (For example, 1 acre of area shall count as 0.5

acres of RCA) In order to qualify as RCA, the area must be located on a lot

0.5 acre or larger in size.

f. Notwithstanding UDO 8.1.2 A) 1) d), the provision of off-site RCA shall be

provided at the same rate as the on-site RCA, and off-site RCA may be

provided in lieu of on-site RCA.

3.4.3.2 Water

a. Stormwater Management

The Goals of Stormwater Management within Veridea are as follows:

i. Reducing pollutants to protect surface water bodies;

ii. Promoting recharge of ground water resources;

iii. Eliminating flooding within the Development and downstream;

iv. Enhancing safety and aesthetics for the public; and

v. Creating wildlife habitats and educational opportunities.

Specific stormwater management standards, technologies, devices and

control structures for the Development shall work interdependently and

holistically with the built and natural environment both on-site and off-site.

The standards for Veridea’s stormwater management shall be in

- Page 166 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 28

accordance with Town Standards. Further, to the extent practicable, low

impact development (“LID”) techniques such as bio-swales, vegetated

channels, pervious pavement where appropriate, rainwater harvesting and

“green” roofs to convey and treat runoff, may be used within the

Development to the maximum extent practicable, based on the best

available technology and research at the time of site plan and/or Subdivision

Plan submission.

b. Water Conservation

The Goals of water conservation within Veridea are as follows:

i. Reducing per capita water use while retaining attractive

landscapes;

ii. Protecting ground and surface water supplies from unsustainable

depletion;

iii. Eliminating unnecessary waste in water use practices;

iv. Reducing wastewater treatment volume and associated municipal

expenditures; and

v. Promoting the increased use of re-use water for irrigation.

Water conservation standards within the Development shall be in accordance

with the Town of Apex Water Conservation Ordinance. Landscape plant

materials shall be in accordance with NCDENR or North Carolina Cooperative

Extension standards for drought tolerant, native species. Only re-use water,

where practicably available, shall be used for landscape irrigation; however,

where re-use water is not available, potable water use for landscape irrigation

shall be used in accordance with the Town of Apex Water Conservation

Ordinance.

c. Surface Water Enhancement

Encroachment on streams and associated riparian buffers will be unavoidable in

some places in order to accomplish the Goals in light of the Guiding Principles.

However, the Environmental Enhancement Plan, in accordance with 3.4.1 of the

SD Plan, will be developed to provide for the protection and enhancement of the

aquatic function of the surface water resources within the Development.

The Environmental Enhancement Plan will address surface water enhancement

with the following objectives:

i. Maintaining water quality by capturing or controlling sediment,

nutrients, and other pollutants to an extent that is equal to or

better than would be the case if the encroachments did not occur;

ii. Maintaining the hydraulic conditions downstream to ensure that

post-development peak flows do not exceed pre-development

flows for the 1-year, 24-hour and 10-year, 24-hour storms, stream

- Page 167 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 29

channel stability is maintained or improved, increased

sedimentation of the stream bed is avoided, and no increase in

downstream flooding occurs;

iii. Maintaining or enhancing the aquatic ecosystem in order to

restore or improve biodiversity;

iv. Augmenting low flow in order to improve downstream aquatic

habitat;

v. Providing space and ecological conditions that maintain or

enhance wildlife habitat and travel corridors;

vi. Constructing wetlands or enhancing naturally occurring wetlands;

and

vii. Enhancing public use and enjoyment of the natural systems will

be considered during the planning process.

3.4.3.3 Land

a. Sedimentation and Erosion Control

The Goals for sedimentation and erosion control are as follows:

i. Minimize disturbance to vegetation and soils;

ii. Minimize runoff and diversion;

iii. Minimize the need for additional storm drainage facilities;

iv. Reduce sedimentation; and

v. Prompt restoration after land clearing and grading.

Land disturbing activity within the Development shall comply with the Town

of Apex Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Ordinance, as amended

from time to time. The Town’s standards related to the design of erosion

and sedimentation collection devices for the 25-year storm and for the

provision for 3,600 cubic feet per disturbed acre in sediment basins shall be

implemented in the Development unless alternative design standards that

are the functional equivalent or better are proposed by the Developer and

approved by the TRC.

b. Waste Minimization

The Goals of waste minimization within Veridea are as follows:

i. Minimize the volume of demolition and construction waste

generated in the Development;

ii. Distinguish between useful or reusable resources in demolition

materials and waste materials from demolished buildings; and

iii. Expand the market for recycled construction and demolition

materials.

The waste minimization standards shall support the following solid waste
goals identified in the Wake County Environmental Stewardship Agenda,
adopted by the Wake County Board of Commissioners February 21, 2005

- Page 168 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 30

and as may be amended from time to time:

i. Ensuring a solid waste management system for waste reduction,
reuse and recycling to the maximum extent practicable;

ii. Providing convenient opportunities for residents, institutions, and
businesses to recycle a full range of marketable materials
(including yard debris), and to properly dispose of waste requiring
special handling (e.g., used motor oil, household hazardous
wastes, pesticide containers, automobile batteries, electronic
waste, and others);

iii. Offering incentives, disincentives, and policies that motivate
residents, businesses, and institutions to reduce and recycle
waste, including institution of a countywide construction and
demolition debris mandatory recycling ordinance;

iv. Devising an efficient recovery and processing infrastructure with
the capacity to collect and divert from disposal all recyclable
materials that have reliable market outlets;

v. Supplying accessible, user-friendly information to all citizens on
how to reduce and recycle waste in their homes, places of work,
and places of learning;

vi. Devising an expanded recycled products purchasing program with
formal policies on procurement of products with recycled content
and other "green" products by participating Wake local
governments; and

vii. Working with Environmental Education and Environmental
Information Providers to develop effective programs and services
for a variety of County audiences on the importance of reducing,
reusing, and recycling solid waste; buying recycled products and
creating new and local markets; and reducing personal
consumption and/or disposal of material goods and/or packaging.

Specifications of building and site work material may include recycled

content requirements consistent with industry standards, including but not

limited to, aggregate base and sub-base materials, asphalt, concrete, and

finishes.

3.4.3.4 Air

The SD Plan for Veridea is grounded in the belief that the most effective

planning Strategy to reduce greenhouse gas emissions is the pursuit of a

dense, mixed-use, walkable and ultimately transit-oriented development.

Greenhouse gas emissions are associated with both transportation and the

total energy demands of the built environment. By targeting the expected

growth within an area that can be served best by the municipality’s ability to

provide and afford municipal services, by balancing the land uses within the

community, and by designing the community in conjunction with multi-modal

transportation, a walkable, livable community such as Veridea can be

created as a model of Sustainability.

Further, the creation of such a community concentrates development and

attracts development that otherwise would occur outside of Veridea in a

- Page 169 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 31

sprawl-like manner that is inherently less Sustainable.

The SD Plan recognizes that the technologies and practices associated with

the reduction of greenhouse gas emissions are evolving. Accordingly, in

recognition of the impacts of greenhouse gas emissions and in an effort to

minimize such emissions, transportation planning at all scales shall be

approached and implemented in a manner that encourages the pattern of

development defined within the Sustainable Development Plan.

The Goals for Air Quality within Veridea are as follows:

a. Establish a connected circulation plan that uses an integrated network of

Thoroughfares, sidewalks, and paths linked to land uses with convenient

access to alternative modes of travel including rail, bus, and walking to

increase community internal trip capture and reduce vehicular trip

generation and vehicle miles traveled in order to lower overall emissions

and traffic congestion in otherwise heavily traveled areas.

b. Incorporate Transit Oriented Development in conjunction with a parking

management Strategy within a mixed-use community, linked to a growth

area to increase pedestrian and bicycle traffic, and transit share while

reducing vehicle miles traveled.

c. Provide open space and landscaping within the Development to maintain a

significant carbon absorbing medium.

d. To the extent practicable, comply with applicable EPA emission goals for

the operation of non-road diesel engines.

3.5 TRANSPORTATION INFRASTRUCTURE STANDARDS

3.5.1 General

The transportation infrastructure standards set forth herein, a component of the

Sustainability Standards, shall adhere to the Principles described and depicted

throughout this Sustainable Development Plan.

Transit Oriented Development in conjunction with a parking management

Strategy within a mixed-use community, linked to a growth area, has been

proven to be very effective in increasing pedestrian and bicycle traffic and transit

share while reducing vehicle trips and vehicle miles traveled. By establishing a

connected circulation plan that uses an integrated network of Thoroughfares,

sidewalks, and paths linked to land uses with convenient access to alternative

modes of travel including rail, bus, and walking, community internal trip capture

is significantly increased. One significant advantage of Sustainable Urbanism is

that it reduces sprawl and the need to drive. Reduction in vehicular trip

- Page 170 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 32

generation and vehicle miles traveled lowers overall emissions and limits traffic

congestion in otherwise heavily traveled areas. A second significant advantage

of a connected circulation plan is that public safety is enhanced when the plan is

based upon an integrated network of Thoroughfares that provides alternative

routes from one destination to another, and that is designed to industry

recognized criteria to reduce the performance speed of Thoroughfares and

provides enhanced pedestrian safety.

a. Transportation Demand Management Plan

The SD Plan incorporates TDM strategies into the plan. The SD Plan provides

for a compact mixed-use development with an efficient, connected multi-modal

transportation network, key components of any TDM plan. The integration of

land use and transportation decisions increases travel efficiencies and change

travel behavior. This results in less auto dependence and an increase in use of

other modes of transportation. TDM strategies will be applied to all levels of the

land development process including long-range actions implemented after the

land is developed. The Responsible Person shall prepare a Transportation

Demand Management Plan outlining transportation options and incentives to be

reviewed and, if feasible, developed, and setting the strategic framework for

implementation. The options to be reviewed include:

i) Ridesharing;

ii) Telecommuting/flex time;

iii) Bicycle and pedestrian planning;

iv) Park and ride facilities;

v) Parking management;

vi) Shuttle bus;

vii) Bus/bus rapid transit;

viii) Car sharing; and

ix) Regional public transit.

The TDM Plan shall be submitted by the Responsible Person for approval by
the Town, in accordance with UDO 2.3.16 F) 3) a) prior to or concurrent with the
submittal of the first site plan that varies any standards related to parking set
forth in the UDO. In accordance with UDO 2.3.16 F) 3) a) and the provisions of
UDO 2.3.2 applicable to amendment to text, the TDM Plan may be updated or
modified as the build-out of the Development occurs. Because preparation of
the TDM Plan is triggered by the occurrence of development within Veridea, the
TDM Plan is not required for the purposes of UDO 2.3.16 F) 3) b).

Parking planning and management refers to various policies and programs that
result in more efficient use of parking resources. It recognizes that too much
parking supply can be as damaging as too little and seeks to provide an optimal
parking supply. A Parking Management Plan will be utilized in the B-Grid and

- Page 171 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 33

NG Zones. The plan shall address spillover parking for Commercial uses when
located near single family development. The plan shall be submitted or updated
as needed for site plans in the B-Grid and NG Zones.

3.5.2 Alternative Thoroughfare Standards

a. Thoroughfares shall conform to the Apex Transportation Plan to provide for

the appropriate projection of principal streets in surrounding areas to permit

reasonable access for surrounding properties. The exact placement of the

streets and Thoroughfares within the plan may be adjusted. In areas within

the Development, Thoroughfares shall be designed and located in proper

relation to existing and proposed streets, to the topography of the area, and

to natural features.

b. Thoroughfares in their construction shall conform to Town Standards except

as noted within the SD Plan. Exceptions to Town Standards set forth in the

SD Plan may be used by right, as an alternative to the Town Standards

available. Exceptions are as listed hereafter or as provided elsewhere in

this SD Plan:

i. Section 3 Streets of the Standard Specifications shall apply

except for the dimensional and other standards of 3.02b

Pavement & Right-of-Way Widths, 3.02d Radii of Curvature and

3.02e Tangents, all of which shall be modified by the SD Plan,

including but not limited to Tables 3A, 3B, 4A, 4B, and 4C, subject

to TRC review and approval as to their application within the site

plans or Subdivision Plans.

ii. The dimensional standards of Standard Detail Number 3.01

Street Typical Sections, Sheets 1 through 4 shall be modified by

this Sustainable Development Plan and Tables 3A, subject to

TRC review and approval as to their application within the site

plans or Subdivision Plans.

iii. The location of utilities as shown on Standard Detail Number 3.10

Standard Street Cross Section Showing Utility Locations may be

adjusted to permit street trees and utility locations in the Rear

Alleys and Rear Lanes. Due to the anticipatory nature of the

design of the Development, additional utilities, both public and

private, may be incorporated into the right-of-way as the

technology becomes available. Regulated utilities shall be

permitted within the Thoroughfare right-of-way to include the

District Utility Zone as illustrated in Table 4D.

c. In the event that Thoroughfares as identified in Table 4C do not meet the

approval of the North Carolina Department of Transportation (“NCDOT”) for

the design of thoroughfares under NCDOT’s jurisdiction, an alternative

acceptable to the Responsible Person, the TRC and NCDOT may be

utilized.

d. Thoroughfares shall be included as part of each Sustainable Zone.

- Page 172 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 34

e. Thoroughfares should be laid out in such manner as to encourage the flow

of vehicle traffic at very low to low design speed, except upon major

Thoroughfares, and to encourage pedestrian circulation. Public Sidewalks

shall be required along all public streets except when the TRC approves an

alternative plan during the site plan and construction plan review process

upon its determination that the alternative plan, viewed in the context of

surrounding development, adequately accommodates pedestrian

connectivity. The street classifications shown on Tables 4B and 4C shall be

used as guidance for sidewalk placement when possible. If determined by

the TRC to provide an equal or better pedestrian system, Bicycle Trails may

be allowed in lieu of some sidewalks within the Development. In addition to

the requirements of Articles 3.5.1 and 3.5.2.b, the layout of thoroughfares

and intersections will reasonably allow for emergency vehicle access. This

may require an evaluation of emergency routes and turning radii during the

site and construction plan review process. The TRC may consider

alternative design elements and refer to third party published sources of

information in order to minimize impacts to the intended character of the

Development while accommodating emergency vehicles.

f. Private Thoroughfares and sidewalks may be allowed for Commercial,

Manufacturing, and multi-family residential uses that conform to widths

shown in Tables 4B and 4C, provided however that a five (5) foot public

access easement will be provided on all private sidewalks fronting public

Thoroughfares.

g. Rear Alleys and Rear Lanes shall be allowed that conform to widths shown

in Tables 4B and 4C. Where required for public access and public utilities,

continuous and/or crossing easements shall be provided for private

Thoroughfares and/or sidewalks.

h. Right-of-way widths may be adjusted to the back of curbs during the site

plan and construction plan review process. If the right-of-way does not

extend beyond the back of curbs, public access and utility easements shall

be provided to cover areas along the public street and Thoroughfare that

allow for safe and adequate pedestrian flow and maintenance areas.

i. Design Standards for thoroughfare assemblies with reverse curves shall

comply with the AASHTO Policy on Geometric Design of Highways and

Streets, latest edition.

j. Thoroughfare standards may, at the election of the Responsible Person,

include additional or elective regulations and standards, if any, adopted at

any time and from time to time by Town Council in accordance with UDO

2.3.16 F) 3) a) or 2.3.16 F) 3) c).

3.5.3 Traffic

a. The Development and each Project will be designed to:

i. Reduce vehicle miles traveled;

ii. Increase share of alternative modes of transportation;

iii. Reduce external trips; and

- Page 173 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 35

iv. Facilitate and encourage pedestrian and bicycle traffic.

b. Master Traffic Impact Analysis: A Master Traffic Impact Analysis (“Master

TIA”) will be prepared for Veridea. The Master TIA will address the

maximum densities and allowable building square footage of various uses in

the SD Plan along with recommended off-site thoroughfare improvements at

the build-out of Veridea. Thoroughfare and associated improvements

beyond those recommended in the Master TIA that are outside of the study

area will be the responsibility of other developers or entities. Thoroughfare

and associated improvements required as a direct result of other

developments or background growth outside the scope of the Master TIA

shall not be the responsibility of the Developer. However, internal

improvements needed to serve site plans within Veridea will be identified

when additional analyses are conducted.

The Developer shall provide Thoroughfare and associated improvements as

recommended in the Master TIA. Additional traffic impact analyses (“TIAs”)

will be conducted for each major site plan or major Subdivision Plan

required to serve Veridea, and Section 13.19 of the UDO shall be used as a

guide for preparing the TIAs. TIAs shall be performed only for projects

meeting the major site or subdivision plan threshold set forth in Article

3.3.1.b hereof. The study area of each TIA shall encompass all necessary

street intersections internal to the Development but shall rely on the Master

TIA for improvements along NC 55 and the proposed interchanges on the

Triangle Expressway and US 1 external to the Development.

The Town shall have no obligation to provide financial assistance for the

planning, design, permitting, acquisition of right of way, or construction of

the following roadway improvements: i) those identified in the Master TIA; ii)

those identified in the Article 3.5.5.a-g hereof; and iii) those identified in

subsequent TIAs for each major site plan or major Subdivision Plan.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, it is acknowledged that the Town may

provide right of way that it currently owns for the new US 1 Interchange

identified in the Master TIA and shown on the Town’s Thoroughfare Plan.

c. Public Transit: A Regional Public Transit System may be accommodated

and encouraged within the Development. Bus circulation shall be

accommodated and encouraged within the Development. Optimally, the

pedestrian network will provide direct pedestrian links from the proposed

residential units, Offices and other commercial buildings to designated

transit stops. Triangle Transit standards for bus stop amenities shall serve

as a guideline. Access to the Regional Public Transit System by the

adjacent pedestrian and bicycle network and park and ride facilities is an

important component of the transit system. As noted in SD Plan 3.5.1.a, the

TDM Plan will address bicycle and pedestrian planning as well as park and

ride facilities.

- Page 174 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 36

d. Land Reservation: Land shall be reserved for the future Regional Public

Transit System within Veridea. With regard to the Regional Public Transit

System alignment and associated rights of way (“ROW”) outside of Veridea,

the location along Veridea's perimeter where the Regional Public Transit

System will enter and exit Veridea in the vicinity of the interchange of US 1

with the Triangle Expressway will be determined by Triangle Transit, and/or

other regional transit organization, and/or the Town. As Veridea is

developed, site plans and Subdivision Plans will be shared with Triangle

Transit, and/or other relevant regional transit organization, to assist such

entities in the planning for and selection of the final alignment of the

Regional Public Transit System.

The reservation of land to accommodate the Regional Public Transit System
will be made as follows:

i. Land shall be reserved in a manner consistent with the

development pattern of the Sustainability Zone in which it resides,

and may overlap dedications made for other public uses such as

Thoroughfares and utilities as long as the overlap is not contrary

to sound planning and engineering practice that ensures that the

reservation and dedication are sufficient for all planned

infrastructure;

ii. Reservation shall include an area for transit station functions

which shall be located within a UC zone, and shall be reserved in

a manner that is in keeping with an urban development pattern of

that zone as defined by the SD Plan, and may overlap

reservations and, dedications made for other public uses such as

Thoroughfares and utilities as long as the overlap is not contrary

to sound planning and engineering practice that ensures that the

reservation and dedication are sufficient for all planned

infrastructure;

iii. Determination of the form, character, location, and relationship to

adjacent development, relationship to other reservations and/or

dedications and dimensions shall occur during site planning jointly

by the Responsible Person, the TRC or Town Council, as

appropriate.

iv. The reservation of land will prohibit permanent development

within the designated reserve area until 2035 at which time, if

there are no plans that financially commit the Triangle Transit,

and/or other regional transit organization, and/or the Town to

implement a regional rail plan that includes the Development, the

Responsible Person may consider the reservation null and void.

v. Land reserved hereunder will be dedicated to Triangle Transit,

and/or other regional transit organization, and/or the Town once

the applicable entity secures funding and commits to construct

the Regional Public Transit System within the Development.

- Page 175 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 37

vi. Buildout of any of single land use of the three (3) uses identified in

Article 4.2.2.b.i-iii shall not exceed 85% of the total authorized

development for the respective use, unless Town Council

otherwise approves in accordance with UDO 2.3.16 F) 3) a), until

the commencement of a Regional Public Transit System that will

serve Veridea.

3.5.4 Schedule of Installation

Transportation infrastructure shall be completed in accordance with UDO 7.5.9.

For the purposes of UDO 7.5.9, vertically-integrated residential and non-

residential uses will be considered non-residential.

3.5.5 Phasing of Traffic Infrastructure

Traffic infrastructure shall be developed as build-out of Veridea occurs, as set
forth herein. Percent build-out of “any single land use” refers to a percentage
of building permits for residential dwelling units or certificates of occupancy
for non-residential uses for the three (3) different uses identified in Article
4.2.2.b.i– iii hereof.

a. NC 55 at US 1 Northbound Ramps

Veridea shall not exceed 10% build-out of any single land use until the
northbound inside right turn lane on NC 55 at US 1 is extended back to
the intersection with Lufkin Road.

b. NC 55 at Lufkin Road

Veridea shall not exceed 10% build-out of any single land use until the
third (3

rd
) northbound through lane on NC 55, starting at least 500 feet in

advance of Lufkin Road, is constructed.

c. NC 55 at Lufkin Road Connector (Pristine Water Drive)/Site Access 1

Access shall not be granted to NC 55 through the fourth leg of the
intersection across from the Lufkin Road Connector/Pristine Water Drive
(Site Access 1) until the Lufkin Road Connector and Pristine Water Drive
are complete and open to traffic. The Lufkin Road Connector includes a
new location extension to Lufkin Rd and paving of Pristine Water Dr with
improvements according to the Master Traffic Impact Analysis (Master
TIA) including a landscaped median-divided cross section on NC 55 with
a traffic signal.

d. Site Access 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, and 7

Access shall not be granted to NC 55 through Site Access 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, or
7 until improvements according to the Master TIA at the corresponding
access are constructed including a landscaped median-divided cross
section on NC 55.

e. NC 55 at Jessie Drive Extension

- Page 176 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 38

Access shall not be granted to NC 55 through Jessie Drive extension
until improvements for Veridea according to the Master TIA are
constructed including a landscaped median-divided cross section on NC
55 and a traffic signal.

f. NC 55 at Technology Drive

Access shall not be granted to NC 55 through Technology Drive until
Technology Drive is widened to four-lane divided roadway and the
departing second (2

nd
) eastbound through lane along NC 55 Business is

constructed for a minimum of 1000 feet prior to the lane drop. In
addition, access shall not be granted to NC 55 through Technology Drive
until a second (2

nd
) northbound left turn lane and second (2

nd
)

southbound left turn lane on NC 55 is open to traffic.

g. Perry Road at US 1 Interchange and Old Holly Springs Apex Road at
Triangle Expressway Interchange

i. Veridea shall not exceed 15% build-out of any single land
use until either the interchange of Perry Road at US 1 or the
interchange of Old Holly Springs Apex Road at Triangle
Expressway is open to traffic.

ii. Veridea shall not exceed 50% build-out of any single land
use until both the interchange of Perry Road at US 1 and the
interchange of Old Holly Springs Apex Road at Triangle
Expressway are open to traffic.

iii. The Responsible Person shall coordinate with the NC
Department of Transportation (NCDOT) and the Town of
Apex to determine the appropriate phasing of completion of
the ultimate lane geometry and signalization at the ramp
termini as recommended in the Master TIA. The phasing
plan for the ultimate build-out of improvements shall be
determined through subsequent site plan and subdivision
plan TIAs referenced by 3.5.3.b.

3.6 UTILITY INFRASTRUCTURE STANDARDS

3.6.1 General

Water and sanitary sewer lines with connections to municipal systems,

adequate drainage system for the proper drainage of all surface water, and dry

utilities, including but not limited to, electrical distribution, natural gas, and

telecommunication lines shall be provided in accordance with the Town

Standards, unless otherwise noted in Article 3.6.2. Dry utilities, wherever

practicable, shall be installed underground.

3.6.2 Alternative Utility Standards

- Page 177 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 39

a. At the election of the Responsible Person, standards and requirements

applicable to utilities in the Development may include any additional

Sustainability Standards adopted by the Town Council in accordance with

UDO 2.3.16 F) 3) a) or 2.3.16 F) 3) c).

b. Easement encroachments and shared use easements shall be allowed with

the approval of the Town Council to minimize land disturbance and

Thoroughfare sections, to encourage joint trenching agreements, and to

maximize the beneficial use of easements for greenway trails at the time of

site plan and Subdivision Plan submittal.

3.6.3 Schedule of Installation

Utility infrastructure shall be completed in accordance UDO 7.5.9. For the

purposes of UDO 7.5.9, vertically-integrated residential and non-residential uses

will be considered non-residential.

3.6.4 Regional Utility Standards

a. Potable Water

It is anticipated that off-site extension of existing potable water mains will be

required. Within the Development, a network of potable water mains will be

required. Potable water infrastructure for the Development shall be in

accordance with the Town’s Water Distribution System Master Plan and

Cross Connection Control Ordinance (Sec. 12-156 through 166), as

amended from time to time.

b. Reclaimed Water

The Developer may request that the Town apply to NCDENR for conjunctive

systems permit in order to modify the Middle Creek Water Reclamation

Facility (“WRF”) to provide a source of reclaimed water for use within the

Development. If such permit is issued, then water re-use distribution

infrastructure may be provided within the Development to provide a

circulation network of water for non-potable uses, including fire suppression.

Standards and specifications related to reclaimed water shall comply with

rules and regulations as promulgated, established and interpreted by

NCDENR and Town Standards, if any. It is anticipated that any reclaimed

water that is not consumed in the reuse options available will be discharged

within the Development in accordance with applicable law and regulation.

If and when the Town adopts standards for the permitting, construction,

modification and operation of reclaimed water distribution lines, the Town

shall work cooperatively with Veridea to ensure that the standards allow for

all actual or planned for uses within the Development. Should public reuse

water become available to the Development through the Town of Apex, the

Town specifications and details will be the authority for design, ownership

and maintenance issues within Town right-of-way.

- Page 178 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 40

c. Sanitary Sewer

In all cases, Veridea shall follow the Town’s Wastewater Master Plan, as

may be amended from time to time. If a conjunctive systems permit is

issued for the Middle Creek WRF as set forth in 3.6.4.b hereof, then the

Town’s Wastewater Master Plan may be amended to allow for wastewater

generated within the Development to discharge to the Middle Creek WRF.

If a conjunctive systems permit is not issued for the Middle Creek WRF,

then wastewater generated within the Development shall be treated in

accordance with the Town’s Wastewater Master Plan.

d. Electric and Thermal

If a Renewable Energy Facility is available, distribution lines may be

provided to provide an alternate source to meet power and thermal

demands within the Development.

3.7 ENERGY STANDARDS

3.7.1 Renewable Energy

The Goals for the use of Renewable Energy Facilities and Renewable Energy

Resources within Veridea are as follows:

i. Removing regulatory obstacles and adopting streamlined

processes for the installation and safe interconnection of

renewable energy technologies;

ii. Creating a receptive environment for innovative uses of

Renewable Energy Facilities;

iii. Providing for use of shared non-polluting Renewable Energy

Resources to reduce climate change and greenhouse gas

emissions; and,

iv. Enhancing the opportunity for increased development of

Renewable Energy Facilities and Renewable Energy Resources

in the future to increase energy independence;

The use of Renewable Energy Facilities shall be allowed. Renewable energy

standards, a component of the Sustainability Standards, shall be consistent with

generally accepted industry standards and best practices, recognizing that

relevant technology and standards are evolving. Such standards include, but

are not limited to, priorities, standards, and practices developed by entities such

as the American Society of Heating, Refrigerating and Air-Conditioning

Engineers (“ASHRAE”), Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”), and the

Department of Energy (“DOE”), and requirements for interconnection and other

associated safety metrics.

3.7.2 Energy Efficiency

The goals for energy efficiency within Veridea are as follows:

- Page 179 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 41

i. Encourage the use of energy efficient technologies and design to

fully maximize the use of existing generation capacity;

ii. Encourage environmental stewardship through reduction in

energy use;

iii. Encourage local investment in efficiency as a substitute for out-of-

state resources;

iv. Promote an overall reduction in energy demand to ensure

reliability of supply in the face of increased population and to

preserve affordability in the face of rising costs imposed by

carbon constraints; and

v. The improvement of energy performance by 20% compared to

baseline building performance ratings per ASHRAE/ IESNA

Standard 90.1-2004.

The use of technologies and designs intended to maximize energy efficiency

shall be consistent with generally accepted industry standards and best

practices, recognizing that relevant technology and standards are evolving.

Such standards include, but are not limited to guidelines developed by the US

Green Building Council (USGBC), ASHRAE, EPA, and DOE.

3.8 NO OBLIGATION

3.8.1 No Obligation

Nothing in this SD Plan obligates the Town to provide any financial assistance

with respect to any infrastructure or improvements referenced herein, nor shall it

prohibit the Town from doing so.

- Page 180 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 42

ARTICLE 4.0 COMMUNITY DESIGN STANDARDS

4.1 GENERAL

4.1.1 Development shall comply with the community design standards, a component

of the Sustainability Standards, set forth in this Article.

4.1.2 Subdivision Plans and site plans shall be prepared in accordance with the SD

Plan.

4.1.3 Site plans and Subdivision Plans shall designate areas and elements as follows:

a. Sustainable Zones:

i. OS Open Space

ii. NG Neighborhood General

iii. NM Neighborhood Mixed-Use

iv. VC Village Center

v. UC Urban Core

b. Civic Uses; and

c. Thoroughfares.

The respective Sustainable Zones are described in Table 1.

4.1.4 It is possible that as the build out of the Development occurs, the Town Council

may adopt elective regulations and standards applicable to SD-CZ districts

pursuant to UDO 2.3.16 F) 3) c).

4.1.5 Open Space is one of the Sustainable Zones, and will exist both as an

independent Zone as well as being integrated into and completely surrounded

by other Sustainable Zones.

4.2 VERIDEA SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT MAP

4.2.1 Veridea Sustainable Development Concept Map

Table 2 contains the Veridea Sustainable Development Concept Map (Concept

Map), which depicts a concept for the development of Veridea and the

conceptual location of its Sustainable Zones. The Concept Map depicts the

configuration of land uses believed to be appropriate for Veridea. However,

based on future planning, market and demographic conditions, the Sustainable

Zones may be located anywhere within the Development as determined by the

Responsible Person. The Responsible Person may revise the Concept Map

from time to time and shall provide the TRC with a copy of each revision. The

development of Veridea shall include the following minimum acreages with

respect to the Sustainable Zones noted:

- Page 181 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 43

NG Neighborhood General 75 acres

NM Neighborhood Mixed-Use 50 acres

VC Village Center 215 acres

UC Urban Core 135 acres

The VC and UC Zones shall contain a minimum of 150 acres allocated as A-

Grid Zones. Further, a minimum of 250 acres within Veridea shall be designated

as provided in Article 3.1.3 hereof.

4.2.2 Land Use Locations and Densities

a. Land uses and Densities allowed in each Sustainable Zone are set forth in
Article 7 Tables. Such land uses can be located anywhere within the
respective Sustainable Zones.

b. For purposes of the SD Plan, Density is expressed in terms of housing units
per acre for residential uses and as FAR for other uses as specified for the
area of each respective Sustainable Zone in Table 14. The FAR for each
Sustainable Zone is set as an average Density for the zone. Areas
designated for Open Space, utilities infrastructure, Thoroughfares and other
transportation infrastructure, such as a Regional Public Transit System, may
be allocated from time to time by the Responsible Person to any other area
or areas for the purpose of calculating authorized Density for the area or
areas receiving the allocation. The Responsible Person shall have the
authority to reallocate the authorized square footage numbers of the Non-
residential Uses within Article 4.2.2.b.ii and iii on a square foot-for-square
foot basis; provided, however, that the Responsible Person may only
increase or decrease the Retail square footage by up to 20% subject to the
limitation that the reallocation shall not result in a total daily vehicular trip
generation for Veridea that exceeds the maximum daily vehicular trip
generation that served as the basis for the Master TIA. Any further increase
related to retail must be approved by Town Council in accordance with UDO
2.3.16 F) 3) a. In addition to the total authorized development provided
below, Public, Civic, Utilities, Recreational and Lodging Uses are authorized
to support the total authorized development set forth in Article 4.2.2.b.i, ii,
and iii. In the event that additional parcels are incorporated into the Veridea
Sustainable Development District, the total authorized development
hereinafter provided shall be adjusted in accordance with UDO 2.3.16 D).

The total authorized development for the Development shall be as follows:

i. Authorized Number of Dwelling Units (all types) 8,000

ii. Authorized Retail Uses (gross leasable area) 3,500,000 Square Feet

iii. Authorized Office and Industrial Uses (gross floor area) 12,000,000 Square Feet

4.2.3 The Sustainable Development Concept Map designates VC and UC zones
as being either A-Grid or B-Grid. Subsequent approved site plans and Subdivision
Plans shall confirm or modify such zones as called for in the SD Plan, and shall
designate Thoroughfares within the VC and UC zones as being either A-Grid or B-
Grid.

a. Buildings and frontages along the A-Grids shall reflect multi-modal and
pedestrian standards of the SD Plan supporting pedestrian activity.

- Page 182 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 44

Thoroughfares within an A-Grid Zone may be developed according to B-
Grid standards subject to the following special and limiting conditions:

i. Transition conditions within A-Grid Zones to adjacent B- Grid

Zones; and

ii. Small internal Thoroughfares of limited length to respond to a

specific condition of the site or a use. Notwithstanding these

special and limiting conditions, no more than 15% of the

aggregate length of Thoroughfares within an A-Grid Zone may be

designated as a B-Grid and follow B-Grid standards. Location and

other specifics of such B-Grid Thoroughfares shall be addressed

within site plans.

b. Buildings and frontages along the B-Grids may reflect automobile- oriented
standards. B-Grids may be developed in whole or in part to A-Grid
standards. It is the goal that B-Grid zones eventually become redeveloped
as A-Grids. Therefore, site plans for B-Grids shall reflect in their planning
and site engineering this goal by:

i. Establishing a B-Grid Thoroughfare grid and therefore a block
layout that can be redeveloped into smaller blocks exhibiting the
characteristics of an A-Grid;

ii. Establishing the B-Grid Thoroughfares in such a manner that they
can be redeveloped into A-Grid Thoroughfares and frontages; and

iii.Locating utilities and site features so that they will not prohibit the
establishment of an A-Grid development pattern, and do so
without significant redesign or cost impacts. Site plans for B- Grid
zones shall depict both the B-Grid configuration, and conceptually
reflect how the B-Grid configuration may be redeveloped into an
A-Grid.

4.2.4. Development Thresholds

In order to create and maintain a mix of uses as the buildout of Veridea occurs, the following
requirements shall be applicable to development within Veridea, unless otherwise provided
by the Town Council at the request of the Responsible Person:

Threshold 1: Certificates of Occupancy shall not be issued for more than 10% (1,200,000
sf) of the total authorized Office and/or Industrial square footage or more than 20% (700,000
sf) of the total authorized Retail square footage unless and until building permits have been
issued for dwelling units. Similarly, building permits for no more than 20% (1,600 units) of
the total authorized dwelling units can be issued until Certificates of Occupancy have been
issued for at least 2% (70,000 sf) of the total authorized retail square footage and 2%
(240,000 sf) of the total authorized Office and/or Industrial square footage.

Threshold 2: Certificates of Occupancy shall not be issued for more than 25% (3,000,000
sf) of the total authorized Office and/or Industrial square footage or more than 50%
(1,750,000 sf) of the total authorized Retail square footage until building permits have been
issued for at least 5% (400 units) of the total authorized dwelling units. Similarly, building
permits for no more than 37.5%(3,000 units) of the total authorized dwelling units can be
issued until Certificates of Occupancy have been issued for at least 10% (350,000 sf) of the
total authorized Retail square footage and 5% (600,000 sf) of the total authorized Office
and/or Industrial square footage.

- Page 183 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 45

Threshold 3: Certificates of Occupancy shall not be issued for more than 50% (6,000,000
sf) of the total authorized Office and/or Industrial square footage or more than 60%
(2,100,000 sf) of the total authorized Retail square footage until building permits have been
issued for at least 15% (1,200 units) of the total authorized dwelling units. Similarly, building
permits for no more than 60% (4,800 units) of the total authorized dwelling units can be
issued until Certificates of Occupancy have been issued for at least 25% (875,000 sf) of the
total authorized Retail square footage and 10% (1,200,000 sf) of the total authorized Office
and/or Industrial square footage.

Threshold 4: Certificates of Occupancy shall not be issued for more than 70% (8,400,000
sf) of the total authorized Office and/or Industrial square footage or more than 80%
(2,800,000 sf) of the total authorized Retail square footage until building permits have been
issued for at least 40% (3,200 units) of the total authorized dwelling units. Similarly, building
permits for no more than 80% (6,400 units) of the total authorized dwelling units can be
issued until Certificates of Occupancy have been issued for at least 40% (1,400,000 sf) of
the total authorized Retail square footage and 25% (3,000,000 sf) of the total authorized
Office and/or Industrial square footage.

Threshold 5: Certificates of Occupancy shall not be issued for more than 85% (10,200,000
sf) of the total authorized Office and/or Industrial square footage (or more than 85%
(2,975,000 sf) of the total authorized Retail square footage until building permits have been
issued for at least 50% (4,000 units) of the total authorized dwelling units. Similarly, building
permits for no more than 85% (6,800 units) of the total authorized dwelling units can be
issued until Certificates of Occupancy have been issued for at least 50% (1,750,000 sf) of
the total authorized Retail square footage and 40% (4,800,000 sf) of the total authorized
Office and/or Industrial square footage.

Threshold 6: See the requirements set forth in SD Plan 3.5.3.d.vi and 4.2.2.b.

The foregoing requirements are illustrated by the tables below:

- Page 184 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 46

Although the foregoing tables are intended to illustrate the preceding text, the text
shall control the construction of this Article 4.2.4.

4.3 SUSTAINABLE ZONES

RESIDENTIAL CONTROL

DU BP's

Minimum Required

Retail SF C/O's O&I SF C/O's

1 - 1,600 0 0

1,601 - 3,000 70,000 240,000

3,001 - 4,800 350,000 600,000

4,801 - 6,400 875,000 1,200,000

6,401 - 6,800 1,400,000 3,000,000

6,801 - 8,000 1,750,000 4,800,000

RETAIL CONTROL

Retail SF C/O's

Minimum Required

DU BP's O&I SF C/O's

0 - 700,000 0 0

700,001 - 1,750,000 1 0

1,750,001 - 2,100,000 400 0

2,100,001 - 2,800,000 1,200 0

2,800,001 - 2,975,000 3,200 240,000

2,975,001 - 3,500,000 4,000 240,000

O&I CONTROL

O&I SF C/O's

Minimum Required

DU BP's Retail SF C/O's

0 - 1,200,000 0 0

1,200,001 - 3,000,000 1 0

3,000,001 - 6,000,000 400 0

6,000,001 - 8,400,000 1,200 0

8,400,001 - 10,200,000 3,200 70,000

10,200,001 - 12,000,000 4,000 70,000

- Page 185 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 47

4.3.1 Sustainable Zones, as shown on the Sustainable Development Concept Map

shall have the character described in Table 1.

4.3.2 Open Space (OS) consists of lands approximating or reverting to a natural

condition and farmland, parks, greenways, Civic Uses, utility corridors and

easements, and waterways or water bodies, including lands unsuitable for

development due to topography, hydrology and/or vegetation.

a. Open Space includes areas protected by law or regulation, as well as land

designated for conservation.

b. Open Space shall be identified in site and Subdivision Plans approved for

the Development. Upon the approval of a subdivision or site plan

designating an area Open Space, such area may be conveyed in fee or by

easement to (i) an entity created by law to hold interests in property

designated for conservation purposes, or (ii) to a property owners

association formed, in part, for such purpose, or (iii) to a public entity.

c. Land area within Open Space may be used in calculating the Density of a

Project.

d. Open Space is an independent Sustainable Zone and will also be integrated

into other Sustainable Zones.

4.3.3 Neighborhood General (NG) consists of low Density residential areas, adjacent

to higher Density zones that consist of some Mixed Use. Home occupations and

Outbuildings are allowed. Planting is naturalistic and Setbacks are relatively

deep. Blocks may be large and the Thoroughfares irregular to accommodate

natural conditions.

4.3.4 Neighborhood Mixed-Use (NM) consists of Mixed Uses within a medium to high

Density residential urban fabric. It may have a wide range of building types:

single, sideyard, rowhouses, and apartments. Setbacks and landscaping are

variable. Thoroughfares with curbs and sidewalks define medium-sized blocks.

4.3.5 Village Center – A-Grid (VC A-Grid) consists of higher Density Mixed Use

buildings that accommodate retail, Office, rowhouses and apartments. It has a

tight network of Thoroughfares, with wide sidewalks, steady street tree planting

and buildings set close to the sidewalks.

4.3.6 Village Center – B-Grid (VC B-Grid) consists of larger block sizes, and larger

format uses supporting regional users. It has a coarse network of

Thoroughfares, with sidewalks and steady street tree planting.

4.3.7 Urban Core – A-Grid (UC A-Grid) consists of the highest Density and height,

with the greatest variety of uses, and civic buildings of regional importance. It

may have larger blocks; Thoroughfares have steady street tree planting and

buildings are set close to wide sidewalks.

- Page 186 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 48

4.3.8 Urban Core – B-Grid (UC B-Grid) consists of the highest Density and height,

with predominantly Office, lab, and research uses. It may have larger blocks;

streets have steady street tree planting and buildings may be set back from the

sidewalks.

4.4 CIVIC USES

4.4.1 General

a. Space for Civic Uses shall be designated on the Sustainable Development

Concept Map as Civic Space (CS) and Civic Building (CB) as Subdivision

Plans and site plans are approved for the Development.

b. Civic Space (CS) shall denote public sites supportive of or ancillary to Civic

Buildings or sites permanently dedicated to Open Space.

c. Civic Building (CB) shall denote sites for buildings primarily operated by

governmental or not-for-profit organizations dedicated to Functions such as

culture, education, religion, government, transit and municipal parking.

4.4.2 Civic Space (CS) Specific to NG, NM, VC, and UC Zones

a. Civic Spaces shall be designed as generally described in Table 13 and

distributed throughout Sustainable Zones as described in Table 14e.

4.5 THOROUGHFARE STANDARDS

4.5.1 General

a. Thoroughfares are intended for use by vehicular and pedestrian traffic and

to provide access throughout the Development.

b. Thoroughfares shall consist of vehicular lanes and Public Frontages.

Walkways shall be in accordance with Table 4B.

c. Thoroughfares shall be designed in context with the desired vehicular

design speed of the Sustainable Zones through which they pass. The

Public Frontages of Thoroughfares that pass from one Sustainable Zone to

another shall be adjusted accordingly or, alternatively, the Sustainable Zone

may follow the alignment of the Thoroughfare to the depth of one Lot,

retaining a single Public Frontage throughout its course.

d. Within areas designated as B-Grid Zones, pedestrian use shall be a

secondary consideration of the Thoroughfare. Design conflict(s) between

vehicular and pedestrian traffic generally shall be decided in favor of the

vehicle. Within the more urban A-Grid Zones, pedestrian use shall be a

primary consideration of the Thoroughfare. Design conflict(s) between

vehicular and pedestrian movement generally shall be decided in favor

of the pedestrian.

e. The Thoroughfare network shall be designed to define Blocks not exceeding

the size indicated in Table 14. The perimeter shall be measured as the sum

of Lot Frontage Lines.

- Page 187 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 49

f. Street trees shall satisfy traffic calming measures required within the

Development.

g. Thoroughfares shall terminate at other Thoroughfares, forming a network.

Internal Thoroughfares shall connect wherever practicable to those on

adjacent sites. Cul-de-sacs may be permitted to accommodate unusual site

conditions subject to UDO 7.2.1 G).

h. Each Lot shall be bounded by a vehicular Thoroughfare, except that 20% of

the Lots within each Sustainable Zone may be bounded by a Passage, so

long as the Thoroughfare assembly behind such Lots is constructed to Rear

Alley standards, will meet emergency vehicle access requirements and is

public.

i. Thoroughfares within designated B-Grid Zones and designated as B-Grid

Thoroughfares may follow the specified B-Grid Public Frontage and Private

Frontage requirements in Tables 4A and 4B, and Table 7.

j. B-Grid Thoroughfares are permitted within A-Grid Zones for Thoroughfares

necessary to support vehicular traffic and that enhance the pedestrian

network per Article 4.2.3. These Thoroughfares shall be addressed on the

individual site plans and may follow the standards for B-Grid.

k. The B-Grid Zones may abut freeways and conventional commercial arteries

that are pedestrian intolerant. B-Grid Zones are used to transition into the

more multi-modal and pedestrian supportive environments. B-Grid Zones

may be developed in whole or in part to A-Grid standards and may evolve

into A-Grid Zones over time.

4.5.2 Vehicular lanes

a. The standards for vehicular lanes shall follow the guidance in Table 3A or

the Town Standards, or may follow other additional or elective regulations

and standards adopted by the Town Council in accordance with UDO 2.3.16

F) 3) a) or 2.3.16 F) 3) c).

b. A bicycle network consisting of Bicycle Trails, Bicycle Routes and Bicycle

Lanes shall be permitted as set forth in Table 14d.

4.5.3 Public Frontages

a. General to all zones OS, NG, NM, VC, UC

i. The Public Frontage contributes to the character of the Sustainable

Zone, and includes the requisite types of Sidewalk, Curb, Planter,

bicycle parking, and street trees.

ii. Public Frontages shall be designed as shown in Table 4A and Table 4B

and allocated within Sustainable Zones as specified in Table 14d.

iii. Within the Public Frontages, the types of Public Planting and Public

Lighting shall be as shown in Table 4A, Table 4B, Table 5 and Table 6.

b. Specific to OS and NG Zones

i. The Public Frontage may include trees of various species,

naturalistically clustered, as well as understory.

ii. The landscape may consist primarily of native species requiring minimal

irrigation, fertilization and maintenance.

- Page 188 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 50

c. Specific to NM, VC and UC Zone

i. The landscape shall consist primarily of durable species tolerant of soil

compaction.

d. Specific to NM Zone

i. The Public Frontage shall include trees planted in a regularly-spaced

and aligned pattern of single or alternated species with shade canopies

of a height that, at maturity, clears at least one Story. Various street tree

species shall be used within the NM Zone.

e. Specific to VC and UC Zone

i. The Public Frontage shall include trees planted in a regularly-spaced

and aligned pattern of single species with shade canopies of a height

that, at maturity, clears at least one Story. Various street tree species

shall be used within the VC and UC Zones. At Retail Frontages, the

spacing of the trees may be irregular, to avoid visually obscuring the

Shopfronts.

ii. Streetscape solar panels as shown in Table 18 may be used in the

place of street trees where required. This section shall provide design

flexibility in the creation of a public statement in the form of either art or

symbolic statements of sustainability, but shall not allow the wholesale

replacement of mandatory street trees with solar-powered streetlights or

prohibit the installation of larger solar panel assemblages elsewhere

within the Development.

iii. Thoroughfares with Galleries, Arcades, or a right-of-way width of 40 feet

or less shall be exempt from the tree planting requirement.

- Page 189 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 51

ARTICLE 5.0 BUILDING STANDARDS

5.1 TABLES AND PLAN

5.1.1 It is possible that the evolution of technology, building materials and lifestyle

may result in the future in the Town Council’s adoption of elective Sustainability

Standards for SD-CZ districts pursuant to UDO 2.3.16 F) 3) c).

5.1.2 B-Grid Zones within the Development shall comply with UDO 9.2 and 9.3,

except that the requirements of UDO 9.2 and 9.3 may be varied, in accordance

with UDO 2.3.16 F) 3) a), by the standards set forth in the Pattern Book.

5.2 CIVIC BUILDINGS

5.2.1 Civic Buildings (“CB”)

a. Civic Buildings shall be subject to the requirements of this Article.

5.3 OPEN SPACE (“OS”) ZONES

5.3.1 Buildings shall not be allowed in an OS Zone, except as listed in Table 12 and

for accessory structures incidental to and necessary to support the permitted

Functions and uses.

5.4 BUILDING DISPOSITION

5.4.1 Specific to OS, NG, NM, VC and UC Zones

a. Newly platted Lots shall be dimensioned according to Table 14f and Table 15.

b. Building Disposition shall be as shown in Table 9 and Table 14i.

c. Buildings shall be disposed in relation to the boundaries of their Lots

according to Table 14g, Table 14h, and Table 15.

d. One Principal Building at the Frontage and one Outbuilding to the rear of the

Principal Building may be built on each Lot as shown in Table 17c.

e. Lot coverage by buildings shall not exceed that specified in Table 14f and Table

15.

f. Facades shall be built parallel to a rectilinear Principal Frontage Line or to

the tangent of a curved Principal Frontage Line, and along a minimum

percentage of the Frontage width at the Setback, as specified as Frontage

Buildout on Table 14g and Table 15.

g. Setbacks for Principal Buildings shall be as shown in Table 14g and Table

15.

h. Adequate access to and clearance around utilities and HVAC units shall be

provided.

5.4.2 Specific to UC Zone

a. The Principal Entrance shall be on a Frontage Line.

5.4.3 Specific to NM, VC and UC Zones

- Page 190 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 52

a. Farmers Markets may be located on unbuffered Lots of any size.

b. Diagonal parking on commercial streets shall be as set forth in the SD Plan.

5.5 BUILDING CONFIGURATION

5.5.1 General to OS, NG, NM, VC and UC Zones

a. The Private Frontage of buildings shall conform to and be allocated in

accordance with Table 7 and Table 14j.

b. Buildings on corner Lots shall have two Private Frontages as shown in

Table 17. Prescriptions for the second and third Layers pertain only to the

Principal Frontage. Prescriptions for the first Layer pertain to both

Frontages.

c. All Facades shall be glazed with clear glass no less than 30% of the first

Story, however glazing shall be no less than 50% in the VC Zone A-Grid

and UC Zone A-Grid areas.

d. Building stories, Stepbacks, and Expression Lines shall conform to Table 8

and Table 14j.

e. In a Parking Structure or garage, each above-ground level counts as a

single Story regardless of its relationship to habitable Stories.

f. Story limits do not apply to attics or raised basements, masts, belfries, clock

towers, chimney flues, water tanks, cupolas or elevator bulkheads.

g. Prescriptions for the parking Layers pertain only to the Principal Frontage.

Prescriptions for the first Layer pertain to both Frontages of a corner Lot.

h. Public access requirements shall comply with UDO 7.5.4 E) except that the

requirements of UDO 7.5.4 E) may be varied in accordance with UDO

2.3.16 F) 3) a), by the standards set forth in the Pattern Book.

5.5.2 Specific to NG, NM and VC Zones

a. The habitable area of an Accessory Unit within a Principal Building or an

Outbuilding shall not exceed 800 square feet, excluding any enclosed

parking area.

5.5.3 Specific to NG Zone

a. No portion of the Private Frontage may Encroach into the Sidewalk.

b. Open porches may Encroach into the first Layer 50% of its depth. (Table

17d)

c. Balconies, cantilevers, and bay windows may Encroach into the first Layer

up to 25% of the depth defined for the first Layer. In addition, porches

including balconies on porch roofs may Encroach into the first Layer up to

50% of the depth defined for the first Layer.

d. A first level Residential or Lodging Function shall be raised a minimum of

three steps from average Sidewalk grade, except as required for

accessibility under applicable federal and state laws or to accommodate

single-family senior housing units.

5.5.4 Specific to NM Zone

a. Balconies, open porches, cantilevers and bay windows may Encroach into

the first Layer 50% of its depth. (Table 17d)

5.5.5 Specific to OS, VC and UC Zones

- Page 191 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 53

a. Arcades, awnings, and Galleries may Encroach into the Sidewalk to within 2

feet of the Curb but must clear the Sidewalk vertically by at least 9 feet.

Arcades and Galleries within public rights-of-way require encroachment and

maintenance agreements with the Town.

b. Maximum Encroachments for Arcades shall be as shown on Table 8.

c. Stoops, Lightwells, balconies, bay windows, cantilevers and terraces may

Encroach into the first Layer for 100% of its depth. (Table 17d)

d. Loading docks and service areas shall be permitted along/within Frontages.

e. In the absence of a building Facade along any part of a Frontage Line, a

Streetscreen may be built co-planar with the Facade or adjacent Facades.

f. Streetscreens shall be between 3.5 and 8 feet in height. The Streetscreen

may be in the form of a hedge, fence or wall. Walls may be constructed of

masonry, stone, stucco, EIFS or may match the building materials of the

adjacent buildings. Fences shall be constructed of wood or wrought iron (or

products created to resemble these materials) and shall be finished on the

side facing the public right-of way. Streetscreens shall have openings no

larger than reasonably necessary to allow vehicular and pedestrian access.

g. Arena, auditorium or stadium uses shall be located a minimum of 500 feet

from any NG or NM Zone and may be located in Mixed Use Blocks, in

Mixed Use buildings or on Lots of sufficient size and with sufficient Frontage

to support the use and comply with the egress requirements of the North

Carolina State Building Code.

h. Outdoor entertainment areas such as small amphitheaters may be

incorporated without enclosure into Open Space, Public Space, or Civic

Space or on an individual Lot as long as there is sufficient Frontage to

support the use and comply with the egress requirements of the North

Carolina State Building Code.

i. Drive-through facilities associated with financial institutions and pharmacies

may be integrated into multi-story buildings.

5.5.6 Specific to NM, VC and UC Zones

a. Lodging Functions may be located in Mixed Use Blocks, in Mixed Use

buildings or on Lots of any size to support the use and comply with the

egress requirements of the North Carolina State Building Code when the

use is located 100 feet or more from NG Zones.

5.6 BUILDING FUNCTION

5.6.1 General to OS, NG, NM, VC and UC Zones

a. Buildings in each Sustainable Zone shall comply with Article 7 Tables.

b. Historic Sites may be used for residential, lodging, food and beverage,

Office or retail sales and service use.

5.6.2 Specific to NG Zone

a. Accessory Functions of Lodging or Office shall be permitted within an

Accessory Building. See Table 10.

5.6.3 Specific to NM Zones

a. Commercial Functions shall be permitted.

- Page 192 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 54

5.6.4 Specific to VC and UC Zones

a. Commercial Functions shall be permitted.

b. Manufacturing Functions may be permitted.

c. Utilities such as communication towers and water towers may be integrated

into building structures without the need for screening. See Article 5.5.2 for

existing cell towers.

d. Electrical Power Facilities shall be set back a minimum of 20 feet from

property lines or easement lines and may be screened or buffered by

architectural means or located internally within a block to permit integration

into an urban fabric.

5.7 PARKING AND DENSITY STANDARDS

5.7.1 Specific to NG Zone

a. Buildable Density on a Lot shall be determined by the actual parking

provided as applied to the Functions permitted in Table 10 and Table 11.

5.7.2 Specific to OS, NM, NG, VC and UC Zones

a. As provided in Tables 10 and 11, buildable Density on a Lot shall be

determined by the sum of the actual parking calculated as that provided (1)

within the Lot (2) along the parking lane corresponding to the Lot Frontage,

and (3) by purchase, lease, allocation, dedication, reservation or

assignment from a public or private parking structure or lot within 1,200 feet

of any entrance for customer, patron, or resident parking and within 1,200

feet of any entrance of the principal use for employee parking, if available.

b. The actual parking may be adjusted downward according to the Shared

Parking Factor of Table 11 to determine the Effective Parking. The Shared

Parking Factor is available for any two Functions within any block, any pair

of adjacent Blocks or within any area contained within a single site plan

submittal. Further adjustment is permitted for areas controlled by a

comprehensive parking plan in accordance with Article 5.7.3.

c. Based on the Effective Parking available, the Density of the projected

Function may be determined according to Table 10.

d. Within the area of a Transit Oriented Development (“TOD”) the Effective

Parking may be further adjusted downward by 30% and the distances listed

in 5.7.2.a are permitted to be increased by 20%.

e. Accessory Units do not factor into Density calculations.

f. Liner Buildings less than 30 feet deep and up to the first two Stories shall be

exempt from parking requirements.

g. Retail spaces of 1,500 square feet or less of net floor area shall be exempt

from the parking requirements.

h. In accordance with SD Plan 3.1.2, a Parking Management Plan, subject to
review and approval by the Town Council in accordance with UDO 2.3.16 F)
3) a), shall be submitted with the first site plan that deviates from applicable
UDO standards related to parking and shall be updated as necessary for
subsequent site plans.

- Page 193 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 55

5.7.3 Off-Street Parking: Further reduction in off-street parking beyond those

otherwise allowed by the SD Plan is permitted for the Veridea Sustainable

Development District or portions thereof within the area of a TOD in conjunction

with a TDM plan.

5.7.4 Off-Street and On-Street Loading: The Veridea Sustainable Development

District or portions thereof are permitted to have comprehensive loading plans to

include on-street loading in Thoroughfares during non-peak hours, on side

streets and/or in non-dedicated parking areas of parking lots for all or portions of

the site.

5.7.5 A portion of the parking spaces provided in any public or private parking lots or

parking deck may be compact spaces if such spaces are: a) assigned and/or

private spaces; b) assigned to a car-share program; c) specifically designated

for electric cars; or d) approved by the TRC upon its determination that then

current market data support the use by compact vehicles of the number of

compact spaces proposed. A compact space will be a space of at least 8.5 feet

by 14 feet, and a compact vehicle shall be a vehicle that can safely park in the

area of the compact space proposed.

5.8 PARKING LOCATION STANDARDS

5.8.1 General to OS, NG, NM, VC and UC Zones

a. Parking shall be accessed by Rear Alleys or Rear Lanes, when available.

b. Open parking areas and Parking Structures shall be masked from the

Frontage by a Building or Streetscreen.

c. For buildings on B-Grids, open parking areas and Parking Structures are

allowed unmasked on the Frontage in the front Layer, except for corner Lots

at intersections with the A-Grid.

d. Bicycle parking locations at Common Destinations shall be determined at

the time of site plan approval for all Sustainable Zones including OS Zones.

e. Commercial Parking Garages may be incorporated into Mixed Use Blocks

or in Mixed Use buildings on the same Lot to allow for internal block parking.

5.8.2 Specific to NG Zone

a. Open parking areas shall be located at the second and third Lot Layers,

except that Driveways, drop-offs and unpaved parking areas may be located

at the first Lot Layer. (Table 17d)

b. Garages shall be located at the second or third Layer except that side- or

rear-entry types may be allowed in the first Layer by the TRC.

c. Driveways at Frontages shall be no wider than 24 feet in the first Layer.

(Table 3B.f)

5.8.3 Specific to NM Zone

a. All parking areas and garages shall be located at the second or third Layer

except for lots located on designated B-Grids. (Table 17d)

b. Driveways at Frontages shall be no wider than 24 feet in the first Layer.

(Table 3B.f)

5.8.4 Specific to VC and UC Zones

- Page 194 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 56

a. All parking lots, garages, and Parking Structures shall be located at the

second or third Layer except along B-Grids where parking may be located in

the first layer. (Table 17d)

b. Vehicular entrances to parking lots, garages, and Parking Structures shall

be no wider than 24 feet at the Frontage for A-Grid Thoroughfares.

Driveways at Frontages for B-Grid Thoroughfares shall be no wider than

necessary to accommodate the straight and turn lanes in the first Layer.

(Table 3B.f)

c. Parking Structures on the A-Grid shall have Liner Buildings lining the first

and second Stories.

5.9 LANDSCAPE STANDARDS

5.9.1 General to OS, NG, NM, VC and UC Zones

a. The landscape plantings shall consist of native or naturalized species

requiring minimal irrigation, fertilization and maintenance as shown on Table

6.

b. Street trees and landscape planted in public rights-of-way shall require

maintenance agreements with the Town.

c. Public utility locations, placement and accessibility shall be laid out and

engineered so that trees and landscaping and utility conflicts are eliminated

or substantially minimized.

d. Trees shall not be required in the first Layer where Setbacks are less than 12

feet.

e. Planting selection in the first Layer shall be appropriate for the scale of the

space and located so as to avoid conflicts with buildings, walls and utilities.

f. Street trees shall be planted within the Public Frontage as illustrated in

Table 7 and listed in Table 4C. Street trees may be shifted or eliminated

along any Thoroughfares as long as the average number of trees based

upon the Public Frontage is met for the site plan or Subdivision Plan. Tree

preservation areas located in Open Space Zones shall be exempt from the

street tree planting requirements. Public Frontages on Thoroughfares that

are exempt from the tree planting requirement and Thoroughfare

Assemblies for Rear Lanes, Rear Alleys, or where the landscape type is

listed as trees clustered shall not be used in the calculation of the average

number of trees.

g. In order to accommodate the intended density, connectivity and integration

of uses, the landscape requirements set forth in UDO 7.2.5 C) 9) and UDO

7.2.5 C) 12) through UDO 7.2.5. C) 14) shall not apply within the

Development.

h. Screening shall comply with UDO 8.2.8. Notwithstanding the foregoing,

HVAC and other mechanical units shall not be required to be screened from

adjacent properties when not visible from the public street.

i. Veridea shall comply with UDO 8.2.1, 8.2.2 and 8.2.3, except that, in order

to accommodate the intended density, connectivity and integration of uses,

the landscape buffer requirements of UDO 8.2 shall not apply.

- Page 195 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 57

j. Fences, walls and berms shall comply with UDO 8.2.7, except to the extent

modified by Articles 5.5.5.e, 5.5.5.f. and 5.8.1.b. hereof.

5.9.2 Specific to NG and NM Zones

a. The first Layer may not be paved, with the exception of Driveways as

specified in Article 5.8. (Table 17d)

5.9.3 Specific to NG Zone

a. One appropriately sized tree at maturity per Lot shall be planted within the

first Layer. (Table 17d)

b. Trees shall be of single or multiple native or naturalized species as shown

on Table 6.

c. Trees shall be naturalistically clustered.

d. Lawn shall be permitted upon site plan approval. Only re-use water, where

available, may be used for Lawn irrigation.

5.9.4 Specific to NM Zone

a. One appropriately sized tree at maturity per Lot shall be planted within the

first Layer. (Table 17d)

b. Trees should not be of a single species throughout large areas. Tree

species selected are permitted to alternate along blocks. Selection of plant

material shall be appropriate for the scale of the space.

c. Lawn shall be permitted. Only re-use water, where available, may be used

for Lawn irrigation.

5.9.5 Specific to VC and UC Zones

a. Trees shall not be required in the first Layer.

b. The first Layer may be paved to match the pavement of the Public Frontage.

c. A minimum of one shade tree is required for every two thousand (2,000)

square feet of vehicular surface area located within or adjacent to the

parking area. Parking Structures are excluded from this requirement.

d. A minimum of 1 shrub is required for every five hundred (500) square feet of

vehicular surface area. Selection of the plant material shall be appropriate

for the scale of the space. Parking Structures are excluded from this

requirement.

e. All vehicular surface areas within fifty (50) feet of any right-of-way that are

visible from a Thoroughfare (street) are required to be screened from off-site

view to a minimum height of thirty-six (36) inches. Plants, closed fences,

walls, earthen berms or a combination thereof may be used to satisfy this

requirement. Plants must be a minimum of thirty-six (36) inches at maturity

or used in combination with earthen berms to satisfy this requirement.

Screening material other than plants and earthen berms shall be

harmonious with surrounding architecture and shall accommodate

pedestrian and vehicular ingress and egress where applicable.

f. No vehicular parking space shall be located farther than fifty (50) feet from

the back of curb in a planting area with one shade tree, or seventy five (75)

feet from the back of curb in a planting area with two or more shade trees.

Parking Structures are excluded from this requirement.

5.10 SIGNAGE

- Page 196 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 58

5.10.1 General to All Sustainable Zones

Signage shall comply with UDO 8.6, Signs, except that the requirements of UDO 8.6

may be varied by the standards set forth in the Pattern Book(s).

5.11 COMMUNICATION TOWERS

5.11.1 General to All Sustainable Zones

a. Communication Towers are exempt from the standards set forth in UDO

4.4.3 B).

b. Existing Communication Towers will be contained on a Lot.

c. Existing Communication Towers may be located a Lot that contains other

uses.

d. Existing Communication Towers, or a portion thereof, may occupy a leased

parcel on the Lot in which it is located.

e. New or relocated Communication Towers shall be located in accordance

with Table 12.

f. New rooftop communication towers and devices may be allowed within UC

and VC Zones.

5.12 EXTERIOR LIGHTING

5.12.1 General to All Sustainable Zones

Exterior lighting shall comply with UDO 8.7, Exterior Lighting, except that the

requirements of UDO 8.7 may be varied by the standards set forth in the Pattern

Book(s).

5.13 PATTERN BOOK(S)

A Pattern Book(s) may be submitted for approval from time to time in accordance with

UDO 2.3.16 F) 3) a). Each site plan submitted with respect to Veridea shall designate

the existing Pattern Book, or portion thereof, which shall be applicable to the site plan,

or a Pattern Book applicable thereto shall be submitted with the site plan for approval

pursuant to UDO 2.3.16 F) 3) a).

- Page 197 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District
Sustainable Development Plan

{00031941.DOC 31 } 10 MAY 2011 Page 59

ARTICLE 6.0 TABLES

6.1 TABLES

6.1.1. The Tables which follow shall establish, together with the foregoing provisions

of the SD Plan and applicable provisions of the UDO, other Town Ordinances

and Town Standards, the standards and regulations which shall govern all

development and land use within the Development.

6.1.2. If the Responsible Person so determines, as with the other provisions of the

SD Plan, specific portions of the Tables may be affected by additional or

elective regulations and standards hereafter adopted by the Town Council in

accordance with UDO 2.3.16 F) 3) a) or 2.3.16 F) 3) c).

6.1.3. Design Standards contained in one or more of the Articles, Sections, or Tables

of the Plan that pertain to the same aspect of development may be

implemented independently or in conjunction with one another.

6.1.4. The text and numerical descriptions in the Tables are an integral part of this SD

Plan. However, the graphics that accompany them represent guidelines.

Where in conflict, the text and numerical descriptions shall take precedence

over graphics.

6.2 TOWN STANDARDS

6.2.1 The Town and the Responsible Person may enter into a Development

Agreement providing that the Town Standards applicable to the Development

shall be those in existence as of the date of the adoption of this SD Plan.

However, notwithstanding the foregoing, the Apex Standard Specifications and

Standard Details, as modified and amended from time to time, shall be

applicable to the Development, except to the extent otherwise specifically

provided in this SD Plan or where the modified Apex Standard Specifications

and Standard Details are specifically inapplicable to Veridea.

- Page 198 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District 
Sustainable Development Plan

10 May 2011 Table Page 1

TABLE 1. SuSTAinABLE ZOnE DESCRiPTiOnS
ARTiCLE 7.0  TABLES

OS  OS - OPEn SPACE
 OS Open Space Zone consists of lands 

approximating or reverting to a natural 
condition and farmland, parks, Civic 
Uses, RCA, utility corridors, non-street 
easements, greenways, waterways or 
water bodies, including lands unsuitable 
for settlement due to topography, 
hydrology or vegetation.

   General Character: Natural landscape and parkland (active and passive parks) with some 
civic and agricultural use

 Building Placement:  Variable front and side setbacks for park structures, civic structures, 
agricultural and maintenance buildings

 Frontage Types:  Variable 
 Building Height:  1- to 2-Story
 Type of Civic Space:  Parks, Greenways, Civic Buildings

nG  nG - nEiGHBORHOOD GEnERAL
 NG Neighborhood General Zone 

consists of low density residential 
areas, adjacent to higher zones that 
consists of some mixed use. Home 
occupations and outbuildings are 
allowed. Planting is naturalistic and 
setbacks are relatively deep. Blocks may 
be large and the Thoroughfares irregular 
to accommodate natural conditions.

 General Character: Lawns, and landscaped yards surrounding predominantly detached 
single-family houses with some mix of Townhouses; pedestrians 
occasionally  

 Building Placement:  Medium and variable front and side yard Setbacks
 Frontage Types:  Porches, fences, naturalistic tree planting  
 Building Height:  1- to 3-Story with some 4-Story
 Type of Civic Space:  Parks, Greenways

nM  nM - nEiGHBORHOOD MiXED-uSE
 NM Neighborhood Mixed-Use Zone 

consists of mixed uses within a medium 
to high density residential urban fabric. 
It may have a wide range of building 
types: single, sideyard, rowhouses, and 
apartments. Setbacks and landscaping 
are variable. Thoroughfares with curbs 
and sidewalks define medium-sized 
blocks.

 General Character: Mix of Houses, Townhouses & Apartment buildings, with moderate 
Commercial activity; balance between landscape and buildings; 
presence of pedestrians 

 Building Placement:  Shallow to medium front and side yard Setbacks 
 Frontage Types:  Porches, fences, Dooryards 
 Building Height:  1- to 4-Story with a few taller Mixed Use buildings up to 7 stories adjacent 

to Village Center Zones and major transportation corridors
 Type of Civic Space:  Squares, Greens  

VC  VC - ViLLAGE CEnTER - A-GRiD
 VC Village Center Zone consists of 

higher density mixed use buildings that 
accommodate retail, offices, rowhouses 
and apartments. It has a tight network 
of Thoroughfares, with wide sidewalks, 
steady street tree planting and buildings 
set close to the sidewalks.

 General Character: Shops mixed with Townhouses, larger Apartment houses, Offices, 
workplace, and Civic buildings; predominantly attached buildings; 
trees within the public right-of-way; substantial pedestrian activity

 Building Placement:  Shallow Setbacks or none; buildings oriented to the street defining 
a street wall. See the Concept Map for locations 

 Frontage Types:  Stoops, Shopfronts, Galleries 
 Building Height:  1- to 10-Story with some variation up to 15 stories adjacent to Urban 

Center Zones, 
 Type of Civic Space:  Parks, Plazas and Squares, median landscaping

uC  uC - uRBAn CORE - A-GRiD
 UC Urban Core Zone consists of the 

highest density and height, with the 
greatest variety of uses, and civic 
buildings of regional importance. It may 
have larger blocks; Thoroughfares have 
steady street tree planting and buildings 
are set close to wide sidewalks. 

 General Character:  Medium-high to high-Density Mixed Use buildings, entertainment, 
Civic and cultural uses. Attached buildings forming a continuous 
street wall; trees within the public right-of-way; highest pedestrian 
and transit activity

 Building Placement:   Shallow Setbacks or none; buildings oriented to street, defining a 
street wall.

 Frontage Types:   Stoops, Dooryards, Forecourts, Shopfronts, Galleries, and Arcades
 Building Height:  4- to 20-Story with a few shorter buildings including some 1 story 

uses
 Type of Civic Space: Parks, Plazas and Squares; median landscaping

TABLE 1A: Sustainable Zone Descriptions. This table provides descriptions of the character of each Sustainable Zone. 

A-GRiD

A-GRiD

- Page 199 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District 
Sustainable Development Plan

10 May 2011 Table Page 2

TABLE 1. SuSTAinABLE ZOnE DESCRiPTiOnS

VC  VC - ViLLAGE CEnTER - B-GRiD
 VC Village Center Zone consisting of 

larger block sizes, and larger format 
uses supporting regional users. It has a 
coarse network of Thoroughfares, with 
sidewalks, regular street tree planting.

   General Character: Larger single-use retail, office, and manufacturing formats with out-
parcels permitted, transitioning to shops mixed with Townhouses, 
and larger Apartment houses towards A-Grid Zones; trees within 
the public right-of-way; substantial automobile activity

 Building Placement:  Larger setbacks with parking permitted in the setback for any Layer 
except along adjacent A-Grids

 Frontage Types:  Common Yard, Shopfronts,  
 Building Height:  Predominantly 1- to 4-Story with some increased variation up to 7 

stories
 Type of Civic Space:  Not required

uC  uC - uRBAn CORE - B-GRiD 
 UC Urban Core Zone consists of 

the highest density and height, with 
predominantly office, lab, and research 
uses. It may have larger blocks; a coarse 
network of Thoroughfares, regular street 
tree planting and may have buildings set 
back from the  sidewalks. 

 General Character: High-density single and Mixed Use buildings. Attached and detached 
buildings forming a continuous street wall or set-back from the street; 
trees within the public right-of-way; highest pedestrian activity near 
the building and substantial automobile activity at the parking

 Building Placement:   Shallow setbacks or none along A-Grid Thoroughfares with build-
ings oriented to streets transitioning to larger setbacks with parking 
permitted in the setback for any Layer

 Frontage Types:   Common Yards, Stoops, Dooryards, Forecourts, Shopfronts, Galleries, and 
Arcades

 Building Height:  1- to 20-Story with a few shorter buildings including some 1 story 
uses

 Type of Civic Space: None required

B-GRiD

B-GRiD

- Page 200 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District 
Sustainable Development Plan

10 May 2011 Table Page 3

N

© 2009 Shook Kelley.SM  All rights reserved. This 
drawing is not to be reproduced or copied in whole, 
or in part. It is only to be used for the project and 
site specifically identified herein and is not to be 
used on any project. It is to be returned upon the 
written request of Shook Kelley.SM

2151 Hawkins Street
Suite 400
Charlotte NC 28203-4927
T 704 377 0661
F 704 377 0953
www.shookkelley.com

Charlotte / Chicago / Los Angeles SDCM-01APPLICANT:
Tom Hendrickson
Lookout Ventures, Inc.
P.O. Box 1166
Zebulon, North Carolina
919.404.0011

12 October 2010

0 FT 500 1000 1500

Graphic Scale

THE MASTER PLAN OF VERIDEA: SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT MAP

Veridea in Context

Sustainable Zones
     OS  Open Space 
       and Civic Use

     NG  Neighborhood 
       General

     NM  Neighborhood 
       Mixed Use

     VCA  Village Center
       A-Grid

     VCB  Village Center
       B-Grid

     UCA  Urban Core 
       A-Grid

      UCB  Urban Core 
       B-Grid

NG 
UC-B 

UC-A 

VC-A 

VC-B 

NM 

VC-A 

WESTERN WAKE EXPRESSWAY

N
C

 5
5
 B

Y
P
A

S
S

US H
IG

HWAY 1

PROPOSED

INTERCHANGE

PROPOSED

INTERCHANGE

PROPOSED

INTERCHANGE

T
IN

G
E
N

 R
O

A
D

OS 

OS 

OS 

VC-B 

OS 
VC-A 

EXISTING

INTERCHANGE

VC-B 

OS 

OS 

VC-B 

UC-A 

VC-B 

TABLE 2. VERiDEA SuSTAinABLE DEVELOPMEnT COnCEPT MAP

N

© 2009 Shook Kelley.SM  All rights reserved. This drawing 
is not to be reproduced or copied in whole, or in part. 
It is only to be used for the project and site specifically 
identified herein and is not to be used on any project. 
It is to be returned upon the written request of Shook 
Kelley.SM

2151 Hawkins Street
Suite 400
Charlotte NC 28203-4927
T 704 377 0661
F 704 377 0953
www.shookkelley.com

Charlotte / Chicago / Los Angeles SDCM-01APPLICANT:
Tom Hendrickson
Lookout Ventures, Inc.
P.O. Box 1166
Zebulon, North Carolina
919.404.0011

27 MAY 2009

0 FT 500 1000 1500

Graphic Scale

THE MASTER PLAN OF VERIDEA: 
SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT MAP

Sustainable Zones
     OS  Open Space 
       and Civic Use

     NG  Neighborhood 
       General

     NM  Neighborhood 
       Mixed Use

     VC-A  Village Center - A Grid
    
     VC-B  Village Center - B Grid
  
     UC-A Urban Core - A Grid
    
     UC-B  Urban Core - B Grid 

     SZ  Special Zone

NG 

UC-B 

VC-A 

VC-B 

NM 

VC-A 

WESTERN WAKE EXPRESSWAY

N
C

 5
5
 B

Y
P
A

S
S

US H
IG

HWAY 1

PROPOSED

INTERCHANGE

PROPOSED

INTERCHANGE

PROPOSED

INTERCHANGE

T
IN

G
E
N

 R
O

A
D

OS 

OS 

OS 

OS 

VC-B 

OS 

VC-B 

EXISTING

INTERCHANGE

VC-B 

OS 

OS 

VC-B 

UC-A 

VC-B 

Veridea in Context

- Page 201 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District 
Sustainable Development Plan

10 May 2011 Table Page 4

DESiGn SPEED TRAVEL LAnE WiDTH OS nG nM VC uC           ▪ BY RIGHT

Below 20 mph 10 feet ▪ ▪ ▫           ▫ BY THE TRC

20-25 mph 10 feet ▪ ▪ ▪ ▫ ▫
25-35 mph 10 feet ▪ ▪ ▪ ▪ ▪
25-35 mph 11 feet ▪ ▪ ▪

Above 35 mph 12 feet ▪ ▪ ▪
DESiGn SPEED PARkinG LAnE WiDTH 

20-25 mph (Angle ) 16 to18 feet ▪ ▪
20-25 mph (Parallel) 7 to 8 feet ▪ ▪ ▪
25-35 mph (Parallel) 8 feet ▪ ▪ ▪ ▪

Above 35 mph (Parallel) 9 feet ▪ ▪
DESiGn SPEED EFFECTiVE TuRninG RADiuS (See Table 17b)

Below 20 mph 5-10 feet ▪ ▪ ▪ ▪
20-25 mph 10-15 feet ▪ ▪ ▪ ▪ ▪
25-35 mph 15-20 feet ▪ ▪ ▪ ▪ ▪

Above 35 mph 20-30 feet ▪ ▫ ▫

TABLE 3A. VEHiCuLAR LAnE DiMEnSiOnS

TABLE 3A:  Vehicular Lane Dimensions.  This table assigns lane widths to Sustainable Zones.  The Design ADT (Average Daily Traffic) 
is the determinant for each of these sections.  The assemblies are shown in Table 3B.  Design Speeds shown in these Tables represent 

desired speeds for traffic flow based on typical sections. Thoroughfare alignments (excluding Rear Lanes and Rear Alleys) shall be based 
on a minimum 25 mile per hour design speed. Design exceptions to otherwise posted regulatory speed, if approved by the TRC will require 

warning signs. 

- Page 202 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District 
Sustainable Development Plan

10 May 2011 Table Page 5

TABLE 3B. VEHiCuLAR LAnE & PARkinG ASSEMBLiES
TABLE 3B:  Vehicular Lane/Parking Assemblies.  The projected design speeds determine the dimensions of the vehicular lanes and Turning 

Radii assembled for Thoroughfares. All dimensions listed are minimums.  Design Speeds shown in these Tables represent desired speeds for 

traffic flow based on typical sections. Thoroughfare alignments (excluding Rear Lanes and Rear Alleys) shall be based on a minimum 25 mile 
per hour design speed. Design exceptions to otherwise posted regulatory speed, if approved by the TRC will require warning signs. 

10 1010

7 to 8 7 to 8
Min

12

12

20

10

36’

ONE WAY MOVEMENT TWO WAY MOVEMENT
 a.                  nO

PARkinG OS   nG
10 1010

7 to 8 7 to 8
Min

12

12

20

10

36’

OS   
10 1010

7 to 8 7 to 8
Min

12

12

20

10

36’

OS   nG
10 1010

7 to 8 7 to 8
Min

12

12

20

10

36’

OS  
10 1010

7 to 8 7 to 8
Min

12

12

20

10

36’

OS  
10 1010

7 to 8 7 to 8
Min

12

12

20

10

36’

Design ADT

Pedestrian Crossing

Design Speed

300 VPD

3 Seconds

20 - 30 MPH

600 VPD 

 5 Seconds 

Below 20 MPH

 2,500 VPD 

5 Seconds 

20-25 MPH

22,000 VPD 

9 Seconds 

36,000 VPD 

13 Seconds  

35 MPH and above

b.             YiELD
PARkinG OS  nM

10 1010

7 to 8 7 to 8
Min

12

12

20

10

36’

nG nM

10 1010

7 to 8 7 to 8
Min

12

12

20

10

36’

Design ADT

Pedestrian Crossing

Design Speed

 1,000 VPD 

 5 Seconds 

1,000 VPD 

7 Seconds  

c.       PARkinG
OnE SiDE

PARALLEL
OS

 
nG 

10 1010

7 to 8 7 to 8
Min

12

12

20

10

36’

nG nM VC

10 1010

7 to 8 7 to 8
Min

12

12

20

10

36’

nG nM

10 1010

7 to 8 7 to 8
Min

12

12

20

10

36’

nG nM VC

10 1010

7 to 8 7 to 8
Min

12

12

20

10

36’

nG nM

10 1010

7 to 8 7 to 8
Min

12

12

20

10

36’

Design ADT

Pedestrian Crossing

Design Speed

 5,000 VPD 

 5 Seconds 

20-30 MPH

 18,000 VPD 

8 Seconds  

16,000 VPD 

8 Seconds  

25-30 MPH

15,000 VPD 

11 Seconds  

25-30 MPH

32,000 VPD 

13 Seconds  

d.       PARkinG 
BOTH SiDES

PARALLEL
nG

10 1010

7 to 8 7 to 8
Min

12

12

20

10

36’

nM VC  uC

10 1010

7 to 8 7 to 8
Min

12

12

20

10

36’

nM VC  uC

10 1010

7 to 8 7 to 8
Min

12

12

20

10

36’

VC  uC

10 1010

7 to 8 7 to 8
Min

12

12

20

10

36’

 

Design ADT

Pedestrian Crossing

Design Speed

8,000 VPD 

 7 Seconds 

Below 20 MPH

 20,000 VPD 

10 Seconds

25-30 MPH

15,000 VPD 

10 Seconds 

25-30 MPH

22,000 VPD

13 Seconds 

25-30 MPH

  

e.       PARkinG 
BOTH SiDES

DiAGOnAL
VC  uC

10 1010

7 to 8 7 to 8
Min

12

12

20

10

36’

VC  uC

10 1010

7 to 8 7 to 8
Min

12

12

20

10

36’

VC  uC

10 1010

7 to 8 7 to 8
Min

12

12

20

10

36’

VC  uC

10 1010

7 to 8 7 to 8
Min

12

12

20

10

36’

 

Design ADT

Pedestrian Crossing

Design Speed

18,000 VPD 

 15 Seconds  

Below 20 MPH

 20,000 VPD 

17 Seconds  

20-25 MPH

15,000 VPD 

17 Seconds  

20-25 MPH

22,000 VPD 

20 Seconds  

25-30 MPH

 

  

f.      PARkinG 
ACCESS nG 

10 1010

7 to 8 7 to 8
Min

12

12

20

10

36’

nG nM 

10 1010

7 to 8 7 to 8
Min

12

12

20

10

36’

 

Design ADT

Pedestrian Crossing

Design Speed  

 

3 Seconds 

 

6 Seconds 

 

10 Seconds  

uCVC nMnM VC

VC

VC VC

nM VC uC

uC VC uCnM

uC

uC

36’

- Page 203 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District 
Sustainable Development Plan

10 May 2011 Table Page 6

TABLE 4A:  Public Frontages - General. The Public Frontage is the area between the private Lot line and the edge of the vehicular lanes. 

Dimensions are given in Table 4B. Note: 

TABLE 4A. PuBLiC FROnTAGES - GEnERAL

                PLAn
LOT   

PRIVATE FRONTAGE 
►
►

◄
◄

R.O.W.
PUBLIC FRONTAGE

a. (HW) Highway: This Frontage has open Swales, Bicycle Trails and no parking. The landscaping consists of 
the natural condition or multiple species arrayed in naturalistic clusters. Buildings are buffered by distance 
or berms. 

OS

b. (RD) Road: This Frontage has open Swales and a Sidewalk walking Path or Bicycle Trail and Yield parking. 
The landscaping consists of multiple species arrayed in naturalistic clusters. 

OS

c. (ST) Street: This Frontage has raised Curbs drained by inlets and Sidewalks separated from the vehicular 
lanes by individual or continuous Planters, with parking on one or both sides. The landscaping consists of 
street trees of a single or alternating species aligned in a regularly spaced Allee, with the exception that 
Streets with a right-of-way (R.O.W.) width of 40 feet or less are exempt from tree requirements.

OS
nG
nM

d. (DR) Drive: This Frontage has raised Curbs drained by inlets and a wide Sidewalk or paved Path along 
one side, related to a Greenway or waterfront.  It is separated from the vehicular lanes by individual or 
continuous Planters.  The landscaping consists of street trees of a single or alternating species aligned in 
a regularly spaced Allee.

nG
nM
VC
uC

e. (AV) Avenue: This Frontage has raised Curbs drained by inlets and wide Sidewalks separated from the 
vehicular lanes by a narrow continuous Planter with parking on both sides. The landscaping consists of a 
single tree species aligned in a regularly spaced Allee. 

nG
nM
VC
uC

f. (CS) (AV) Commercial Street or Avenue: This Frontage has raised Curbs drained by inlets and very wide 
Sidewalks along both sides separated from the vehicular lanes by separate tree wells and parking on both 
sides. The landscaping consists of a single tree species aligned with regular spacing where possible, but 
clears the storefront entrances.

g. (BV) Boulevard:  This Frontage may have Slip Streets on both sides. It consists of raised Curbs drained 
by inlets and Sidewalks along both sides, separated from the vehicular lanes by Planters. The landscaping 
consists of double rows of a single tree species aligned in a regularly spaced Allee.

VC

nG

VC
uC

nG
nM
VC
uC

- Page 204 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District 
Sustainable Development Plan

10 May 2011 Table Page 7

R u R A L l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l Z O n E S l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l u R B A n
B - G R i D l l l l l l l l l l l l A - G R i D

SuSTAinABLE ZOnE
Public Frontage Type

OS   
HW

OS   nG
RD & ST

nG nM
ST-DR-AV

nM VC
ST-DR-AV-BV

VC  uC
CS-DR-AV-BV

VC  uC
CS-DR-AV-BV

a. Assembly: The princi-
pal variables are the type 
and dimension of Curbs, 
walkways, Planters and 
landscape.

Total Width 16-24 feet 12-24 feet 12-18 feet 12-18 feet 18-24 feet 18-30 feet

b. Curb: The detailing of 
the edge of the vehicular 
pavement, incorporating 
drainage.

 Type 
Radius

 Open Swale

10-30 feet

Open Swale or Curb 

10-30 feet

Raised Curb

5-20 feet

Raised Curb

5-20 feet

Raised Curb

5-20 feet

Raised Curb

5-20 feet

c. Walkway: The pavement 
dedicated exclusively to 
pedestrian activity.

 Type
Width

Path Optional 

n/a

Path, Sidewalk, or BT  

5-8 feet

Sidewalk 

5-8 feet

Sidewalk 

5-8 feet

Sidewalk 

12-20 feet

Sidewalk 

12-30 feet

d. Planter: The layer which 
accommodates street trees 
and other landscape.

Arrangement
Species

Planter Type
Planter Width

 Clustered 

Multiple

Continuous Swale

8 feet-16 feet

 Clustered

Multiple

Continuous Swale

8 feet-16 feet

 Regular 

Alternating

Continuous Planter

8 feet-12 feet

 Regular 

Single

Continuous Planter

8 feet-12 feet

Regular 

Single

Continuous Planter

4 feet-6 feet

 Opportunistic

Single

Tree Well

4 feet-6 feet

e. Landscape: The recom-
mended plant species.

  (See Table 6)

f. Lighting:  The recom-
mended Public Lighting. 

 (See Table 5)

TABLE 4B. PuBLiC FROnTAGES - SPECiFiC

Table 4B:  Public Frontages - Specific. This table assembles prescriptions and dimensions for the Public Frontage elements - Curbs, walkways and 

Planters – relative to specific Thoroughfare types within Sustainable Zones.  Table 4B-a assembles all of the elements for the various street types. 
Public Frontages also include bicycle parking where applicable. 

VC uC

- Page 205 -



TABLE 4C:  Thoroughfare Assemblies.  These Thoroughfares are assembled from the elements that appear in Tables 3A and 3B and incorpo-

rate the Public Frontages of Table 4A. The key gives the Thoroughfare type followed by the right-of-way width, followed by the pavement width, 

and in some instances followed by specialized transportation capability. All dimensions listed are minimums. Design Speeds shown in these Tables 

represent desired speeds for traffic flow based on typical sections. Thoroughfare alignments (excluding Rear Lanes and Rear Alleys) shall be 
based on a minimum 25 mile per hour design speed. Design exceptions to otherwise posted regulatory speed, if approved by the TRC will require 

warning signs. 

kEY          ST-57-20-BL
Thoroughfare Type

Right of Way Width

Pavement Width

Transportation Provisions

THOROuGHFARE TYPES
Highway:   HW

Boulevard:  BV

Avenue:   AV

Commercial Street:  CS

Drive:   DR

Street:   ST

Road:   RD

Rear Alley:  RA

Rear Lane:  RL

Bicycle Trail:  BT

Bicycle Lane:  BL

Bicycle Route:  BR

Path:   PT

Passage:  PS

Transit Route:  TR

RL-24-12 RA-24-20
Thoroughfare Type Rear Lane Rear Alley

Sustainable Zone Assignment OS, NG, NM NG, NM, VC, UC

Right-of-Way Width 24 feet 24 feet min

Pavement Width 12 feet 20 feet min

Movement Yield Movement Slow Movement

Design Speed 10 MPH 10 MPH

Pedestrian Crossing Time 3.5 seconds 7 seconds

Traffic Lanes n/a n/a

Parking Lanes None None

Curb Radius Flared section with driveway apron Driveway apron

Walkway Type None None

Planter Type None None

 Curb Type 

Landscape Type None None

Transportation Provision None None

20’

Veridea Sustainable Development District 
Sustainable Development Plan

10 May 2011 Table Page 8

TABLE 4C. THOROuGHFARE ASSEMBLiES

24' Rear Lane Section 
One-Lane Two-Way Lane

   Drawing is for illustrative purposes only and is subject to change.
Drawing is subject to review by all reviewing legal jurisdictions

PAVING

16'

24' ROW

TAPER
@ 20 TO 2

LANE CONSTRUCTION 
IN ACCORDANCE W/ 
TOWN OF APEX 
STANDARD 
SPECIFICATIONS 
AND DETAILS

T INTERSECTIONS AND
90° INTERSECTIONS W/
45' INSIDE RADIUS AND 
50' OUTSIDE RADIUS TO
ACCOMMODATE SERVICE
VEHICLES

24'-0"

R 50'-0"

VERIDEA
Apex, North Carolina

44'-0" 

44'-0"

38'-0"

NOTE: ALLEY LENGTH 
VARIES

50'-0"

45' INSIDE RADIUS AT
TOP OF T INTERSECTION
TO REDUCE PAVING AND
LIMIT SIGHT LINES

12'
NOTE: LANE LENGTH
VARIES

TAPER
@ 20 TO 2

LANE CONSTRUCTION
IN ACCORDANCE W/
TOWN OF APEX
STANDARD SPECS
& STANDARD DETAILS

T-INTERSECTIONS AND
TURNS W/ 44’ INSIDE
RADIUS AND 50’ OUTSIDE
TO ACCOMMODATE 
SERVICE VEHICLES

44’ INSIDE RADIUS TO 
REDUCE PAVING AND
LIMIT SIGHT LINES

kEY

Note: Rear Lanes may be public or private.  If Rear Lanes are public, the 
minimum pavement width shall be 16 feet.  Private maintenance shall be 
required for private Rear Lanes and the maintenance shall be adequately 
funded by a Veridea property owners’ association.

Note: Rear Alleys may be public or private.  If Rear Alleys are private, 
then private maintenance shall be required and the maintenance shall be 
adequately funded by a Veridea property owners’ association.

- Page 206 -



kEY          ST-57-20-BL
Thoroughfare Type

Right of Way Width

Pavement Width

Transportation Provisions

THOROuGHFARE TYPES
Highway:   HW

Boulevard:  BV

Avenue:   AV

Commercial Street:  CS

Drive:   DR

Street:   ST

Road:   RD

Rear Alley:  RA

Rear Lane:  RL

Bicycle Trail:  BT

Bicycle Lane:  BL

Bicycle Route:  BR

Path:   PT

Passage:  PS

Transit Route:  TR

RDOS-50-20 RD-50-20
Thoroughfare Type Road Road

Sustainable Zone Assignment OS OS, NG

Right-of-Way Width 50 feet 50 feet 

Pavement Width 16 feet 18 feet

Movement Slow Movement Slow Movement

Design Speed 15 MPH 15 MPH

Pedestrian Crossing Time 5.1 seconds 5.1 seconds

Traffic Lanes 2 lanes 2 lanes

Parking Lanes None None

Curb Radius 25 feet 25 feet

Walkway Type Path, Sidewalk or BT Path, Sidewalk or BT

Planter Type Continuous Swale Continuous Swale

 Curb Type Swale or Curb  Swale or Curb 

Landscape Type Trees clustered Trees clustered 

Transportation Provision BT BT

TABLE 4C THOROuGHFARE ASSEMBLiES

Veridea Sustainable Development District 
Sustainable Development Plan

10 May 2011 Table Page 9

kEY

Note: Requires approval of TRC

Note: Curb radius to be high-strength / reinforced

- Page 207 -



kEY          ST-57-20-BL
Thoroughfare Type

Right of Way Width

Pavement Width

Transportation Provisions

THOROuGHFARE TYPES
Highway:   HW

Boulevard:  BV

Avenue:   AV

Commercial Street:  CS

Drive:   DR

Street:   ST

Road:   RD

Rear Alley:  RA

Rear Lane:  RL

Bicycle Trail:  BT

Bicycle Lane:  BL

Bicycle Route:  BR

Path:   PT

Passage:  PS

Transit Route:  TR

RD-50-24 ST-40-19
Thoroughfare Type Road  Street

Sustainable Zone Assignment OS, NG OS, NG, NM, VC

Right-of-Way Width 50 feet 40 feet

Pavement Width 24 feet 19 feet

Movement Slow Movement Slow Movement

Design Speed 20 MPH 20 MPH

Pedestrian Crossing Time 6.8 seconds 5.4 seconds

Traffic Lanes 2 lanes 1 lane

Parking Lanes None One side @ 7 feet marked

Curb Radius 25 feet 15 feet

Walkway Type Path, Sidewalk or BT 13/8 foot Sidewalk

Planter Type Continuous Swale Tree well (Permitted but not required per 4.5.3 e. ii.)

 Curb Type Swale or Curb Curb

Landscape Type Trees clustered Trees at 50' o.c. Avg. (Permitted but not required per 4.5.3 e. ii.)

Transportation Provision BL optional, BT optional

TABLE 4C THOROuGHFARE ASSEMBLiES

Veridea Sustainable Development District 
Sustainable Development Plan

10 May 2011 Table Page 10

kEY

Note: Curb radius to be high-strength / reinforced

Note: Curb radius to be high-strength / reinforced

Note: Requires approval of TRC

- Page 208 -



kEY          ST-57-20-BL
Thoroughfare Type

Right of Way Width

Pavement Width

Transportation Provisions

THOROuGHFARE TYPES
Highway:   HW

Boulevard:  BV

Avenue:   AV

Commercial Street:  CS

Drive:   DR

Street:   ST

Road:   RD

Rear Alley:  RA

Rear Lane:  RL

Bicycle Trail:  BT

Bicycle Lane:  BL

Bicycle Route:  BR

Path:   PT

Passage:  PS

Transit Route:  TR

ST-50-26 ST-50-28
Thoroughfare Type  Street  Street

Sustainable Zone Assignment NG, NM, VC, UC NG, NM, VC, UC

Right-of-Way Width 50 feet 50 feet

Pavement Width 26 feet 28 feet

Movement Free Movement Yield Movement

Design Speed 20 MPH 20 MPH

Pedestrian Crossing Time  7.4 seconds  7.6 seconds

Traffic Lanes 2 lanes 2 lane

Parking Lanes One side @ 8 feet marked Both sides @ 8 feet unmarked

Curb Radius 10 feet 10 feet

Walkway Type 5 foot Sidewalk 5 foot Sidewalk

Planter Type 7 foot continuous Planter 6 foot continuous Planter

 Curb Type Curb Curb

Landscape Type Trees at 50' o.c. Avg. Trees at 50' o.c. Avg.

Transportation Provision BL optional BL optional

TABLE 4C THOROuGHFARE ASSEMBLiES

Veridea Sustainable Development District 
Sustainable Development Plan

10 May 2011 Table Page 11

kEY

Note: Curb radius to be high-strength / reinforced Note: Curb radius to be high-strength / reinforced

- Page 209 -



kEY          ST-57-20-BL
Thoroughfare Type

Right of Way Width

Pavement Width

Transportation Provisions

THOROuGHFARE TYPES
Highway:   HW

Boulevard:  BV

Avenue:   AV

Commercial Street:  CS

Drive:   DR

Street:   ST

Road:   RD

Rear Alley:  RA

Rear Lane:  RL

Bicycle Trail:  BT

Bicycle Lane:  BL

Bicycle Route:  BR

Path:   PT

Passage:  PS

Transit Route:  TR

ST-50-30 ST-60-34
Thoroughfare Type  Street Street

Sustainable Zone Assignment NG, NM, VC NG, NM, VC, UC

Right-of-Way Width 50 feet 60 feet 

Pavement Width 30 feet 34 feet

Movement Slow Movement Slow Movement

Design Speed 20 MPH 20 MPH

Pedestrian Crossing Time 8.5 seconds 9.7 seconds

Traffic Lanes 2 lanes 2 lanes

Parking Lanes Both sides @ 7 feet unmarked  Both Sides @ 7 feet marked

Curb Radius 10 feet 15 feet

Walkway Type  5 foot Sidewalk 6 foot Sidewalk

Planter Type 5 foot continuous Planter Tree well or 7 foot continuous Planter

 Curb Type Curb Curb

Landscape Type Trees at 50' o.c. Avg. Trees at 50' o.c. Avg.

Transportation Provision BL optional BR

TABLE 4C THOROuGHFARE ASSEMBLiES

Veridea Sustainable Development District 
Sustainable Development Plan

10 May 2011 Table Page 12

kEY

Note: Curb radius to be high-strength / reinforcedNote: Curb radius to be high-strength / reinforced

- Page 210 -



kEY          ST-57-20-BL
Thoroughfare Type

Right of Way Width

Pavement Width

Transportation Provisions

THOROuGHFARE TYPES
Highway:   HW

Boulevard:  BV

Avenue:   AV

Commercial Street:  CS

Drive:   DR

Street:   ST

Road:   RD

Rear Alley:  RA

Rear Lane:  RL

Bicycle Trail:  BT

Bicycle Lane:  BL

Bicycle Route:  BR

Path:   PT

Passage:  PS

Transit Route:  TR

CS-50-22 CS-55-29
Thoroughfare Type Commercial Street Commercial Street

Sustainable Zone Assignment NG, NM, VC, UC NG, NM, VC, UC

Right-of-Way Width 50 feet 55 feet 

Pavement Width 22 feet 29 feet

Movement Slow Movement Slow Movement

Design Speed 20 MPH 20 MPH

Pedestrian Crossing Time 6.2 seconds 8.2 seconds

Traffic Lanes 1 lane 1 lane

Parking Lanes One side @ 8 feet marked Both sides @ 7 feet marked

Curb Radius 15 feet 15 feet

Walkway Type 18/10 foot Sidewalk 13 foot Sidewalk

Planter Type Tree well Tree well

 Curb Type Curb Curb

Landscape Type Trees at 50' o.c. Avg. Trees at 50' o.c. Avg.

Transportation Provision

TABLE 4C THOROuGHFARE ASSEMBLiES

Veridea Sustainable Development District 
Sustainable Development Plan

10 May 2011 Table Page 13

kEY

Note: Curb radius to be high-strength / reinforced Note: Curb radius to be high-strength / reinforced

- Page 211 -



kEY          ST-57-20-BL
Thoroughfare Type

Right of Way Width

Pavement Width

Transportation Provisions

THOROuGHFARE TYPES
Highway:   HW

Boulevard:  BV

Avenue:   AV

Commercial Street:  CS

Drive:   DR

Street:   ST

Road:   RD

Rear Alley:  RA

Rear Lane:  RL

Bicycle Trail:  BT

Bicycle Lane:  BL

Bicycle Route:  BR

Path:   PT

Passage:  PS

Transit Route:  TR

CS-60-34 CS-80-44
Thoroughfare Type Commercial Street Commercial Street

Sustainable Zone Assignment NM, VC, UC VC, UC

Right-of-Way Width 60 feet 80 feet 

Pavement Width 34 feet 44 feet

Movement Slow Movement Free Movement

Design Speed 20 MPH 25 MPH

Pedestrian Crossing Time 9.7 seconds 8 seconds at corners

Traffic Lanes 2 lanes 2 lanes

Parking Lanes Both sides @ 7 feet marked Both sides @ 8 feet marked

Curb Radius 10 feet 10 feet

Walkway Type 13 foot Sidewalk 18 foot Sidewalk

Planter Type Tree well Tree well

 Curb Type Curb Curb

Landscape Type Trees at 50' o.c. Avg. Trees at 50' o.c. Avg.

Transportation Provision

TABLE 4C THOROuGHFARE ASSEMBLiES

Veridea Sustainable Development District 
Sustainable Development Plan

10 May 2011 Table Page 14

kEY

Note: Curb radius to be high-strength / reinforced Note: Curb radius to be high-strength / reinforced

- Page 212 -



kEY          ST-57-20-BL
Thoroughfare Type

Right of Way Width

Pavement Width

Transportation Provisions

THOROuGHFARE TYPES
Highway:   HW

Boulevard:  BV

Avenue:   AV

Commercial Street:  CS

Drive:   DR

Street:   ST

Road:   RD

Rear Alley:  RA

Rear Lane:  RL

Bicycle Trail:  BT

Bicycle Lane:  BL

Bicycle Route:  BR

Path:   PT

Passage:  PS

Transit Route:  TR

CS-80-54 CS-100-64
Thoroughfare Type Commercial Street Commercial Street

Sustainable Zone Assignment VC, UC VC, UC

Right-of-Way Width 80 feet 100 feet

Pavement Width 54 feet 64 feet

Movement Slow Movement Slow Movement

Design Speed 25 MPH 25 MPH

Pedestrian Crossing Time 5.7 seconds at corners 8.5 seconds at corners

Traffic Lanes 2 lanes 2 lanes

Parking Lanes Both sides angled @ 17 feet marked Both sides angled  @ 17 feet marked

Curb Radius 10 feet 10 feet 

Walkway Type 13 foot Sidewalk 18 foot Sidewalk

Planter Type Tree well Tree well

 Curb Type Curb Curb

Landscape Type Trees at 50' o.c. Avg. Trees at 50' o.c. Avg.

Transportation Provision

TABLE 4C THOROuGHFARE ASSEMBLiES

Veridea Sustainable Development District 
Sustainable Development Plan

10 May 2011 Table Page 15

kEY

Note: Curb radius to be high-strength / reinforced Note: Curb radius to be high-strength / reinforced

- Page 213 -



kEY          ST-57-20-BL
Thoroughfare Type

Right of Way Width

Pavement Width

Transportation Provisions

THOROuGHFARE TYPES
Highway:   HW

Boulevard:  BV

Avenue:   AV

Commercial Street:  CS

Drive:   DR

Street:   ST

Road:   RD

Rear Alley:  RA

Rear Lane:  RL

Bicycle Trail:  BT

Bicycle Lane:  BL

Bicycle Route:  BR

Path:   PT

Passage:  PS

Transit Route:  TR

AV-75-40 AV-90-56
Thoroughfare Type Avenue Avenue

Sustainable  Zone Assignment NG, NM, VC, UC NG, NM, VC, UC

Right-of-Way Width 75 feet 90 feet 

Pavement Width 40 feet total 56 feet total

Movement Slow Movement Slow Movement

Design Speed 25 MPH 25 MPH

Pedestrian Crossing Time  5.7 seconds - 5.7 seconds 5.7 seconds - 5.7 seconds at corners

Traffic Lanes 2 lanes 4 lanes

Parking Lanes  Both sides @ 8 feet marked  Both sides @ 8 feet marked

Curb Radius 10 feet 10 feet

Walkway Type 6 foot Sidewalk 6 foot Sidewalk

Planter Type 7 foot continuous Planter 7 foot continuous Planter

 Curb Type Curb or Swale Curb or Swale 

Landscape Type Trees at 50' o.c. Avg. Trees at 50' o.c. Avg.

Transportation Provision BR, TR BR, TR

TABLE 4C THOROuGHFARE ASSEMBLiES

Veridea Sustainable Development District 
Sustainable Development Plan

10 May 2011 Table Page 16

kEY

Note: Curb radius to be high-strength / reinforced Note: Curb radius to be high-strength / reinforced

- Page 214 -



kEY          ST-57-20-BL
Thoroughfare Type

Right of Way Width

Pavement Width

Transportation Provisions

THOROuGHFARE TYPES
Highway:   HW

Boulevard:  BV

Avenue:   AV

Commercial Street:  CS

Drive:   DR

Street:   ST

Road:   RD

Rear Alley:  RA

Rear Lane:  RL

Bicycle Trail:  BT

Bicycle Lane:  BL

Bicycle Route:  BR

Path:   PT

Passage:  PS

Transit Route:  TR

BV-115-33 BV-125-43
Thoroughfare Type Boulevard Boulevard

Sustainable Zone Assignment VC, UC VC, UC

Right-of-Way Width 115 feet 125 feet

Pavement Width 20 feet - 33 feet - 20 feet 20 feet - 43 feet - 20 feet

Movement Free Movement (inner lanes) Free Movement (inner lanes)

Design Speed 35 MPH 35 MPH

Pedestrian Crossing Time 5.7 seconds - 9.4 seconds - 5.7 seconds 5.7 seconds - 12.2  seconds - 5.7 seconds

Traffic Lanes 3 lanes, one turning lane & two one-way slip roads 4 lanes & two one-way slip roads

Parking Lanes 8 feet 8 feet

Curb Radius 10 feet 10 feet

Walkway Type 6 foot Sidewalk 6 foot Sidewalk

Planter Type 7 foot continuous Planter 7 foot continuous Planter

 Curb Type Curb Curb

Landscape Type Trees at 50' o.c. Avg. Trees at 50' o.c. Avg.

Transportation Provision BR, TR BR, TR

TABLE 4C THOROuGHFARE ASSEMBLiES

Veridea Sustainable Development District 
Sustainable Development Plan

10 May 2011 Table Page 17

kEY

Note: Curb radius to be high-strength / reinforced Note: Curb radius to be high-strength / reinforced

- Page 215 -



kEY          ST-57-20-BL
Thoroughfare Type

Right of Way Width

Pavement Width

Transportation Provisions

THOROuGHFARE TYPES
Highway:   HW

Boulevard:  BV

Avenue:   AV

Commercial Street:  CS

Drive:   DR

Street:   ST

Road:   RD

Rear Alley:  RA

Rear Lane:  RL

Bicycle Trail:  BT

Bicycle Lane:  BL

Bicycle Route:  BR

Path:   PT

Passage:  PS

Transit Route:  TR

BV-135-33 BV-135-53
Thoroughfare Type Boulevard Boulevard

Sustainable Zone Assignment VC, UC VC, UC

Right-of-Way Width 135 feet 135 feet

Pavement Width 30 feet - 33 feet - 30 feet 20 feet - 53 feet - 20 feet

Movement Free Movement Free Movement

Design Speed 35 MPH 35 MPH

Pedestrian Crossing Time 8.5 seconds - 9.4 seconds - 8.5 seconds 5.7 seconds - 15.1 seconds - 5.7 seconds

Traffic Lanes 3 lanes, one turning lane & two one-way slip roads 5 Lanes, one turning lane & two one-way slip roads

Parking Lanes 8 feet 8 feet

Curb Radius 10 feet 10 feet

Walkway Type 6 foot Sidewalk 6 foot Sidewalk

Planter Type 7 foot continuous Planter 7 foot continuous Planter

 Curb Type Curb Curb

Landscape Type Trees at 50' o.c. Avg. Trees at 50' o.c. Avg.

Transportation Provision BR, TR BR, TR

TABLE 4C THOROuGHFARE ASSEMBLiES

Veridea Sustainable Development District 
Sustainable Development Plan

10 May 2011 Table Page 18

kEY

Note: Curb radius to be high-strength / reinforced Note: Curb radius to be high-strength / reinforced

- Page 216 -



DRIVE LANE

ST-50-28 wo/Lane

25'-0" 25'-0"

PAVEMENT WIDTH

ROW - 50'-0"

28'-0"

PARKING
LANE

WALK WALK

5'-0" 6'-0" 8'-0" 12'-0" 8'-0" 6'-0" 5'-0"
PARKING

LANE

El
ec

tri
c

Te
le

co
m

C
ab

le

G
as

Sa
ni

ta
ry

Se
w

er

9" 2'-0" 2'-0" 3"

3'
-0

"

3'
-0

"

M
IN

M
IN

St
or

m
Se

w
er

W
at

er

2'
-0

" 3'
-0

"

M
IN

M
IN

10'-0"
MIN

2'-6"2'-6"

1'
-6

"

M
IN

1'
-8

"
M

IN

2'-0"

R
ec

la
im

ed
W

at
er

DRIVE LANE

ST-50-26 wo/Lane

29'-0" 21'-0"

PAVEMENT WIDTH

ROW - 50'-0"

26'-0"

18'-0"
PARKING

LANE

WALK WALK

5'-0" 7'-0" 8'-0" 9'-0" 9'-0" 7'-0" 5'-0"

El
ec

tri
c

Te
le

co
m

C
ab

le

G
as

Sa
ni

ta
ry

Se
w

er

9" 2'-0" 2'-0" 3"

3'
-0

"

3'
-0

"

1'-0"

M
IN

M
IN

St
or

m
Se

w
er

W
at

er2'
-0

" 3'
-0

"
M

IN

M
IN

10'-0"
MIN

2'-6"2'-6"
1'

-6
"

M
IN

1'
-8

"
M

IN

2'-0"

R
ec

la
im

ed
W

at
er

ST-50-26 without Rear Lane
Veridea  Thoroughfare Sections with Utilities 22 March 2010

District Utility Zone

DRIVE LANE

ST-50-28 wo/Lane

25'-0" 25'-0"

PAVEMENT WIDTH

ROW - 50'-0"

28'-0"

PARKING
LANE

WALK WALK

5'-0" 6'-0" 8'-0" 12'-0" 8'-0" 6'-0" 5'-0"
PARKING

LANE

El
ec

tri
c

Te
le

co
m

C
ab

le

G
as

Sa
ni

ta
ry

Se
w

er

9" 2'-0" 2'-0" 3"

3'
-0

"

3'
-0

"

M
IN

M
IN

St
or

m
Se

w
er

W
at

er

2'
-0

" 3'
-0

"

M
IN

M
IN

10'-0"
MIN

2'-6"2'-6"

1'
-6

"

M
IN

1'
-8

"
M

IN

2'-0"

R
ec

la
im

ed
W

at
er

DRIVE LANE

ST-50-26 wo/Lane

29'-0" 21'-0"

PAVEMENT WIDTH

ROW - 50'-0"

26'-0"

18'-0"
PARKING

LANE

WALK WALK

5'-0" 7'-0" 8'-0" 9'-0" 9'-0" 7'-0" 5'-0"

El
ec

tri
c

Te
le

co
m

C
ab

le

G
as

Sa
ni

ta
ry

Se
w

er

9" 2'-0" 2'-0" 3"

3'
-0

"

3'
-0

"

1'-0"

M
IN

M
IN

St
or

m
Se

w
er

W
at

er2'
-0

" 3'
-0

"
M

IN

M
IN

10'-0"
MIN

2'-6"2'-6"

1'
-6

"
M

IN

1'
-8

"
M

IN

2'-0"

R
ec

la
im

ed
W

at
er

ST-50-26 with Rear Lane
Veridea  Thoroughfare Sections with Utilities 22 March 2010

District Utility Zone

Veridea Sustainable Development District 
Sustainable Development Plan

10 May 2011 Table Page 19

TABLE 4D. THOROuGHFARE CROSS SECTiOnS

TABLE 4D:  Thoroughfare Cross Sections.  These Thoroughfares Cross Sections are assembled from the some of the typical Thoroughfares 

that appear in Table 4C and represent Standard Street Cross Sections Showing Utilities.

- Page 217 -



DRIVE LANE

ST-50-28 wo/Lane

25'-0" 25'-0"

PAVEMENT WIDTH

ROW - 50'-0"

28'-0"

PARKING
LANE

WALK WALK

5'-0" 6'-0" 8'-0" 12'-0" 8'-0" 6'-0" 5'-0"
PARKING

LANE

El
ec

tri
c

Te
le

co
m

C
ab

le

G
as

Sa
ni

ta
ry

Se
w

er

9" 2'-0" 2'-0" 3"

3'
-0

"

3'
-0

"

M
IN

M
IN

St
or

m
Se

w
er

W
at

er

2'
-0

" 3'
-0

"

M
IN

M
IN

10'-0"
MIN

2'-6"2'-6"
1'

-6
"

M
IN

1'
-8

"
M

IN

2'-0"

R
ec

la
im

ed
W

at
er

DRIVE LANE

ST-50-26 wo/Lane

29'-0" 21'-0"

PAVEMENT WIDTH

ROW - 50'-0"

26'-0"

18'-0"
PARKING

LANE

WALK WALK

5'-0" 7'-0" 8'-0" 9'-0" 9'-0" 7'-0" 5'-0"

El
ec

tri
c

Te
le

co
m

C
ab

le

G
as

Sa
ni

ta
ry

Se
w

er

9" 2'-0" 2'-0" 3"

3'
-0

"

3'
-0

"

1'-0"

M
IN

M
IN

St
or

m
Se

w
er

W
at

er2'
-0

" 3'
-0

"
M

IN

M
IN

10'-0"
MIN

2'-6"2'-6"

1'
-6

"
M

IN

1'
-8

"
M

IN

2'-0"

R
ec

la
im

ed
W

at
er

ST-50-28 without Rear Lane
Veridea  Thoroughfare Sections with Utilities 22 March 2010

District Utility Zone

DRIVE LANE

ST-50-28 w/Lane

25'-0" 25'-0"

PAVEMENT WIDTH

ROW - 50'-0"

28'-0"

12'-0"
PARKING

LANE

WALK WALK

5'-0" 6'-0" 8'-0" 6'-0" 6'-0" 8'-0" 6'-0" 5'-0"
PARKING

LANE

W
at

er

3'
-0

"
M

IN

Sa
ni

ta
ry

Se
w

er

10'-0"
MIN

2'-6"2'-6" St
or

m
Se

w
er

2'
-0

"
M

IN

1'
-6

"
M

IN

1'
-8

"
M

IN

2'-0"

R
ec

la
im

ed
W

at
er

DRIVE LANE

ST-50-26 w/Lane

29'-0" 21'-0"

PAVEMENT WIDTH

ROW - 50'-0"

26'-0"

18'-0"
PARKING

LANE

WALK WALK

5'-0" 7'-0" 8'-0" 9'-0" 9'-0" 7'-0" 5'-0"

W
at

er

3'
-0

"
M

IN

Sa
ni

ta
ry

Se
w

er

10'-0"
MIN

2'-6" 2'-6"

St
or

m
Se

w
er

2'
-0

"
M

IN

1'
-6

"
M

IN

1'
-8

"
M

IN

2'-0"

R
ec

la
im

ed
W

at
er

ST-50-28 with Rear Lane
Veridea  Thoroughfare Sections with Utilities 22 March 2010

District Utility Zone

Veridea Sustainable Development District 
Sustainable Development Plan

10 May 2011 Table Page 20

TABLE 4D. THOROuGHFARE CROSS SECTiOnS

- Page 218 -



DRIVE LANE

CS-80-44 wo/Alley

40'-0" 40'-0"

PAVEMENT WIDTH

ROW - 80'-0"

44'-0"

28'-0"
PARKING

LANE

18'-0" 8'-0" 14'-0" 14'-0" 8'-0" 18'-0"
PARKING

LANE

WALK WALK

El
ec

tri
c

Te
le

co
m

C
ab

le

G
as

Sa
ni

ta
ry

Se
w

er

9" 2'-0" 2'-0" 8'-3"

3'
-0

"

3'
-0

"

M
IN

M
IN

St
or

m
Se

w
er

W
at

er

2'
-0

" 3'
-0

"

M
IN

M
IN

10'-0"
MIN

6'-0"

2'-6" 2'-6"

1'
-6

"

M
IN

1'
-8

"
M

IN

2'-0"

R
ec

la
im

ed
W

at
er

DRIVE LANE

CS-60-34 wo/Alley

30'-0" 30'-0"

PAVEMENT WIDTH

ROW - 60'-0"

34'-0"

20'-0"
PARKING

LANE

WALK WALK

13'-0" 7'-0" 10'-0" 10'-0" 7'-0" 13'-0"
PARKING

LANE

El
ec

tri
c

Te
le

co
m

C
ab

le

G
as

Sa
ni

ta
ry

Se
w

er

9" 2'-0" 2'-0" 8'-3"

3'
-0

"

3'
-0

"

M
IN

M
IN

St
or

m
Se

w
er

W
at

er

2'
-0

" 3'
-0

"

M
IN

M
IN

10'-0"
MIN

1'-0"

2'-6" 2'-6"

MIN

1'
-6

"

M
IN

1'
-8

"
M

IN

2'-0"

R
ec

la
im

ed
W

at
er

CS-60-34 without Rear Alley
Veridea  Thoroughfare Sections with Utilities 22 March 2010

District Utility Zone

Veridea Sustainable Development District 
Sustainable Development Plan

10 May 2011 Table Page 21

TABLE 4D. THOROuGHFARE CROSS SECTiOnS

- Page 219 -



DRIVE LANE

CS-80-44 w/Alley

40'-0" 40'-0"

PAVEMENT WIDTH

ROW - 80'-0"

44'-0"

28'-0"
PARKING

LANE

18'-0" 8'-0" 14'-0" 14'-0" 8'-0" 18'-0"
PARKING

LANE

WALK WALK

W
at

er

3'
-0

"
M

IN

Sa
ni

ta
ry

Se
w

er

10'-0"
MIN

2'-6" 2'-6"

St
or

m
Se

w
er

2'
-0

"
M

IN

1'
-6

"
M

IN

1'
-8

"
M

IN

2'-0"

R
ec

la
im

ed
W

at
er

DRIVE LANE

CS-60-34 w/Alley

30'-0" 30'-0"

PAVEMENT WIDTH

ROW - 60'-0"

34'-0"

20'-0"

PARKING
LANE

WALK WALK

13'-0" 7'-0" 10'-0" 10'-0" 7'-0" 13'-0"
PARKING

LANE

W
at

er
3'

-0
"

M
IN

Sa
ni

ta
ry

Se
w

er

10'-0"
MIN

2'-6"2'-6" St
or

m
Se

w
er

2'
-0

"
M

IN

1'
-6

"

M
IN

1'
-8

"
M

IN

2'-0"

R
ec

la
im

ed
W

at
er

CS-60-34 with Rear Alley
Veridea  Thoroughfare Sections with Utilities 22 March 2010

District Utility Zone

Veridea Sustainable Development District 
Sustainable Development Plan

10 May 2011 Table Page 22

TABLE 4D. THOROuGHFARE CROSS SECTiOnS

- Page 220 -



DRIVE LANE

CS-80-44 wo/Alley

40'-0" 40'-0"

PAVEMENT WIDTH

ROW - 80'-0"

44'-0"

28'-0"
PARKING

LANE

18'-0" 8'-0" 14'-0" 14'-0" 8'-0" 18'-0"
PARKING

LANE

WALK WALK

El
ec

tri
c

Te
le

co
m

C
ab

le

G
as

Sa
ni

ta
ry

Se
w

er

9" 2'-0" 2'-0" 8'-3"

3'
-0

"

3'
-0

"

M
IN

M
IN

St
or

m
Se

w
er

W
at

er

2'
-0

" 3'
-0

"

M
IN

M
IN

10'-0"
MIN

6'-0"

2'-6" 2'-6"

1'
-6

"

M
IN

1'
-8

"
M

IN

2'-0"

R
ec

la
im

ed
W

at
er

DRIVE LANE

CS-60-34 wo/Alley

30'-0" 30'-0"

PAVEMENT WIDTH

ROW - 60'-0"

34'-0"

20'-0"
PARKING

LANE

WALK WALK

13'-0" 7'-0" 10'-0" 10'-0" 7'-0" 13'-0"
PARKING

LANE

El
ec

tri
c

Te
le

co
m

C
ab

le

G
as

Sa
ni

ta
ry

Se
w

er

9" 2'-0" 2'-0" 8'-3"

3'
-0

"

3'
-0

"

M
IN

M
IN

St
or

m
Se

w
er

W
at

er

2'
-0

" 3'
-0

"

M
IN

M
IN

10'-0"
MIN

1'-0"

2'-6" 2'-6"

MIN

1'
-6

"

M
IN

1'
-8

"
M

IN

2'-0"

R
ec

la
im

ed
W

at
er

CS-80-44 without Rear Alley
Veridea  Thoroughfare Sections with Utilities 22 March 2010

District Utility Zone

Veridea Sustainable Development District 
Sustainable Development Plan

10 May 2011 Table Page 23

TABLE 4D. THOROuGHFARE CROSS SECTiOnS

- Page 221 -



DRIVE LANE

CS-80-44 w/Alley

40'-0" 40'-0"

PAVEMENT WIDTH

ROW - 80'-0"

44'-0"

28'-0"
PARKING

LANE

18'-0" 8'-0" 14'-0" 14'-0" 8'-0" 18'-0"
PARKING

LANE

WALK WALK

W
at

er

3'
-0

"
M

IN

Sa
ni

ta
ry

Se
w

er

10'-0"
MIN

2'-6" 2'-6"

St
or

m
Se

w
er

2'
-0

"
M

IN

1'
-6

"
M

IN

1'
-8

"
M

IN

2'-0"

R
ec

la
im

ed
W

at
er

DRIVE LANE

CS-60-34 w/Alley

30'-0" 30'-0"

PAVEMENT WIDTH

ROW - 60'-0"

34'-0"

20'-0"

PARKING
LANE

WALK WALK

13'-0" 7'-0" 10'-0" 10'-0" 7'-0" 13'-0"
PARKING

LANE

W
at

er
3'

-0
"

M
IN

Sa
ni

ta
ry

Se
w

er

10'-0"
MIN

2'-6"2'-6" St
or

m
Se

w
er

2'
-0

"
M

IN

1'
-6

"

M
IN

1'
-8

"
M

IN

2'-0"

R
ec

la
im

ed
W

at
er

CS-80-44 with Rear Alley
Veridea  Thoroughfare Sections with Utilities 22 March 2010

District Utility Zone

Veridea Sustainable Development District 
Sustainable Development Plan

10 May 2011 Table Page 24

TABLE 4D. THOROuGHFARE CROSS SECTiOnS

- Page 222 -



DRIVE LANE

RA-24-24

12'-0" 12'-0"

PAVEMENT WIDTH

ROW - 24'-0"

12'-0" 12'-0"
1'-0" 1'-0"

El
ec

tri
c

Te
le

co
m

C
ab

le

G
as

St
or

m
Se

w
er

9" 2'-0" 2'-0" 1'-3"

3'
-0

"

3'
-0

"

1'-0"

M
IN

M
IN

3'
-0

"
M

IN

24'-0"
6'-0" 12'-0" 6'-0"

PLANTINGS

DRIVE
LANE

RL-24-12

12'-0" 12'-0"

PAVEMENT WIDTH PLANTINGS

ROW - 24'-0"

6'-0" 6'-0"
1'-0" 1'-0"

El
ec

tri
c

Te
le

co
m

C
ab

le

G
as

St
or

m
Se

w
er

9" 2'-0" 2'-0" 1'-3"

3'
-0

"

3'
-0

"

1'-0"

M
IN

M
IN

3'
-0

"
M

IN

RL-12-24 Rear Lane
Veridea  Thoroughfare Sections with Utilities 22 March 2010

DRIVE LANE

RA-24-24

12'-0" 12'-0"

PAVEMENT WIDTH

ROW - 24'-0"

12'-0" 12'-0"
1'-0" 1'-0"

El
ec

tri
c

Te
le

co
m

C
ab

le

G
as

St
or

m
Se

w
er

9" 2'-0" 2'-0" 1'-3"

3'
-0

"

3'
-0

"

1'-0"

M
IN

M
IN

3'
-0

"
M

IN

24'-0"
6'-0" 12'-0" 6'-0"

PLANTINGS

DRIVE
LANE

RL-24-12

12'-0" 12'-0"

PAVEMENT WIDTH PLANTINGS

ROW - 24'-0"

6'-0" 6'-0"
1'-0" 1'-0"

El
ec

tri
c

Te
le

co
m

C
ab

le

G
as

St
or

m
Se

w
er

9" 2'-0" 2'-0" 1'-3"

3'
-0

"

3'
-0

"

1'-0"

M
IN

M
IN

3'
-0

"
M

IN

RA-24-24 Rear Alley
Veridea  Thoroughfare Sections with Utilities 22 March 2010

Veridea Sustainable Development District 
Sustainable Development Plan

10 May 2011 Table Page 25

TABLE 4D. THOROuGHFARE CROSS SECTiOnS

- Page 223 -



OS nG nM VC uC Native and Naturalized Plant List 
Table Page 27

Oval

▪ ▪ ▪ ▪ ▪

Ball

▪ ▪ ▪ ▪ ▪

Pyramid

▪ ▪ ▪ ▪ ▪

Umbrella

▪ ▪ ▪ ▪ ▪

Vase

▪ ▪ ▪ ▪ ▪

TABLE 6. PuBLiC PLAnTinG

TABLE 6:  Public Planting. This table shows five common types of street tree shapes and their appropriateness within the Sustainable 
Zones.  Provide adequate soil volumes for street trees set within hardscape. A registered professional shall prepare a landscape plan and 

provide planting details to ensure adequate soil preparation for the size and species proposed on the plan.

Veridea Sustainable Development District 
Sustainable Development Plan

10 May 2011 Table Page 26- Page 224 -



TABLE 6. PuBLiC PLAnTinG

TABLE 6:  Public Planting. This table shows a list of native and naturalized trees divided in five common types of street tree shapes and their 
appropriateness within the Sustainable Zones. Other types of hardy plant material are allowed with TRC approval.

Oval Shape    (OS, nG, nM, VC, uC)                                                                               Tree Size*
Acer campestre                                                    Hedge Maple                                L 
Acer truncatum                            Purpleblow Maple   M
Carpinus caroliniana                                             American Hornbeam   M
Pistacia chinensis cultivar “Keith Davey”           Chinese Pistache                         M
Tilia americana                                                     American Linden   L
Tilia cordata                                                          Littleleaf Linden   M

Ball Shape    (OS, nG, nM, VC, uC)
Acer barbatum                                   Southern Sugar Maple  M
Acer buergeranum                             Trident Maple   S
Acer ginnala                                       Amur Maple   M
Amelanchier arborea                          Downy Serviceberry   M
Platanus X acerifolia                          London Planetree   L
Quercus coccinea                              Scarlet Oak   L
Quercus lyrata                                   Overcup Oak   L
Quercus phellos                                  Willow Oak   L
Qurcus shumardii                               Shumard Oak   L
Quercus virginiana                             Live Oak    L

Pyramid Shape   (OS, nG, nM)
Carpinus betulus                               European Hornbeam   M
Cryptomeria japonica                      Japanese Cryptomeria  M
Ginkgo biloba  (Male only)                                   Ginkgo    L
Ilex opaca                                           American Holly   L
Juniperus virginiana                           Eastern Redcedar   L
Magnolia grandifolia                           Southern Magnolia   L
Metasequoia glyptostroboides           Dawn Redwood   L
Nyssa sylvatica                                  Black Gum   L

umbrella Shape   (OS, nG, nM)
Celtis laevigata                                   Sugar Hackberry   L
Cornus florida                                     Flowering Dogwood   S
Gleditsia triacanthos var.inermis        Thornless Honey Locust  M
Koelreuteria paniculata                        Golden Rain Tree   M
Ostrya virginiana                                Ironwood    L
Ulmus parvifolia                                  Lacebark Elm   L
Vitex agnus-castus    Chaste Tree   S
Zelkova serrata                                  Japanese Zelkova   L

Vase Shape    (OS, nG, nM)
Acer ginnala                                       Amur Maple   M
Cercis canadensis                              Eastern Redbud   S
Chionanthus virginicus                       Fringetree    S
Lagerstroemia indica                         Crape Myrtle    S/M 
Styrax japonica     Japanese Snowbell   S

* Tree Size 

Small Tree (S): Trees with a mature height of less than 20 feet tall. Small trees shall be planted in permeable areas no less than 6’ x 8’ and 3’ minimum 

depth of soil preparation per Town of Apex standards.

Medium Tree (M): Trees with mature height between 20 and 30 feet tall. Medium trees shall be planted in permeable areas no less than 6’ x 8’ and 3’ 

minimum depth of soil preparation per Town of Apex standards

Large Trees (L): Trees with mature height above 30 feet tall. Large trees shall  be planted in permeable areas no less than 10’ x 12’ and 3’ minimum 

depth of soil preparation per Town of Apex standards

 

Veridea Sustainable Development District 
Sustainable Development Plan

10 May 2011 Table Page 27- Page 225 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District 
Sustainable Development Plan

10 May 2011 Table Page 28

            SECTION                  PLAN

LOT   
PRIVATE 

FRONTAGE 

►
►

◄
◄

R.O.W.
PUBLIC
FRONTAGE

LOT   
PRIVATE 

FRONTAGE 

►
►

◄
◄

R.O.W.
PUBLIC 
FRONTAGE

a. Common Yard - A-Grid: a planted Frontage wherein the Facade is set 
back from the Frontage Line.  The front yard created remains unfenced 
and is visually continuous with adjacent yards, supporting a common 
landscape. 

     Common Yard - B-Grid: a Frontage that permits parking in the front Layer 
with perimeter landscaping

  

b. Porch: a planted Frontage wherein the Facade is set back from the Frontage 
Line with an attached porch permitted to Encroach. A fence, low wall or 
slope at the Frontage Line may be used to maintain street spatial definition. 
Porches shall be no less than 8 feet deep.

c. Terrace or Lightwell: a Frontage wherein the Facade is set back from the 
Frontage line by an elevated terrace and/or a sunken Lightwell. This type 
buffers Residential use from urban Sidewalks and removes the private yard 
from public Encroachment. Terraces are suitable for conversion to outdoor 
cafes. Syn: Dooryard.

d. Forecourt: a Frontage wherein a portion of the Facade is close to the 
Frontage Line and the central portion is set back.  The Forecourt created is 
suitable for vehicular drop-offs. This type should be allocated in conjunction 
with other Frontage types. Large trees within the Forecourts may overhang 
the Sidewalks. 

e. Stoop: a Frontage wherein the Facade is aligned close to the Frontage Line 
with the first Story elevated from the Sidewalk sufficiently to secure privacy 
for the windows. The entrance is usually an exterior stair and landing. This 
type is recommended for ground-floor Residential use. 

f. Shopfront - A-Grid: a Frontage wherein the Facade is aligned close to 
the Frontage Line with the building entrance at Sidewalk grade.  This type 
is conventional for Retail use. It has a substantial glazing on the Sidewalk 
level and may have awning or canopies that may overlap the Sidewalk to 
within 2 feet of the Curb. Syn: Retail Frontage.

    Shopfront- B-Grid: a Frontage that permits parking in the front Layer with 
perimeter landscaping

g. Gallery: a Frontage wherein the Facade is aligned close to the Frontage line 
with an attached cantilevered shed or a lightweight colonnade overlapping 
the Sidewalk. This type is conventional for Retail use. The Gallery shall be 
no less than 10 feet wide (clear) and should overlap the Sidewalk to within 
2 feet of the Curb.

h. Arcade: a colonnade supporting habitable space that overlaps the Sidewalk, 
while the Facade at Sidewalk level remains at or behind the Frontage Line.  
This type is conventional for Retail use. The Arcade shall be no less than 
12 feet wide (clear) and should overlap the Sidewalk to within 2 feet of the 
Curb. See Table 8.

OS
nG
nM
VC
uC
OS
nG
nM
VC
uC

OS
nG
nM
VC
uC
OS
nG
nM
VC
uC

OS
nM
VC
uC

nM
VC
uC

nM
VC
uC

VC
uC

TABLE 7. PRiVATE FROnTAGES 
TABLE 7: Private Frontages.  The Private Frontage is the area between the building Facade and the Lot line. Note that buildings in B-Grid 

Zones reflect automobile-oriented standards with parking permitted in front and larger building setbacks.

- Page 226 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District 
Sustainable Development Plan

10 May 2011 Table Page 29

 
nG nM VC uC

VC uC

 

3-7

2

1

3-4

2

1

Max. number 

of stories

Max. number 

of stories

Max. number 

of stories

R.O.W.LotR.O.W.Lot

R.O.W.Lot

Max. number of 
stories

6-15

5

4 

3 

2 

1 

R.O.W.Lot

Max. number of 
stories

R.O.W.Lot

14 - 20

13

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4 

3 

2 

1 

Arcade max.

Arcade max.

Stepbacks/Arcade/Gallery Heights. The diagrams below show Arcade and Gallery Frontages. Diagrams above apply to all other 

Frontages.

TABLE 8. BuiLDinG COnFiGuRATiOn
TABLE 8: Building Configuration.  This table shows the Configurations for different building heights for each Sustainable Zone.       
Maximum number of stories specified in Table 14k. Regardless of the number of stories, maximum height of a multi-story building 
shall not exceed 400 feet.

5-15

3

2

1

Gallery max.

uC

14-20* 

13

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4 

3 

2 

1 

Max. number of 
stories

R.O.W.Lot

Max. number of 
stories

R.O.W.Lot

Gallery max.

VC

6-15

5

4 

3 

2 

1 

R.O.W.Lot

Max. number 

of stories

VC uC R.O.W.Lot
B-GRID

See above for number 

of stories

Parking permitted in 

front of buildings

14-20*

13

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4 

3 

2 

1 

OS

2

1

R.O.W.Lot

Max. number 

of stories

* UC not in excess of 20 stories without specific site plan review and approval by Council.

- Page 227 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District 
Sustainable Development Plan

10 May 2011 Table Page 30

a. Edgeyard - A-Grid:  A building that occupies the center of its Lot with Setbacks on all sides. 
The front yard is visually continuous with the yards of adjacent buildings. The rear yard can be 
secured for privacy by fences and a well-placed Backbuilding and/or Outbuilding. 

   Edgeyard - B-Grid (VC & uC Zones):  A building that occupies the center of its Lot with Setbacks 
on all sides. The front Layer side and rear yards may be used for parking. This is the least urban 
of types as the building Facade sets back from the Frontage. The rear yard can be used for truck 
access and may secured for privacy by fences.

b. Sideyard: A building that occupies one side of the Lot with the Setback to the other side.  A 
shallow Frontage Setback defines a more urban condition. If the adjacent building is similar with 
a blank side wall, the yard can be quite private. This type permits systematic climatic orientation 
in response to the sun or the breeze. 

nG
nM

c. Rearyard: A building that occupies the full Frontage, leaving the rear of the Lot as the sole yard 
for residential and as building, sole yard or structured parking for other uses. This is a very urban 
type as the continuous Facade steadily defines the public Thoroughfare. The rear Elevations 
may be articulated for functional purposes. In its Residential form, this type is the Townhouse. 
For its Commercial form, the rear yard can accommodate substantial parking. 

nG
nM
VC

d. Courtyard: A building that occupies the boundaries of its Lot while internally defining one or 
more private spaces. This is the most urban of types, as it is able to shield the private realm from 
all sides while strongly defining the public Thoroughfare. Because of its ability to accommodate 
incompatible activities, masking them from all sides. 

nM
VC

TABLE 9. BuiLDinG DiSPOSiTiOn
TABLE 9:  Building Disposition.  This table depicts the location of the structure relative to the boundaries of each individual Lot, establishing suitable 

basic building types for each Sustainable Zone. 

uC

uC

nG
OS

nM
VC

VC

uC

- Page 228 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District 
Sustainable Development Plan

10 May 2011 Table Page 31

 OS nM VC  uC
a. RESiDEnTiAL  Residential: The number of single family 

dwellings on each Lot is restricted to one 
within a Principal Building and one within an 
Accessory Building. Both dwellings shall be 
under single ownership. The habitable area 
of the Accessory Unit shall not exceed 800 sf, 
excluding the enclosed parking area. See 
Table 11A for required parking. 

 Residential: The number of dwellings on 
each Lot is calculated by the minimum 
requirement of parking places for each 
dwelling, a ratio which may be reduced 
according to the shared parking standards 
(See Table 11). See Table 11A for required 
parking.

 Residential: The number of dwellings on 
each Lot is calculated by the minimum 
requirement of 1.0 parking places per dwell-
ing, a ratio which may be reduced according 
to the shared parking standards (See Table 
11). Parking requirements may be satisfied 
off-site per Section 5.7. Parking is calculated 
by the minimum requirement of 0.75 parking 
places per dwelling for Independent Living.

b. LODGinG  Lodging: The number of bedrooms available 
on each Lot for lodging is calculated by the 
requirement of 1.0 assigned parking place 
for each bedroom, up to five, in addition to 
the parking requirement for the dwelling. 
Food service may be provided in the a.m. 
Not applicable for OS.

 Lodging: The number of bedrooms avail-
able on each Lot for lodging is calculated by 
the minimum requirement of 1.0 assigned 
parking places for each bedroom, up to 
twelve, in addition to the parking require-
ment for the dwelling. Food service may 
be provided at all times.  

 Lodging: The number of bedrooms available 
on each Lot for lodging is calculated by the 
minimum requirement of 0.5 assigned parking 
places for each bedroom. Food service may 
be provided at all times. The area allocated for 
food service shall be calculated and provided 
with parking according to Retail Function. 
Parking requirements may be satisfied off-site 
per Section 5.7.

c. OFFiCE
/ MAnuFACTuRinG

 Office/Manufacturing: The building area 
available for office use on each Lot is 
restricted to the first Story of the Principal or 
the Accessory Building and by the minimum 
requirement of 3.0 assigned parking places 
per 1000 square feet of gross office space in 
addition to the parking requirement for any 
dwellings. The specific use shall be further 
limited to 8,000 SF for any single tenant 
use.  Not applicable for OS.

 Office/Manufacturing: The building 
area available for office may include the  
Accessory building, and by the minimum 
requirement of 3.0 assigned parking places 
per 1000 square feet of gross office space 
in addition to any parking requirement for 
other uses.

 Office/Manufacturing: The building area 
available for office use on each Lot is cal-
culated by the minimum requirement of 1.6 
assigned parking places per 1000 square feet 
of gross office space. Parking requirements 
may be satisfied off-site per Section 5.7.

d. RETAiL  Retail: The building area available for Retail 
use is calculated by the minimum require-
ment of 3.0 assigned parking places per 
1000 square feet of gross Retail space in 
addition to the parking requirement of any 
dwellings. The specific use shall be further 
limited to 8,000 SF for any single tenant use, 
or food service seating no more than 100.

 Retail: The building area available for 
Retail use is calculated by the minimum 
requirement of 3.0 assigned parking places 
per 1000 square feet of gross Retail space 
in addition to any parking requirement for 
other uses. The specific use shall be further 
limited by Table 12 to include, but not be 
limited to  neighborhood stores, or food 
service seating no more than 120.

 Retail:  The building area available for 
Retail use is calculated by the minimum 
requirement of 2.5 assigned parking places 
per 1000 square feet of gross Retail space. 
Retail spaces under 1500 square feet are 
exempt from parking requirements. Parking 
requirements may be satisfied off-site per 
Section 5.7.

e. CiViC See Table 12 See Table 12 See Table 12

f. OTHER See Table 12 See Table 12 See Table 12

REQuiRED PARkinG (See Table 10)

 OS nM VC  uC
RESiDEnTiAL See Table 11A See Table 11A 1.0 / dwelling

LODGinG 1.0 / bedroom 1.0 / bedroom 0.5 / bedroom

OFFiCE 3.0 / 1000 sq. ft. 3.0 / 1000 sq. ft. 1.6 / 1000 sq. ft.

RETAiL 3.0 / 1000 sq. ft. 3.0 / 1000 sq. ft. 2.5 / 1000 sq. ft.

CiViC Determined by the Planning Director or Planning Director’s designee

OTHER Determined by the Planning Director or Planning Director’s designee

SHARED PARkinG FACTOR 

Function with Function

RESiDEnTiAL RESiDEnTiAL

LODGinG LODGinG

OFFiCE OFFiCE

RETAiL RETAiL1.4 
1.1

1.2 1.7  
1.3  

1.2

1.1
1.4 

1.2

1

1

1

1

1.7  
1.3  

1.2

TABLES 10 & 11. BuiLDinG FunCTiOn & PARkinG CALCuLATiOnS
TABLE 10:  Building Function.  This table categorizes Building Functions within Sustainable Zones. Parking requirements are correlated to functional intensity.  For 
Specific Function and Use permitted By Right or by Administrative Approval, see Table 12. The Commercial Function of a Live-Work unit may be anywhere in the unit. It 
may be occupied by a business operator who lives in the same structure that contains the Commercial activity or industry.

TABLE 11:  Parking Calculations. The Shared Parking Factor for two Functions, when divided into the sum of the two amounts as listed on the 

Required Parking table below, produces the Effective Parking needed for each site involved in sharing. Conversely, if the Sharing Factor is used as a 

multiplier, it indicates the amount of building allowed on each site given the parking available. Within the overlay area of a Transit Oriented Development 

(TOD) the Effective Parking may be further adjusted downward by 30%.

nG

nG

- Page 229 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District 
Sustainable Development Plan

10 May 2011 Table Page 32

Single Family Residential Building Types.  This parking diagram illustrates the parking locations for on and off street parking for the various residential building 
types within the Neighborhood General and Neighborhood Mixed-Use Zones. Parking is calculated by the minimum requirement of 0.75 parking places per dwelling for 
Independent Living.

TABLE 11A. PARkinG

Courtyard House:
a courtyard building type
which surrounds one or
more private yards. This
is a functionally flexible
type as it is able to shield 
the private open space
from a public realm of
great intensity.

Required Parking:
2 Off-Street

Table 11 Shared Parking 
Factor does not apply to 
this use.

Sideyard House:
a sideyard building type.
A single-family dwelling
which occupies one
side of the lot, with the
primary yard to the other
side, shared with ancillary 
building in the rear yard.

Required Parking:
2 Off-Street 

Required Parking:
2 Off-Street

Table 11 Shared Parking 
Factor does not apply to 
this use.

Detached House:
an edge yard building
type. A single-family
dwelling on small to 
large lots, shared with an 
accessory building in the 
rear yard. 

Required Parking:
2 Off-Street 

Required Parking:
2 Off-Street

Table 11 Shared Parking 
Factor does not apply to 
this use.

Detached House:
an edge yard building
type. A single-family
dwelling on medium to 
large lots, shared with an 
accessory building in the 
rear yard and front or side 
driveway where alley is
not available (atypical
condition).

Required Parking:
2 Off-Street 

Required Parking:
2 Off-Street

Table 11 Shared Parking 
Factor does not apply to 
this use.

Townhouse:
a rear yard building type.
A single family dwelling
with common walls
on the side lot lines,
the facades forming a
continuous frontage
line. Rowhouses are the
highest density type able
to provide private yards..

Required Parking:
2 Off-Street 

Required Parking:
2 Off-Street

Table 11 Shared Parking 
Factor does not apply to 
this use.

L A N E

L A N E

L A N E  O R  A L L E Y

L A N E  O R  A L L E Y

L A N E

L A N E

L A N E

L A N E

Rear Loaded (Typical) Front Loaded (Atypical)

A
ct

iv
e

A
ct

iv
e

P
a

ss
iv

e
P

a
ss

iv
e

Rear Loaded (Typical) Front Loaded (Atypical)

S T R E E T S T R E E T

S T R E E T S T R E E T

S T R E E TS T R E E T

S T R E E T

S T R E E T

S T R E E T S T R E E T

Courtyard House TownhouseSideyard HouseDetached House Detached House

nGnG nG

nGnG nG nG

nM nMnMnM nM

nMnMnM nM nM

nG

- Page 230 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District 
Sustainable Development Plan

10 May 2011 Table Page 33

TABLE 11A. PARkinG

Townhome and Multi-Family Residential Building Types.  This parking diagram illustrates the parking locations for on and off street parking for the various 
residential building types within the Neighborhood General and Neighborhood Mixed-Use Zones. Parking is calculated by the minimum requirement of 0.75 parking places 
per dwelling for Independent Living.

Live-Work:
a rear yard, fully mixed 
use building type with 
one dwelling above or 
behind a commercial 
space.

Required Parking:
2 Off-Street 
1 On-Street

Required Parking:
2 Off-Street 
1 On-Street
Table 11 Shared Parking 
Factor does not apply to 
this use.

Multi-Family or Apartment:
a rear yard residential building type accommodating 
multiple dwellings disposed above and beside each 
other, with individual or sharing entries. Parking may 
be on the surface, structured or underground.

Required Parking:
1.25 Parking Spaces per Unit 

Mixed Use Building or Mixed Use Block:
a rear yard, flexible commercial building type with 
residential uses above. Commercial buildings may 
have floor plates deeper than residential ones.

Required Parking (Residential):
1.50 Off-Street Spaces per Unit

Required Parking (Residential):
1.25 Off-Street Spaces per Unit

L A N E  O R  A L L E Y L A N E  O R  A L L E YL A N E  O R  A L L E Y

L A N E  O R  A L L E Y

A L L E Y

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

L A N E  O R  A L L E Y

S T R E E T

S T R E E T

S T R E E T

S T R E E T S T R E E TS T R E E T

Live-Work Multi-Family 
or Apartment

Mixed Use

nG nG

nM nM nM

nMnM nM

nG nG

- Page 231 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District 
Sustainable Development Plan

10 May 2011 Table Page 34

TABLE 12. SPECiFiC FunCTiOn & uSE
TABLE 12: Specific Function & Use. This table expands the categories of Table 10 to delegate specific Functions and uses within Sustainable Zones. 
Table 12 has been customized for local character and requirements. The Sustainable Development District provides for the following uses to be 

permitted within the Sustainable Zones. 

Permitted (P): The permitted uses for the District

Permitted (b): The permitted uses for the District on B-Grid Thoroughfares and within B-Grid Zones only

SUSTAINABLE ZONE OS NG NM VC UC SZ

a. RESIDENTIAL
 Accessory Unit or Building  P P P
 Condominium   P P P 
 Congregate living facility *   P P P
 Duplex  P P
 Family care home *  P P
 Farm residence P P P 
 Historic Site, Adaptive Use P P P P P
 Independent living  P P P P   

Multi-family or apartment   P P P
 Nursing or convalescent facility *   P P P
 Single-family  P P P
 Townhouse  P P P P
 Townhouse, detached  P   
 Triplexes or quadplexes   P P
 Live-Work  P P P P
 Modular Construction  P P P P
 Mixed Use Block  P P P P P

b. PUBLIC/CIVIC USES
 Ambulatory healthcare facility    P P P
 Amphitheater ** P P P P P P
 Assembly hall, nonprofit   P P P P
 Church, or place of worship  P P P P P 

Cemetery P P P P P 
 Day care facility  P P P P
 Government service  P P P P P
 Heliport or helipad P  P P P  

Hospital    P P P
 Natatorium ** P  P P P P
 Restrooms P P P P P P
 Picnic Shelter ** P P P P P P
 School, public or private **  P P P P P
 Transportation facility    P P P
 Veterinary clinic or hospital   P P P
       P

c. UTILITIES
 Communication tower, 
 (Commercial; Stealth) P P P P P
 Communication or water tower 
 Integrated Into building or structure
 (Camouflage Stealth) P P P P P P
 Utility, Minor P   P P P
 Power facility P   P P P
 Renewable Energy Facilities P P P P P P

d. RECREATIONAL USES
 Arena, auditorium, or stadium ** P   P P P
 Entertainment, indoor **    P P P
 Entertainment, outdoor ** P  P P P P
 Greenway P P P P P P
 Horse boarding and riding stable ** P
 Park, active P P P P P P
 Park, passive P P P P P P
 Recreation facility, private P P P P P P

e. COMMUNICATIONS
 Broadcast station (radio and television)    b P P
 Radio and television recording studio    b P P

- Page 232 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District 
Sustainable Development Plan

10 May 2011 Table Page 35

f. FOOD AND BEVERAGE SERVICE
 Concessions P  P P P P
 Restaurant, drive-through    P b P
 Restaurant, general P  P P P P
 Bar or nightclub   P P P P

g. OFFICE LAB AND RESEARCH
 Dispatching office    P P P
 Historic site – adaptive use P P P P P P
 Medical or dental clinic or office   P P P P
 Medical or dental laboratory    P P P
 Office, business or professional   P P P P
 Publishing office   P P P P
 Research facility    P P P

h. PARKING, COMMERCIAL
 Parking Garage (deck), commercial   P P P P
 Parking Garage (deck) private   P P P P
 Parking lot, commercial    P P P
 Parking lot, surface P P P P P P

i. LODGING
 Bed and breakfast (up to 5 rooms)  P P P P P
 Bed and breakfast (up to 12 rooms)   P P P P
 Hotel or motel   P P P P
 Conference Center    P P P
 Convention Center     P P
 School Dormitory    P P P

j. RETAIL SALES AND SERVICE
 Barber and beauty shop  P P P P P
 Bookstore  P P P P P
 Building Supplies, Retail    b b P
 Convenience store   P P P P
 Convenience store with gas sales   P P P P
 Dry cleaners and laundry service  P P P P P
 Farmer’s market P P P P P P
 Financial institution   P P P P
 Floral shop  P P P P P
 Funeral home   P P P P
 Gas and fuel, retail    P P P
 Greenhouse or nursery, retail   P P P P
 Grocery, general    P P P
 Grocery, specialty  P P P P P
 Health/fitness center or spa   P P P P
 Kennel, indoor    P P P
 Laundromat   P P P P
 Newsstand or gift shop  P P P P P
 Personal service   P P P P
 Pharmacy   P P P P
 Printing and copying service   P P P P
 Real estate sales  P P P P P
 Retail Kiosk P  P P P P 
 Retail sales, bulky goods    b b P
 Retail sales, general  P P P P P
 Studio for art  P P P P P
 Tailor shop  P P P P P
 Theater    P P P
 Shopping Center    P P P

k. VEHICLE REPAIR AND SERVICE
 Automotive paint or body shop      P
 Automotive parts    P P P
 Automotive service station    P P P
 Car wash or auto detailing    P P P
 Repair services limited    P P P
 Vehicle inspection center    P P P

SUSTAINABLE ZONE OS NG NM VC UC SZ

TABLE 12. SPECiFiC FunCTiOn & uSE

- Page 233 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District 
Sustainable Development Plan

10 May 2011 Table Page 36

SUSTAINABLE ZONE OS NG NM VC UC SZ

l. INDUSTRY, MANUFACTURING, STORAGE
 Biotechnology and Medical Devices    P P P
 Information Technology and High 
 Performance Computing    P P P
 Manufacturing    P P P 
 Nanotechnology and Advanced Materials    P P P
 Retail Storage within Retail spaces  P P P P P
 Smart Power and Green Technology P   P P P
 Self-service storage   P P P P
 Warehousing    b b P
 
m. FOOD PRODUCTION (SEE TABLE 19)
 Farm P     P
 Agricultural plots P P    P
 Vegetable gardens  P P P P P
 Urban farms P P P P  P
 Community gardens P P P P P P
 Green roofs  P P P P P
 Vertical farms   P P P P 

 
 If an application is submitted for a use type that is not permitted by Table 12 in one or more of the Sustainable Zones and the use type is not 

one prohibited by the UDO, the Planning Director shall be authorized to make a similar use interpretation based on the use categories Listed 
in Table 12.  If the Planning Director determines that the proposed use does not fit any of the use categories, no similar use interpretation shall 
be made and the use shall not be permitted.

 Any land uses not specially dealt with in this Table but otherwise permitted by the UDO and not excluded by any provision of this SD Plan 
are subject to a similar use interpretation by the Planning Director and if found to be similar to a use permitted by this Table shall be allowed 
within all sustainable zones in which the similar use is allowed.

*  For the purposes of density and parking, dwelling rooms shall be treated as 0.2 dwelling units with parking per the multi-family 
requirements.

** The building and any portion of the lot routinely accessible to the public shall be included in the acreage designated pursuant to SD Plan 
3.1.3.c.

TABLE 12. SPECiFiC FunCTiOn & uSE

- Page 234 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District 
Sustainable Development Plan

10 May 2011 Table Page 37

a. Park:  A natural preserve available for unstructured recreation or a park for active recreation. A 
park may be independent of surrounding building Frontages. Its landscape shall consist of Paths 
and trails, meadows, waterbodies, woodland and open shelters, all naturalistically disposed. 
Parks may be lineal, following the trajectories of natural corridors. 

b. Green:  An Open Space, available for unstructured recreation. A Green may be spatially defined 
by landscaping rather than building Frontages. Its landscape shall consist of lawn and trees, natu-
ralistically disposed. The minimum size shall be 1/4 acre and the maximum shall be 8 acres. 

c. Square:  An Open Space available for unstructured recreation and Civic purposes. A Square 
is spatially defined by building Frontages. Its landscape shall consist of paths, lawns and trees, 
formally disposed. Squares shall be located at the intersection of important Thoroughfares. The 
minimum size shall be 1/2 acre and the maximum shall be 5 acres. 

d. Plaza:  A public or private Open Space available for Civic purposes and Commercial activities. 
A Plaza shall be spatially defined by building Frontages. Its landscape shall consist primarily of 
pavement. Trees are optional. Plazas should be located at the intersection of important streets. 
The minimum size shall be 1/8 acre and the maximum shall be 2 acres. 

e. Playground:  An Open Space designed and equipped for the recreation of children.  A playground 
may be fenced and may include an open shelter. Playgrounds shall be interspersed within 
Residential areas and may be placed within a Block. Playgrounds may be included within Parks 
and Greens. There shall be no minimum or maximum size.

Dog Parks: An Open Space designed as a safe place where dogs may play and get exercise 
while not on a leash. Dog Parks shall be fenced and may be interspersed within Residential 
areas. They may be placed within a Block or included within Parks and Greens. There shall be 
no minimum or maximum size.

OS

nM

nG
nM
VC

VC
uC

nM
VC
uC

OS
nG
nM
VC
uC

TABLE 13. CiViC SPACE 

nG

VC
uC

- Page 235 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District 
Sustainable Development Plan

10 May 2011 Table Page 38

OS   

OPEn SPACE 
ZOnE nG   

nEiGHBORHOOD 
GEnERAL ZOnE nM      

nEiGHBORHOOD 
MiXED-uSE ZOnE VC  

ViLLAGE CEnTER 
 ZOnE uC  

uRBAn CORE 
 ZOnE
          

a.  ALLOCATiOn OF ZOnES
Minimum Acres not applicable 75 acres 50 acres 215 acres 135 acres

Min Acres for non-Residential variable 3 acres 7 acres 120 acres 75 acres

b.  DEnSiTY (see Sustainable Development Concept Map 
By Right - DuA not applicable 20 units / ac. gross 40 units / ac. gross 80 units / ac. gross 100 units / ac. gross

By Right - Other uses - FAR permitted 2.00 / ac. gross 4.00 / ac. gross 6.00 / ac. gross 12.00 / ac. gross

Maximum impermeable Surface 30% 65% 75% 90% 100%

c. BLOCk SiZE   

Block Perimeter: A-Grids no maximum 3000 ft. max 2400 ft. max 2000 ft. max * 2000 ft. max *

Block Perimeter: B-Grids not applicable not applicable not applicable 10000 ft. max 6000 ft. max

d. THOROuGHFARES   (see Table 3 and Table 4)
Highway (HW) permitted permitted not permitted not permitted not permitted

Boulevard (BV) not permitted not permitted not permitted permitted permitted

Avenue (AV) not permitted permitted permitted permitted permitted

Commercial Street (CS) not permitted not permitted not permitted permitted permitted

Drive (DR) not permitted permitted permitted permitted permitted

Street (ST) permitted permitted permitted permitted not permitted

Road (RD) permitted permitted not permitted not permitted not permitted

Rear Lane (RL) permitted permitted permitted not permitted not permitted

Rear Alley (RA) not permitted permitted required required required

Path (PT) permitted permitted permitted not permitted not permitted

Passage (PS) not permitted permitted permitted permitted permitted

Bicycle Trail (BT) permitted permitted not permitted  * not permitted * not permitted *

Bicycle Lane (BL) permitted permitted permitted permitted permitted

Bicycle Route (BR) permitted permitted permitted permitted permitted

e. CiViC SPACES   (see Table 13) * permitted within Open Spaces

Park permitted permitted permitted permitted permitted

Green not permitted permitted permitted permitted permitted

Square not permitted not permitted permitted permitted permitted

Plaza not permitted not permitted not permitted permitted permitted

Playground permitted permitted permitted permitted permitted

f. LOT OCCuPATiOn
Lot Width: A-Grids variable 25 ft. min 120 ft. max 18 ft. min 400 ft. max 18 ft. min 600 ft. max 18 ft. min 700 ft. max 

Di
SP

OS
iT

iO
n

Lot Width: B-Grids not applicable not applicable not applicable no max no max

g. SETBACkS - PRinCiPAL BuiLDinG (see Table 15)
(g.1) Front Setback (Principal) 10 ft. min 15 ft. min 6 ft. min 0 ft. min 0 ft. min 

(g.2) Front Setback (Secondary) 5 ft. min 12 ft. min 6 ft. min 0 ft. min 0 ft. min 

(g.3) Side Setback 5 ft. min 0 ft. min. 0 ft. min 0 ft. min 0 ft. min

(g.4) Rear  Setback 5 ft. min 12 ft. min 3 ft. min   3 ft. min   0 ft. min

h. SETBACkS - OuTBuiLDinG (see Table 15)
(h.1) Front Setback not applicable 20 ft. min +bldg setback 20 ft. min +bldg setback 40 ft. max from rear prop not applicable

(h.2) Side Setback not applicable 0 ft. or 3 ft. min 0 ft. or 3 ft. min 0 ft. min not applicable

(h.3) Rear  Setback not applicable 3 ft. min 3 ft. min 3 ft. min not applicable

i. BuiLDinG DiSPOSiTiOn (see Table 9)
Edgeyard permitted permitted permitted permitted permitted

Sideyard not permitted permitted permitted permitted not permitted

Rearyard not permitted permitted permitted permitted permitted

Courtyard not permitted not permitted permitted permitted permitted

j. PRiVATE FROnTAGES (see Table 7)
Common Yard permitted permitted permitted permitted permitted

CO
nF

iG
uR

AT
iO

n

Porch & Fence permitted permitted permitted permitted permitted

Terrace or Lightwell not permitted not permitted permitted permitted permitted

Forecourt permitted not permitted permitted permitted permitted

Stoop permitted permitted permitted permitted permitted

Shopfront permitted permitted permitted permitted permitted

Gallery not permitted permitted permitted permitted permitted

Arcade not permitted not permitted permitted permitted permitted

k. BuiLDinG COnFiGuRATiOn (see Table 8)
Principal Building 1 to 2 Stories 4 Stories max 7 Stories max, 1 min 15 Stories, Note 2, 1 min 20 Stories, Note 1, 1 min

Outbuilding not applicable 2 Stories max 2 Stories max 2 Stories max not applicable

ARTiCLE 5
ARTiCLE 2, 3, 4 

TABLE 14. FORM-BASED CODE SuMMARY

LO
T

ZO
nE

* 3500 ft max with parking structures

Note 1: Not in excess of 20 stories without specific site plan review and approval by Town Council.
Note 2: Not in excess of 15 stories without specific site plan review and approval by Town Council.
Note 3: Accessory Structures shall be treated as Principal Buildings.

- Page 236 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District 
Sustainable Development Plan

10 May 2011 Table Page 39

(see Table 1)

k. BuiLDinG COnFiGuRATiOn (see Table 8) 

Principal Building 2 stories max.

Outbuilding not applicable.

f. LOT OCCuPATiOn  (see Table 14f)

Lot Width variable

i. BuiLDinG DiSPOSiTiOn (see Table 9)

Edgeyard permitted

Sideyard not permitted

Rearyard not permitted

Courtyard not permitted

g. SETBACkS - PRinCiPAL BuiLDinG (see Table 14g)

(g.1) Front Setback Principal 10 ft. min

(g.2) Front Setback Secondary 5 ft. min

(g.3) Side Setback 5 ft. min

(g.4) Rear Setback 5 ft. min

h. SETBACkS - OuTBuiLDinG (see Table 14h)

(h.1) Front Setback not applicable

(h.2) Side Setback not applicable

(h.3) Rear Setback not applicable

j. PRiVATE FROnTAGES (see Table 7)

Common Lawn permitted

Porch permitted

Terrace or Lightwell. not permitted

Forecourt permitted

Stoop permitted

Shopfront permitted

Gallery not permitted

Arcade not permitted

Refer to Summary Table 14

PARkinG PROViSiOnS
See Table 10 & Table 11

 *or 15 ft. from center line of alley

 ”N” stands for any Stories above those shown, up to 
the maximum. Refer to metrics for exact minimums 
and maximums

BUILDING CONFIGURATION
1. Stories exclude Attics and raised 

basements.

SETBACKS - PRINCIPAL BLDG
1. The Facades and Elevations 

of Principal Buildings shall be 
distanced from the Lot lines 
as shown. 

2. Facades shall be built along the 
Principal Frontage.

3. Accessory Structures shall be 
treated as Principal Buildings.

SETBACKS -  OUTBUILDING
1. Not applicable

PARKING PLACEMENT
1. Uncovered parking spaces 

may be provided within the 
second and third Layer as 
shown in the diagram (see 
Table 17d). 

2. Covered parking shall be 
provided within the second 
or third Layer as shown in the 
diagram (see Table 17d). .

3. Trash containers shall be 
stored within the third Layer.

(g.1)

(g.2)

(g.3)

(g.4) Corner Lot

Condition

Mid-Block

Condition

(g.4)(g.1)

Secondary Frontage

P
rin

ci
pa

l F
ro

nt
ag

e

TABLE 15A. FORM-BASED CODE GRAPHiCS - OS - OPEn SPACE

2nd 
Layer

1st
Layer

3rd 
Layer

20 ft

2 

1 

Vinyl Siding Notes:
1. Vinyl exterior material may be used in areas not in 

view of the public, such as service areas.
2. Elements such as vinyl trim, vinyl windows, 

decorative vents, and the like are permitted.

OS

- Page 237 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District 
Sustainable Development Plan

10 May 2011 Table Page 40

nG

(see Table 1)

k. BuiLDinG COnFiGuRATiOn (see Table 8) 

Principal Building 4 stories max.

Outbuilding 2 stories max.

f. LOT OCCuPATiOn  (see Table 14f)

Lot Width (Note 1) 25 ft. min 120 ft. max

i. BuiLDinG DiSPOSiTiOn (see Table 9)

Edgeyard permitted

Sideyard permitted

Rearyard permitted

Courtyard not permitted

g. SETBACkS - PRinCiPAL BuiLDinG (see Table 14g)

(g.1) Front Setback Principal 15 ft. min

(g.2) Front Setback Secondary 12 ft min.

(g.3) Side Setback 0 ft min.

(g.4) Rear Setback 12 ft min.

h. SETBACkS - OuTBuiLDinG (see Table 14h)

(h.1) Front Setback 20 ft. min. + bldg setback

(h.2) Side Setback 0 ft. or 3 ft at corner

(h.3) Rear Setback 3 ft. min

j. PRiVATE FROnTAGES (see Table 7)

Common Lawn permitted

Porch permitted

Terrace or Lightwell. not permitted

Forecourt not permitted

Stoop permitted

Shopfront permitted

Gallery permitted

Arcade not permitted

Refer to Summary Table 14

PARkinG PROViSiOnS
See Table 10 & Table 11

 *or 15 ft. from center line of alley

 ”N” stands for any Stories above those shown, up to 
the maximum. Refer to metrics for exact minimums 
and maximums

BUILDING CONFIGURATION
1. Stories exclude Attics and raised 

basements.

SETBACKS - PRINCIPAL BLDG
1. The Facades and Elevations 

of Principal Buildings shall be 
distanced from the Lot lines 
as shown. 

2. Facades shall be built along the 
Principal Frontage

SETBACKS -  OUTBUILDING
1. The Elevation of the Outbuilding 

shall be distanced from the Lot 
lines as shown.

PARKING PLACEMENT
1. Uncovered parking spaces 

may be provided within the 
second and third Layer as 
shown in the diagram (see 
Table 17d). 

2. Covered parking shall be 
provided within the second 
or third Layer as shown 
in the diagram (see Table 
17d). Side-entry garages 
are permitted on corner lots 
and front-entry garages may 
be allowed.

3. Trash containers shall be 
stored within the third Layer.

(g.1)

(g.2)

(g.3)

(g.4) Corner Lot

Condition

Mid-Block

Condition

Corner Lot

Condition

Mid-Block

Condition(h.2)

(h.3)
(h.1)

(h.2)

(g.4)(g.1)

(h.1) (h.3)

Secondary Frontage

P
rin

ci
pa

l F
ro

nt
ag

e

TABLE 15B. FORM-BASED CODE GRAPHiCS - nG - nEiGHBORHOOD GEnERAL

2nd 
Layer

1st
Layer

3rd 
Layer

20 ft

1 

2
2 

1 

N 

Note 1: Lot width reductions to 20’ for single family 
and 18’ for townhomes require specific site plan review 
and approval by Town Council. 

Vinyl Siding Notes:
1. Vinyl siding is not permitted on single family homes 

and Townhouses except as permitted in vinyl siding 
note 3 below.

2. Vinyl exterior material may be used above the second 
story of an apartment, condominium or Mixed Use 
buildings and in areas not in view of the public, 
such as service areas.

3. Elements such as vinyl trim, vinyl windows, 
decorative vents, and the like are permitted.

- Page 238 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District 
Sustainable Development Plan

10 May 2011 Table Page 41

BUILDING CONFIGURATION
1. Stories exclude Attics and raised 

basements.

SETBACKS - PRINCIPAL BLDG
1. The Facades and Elevations 

of Principal Buildings shall be 
distanced from the Lot lines 
as shown. 

2. Facades shall be built along 
the Principal Frontage.

SETBACKS -  OUTBUILDING
1. The Elevations of the Out-

building shall be distanced 
from the Lot lines as shown.

PARKING PLACEMENT
1. Uncovered parking spaces 

may be provided within the 
third Layer as shown in the 
diagram (see Table 17d). 

2. Covered parking shall be 
provided within the third Layer 
as shown in the diagram (see 
Table 17d). 

3. Trash containers shall be 
stored within the third Layer.

nM

(see Table 1)

k. BuiLDinG COnFiGuRATiOn (see Table 8) 

Principal Building 7 stories max, 1 min

Outbuilding 2 stories max.

f. LOT OCCuPATiOn  (see Table 14f)

Lot Width 18 ft min 400 ft max

i. BuiLDinG DiSPOSiTiOn (see Table 9)

Edgeyard permitted

Sideyard permitted

Rearyard permitted

Courtyard permitted

g. SETBACkS - PRinCiPAL BuiLDinG (see Table 14g)

(g.1) Front Setback Principal 6 ft. min.

(g.2) Front Setback Secondary 6 ft. min.

(g.3) Side Setback 0 ft. min.

(g.4) Rear Setback 3 ft. min.*

h. SETBACkS - OuTBuiLDinG (see Table 14h)

(h.1) Front Setback 20 ft. min. + bldg. setback

(h.2) Side Setback 0 ft. min. or 3 ft at corner

(h.3) Rear Setback 3 ft. min

j. PRiVATE FROnTAGES (see Table 7)

Common Lawn permitted

Porch & Fence permitted

Terrace or Lightwell. permitted

Forecourt permitted

Stoop permitted

Shopfront permitted

Gallery permitted

Arcade permitted

Refer to Summary Table 14

PARkinG PROViSiOnS
See Table 10 & Table 11

 *or 15 ft. from center line of alley

 “N” stands for any Stories above those shown, up to 
the maximum. Refer to metrics for exact minimums 
and maximums

Corner Lot

Condition

Mid-Block

Condition

1 

2
2 

1 

N 

Corner Lot
Condition

Mid-Block 
Condition

2nd 
Layer

1st
Layer

3rd 
Layer

Secondary Frontage

P
rin

ci
pa

l F
ro

nt
ag

e

Max. height

Max. height

TABLE 15C. FORM-BASED CODE GRAPHiCS - nM - nEiGHBORHOOD MiXED-uSE

(g.1)

(g.1)

(g.2)

(g.3)

(g.4)

(h.2)

(h.3)(h.1)

(h.2)

(g.4)

(h.1) (h.3)

20 ft

Vinyl Siding Notes:
1. Vinyl siding is not permitted on single family homes 

and Townhouses except as permitted in vinyl siding 
note 3 below.

2. Vinyl exterior material may be used above the second 
story of an apartment, condominium or Mixed Use 
buildings and in areas not in view of the public, 
such as service areas.

3. Elements such as vinyl trim, vinyl windows, 
decorative vents, and the like are permitted.

- Page 239 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District 
Sustainable Development Plan

10 May 2011 Table Page 42

BUILDING CONFIGURATION
1. Stor ies,  exclude Att ics 

mezzanines and basements.

SETBACKS - PRINCIPAL BLDG

A-GRIDS 
1. The Facades and Elevations 

of Principal Buildings shall be 
distanced from the Lot lines 
as shown. 

2. Facades shall be built along the 
Principal Frontage.

B-GRIDS
1. Multiple Buildings may be 

located on the same Lot.

SETBACKS - OUTBUILDING 
1. The Elevations of the Outbuilding 

shall be distanced from the Lot 
lines as shown.

PARKING PLACEMENT 
A-GRIDS
1. Uncovered parking spaces may 

be provided within the third 
Layer as shown in the diagram 
(see Table 17d). 

2. Covered parking shall be 
provided within the third Layer 
as shown in the diagram (see 
Table 17d) except as noted 
above. 

3. Trash containers shall be stored 
within the third Layer.

B-GRIDS
1. Uncovered parking spaces may 

be provided within any Layer 
as shown in the diagram (see 
Table 17d). 

2. Trash containers shall be stored 
within the third Layer.

VC

(see Table 1)

k. BuiLDinG COnFiGuRATiOn (see Table 8) 

Principal Building 15 stories, Note 2, 1 min.

Outbuilding 2 stories max.

f. LOT OCCuPATiOn  (see Table 14f)

Lot Width: A-Grids 18 ft min 700 ft max

Lot Width: B-Grids no max

i. BuiLDinG DiSPOSiTiOn (see Table 9)

Edgeyard permitted

Sideyard permitted

Rearyard permitted

Courtyard permitted

g. SETBACkS - PRinCiPAL BuiLDinG (see Table 14g)

(g.1) Front Setback Principal 0 ft. min.

(g.2) Front Setback Secondary 0 ft. min.

(g.3) Side Setback 0 ft. min.

(g.4) Rear Setback 3 ft. min.*

h. SETBACkS - OuTBuiLDinG (see Table 14h)

(h.1) Front Setback 40 ft. max. from rear prop.

(h.1) Front Setback 40 ft. max. from rear prop.

(h.2) Side Setback 0 ft. min. or 2 ft at corner

(h.3) Rear Setback 3 ft. max.

j. PRiVATE FROnTAGES (see Table 7)

Common Lawn permitted

Porch permitted

Terrace or Lightwell permitted

Forecourt permitted

Stoop permitted

Shopfront permitted

Gallery permitted

Arcade permitted

Refer to Summary Table 14

PARkinG PROViSiOnS
See Table 10 & Table 11

 *or 15 ft. from center line of alley

 ”N” stands for any Stories above those shown, up to 
the maximum. Refer to metrics for exact minimums 
and maximums.

Note 2: Not in excess of 15 stories without specific site 
plan review and approval by Town Council.

1 

2 
2

1 

3 

N

TABLE 15D. FORM-BASED CODE GRAPHiCS - VC - ViLLAGE CEnTER

P
rin

ci
pa

l F
ro

nt
ag

e

Secondary Frontage

2nd 
Layer

1st
Layer

3rd 
Layer

20 ft

Corner Lot

Condition

Mid-Block

Condition

(g.1)

(g.1)

(g.2)

(g.3)

(g.4)

(g.4)

40 ft. max. 

Corner Lot

Condition

Mid-Block 

Condition

(h.1)

(h.2)

(h.1)

(h.3)

Vinyl Siding Notes:
1. Vinyl siding is not permitted on single family homes 

and Townhouses except as permitted in vinyl siding 
note 3 below.

2. Vinyl exterior material may be used above the second 
story of an apartment, condominium or Mixed Use 
buildings and in areas not in view of the public, 
such as service areas.

3. Elements such as vinyl trim, vinyl windows, 
decorative vents, and the like are permitted.

- Page 240 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District 
Sustainable Development Plan

10 May 2011 Table Page 43

BUILDING CONFIGURATION
1. Stor ies,  exclude Att ics 

mezzanines and basements.

SETBACKS - PRINCIPAL BLDG

A-GRIDS
1. The Facades and Elevations 

of Principal Buildings shall be 
distanced from the Lot lines 
as shown. 

2. Facades shall be built along the 
Principal Frontage.

B-GRIDS
1. Multiple Buildings may be 

located on the same Lot

PARKING PLACEMENT

A-GRIDS 
1. Uncovered parking spaces may 

be provided within the third 
Layer as shown in the diagram 
(see Table 17d).

2. Covered parking shall be pro-
vided within the third Layer as 
shown in the diagram (see Table 

17d) except as noted above. 
3. Trash containers shall be stored 

within the third Layer.

B-GRIDS
1. Uncovered parking spaces may 

be provided within any Layer 
as shown in the diagram (see 
Table 17d). 

2. Trash containers shall be stored 
within the third Layer.

uC

(see Table 1)

k. BuiLDinG COnFiGuRATiOn (see Table 8) 

Principal Building 20 stories, Note 1, 1 min.

Outbuilding N/A

f. LOT OCCuPATiOn  (see Table 14f)

Lot Width: A-Grids 18 ft. min 700 ft. max

Lot Width: B-Grids no max

i. BuiLDinG DiSPOSiTiOn (see Table 9)

Edgeyard permitted

Sideyard not permitted

Rearyard permitted

Courtyard permitted

g. SETBACkS - PRinCiPAL BuiLDinG (see Table 14g)

(g.1) Front Setback Principal 0 ft. min.

(g.2) Front Setback Secondary 0 ft. min.

(g.3) Side Setback 0 ft. min.

(g.4) Rear Setback 0 ft. min.

h. SETBACkS - OuTBuiLDinG (see Table 14h)

Front Setback N/A

Side Setback N/A

Rear Setback N/A

j. PRiVATE FROnTAGES (see Table 7)

Common Lawn permitted

Porch permitted

Terrace or Lightwell permitted

Forecourt permitted

Stoop permitted

Shopfront permitted

Gallery permitted

Arcade permitted

Refer to Summary Table 14

PARkinG PROViSiOnS
See Table 10 & Table 11

 *or 15 ft. from center line of alley

 ”N” stands for any Stories above those shown, up to 
the maximum. Refer to metrics for exact minimums 
and maximums

Note 1: Not in excess of 20 stories without specific site 
plan review and approval by Town Council.

 

Max. 
height

1 

Corner Lot
Condition

Mid-Block 
Condition

Corner Lot
Condition

Mid-Block 
Condition

N 

5 

4 

3 

2 

2nd 
Layer

3rd 
Layer

1st 
Layer

P
rin

ci
pa

l F
ro

nt
ag

e

Secondary Frontage

TABLE 15E. FORM-BASED CODE GRAPHiCS - uC - uRBAn CORE

(g.1)

(g.1)

(g.2)

(g.3)

(g.4)

(g.4)

Vinyl Siding Notes:
1. Vinyl siding is not permitted on single family homes 

and Townhouses except as permitted in vinyl siding 
note 3 below.

2. Vinyl exterior material may be used above the second 
story of an apartment, condominium or Mixed Use 
buildings and in areas not in view of the public, 
such as service areas.

3. Elements such as vinyl trim, vinyl windows, 
decorative vents, and the like are permitted.

- Page 241 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District 
Sustainable Development Plan

10 May 2011 Table Page 44

   

Thoroughfare (R.O.W.)

a. THOROuGHFARE & FROnTAGES

1-Radius at the Curb

2-Effective Turning Radius 

   (± 8 ft added to Curb Radius)

b. TuRninG RADiuS

1-Frontage Line 

2-Lot Line 

3-Facades 

4-Elevations 

e. FROnTAGE & LOT LinES 

1st layer

2nd layer

3rd layer

20
 fe

et

d. LOT LAYERS

1- Principal Building

2- Backbuilding

3- Outbuilding

c. BuiLDinG DiSPOSiTiOn

BuildingPrivate 
Frontage

Public 
Frontage

Vehicular 
Lanes

Public 
Frontage

Private 
Frontage

Building

Private LotPrivate Lot

P
ar

ki
ng

 L
an

e

M
ov

in
g 

La
ne

1

2

1

1

2

33

2
4

3

3

4 4

1

1

3

1

4 4

f. SETBACk DESiGnATiOnS

1

1

1-Front Setback

2-Side Setback

3-Rear Setback

3 3

1

2

2

1s
t l

ay
er

2n
d 

&
 3

rd

 la
ye

r

Principal Frontage

S
ec

on
da

ry
 F

ro
nt

ag
e

TABLE 17. DEFiniTiOnS iLLuSTRATED

- Page 242 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District 
Sustainable Development Plan

10 May 2011 Table Page 45

TABLE 18. SuSTAinABiLiTY - SOLAR EnERGY

OS nG nM VC uC Specifics

Solar Farm

▪ ▪ ▪ ▪

Roof Mounted Solar Panels

▪ ▪ ▪ ▪ ▪

Streetscape Solar Panels

▪ ▪ ▪ ▪ ▪

Streetscape solar panels may be used in place

of street trees

Sustainability - Solar Energy. This table shows opportunities for the placement of types of solar-powered devices within the Sustainable 

Zones. 

- Page 243 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District 
Sustainable Development Plan

10 May 2011 Table Page 46

TABLE 19. SuSTAinABiLiTY - FOOD PRODuCTiOn

OS nG nM VC uC Specific 

Farm

▪

Agricultural Plots

▪ ▪

Vegetable Garden

▪ ▪ ▪ ▪

Urban Farm

▪ ▪ ▪ ▪

Community Garden

▪ ▪ ▪ ▪ ▪

Green Roof

 

                    

    

▪ ▪ ▪ ▪

 

Vertical Farm

▪ ▪ ▪

© Jaime Correa and asso Ciat es 2007  

Sustainability - Food Production. This table shows ways of incorporating types of food production along the Sustainable Zones. 

- Page 244 -



Veridea Sustainable Development District 
Sustainable Development Plan

10 May 2011 Table Page 47

TABLE 20. SuSTAinABiLiTY - COMPOSTinG AnD RECYCLinG

OS nG nM VC uC
On-Site Organics Processing ▪ ▪
Self-Drop Collection Systems

Optional/Competitive Collection ▪
Mandatory Curbside Collection ▪ ▪ ▪

Centralized Composting Systems ▪
Smaller Regional Composting ▪ ▪

On-Site Processing ▪

Re-use Centers ▪ ▪ ▪ ▪
Recycling Processing Centers ▪ ▪ ▪ ▪
Once-used Materials Storage ▪

Transfer Stations ▪ ▪ ▪ ▪
Disposal Facilities Prohibited

 

- Page 245 -



 

{00031979.DOC 8 } 

I. Article 2 / Administration 
 Sec. 2.3 / DEVELOPMENT APPROVALS 
 

2.3.16 Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning District 
 

A) General 

This Section establishes the procedures and standards applicable to the Town’s 
Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning District SD-CZ. 
 
B) General Applicability 

 
Before any development shall be designated as a Sustainable Development 
Conditional Zoning District SD-CZ on the Official Zoning District Map, it shall 
receive approval pursuant to the terms of this Section and Section 2.3.3 of this 
Ordinance. 
 
C) Location 

 
A Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning District SD-CZ designation may 
be established on any land located in the Town and its ETJ that complies with all 
of the applicable standards of this Section and Section 3.3.4B), including the 
requirement that a Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning District SD-CZ 
include a minimum of 500 contiguous acres.  An SD-CZ District may include 
other parcels of any size within 2000 feet of such parcel of at least 500 contiguous 
acres.  
 
D) Unified Ownership or Control 

 
One person shall have all the responsibility and authority to make all the 
developer land use planning decisions for all land that is part of a Sustainable 
Development Conditional Zoning District SD-CZ.  A person shall be considered 
to have such responsibility and authority for all lands in the Sustainable 
Development Conditional Zoning District SD-CZ either through ownership or by 
written agreement by and between such person and each owner of parcels 
comprising said lands agreeing to the conditions and standards of the adopting 
ordinance and the Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning District SD-CZ 
and granting the person such responsibility and authority.  This one person, who 
shall be identified in the Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning District 
SD-CZ Re-Zoning Application as the “Responsible Person,” will be the sole 
person from whom the Town will accept decisions regarding the Sustainable 
Development (SD) Plan and Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning 
District SD-CZ, including amendments, modifications or supplements thereof or 
the addition of lands thereto.  The SD Plan shall provide the process for effecting 
a change or succession of Responsible Person for the purposes of a specific 
district.  A parcel or parcels (the “Parcel”) of any size may be added to an existing 
Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning District if (i) any portion of the 
Parcel is within two thousand (2000) feet of such existing district, (ii) the 

- Page 246 -



 

{00031979.DOC 8 } - 2 - 

Responsible Person of the existing district consents in writing and (iii) the Town 
Council approves a rezoning of the Parcel to Sustainable Development 
Conditional Zoning District SD-CZ in accordance with Sections 2.3.3 and 2.3.16.  
In such event the SD Plan approved for the existing SD-CZ District shall be 
applicable to the Parcel(s) added to such existing district, and the development 
densities authorized in the existing SD Plan (including number of residential units 
and authorized square footage of other land uses) shall be increased on a pro-rata 
basis based on the size of the Parcel(s) added to the district, unless the Town 
Council provides otherwise with the consent of the Responsible Person.  
 
E) Procedures 

 
1) Overview. Approval of a Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning 
District SD-CZ shall constitute an amendment to the Official Zoning 
District Map. It shall be controlled by an SD Plan that is approved as part 
of the Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning District SD-CZ 
designation and that designates the appropriate form and scale of 
development within the Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning 
District SD-CZ. The procedure requires review and recommendation of 
approval or disapproval by the Planning Board and approval, approval 
with conditions, or disapproval by the Town Council. 
 
2) General. The procedures for initiation of the application, the application 
contents, fees, submission and review by Town staff and/or consulting 
firms on retainer, public notification, review by the Planning Board and 
then approval, approval with conditions, or disapproval by the Town 
Council at a public hearing(s) shall comply with the requirements of Sec. 
2.2 Common Review Procedures, Sec 2.2.7 Neighborhood Meeting and 
Sec. 2.3.16 (F) Sustainability Standards. 

 
F) Standards 

 
1) In return for greater flexibility in site design requirements, the Sustainable 
Development Conditional Zoning District SD-CZ is expected to deliver 
exceptional quality designs on a large-scale basis that:  
 

a) facilitate the integration of a broad array of uses;  
 
b) preserve and enhance critical environmental and natural resources, 
including water resources and ecosystem services in the stream network 
flowing through the district;  
 
c) incorporate creativity in the design and configuration of buildings, 
roads, public space and infrastructure; and  
 

- Page 247 -



 

{00031979.DOC 8 } - 3 - 

d) employ innovative techniques and practices aimed at maximizing 
efficiency in the use of energy and materials.   
 

In short, the Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning District SD-CZ is 
expected to provide a high quality of life through the creation of a healthy, living 
landscape within a high-intensity mixed-used community. 
 
2) The purpose, intent and scale of the Sustainable Development Conditional 
Zoning District SD-CZ are unique from the other districts established in Sec. 3.2.  
Thus, the unique nature of the Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning 
District SD-CZ necessitates alternative standards, regulations, specifications, 
details, designs, and criteria (the “Sustainability Standards”) to meet the spirit and 
intent of this Ordinance.  These Sustainability Standards, which shall be set forth 
in the SD Plan and may be established pursuant to paragraph 3) hereafter, may: 
 

a) specify the nature, density, maximums on development, minimums on 
development, development thresholds, and design characteristics proposed 
for the Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning District SD-CZ; 
 
b) address the relationship between building facades and the public realm, 
the form and mass of buildings in relation to one another, and the scale 
and types of streets and blocks;  
 
c) facilitate a full diversity of building types, thoroughfare types, and 
public space types with appropriate characteristics for their respective 
locations;  
 
d) facilitate the restoration and enhancement of the environment and 
natural resources through both accepted practice and innovative practices; 
and  
 
e) modify and supersede the provisions of this Ordinance or any land 
development document referenced or incorporated therein, or other land 
development ordinances or policies of the Town.  However, an SD Plan 
and development pursuant thereto shall conform to all applicable Town 
ordinances and policies, including the UDO, except to the extent that 
ordinances or policies, including the UDO, are varied in the approved SD 
Plan or in Sustainability Standards adopted pursuant to paragraph 3) 
hereafter.  An SD Plan and the Sustainability Standards may not modify 
the requirements that an SD-CZ District include a minimum of 500 
contiguous acres.  
 

3)  The Sustainability Standards and other provisions of the SD Plan, as well as 
Sustainability Standards established pursuant to this paragraph F) 3), shall form 
the basis for a development of exceptional quality and innovation that is an 

- Page 248 -



 

{00031979.DOC 8 } - 4 - 

enhancement to the welfare of the Town's citizens. At any time, and from time to 
time:   
 
 a)  with the consent of the Responsible Person, the Town Council may 

adopt additional or modified Sustainability Standards for an approved SD-
CZ District following review and recommendation by the Planning Board;  
  
b) where an SD Plan requires additional or modified Sustainability 
Standards for an approved SD-CZ District, site plan approval, subdivision 
approval, construction or grading shall not commence within such SD-CZ 
District unless and until the required Sustainability Standards are adopted 
as provided in the SD Plan; with the consent of the Responsible Person, 
the Town Council shall review and consider and may adopt such 
additional and modified Sustainability Standards following review and 
recommendation by the Planning Board; 

 
 c)  as an amendment to this Ordinance, the Town Council may adopt 

elective Sustainability Standards for SD-CZ districts, which may, at the 
election of a Responsible Person, (i) be incorporated, in whole or in part, 
into an approved SD Plan for an existing SD-CZ district or (ii) be included 
within an SD Plan for a proposed SD-CZ district.  In the case of an 
approved SD Plan, the elective Sustainability Standards so incorporated 
may provide that they serve as a supplement to the provisions of the SD 
Plan and serve as an alternative to the application of any inconsistent 
provisions of the Plan;   

 
d)  actions by the Town Council under the foregoing subsections 2.3.16 F) 
3) a), b) and c) shall be taken in accordance with the provisions of Sec. 
2.3.2 applicable to Amendments to the Text of this Ordinance.  It is 
provided, however, that such actions may be proposed only by the Town 
Council, the Planning Director, or the Responsible Person; and  
 
e)  this Subsection 2.3.16 does not reduce any authority that the Town 
otherwise has to amend its UDO or an approved SD-CZ rezoning and SD 
Plan; the vested rights applicable to a SD-CZ rezoning and SD Plan shall 
be determined by other applicable law and by the provisions of a 
developer agreement if any. 
 
 

G) SD Plan  

 
To the degree necessary and appropriate, the SD Plan and the Sustainability 
Standards shall include, but shall not be limited to, requirements related to:  
 
1)  standards a) through d) set forth in the foregoing Section 2.3.16 F) 1); 
 

- Page 249 -



 

{00031979.DOC 8 } - 5 - 

2) design guidelines;  
 
3) parks, open space and greenways;  
 
4) water resources and ecosystem services; 
 
5) comprehensive signage;  
 
6) landscaping conditions;  
 
7) parking requirements; and 
 
8) public infrastructure improvements and public facilities.   

 
The SD Plan shall also include a map depicting the concept for the development 
of the property.  To the extent that provisions of the SD Plan or Sustainability 
Standards vary the provisions of this Ordinance, or other ordinances or policies of 
the Town, the provisions of the SD Plan or Sustainability Standards shall be 
applicable. 
 
H) Placement of Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning District SD-CZ 

Designation on Official Zoning District Map 

  
After final approval of the adopting ordinance for the Sustainable Development 
Conditional Zoning District SD-CZ designation and the SD Plan, the Planning 
Director shall amend the Official Zoning District Map to show a Sustainable 
Development Conditional Zoning District SD-CZ designation.  

 

I) Effect  

 
Approval of an adopting ordinance for Sustainable Development Conditional 
Zoning District SD-CZ designation and the SD Plan shall constitute an Official 
Zoning District Map designation and recognition by the Town that the landowner 
may proceed, consistent with the SD Plan, to develop the land. The next 
appropriate development approval for the land is a site plan or subdivision plan.   
 
J) Deviation to SD Plan 

 
When appropriate to further the goals of an approved SD-CZ District and its SD 
Plan, the Planning Director may approve deviations of up to ten percent (10%) 
with respect to any standard, design, configuration, disposition, or matter 
established or quantified in an SD Plan or the Sustainability Standards, except that 
this authority shall not apply to density, maximums on development minimums on 
development or thresholds.  Any other modification, revision or supplementation 
of an SD Plan or the Sustainability Standards shall require the approval of the 
Town Council following review by the Planning Board.   

 

- Page 250 -



 

{00031979.DOC 8 } - 6 - 

K) Amendment to Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning District SD-CZ 

 
An amendment to the Official Zoning District Map for a Sustainable 
Development Conditional Zoning District SD-CZ may be made only pursuant to 
the procedures and standards for its original approval, and specifically Sec. 2.3.16 
(D) Unified Ownership or Control.   

 
II. Article 3 / Zoning Districts 
 Sec. 3.2 / ZONING DISTRICTS ESTABLISHED 

3.2.8 Conditional Zoning Other Districts 
 

A) CB-CZ Conservation Buffer District; and 

B) SD-CZ Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning District. 

III. Article 3 / Zoning Districts 
 Sec. 3.3 / DISTRICT PURPOSES 

3.3.4 Other Districts 
 
B) Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning District 

The purpose and intent of the Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning 
District SD-CZ is to encourage the design of a sustainable community through the 
application of design approaches that allow and encourage flexibility, an intensity 
of uses, integration among uses, restoration and enhancement of the environment 
and natural resources, transit-oriented development, pedestrian-oriented 
development and the efficient use of resources, energy and materials.  This shall 
be accomplished by allowing design flexibility and innovative approaches to 
environmental stewardship incorporated in a plan for development that:   
 

1) addresses the relationship between building facades and the public 
realm, the form and mass of buildings in relation to one another, and the 
scale and types of streets and blocks;  

 
2) facilitates a full diversity of building types, thoroughfare types, and 
public space types with appropriate characteristics for their respective 
locations; and  
 
3) facilitates the restoration and enhancement of the environment and 
natural resources. 

 
Further, because the aforementioned design standards are best implemented on a 
large-scale basis, a purpose and intent of the Sustainable Development 
Conditional Zoning District SD-CZ is to provide sufficient lands for such 
implementation.  To this end, the Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning 
District SD-CZ must include a minimum of 500 contiguous acres.  An SD-CZ 

- Page 251 -



 

{00031979.DOC 8 } - 7 - 

District may include other parcels of any size within 2000 feet of such parcel of at 
least 500 contiguous acres.  
 
The unique purpose and intent, and the scale and standards to which the 
development plan must adhere, distinguish the Sustainable Development 
Conditional Zoning District SD-CZ from the other districts established in Sec. 
3.2.  Therefore, the specific procedures and standards for the review of the 
Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning District SD-CZ are found in Sec. 
2.3.16, Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning District SD-CZ. 

 
IV. Article 4 / Use Regulations  
 Sec.4.2 / USE TABLE  
 Sec.4.2.2 / Use Table 
 
 The Use Table in Section 4.2.2 shall be amended to include among the Zoning Districts 

shown at the top of the table “SD” to denote the Sustainable Development Conditional 
Zoning District as a Zoning District in the “Other” category and to place a double 
asterisk (**) in the block under SD for each use listed within all of the Use Types, with 
the exception of the following uses:  Adult Establishment; Airplane Landing Strip; 
Airport; Sanitary Landfill; Land Clearing and Inert Debris Landfill; Mobile Homes; and 
Asphalt or Concrete Plant.  Further, the following shall be inserted below the table: 
 

“**Uses allowed as a matter-of-right in a Sustainable Development Conditional 
Zoning District shall be those uses authorized in the Sustainable Development Plan 
approved for such district.  Standards applicable to each such use shall be as provided in 
this Use Table unless modified by the respective Sustainable Development Plan.” 

 
 
V. Article 4 / Use Regulations 
 Sec.4.3 / Use Classifications 
 Sec.4.3.1 / Residential Uses 
 
 A)  Accessory Apartment 

 

A secondary dwelling unit either (1) inside of or added to an existing single-
family dwelling, (2) in an accessory structure on the same lot as the principal single-
family dwelling, (3) on any floor except for the ground floor of a commercial use in the 
B1 Neighborhood Business District, B2 Downtown Business District, MEC-CZ Major 
Employment Center District, TND-CZ Traditional Neighborhood District, PUD-CZ 
Planned Unit Development District, or (4) on any floor of a commercial use in the SD-CZ 
Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning District.  An accessory apartment is a 
complete, independent living facility equipped with a kitchen and with provisions for 
sanitation and sleeping.  An accessory structure may include a loft.  

 
 
VI. Article 5 / Measurements  

- Page 252 -



 

{00031979.DOC 8 } - 8 - 

 Sec.5.1 / TABLE OF INTENSITY AND DIMENSIONAL STANDARDS  
 Sec.5.1.4 / Other Development Districts 
 

The table for “Other Development Districts” in Section 5.1.4 shall be amended to include 
“SD” to denote the Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning District under “Use” 
and below “*See Sec. 6.1, Watershed Protection Overlay Districts.”  “All uses” shall be 
inserted below “SD” and to the right thereof shall be inserted “All Intensity and 
Dimensional Standards shall be as set forth in the Sustainable Development Plan 
approved for the respective Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning District.” 
 

VII. TECHNICAL AMENDMENTS 
  

A) Each of the following Sections shall be amended to insert “SD-CZ” immediately 
after “PUD-CZ” at each place in the respective Section at which “PUD-CZ” appears: 
 
 2.1.1 A) 2) b) 
 2.1.2 A) 2) b) 
 2.1.7 A) 2) 
 2.2.11 E) 
 2.3.15 B) 
 4.1.2 A) 
 4.5.6  
 4.5.6 A) 
 4.5.6 D) 
 4.5.6 F) 
 4.6.1 C) 1) a) 
 5.2.2 A) 2) 
 8.2.6 
 8.3.6 B) 5) 
 8.4.2 
 9.1.2 
 
B) Section 2.3.1 shall be amended to insert within the Table under “Development 
Permit” and following “Traditional Neighborhood District (TND-CZ) (Sec. 2.3.4)” the 
words “Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning District (SD-CZ) (Sec. 2.3.16)”; to 
place the letter “R” under each of “Planning Director/Technical Review Committee” and 
“Planning Board”; and to place the letter “D” under “Town Council.” 
 
C) Section 2.3.3 J) 2) shall be amended to insert “or Section 2.3.16 J) Minor 

Deviation to a SD Plan or Section 2.3.16 K) Modification of SD Plan” following 
“2.3.4(M) Minor Deviations”. 
 
D) Section 2.3.16, Site Work Prior to Development Approvals, shall be re-
numbered to “Section 2.3.17”. 
 
E) Section 2.3.17, Utility Service, shall be re-numbered to “Section 2.3.18”. 

- Page 253 -



 

{00031979.DOC 8 } - 9 - 

 
F) Sections 4.3.1 A), 4.4.5 F), and 4.6.1 C) 3) shall each be amended to insert “, SD-
CZ Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning District,” immediately following 
“TND-CZ Traditional Neighborhood District” at each place where “TND-CZ Traditional 
Neighborhood District” appears. 
 
G) Section 5.2.2 F) shall be amended to insert at the beginning of the paragraph 
“Except in Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning District (SD-CZ),” and to 
replace “I” with “i” in “internal.” 
 
H) Section 8.3.6 B) 5) shall be amended to substitute “Section 8.4.4” for “Section 
8.5.3.” 
 

   
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

- Page 254 -



 

{00031979.DOC 8 } 

I. Article 2 / Administration 
 Sec. 2.3 / DEVELOPMENT APPROVALS 
 

2.3.16 Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning District 
 

A) General 

This Section establishes the procedures and standards applicable to the Town’s 
Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning District SD-CZ. 
 
B) General Applicability 

 
Before any development shall be designated as a Sustainable Development 
Conditional Zoning District SD-CZ on the Official Zoning District Map, it shall 
receive approval pursuant to the terms of this Section and Section 2.3.3 of this 
Ordinance. 
 
C) Location 

 
A Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning District SD-CZ designation may 
be established on any land located in the Town and its ETJ that complies with all 
of the applicable standards of this Section and Section 3.3.4B), including the 
requirement that a Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning District SD-CZ 
include a minimum of 500 contiguous acres.  An SD-CZ District may include 
other parcels of any size within 2000 feet of such parcel of at least 500 contiguous 
acres.  
 
D) Unified Ownership or Control 

 
One person shall have all the responsibility and authority to make all the 
developer land use planning decisions for all land that is part of a Sustainable 
Development Conditional Zoning District SD-CZ.  A person shall be considered 
to have such responsibility and authority for all lands in the Sustainable 
Development Conditional Zoning District SD-CZ either through ownership or by 
written agreement by and between such person and each owner of parcels 
comprising said lands agreeing to the conditions and standards of the adopting 
ordinance and the Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning District SD-CZ 
and granting the person such responsibility and authority.  This one person, who 
shall be identified in the Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning District 
SD-CZ Re-Zoning Application as the “Responsible Person,” will be the sole 
person from whom the Town will accept decisions regarding the Sustainable 
Development (SD) Plan and Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning 
District SD-CZ, including amendments, modifications or supplements thereof or 
the addition of lands thereto.  The SD Plan shall provide the process for effecting 
a change or succession of Responsible Person for the purposes of a specific 
district.  A parcel or parcels (the “Parcel”) of any size may be added to an existing 
Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning District if (i) any portion of the 
Parcel is within two thousand (2000) feet of such existing district, (ii) the 

- Page 255 -



 

{00031979.DOC 8 } - 2 - 

Responsible Person of the existing district consents in writing and (iii) the Town 
Council approves a rezoning of the Parcel to Sustainable Development 
Conditional Zoning District SD-CZ in accordance with Sections 2.3.3 and 2.3.16.  
In such event the SD Plan approved for the existing SD-CZ District shall be 
applicable to the Parcel(s) added to such existing district, and the development 
densities authorized in the existing SD Plan (including number of residential units 
and authorized square footage of other land uses) shall be increased on a pro-rata 
basis based on the size of the Parcel(s) added to the district, unless the Town 
Council provides otherwise with the consent of the Responsible Person.  
 
E) Procedures 

 
1) Overview. Approval of a Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning 
District SD-CZ shall constitute an amendment to the Official Zoning 
District Map. It shall be controlled by an SD Plan that is approved as part 
of the Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning District SD-CZ 
designation and that designates the appropriate form and scale of 
development within the Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning 
District SD-CZ. The procedure requires review and recommendation of 
approval or disapproval by the Planning Board and approval, approval 
with conditions, or disapproval by the Town Council. 
 
2) General. The procedures for initiation of the application, the application 
contents, fees, submission and review by Town staff and/or consulting 
firms on retainer, public notification, review by the Planning Board and 
then approval, approval with conditions, or disapproval by the Town 
Council at a public hearing(s) shall comply with the requirements of Sec. 
2.2 Common Review Procedures, Sec 2.2.7 Neighborhood Meeting and 
Sec. 2.3.16 (F) Sustainability Standards. 

 
F) Standards 

 
1) In return for greater flexibility in site design requirements, the Sustainable 
Development Conditional Zoning District SD-CZ is expected to deliver 
exceptional quality designs on a large-scale basis that:  
 

a) facilitate the integration of a broad array of uses;  
 
b) preserve and enhance critical environmental and natural resources, 
including water resources and ecosystem services in the stream network 
flowing through the district;  
 
c) incorporate creativity in the design and configuration of buildings, 
roads, public space and infrastructure; and  
 

- Page 256 -



 

{00031979.DOC 8 } - 3 - 

d) employ innovative techniques and practices aimed at maximizing 
efficiency in the use of energy and materials.   
 

In short, the Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning District SD-CZ is 
expected to provide a high quality of life through the creation of a healthy, living 
landscape within a high-intensity mixed-used community. 
 
2) The purpose, intent and scale of the Sustainable Development Conditional 
Zoning District SD-CZ are unique from the other districts established in Sec. 3.2.  
Thus, the unique nature of the Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning 
District SD-CZ necessitates alternative standards, regulations, specifications, 
details, designs, and criteria (the “Sustainability Standards”) to meet the spirit and 
intent of this Ordinance.  These Sustainability Standards, which shall be set forth 
in the SD Plan and may be established pursuant to paragraph 3) hereafter, may: 
 

a) specify the nature, density, maximums on development, minimums on 
development, development thresholds, and design characteristics proposed 
for the Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning District SD-CZ; 
 
b) address the relationship between building facades and the public realm, 
the form and mass of buildings in relation to one another, and the scale 
and types of streets and blocks;  
 
c) facilitate a full diversity of building types, thoroughfare types, and 
public space types with appropriate characteristics for their respective 
locations;  
 
d) facilitate the restoration and enhancement of the environment and 
natural resources through both accepted practice and innovative practices; 
and  
 
e) modify and supersede the provisions of this Ordinance or any land 
development document referenced or incorporated therein, or other land 
development ordinances or policies of the Town.  However, an SD Plan 
and development pursuant thereto shall conform to all applicable Town 
ordinances and policies, including the UDO, except to the extent that 
ordinances or policies, including the UDO, are varied in the approved SD 
Plan or in Sustainability Standards adopted pursuant to paragraph 3) 
hereafter.  An SD Plan and the Sustainability Standards may not modify 
the requirements that an SD-CZ District include a minimum of 500 
contiguous acres.  
 

3)  The Sustainability Standards and other provisions of the SD Plan, as well as 
Sustainability Standards established pursuant to this paragraph F) 3), shall form 
the basis for a development of exceptional quality and innovation that is an 

- Page 257 -



 

{00031979.DOC 8 } - 4 - 

enhancement to the welfare of the Town's citizens. At any time, and from time to 
time:   
 
 a)  with the consent of the Responsible Person, the Town Council may 

adopt additional or modified Sustainability Standards for an approved SD-
CZ District following review and recommendation by the Planning Board;  
  
b) where an SD Plan requires additional or modified Sustainability 
Standards for an approved SD-CZ District, site plan approval, subdivision 
approval, construction or grading shall not commence within such SD-CZ 
District unless and until the required Sustainability Standards are adopted 
as provided in the SD Plan; with the consent of the Responsible Person, 
the Town Council shall review and consider and may adopt such 
additional and modified Sustainability Standards following review and 
recommendation by the Planning Board; 

 
 c)  as an amendment to this Ordinance, the Town Council may adopt 

elective Sustainability Standards for SD-CZ districts, which may, at the 
election of a Responsible Person, (i) be incorporated, in whole or in part, 
into an approved SD Plan for an existing SD-CZ district or (ii) be included 
within an SD Plan for a proposed SD-CZ district.  In the case of an 
approved SD Plan, the elective Sustainability Standards so incorporated 
may provide that they serve as a supplement to the provisions of the SD 
Plan and serve as an alternative to the application of any inconsistent 
provisions of the Plan;   

 
d)  actions by the Town Council under the foregoing subsections 2.3.16 F) 
3) a), b) and c) shall be taken in accordance with the provisions of Sec. 
2.3.2 applicable to Amendments to the Text of this Ordinance.  It is 
provided, however, that such actions may be proposed only by the Town 
Council, the Planning Director, or the Responsible Person; and  
 
e)  this Subsection 2.3.16 does not reduce any authority that the Town 
otherwise has to amend its UDO or an approved SD-CZ rezoning and SD 
Plan; the vested rights applicable to a SD-CZ rezoning and SD Plan shall 
be determined by other applicable law and by the provisions of a 
developer agreement if any. 
 
 

G) SD Plan  

 
To the degree necessary and appropriate, the SD Plan and the Sustainability 
Standards shall include, but shall not be limited to, requirements related to:  
 
1)  standards a) through d) set forth in the foregoing Section 2.3.16 F) 1); 
 

- Page 258 -



 

{00031979.DOC 8 } - 5 - 

2) design guidelines;  
 
3) parks, open space and greenways;  
 
4) water resources and ecosystem services; 
 
5) comprehensive signage;  
 
6) landscaping conditions;  
 
7) parking requirements; and 
 
8) public infrastructure improvements and public facilities.   

 
The SD Plan shall also include a map depicting the concept for the development 
of the property.  To the extent that provisions of the SD Plan or Sustainability 
Standards vary the provisions of this Ordinance, or other ordinances or policies of 
the Town, the provisions of the SD Plan or Sustainability Standards shall be 
applicable. 
 
H) Placement of Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning District SD-CZ 

Designation on Official Zoning District Map 

  
After final approval of the adopting ordinance for the Sustainable Development 
Conditional Zoning District SD-CZ designation and the SD Plan, the Planning 
Director shall amend the Official Zoning District Map to show a Sustainable 
Development Conditional Zoning District SD-CZ designation.  

 

I) Effect  

 
Approval of an adopting ordinance for Sustainable Development Conditional 
Zoning District SD-CZ designation and the SD Plan shall constitute an Official 
Zoning District Map designation and recognition by the Town that the landowner 
may proceed, consistent with the SD Plan, to develop the land. The next 
appropriate development approval for the land is a site plan or subdivision plan.   
 
J) Deviation to SD Plan 

 
When appropriate to further the goals of an approved SD-CZ District and its SD 
Plan, the Planning Director may approve deviations of up to ten percent (10%) 
with respect to any standard, design, configuration, disposition, or matter 
established or quantified in an SD Plan or the Sustainability Standards, except that 
this authority shall not apply to density, maximums on development minimums on 
development or thresholds.  Any other modification, revision or supplementation 
of an SD Plan or the Sustainability Standards shall require the approval of the 
Town Council following review by the Planning Board.   

 

- Page 259 -



 

{00031979.DOC 8 } - 6 - 

K) Amendment to Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning District SD-CZ 

 
An amendment to the Official Zoning District Map for a Sustainable 
Development Conditional Zoning District SD-CZ may be made only pursuant to 
the procedures and standards for its original approval, and specifically Sec. 2.3.16 
(D) Unified Ownership or Control.   

 
II. Article 3 / Zoning Districts 
 Sec. 3.2 / ZONING DISTRICTS ESTABLISHED 

3.2.8 Conditional Zoning Other Districts 
 

A) CB-CZ Conservation Buffer District; and 

B) SD-CZ Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning District. 

III. Article 3 / Zoning Districts 
 Sec. 3.3 / DISTRICT PURPOSES 

3.3.4 Other Districts 
 
B) Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning District 

The purpose and intent of the Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning 
District SD-CZ is to encourage the design of a sustainable community through the 
application of design approaches that allow and encourage flexibility, an intensity 
of uses, integration among uses, restoration and enhancement of the environment 
and natural resources, transit-oriented development, pedestrian-oriented 
development and the efficient use of resources, energy and materials.  This shall 
be accomplished by allowing design flexibility and innovative approaches to 
environmental stewardship incorporated in a plan for development that:   
 

1) addresses the relationship between building facades and the public 
realm, the form and mass of buildings in relation to one another, and the 
scale and types of streets and blocks;  

 
2) facilitates a full diversity of building types, thoroughfare types, and 
public space types with appropriate characteristics for their respective 
locations; and  
 
3) facilitates the restoration and enhancement of the environment and 
natural resources. 

 
Further, because the aforementioned design standards are best implemented on a 
large-scale basis, a purpose and intent of the Sustainable Development 
Conditional Zoning District SD-CZ is to provide sufficient lands for such 
implementation.  To this end, the Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning 
District SD-CZ must include a minimum of 500 contiguous acres.  An SD-CZ 

- Page 260 -



 

{00031979.DOC 8 } - 7 - 

District may include other parcels of any size within 2000 feet of such parcel of at 
least 500 contiguous acres.  
 
The unique purpose and intent, and the scale and standards to which the 
development plan must adhere, distinguish the Sustainable Development 
Conditional Zoning District SD-CZ from the other districts established in Sec. 
3.2.  Therefore, the specific procedures and standards for the review of the 
Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning District SD-CZ are found in Sec. 
2.3.16, Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning District SD-CZ. 

 
IV. Article 4 / Use Regulations  
 Sec.4.2 / USE TABLE  
 Sec.4.2.2 / Use Table 
 
 The Use Table in Section 4.2.2 shall be amended to include among the Zoning Districts 

shown at the top of the table “SD” to denote the Sustainable Development Conditional 
Zoning District as a Zoning District in the “Other” category and to place a double 
asterisk (**) in the block under SD for each use listed within all of the Use Types, with 
the exception of the following uses:  Adult Establishment; Airplane Landing Strip; 
Airport; Sanitary Landfill; Land Clearing and Inert Debris Landfill; Mobile Homes; and 
Asphalt or Concrete Plant.  Further, the following shall be inserted below the table: 
 

“**Uses allowed as a matter-of-right in a Sustainable Development Conditional 
Zoning District shall be those uses authorized in the Sustainable Development Plan 
approved for such district.  Standards applicable to each such use shall be as provided in 
this Use Table unless modified by the respective Sustainable Development Plan.” 

 
 
V. Article 4 / Use Regulations 
 Sec.4.3 / Use Classifications 
 Sec.4.3.1 / Residential Uses 
 
 A)  Accessory Apartment 

 

A secondary dwelling unit either (1) inside of or added to an existing single-
family dwelling, (2) in an accessory structure on the same lot as the principal single-
family dwelling, (3) on any floor except for the ground floor of a commercial use in the 
B1 Neighborhood Business District, B2 Downtown Business District, MEC-CZ Major 
Employment Center District, TND-CZ Traditional Neighborhood District, PUD-CZ 
Planned Unit Development District, or (4) on any floor of a commercial use in the SD-CZ 
Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning District.  An accessory apartment is a 
complete, independent living facility equipped with a kitchen and with provisions for 
sanitation and sleeping.  An accessory structure may include a loft.  

 
 
VI. Article 5 / Measurements  

- Page 261 -



 

{00031979.DOC 8 } - 8 - 

 Sec.5.1 / TABLE OF INTENSITY AND DIMENSIONAL STANDARDS  
 Sec.5.1.4 / Other Development Districts 
 

The table for “Other Development Districts” in Section 5.1.4 shall be amended to include 
“SD” to denote the Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning District under “Use” 
and below “*See Sec. 6.1, Watershed Protection Overlay Districts.”  “All uses” shall be 
inserted below “SD” and to the right thereof shall be inserted “All Intensity and 
Dimensional Standards shall be as set forth in the Sustainable Development Plan 
approved for the respective Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning District.” 
 

VII. TECHNICAL AMENDMENTS 
  

A) Each of the following Sections shall be amended to insert “SD-CZ” immediately 
after “PUD-CZ” at each place in the respective Section at which “PUD-CZ” appears: 
 
 2.1.1 A) 2) b) 
 2.1.2 A) 2) b) 
 2.1.7 A) 2) 
 2.2.11 E) 
 2.3.15 B) 
 4.1.2 A) 
 4.5.6  
 4.5.6 A) 
 4.5.6 D) 
 4.5.6 F) 
 4.6.1 C) 1) a) 
 5.2.2 A) 2) 
 8.2.6 
 8.3.6 B) 5) 
 8.4.2 
 9.1.2 
 
B) Section 2.3.1 shall be amended to insert within the Table under “Development 
Permit” and following “Traditional Neighborhood District (TND-CZ) (Sec. 2.3.4)” the 
words “Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning District (SD-CZ) (Sec. 2.3.16)”; to 
place the letter “R” under each of “Planning Director/Technical Review Committee” and 
“Planning Board”; and to place the letter “D” under “Town Council.” 
 
C) Section 2.3.3 J) 2) shall be amended to insert “or Section 2.3.16 J) Minor 

Deviation to a SD Plan or Section 2.3.16 K) Modification of SD Plan” following 
“2.3.4(M) Minor Deviations”. 
 
D) Section 2.3.16, Site Work Prior to Development Approvals, shall be re-
numbered to “Section 2.3.17”. 
 
E) Section 2.3.17, Utility Service, shall be re-numbered to “Section 2.3.18”. 

- Page 262 -



 

{00031979.DOC 8 } - 9 - 

 
F) Sections 4.3.1 A), 4.4.5 F), and 4.6.1 C) 3) shall each be amended to insert “, SD-
CZ Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning District,” immediately following 
“TND-CZ Traditional Neighborhood District” at each place where “TND-CZ Traditional 
Neighborhood District” appears. 
 
G) Section 5.2.2 F) shall be amended to insert at the beginning of the paragraph 
“Except in Sustainable Development Conditional Zoning District (SD-CZ),” and to 
replace “I” with “i” in “internal.” 
 
H) Section 8.3.6 B) 5) shall be amended to substitute “Section 8.4.4” for “Section 
8.5.3.” 
 

   
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

- Page 263 -



Attachment C

- Page 264 -



- Page 265 -



- Page 266 -



- Page 267 -



- Page 268 -



- Page 269 -



- Page 270 -



- Page 271 -



- Page 272 -



- Page 273 -



- Page 274 -



- Page 275 -



- Page 276 -



- Page 277 -



- Page 278 -



- Page 279 -



- Page 280 -



- Page 281 -



- Page 282 -



- Page 283 -



- Page 284 -



- Page 285 -



- Page 286 -



- Page 287 -



- Page 288 -



- Page 289 -



- Page 290 -



- Page 291 -



- Page 292 -



- Page 293 -



- Page 294 -



- Page 295 -



- Page 296 -



- Page 297 -



- Page 298 -



- Page 299 -



- Page 300 -



- Page 301 -



- Page 302 -



- Page 303 -



- Page 304 -



- Page 305 -



- Page 306 -



- Page 307 -



- Page 308 -



- Page 309 -



- Page 310 -



- Page 311 -



- Page 312 -



- Page 313 -



- Page 314 -



- Page 315 -



- Page 316 -



- Page 317 -



- Page 318 -



- Page 319 -



- Page 320 -



- Page 321 -



- Page 322 -



- Page 323 -



- Page 324 -



- Page 325 -



- Page 326 -



- Page 327 -



- Page 328 -



- Page 329 -



- Page 330 -



- Page 331 -



- Page 332 -



- Page 333 -



- Page 334 -



- Page 335 -



- Page 336 -



- Page 337 -



- Page 338 -



- Page 339 -



- Page 340 -



- Page 341 -



- Page 342 -



- Page 343 -



- Page 344 -



- Page 345 -



- Page 346 -



- Page 347 -



- Page 348 -



- Page 349 -



- Page 350 -



- Page 351 -



- Page 352 -



- Page 353 -



- Page 354 -



- Page 355 -



- Page 356 -



- Page 357 -



- Page 358 -



- Page 359 -



- Page 360 -



- Page 361 -



- Page 362 -



- Page 363 -



- Page 364 -



- Page 365 -



- Page 366 -



- Page 367 -



- Page 368 -



- Page 369 -



- Page 370 -



- Page 371 -



- Page 372 -



- Page 373 -



- Page 374 -



- Page 375 -



- Page 376 -



- Page 377 -



- Page 378 -



- Page 379 -



- Page 380 -



- Page 381 -



- Page 382 -



- Page 383 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: May 9, 2023 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Allen Coleman, Town Clerk 

Department(s): Town Clerk’s Office 

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve Apex Tax Reports dated March 5, 2023 and April 2, 2023.   

 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

The Wake County Board of Commissioners, in regular session on April 17, 2023, approved and accepted 

the enclosed tax report for the Town of Apex, dated March 5, 2023 for the period of February 1, 2023 

through February 28, 2023.  

 

The Wake County Board of Commissioners, in regular session on May 2, 2023, approved and accepted the 

enclosed tax report for the Town of Apex, dated April 2, 2023 for the period of March 1, 2023 through 

March 31, 2023.   

 

Attachments 

 CN14-A1: Tax Report for February 2023 
 CN14-A2: Tax Report for March 2023 

 

- Page 384 -



- Page 385 -



- Page 386 -



- Page 387 -



- Page 388 -



- Page 389 -



- Page 390 -



- Page 391 -



- Page 392 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 
 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: May 9, 2023 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Allen Coleman, Town Clerk    

Department(s): Town Clerk’s Office    

Requested Motion 

Motion to amend the 2023 Town Council Meeting Calendar.  

 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

In accordance with North Carolina General Statute 143-318.12, a schedule of regular meetings shall be 

filed with the Town Clerk to the Town Council.  The schedule must show the date, time, and place of each 

meeting.   

It is proposed that the 2023 Town Council Meeting Calendar be amended as follows:  

• CHANGE – Planning Committee Meeting    

o FROM:  Thursday, May 11th, 2023 

o TO: Thursday, May 18th, 2023  

o 9:00 AM – 11:00 AM – Apex Town Hall  

 

Attachments 

• CN15-A1: Revised - 2023 Council Meeting Calendar No. 5 
• CN15-A2: Revised – 2023 Text Calendar No. 5 

 



S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 T1 2 3 4 1 T2 3 4
8 9 T10 11 S12 13 14 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 5 6 7 8 T9 10 11

15 16 T17 18 19 20 21 12 13 T14 15 16 T17 18 12 13 T14 15 16 17 18
22 23 T24 25 T26 27 28 19 20 T21 22 23 24 25 19 20 P21 22 T23 24 25
29 30 T31 26 27 T28 26 27 T28 29 30 31

10th 1st 2nd
12th 17th 9th
17th 21st 21st
26th 23rd
31st 

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S
1 1 2 3 4 T5 6 O1 2 3

2 3 4 5 T6 7 8 7 8 T9 10 11 T12 13 4 5 6 7 T8 9 10
9 T10 T11 12 13 14 15 14 15 T16 T17 T18 19 20 11 12 T13 14 15 16 17

16 17 T18 19 20 21 22 21 22 T23 24 25 26 27 18 19 T20 21 22 T23 24
23 24 T25 26 T27 28 29 28 T29 30 31 25 26 T27 28 29 30
30

6th 5th 1st 
10th 12th 8th
18th 16th 22nd
27th 17th 23rd

18th

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S
1 1 2 3 4 5 1 2

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 6 7 T8 9 10 11 12 3 4 5 6 T7 8 9
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 13 14 T15 16 17 18 19 10 11 T12 13 14 15 16

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 20 21 T22 T23 T24 25 26 17 18 T19 T20 21 22 23
23 24 25 26 27 28 29 27 28 H29 30 T31 24 25 T26 27 T28 29 30
30 31

15th 7th
23rd 19th
24th 20th
29th 28th
31st 

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S
1 2 T3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 1 2
8 9 T10 11 12 13 14 5 6 7 8 T9 10 11 3 4 5 T6 7 T8 9

15 16 17 18 P19 T20 21 12 13 T14 15 T16 17 18 10 11 T12 13 T14 15 16
22 23 T24 25 T26 27 28 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 17 18 19 20 21 22 23
29 H30 31 26 27 T28 29 T30 24 25 26 27 28 29 30

31
3rd 7th 6th
12th 9th 8th
20th 16th 14th
26th 30th
30th

13
21 P
11 T
20 S

3 H
4 O

2

2 62
1

62 62Total Meetings

Committee Meetings
Budget Hearings/Work Sessions

Retreat/Strategic Planning

Joint Collaboration Meetings

MEETING LOCATION(S)

Town Hall 

Finance Committee

Holidays

Work Sessions
Police Department 

October November December

Questions should be directed to the 
Town Clerk's Office 

919-249-1260 or allen.coleman@apexnc.org 

Work Session

Joint Collaboration Meeting/Holly Springs

January

Council Strategic Planning - Location TBD Annual Council Retreat - Location TBD

Finance Committee Meeting 

August

Finance Committee
Joint Collaboration Meeting / Morrisville 
Rules Committee

Work Session 
Economic Development Committee 

Work Session

Work Session

Total Meetings

Budget Work Session

Joint Finance/Personnel Committee Mtg

Meeting days
Two meetings same day

CS - Evaluation (Appointed)

Senior Center 
Halle Cultural Arts Center

Closed Session - Evaluation (Appointed)
Work Session

Municipial Election 
Economic Development Committee

Joint Collaboration Meeting / Wake County

Rules Committee Work Session

Organizational Meeting (Swearing-In)
Personnel Committee 
Work Session

Regular Meetings 
SPECIAL NOTE

Meeting Times, Location, Etc. are 
noted on the next page titled:
"Apex Town Council Meeting 
Calendar for Year 2023 - Text"

July

April May

Revised 5/9/2023                       Town Council 2023 Meeting Calendar         APPROVED

Pre-Budget Public Hearing/ Regular Mtg

Work Session

Economic Development Committee

March

Budget Work Session 

Economic Development Committee

Joint Collaboration Meeting/Cary

February

Planning Committee

June

Rules Committee
Work Session

Other

Work Session
Rules Committee

Personnel Committee 

Finance Committee 
Finance/Personnel Committee (optional)

Planning Committee

September

Planning Committee

Planning Committee

Personnel Committee
Work Session

Closed Session - Evaluation (Appointed)
Personnel Committee



Revised 5/9/2023 
 

Page 1 of 6 
 

APPROVED 
TOWN OF APEX TOWN COUNCIL  

MEETING CALENDAR FOR YEAR 2023 
TEXT Calendar  

 
 

In accordance with North Carolina General Statute 143-318.12, a schedule of regular 
meetings shall be filed with the Town Clerk to the Town Council.  The schedule must show the 
date, time, and place of each meeting.  Questions should be directed to the Office of the Town 
Clerk by phone at 919-249-1260 or by email to allen.coleman@apexnc.org.  

Special Accommodation Notice: Anyone needing special accommodations to attend the 
meeting(s) below and/or if this information is needed in an alternative format, please contact 
the Town Clerk’s Office. The Town Clerk is located at 73 Hunter Street in Apex Town Hall on the 
2nd Floor, (email) allen.coleman@apexnc.org or (phone) 919-249-1260. 

 
Meeting Date Type Start Time Location 

Tuesday, January 10 Regular Town 
Council Meeting 

6:00 PM Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Thursday, January 12 Town Council  
Retreat  

2:00 PM Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, January 17 Town Council  
Work Session  

2:30 PM Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, January 24 Regular Town 
Council Meeting 

6:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Thursday, January 26 Finance Committee 
Meeting  

9:00 AM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, January 31 Joint Collaboration 
Meeting  

Town of Holly Springs 

6:00 PM Bass Lake Retreat Center 
900 Bass Lake Road 

Holly Springs, NC 27540  
 

Wednesday, February 1 Economic 
Development 

Committee Meeting  

4:00 PM Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, February 14 Regular Town  
Council Meeting  

6:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

mailto:allen.coleman@apexnc.org


Revised 5/9/2023 
 

Page 2 of 6 
 

Friday, February 17 Town Council  
Strategic Planning/ 

Budget Work Session  

8:30 AM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, February 21 Town Council  
Work Session 

3:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, February 28 Regular Town  
Council Meeting 

7:00 PM Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

 
Thursday, March 2 Planning Committee 

Meeting  
10:30 AM  Apex Town Hall 

73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Thursday, March 9 Personnel Committee 
Meeting  

5:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, March 14 Regular Town 
Council Meeting 

6:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, March 21 Town Council  
Work Session 
Public Safety  

3:30 PM  Apex Police Department 
205 Saunders Street 

Apex, NC 27502 
Thursday, March 23 Joint Personnel and 

Finance Committee 
Meeting  

4:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, March 28 Regular Town 
Council Meeting 

6:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

 
Thursday, April 6 Finance Committee 

Meeting  
9:00 AM  Apex Town Hall 

73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Monday, April 10 Joint Personnel and 
Finance Committee 

Meeting  

4:30 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, April 11 Regular Town 
Council Meeting 

6:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, April 18 Town Council  
Work Session 

3:30 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, April 25 Regular Town 
Council Meeting 

6:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 



Revised 5/9/2023 
 

Page 3 of 6 
 

Apex, NC 27502 
Thursday, April 27 Rules Committee 

Meeting  
3:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 

73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

 
Friday, May 5 Budget Work Session  2:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 

73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, May 9 Regular Town 
Council Meeting 

6:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Friday, May 12 Personnel Committee 
Meeting  

2:30 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, May 16 Town Council  
Work Session 

3:30 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Wednesday, May 17 Economic 
Development 

Committee Meeting 

4:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Thursday, May 18 Planning Committee 
Meeting 

9:00 AM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, May 23 Regular Town 
Council Meeting 

6:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

 
Thursday, June 1 Joint Collaboration 

Meeting  
Town of Cary 

5:30 PM  Halle Cultural Arts 
Center 

237 North Salem Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Thursday, June 8 Budget Work Session 2:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, June 13 Regular Town 
Council Meeting 

6:00 PM Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, June 20 Town Council  
Work Session 

3:30 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Friday, June 23 Rules Committee 
Meeting  

3:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 



Revised 5/9/2023 
 

Page 4 of 6 
 

Tuesday, June 27 Regular Town 
Council Meeting 

6:00 PM Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

 
Tuesday, August 8 Regular Town 

Council Meeting 
6:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 

73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, August 15 Town Council  
Work Session 

3:30 PM Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, August 22 Regular Town 
Council Meeting 

6:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Wednesday, August 23 Economic 
Development 

Committee Meeting 

4:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Thursday, August 24 Rules Committee 
Meeting  

3:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, August 29 Joint Collaboration 
Meeting  

Town of Morrisville  

5:30 PM  Halle Cultural Arts 
Center 

237 North Salem Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Thursday, August 31 Finance Committee 
Meeting  

9:00 AM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

 
Thursday, September 7 Planning Committee 

Meeting  
9:00 AM  Apex Town Hall 

73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, September 12 Regular Town 
Council Meeting 

6:00 PM Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, September 19 Town Council  
Work Session 

3:30 PM Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Wednesday, September 20 Closed Session  
Appointed Personnel 

Evaluation  

5:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, September 26 Regular Town 
Council Meeting 

6:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Thursday, September 28 Personnel Committee 4:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 



Revised 5/9/2023 
 

Page 5 of 6 
 

73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

 
Tuesday, October 3 Closed Session  

Appointed Personnel 
Evaluation 

5:00 PM Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, October 10 Regular Town 
Council Meeting 

6:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Thursday, October 19 Town Council  
Work Session 
Public Safety  

3:30 PM  Apex Police Department 
205 Saunders Street 

Apex, NC 27502 
Friday, October 20 Rules Committee 

Meeting  
3:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 

73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, October 24 Regular Town 
Council Meeting 

6:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Thursday, October 26 Finance Committee 
Meeting  

9:00 AM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Monday, October 30 Joint Collaboration 
Meeting  

Wake County  

5:00 PM  Halle Cultural Arts 
Center 

237 North Salem Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

 
Thursday, November 9 Economic 

Development 
Committee Meeting  

4:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, November 14 Regular Town  
Council Meeting 

6:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Thursday, November 16 Town Council  
Work Session 

3:30 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, November 28 Regular Town  
Council Meeting  

6:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Thursday, November 30 Planning Committee 
Meeting  

9:00 AM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

 



Revised 5/9/2023 
 

Page 6 of 6 
 

Wednesday, December 6 Organizational 
Meeting  

5:30 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Friday, December 8 Personnel Committee 
Meeting  

2:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, December 12 Regular Town  
Council Meeting 

6:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Thursday, December 14 Town Council  
Work Session  

3:30 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

 



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: PRESENTATION 

 Meeting Date: May 9, 2023 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Councilmember Terry Mahaffey, Sponsor  

Stephanie Mitchell of the Apex Public School Foundation 

Department(s): Apex Town Council and Apex Public School Foundation 

Requested Motion 

Presentation of the Peak S.T.A.R. Award for the 3rd Quarter of the 2022-2023 School Year.  

 

Approval Recommended? 

N/A 

Item Details 

The Apex Town Council is pleased to work in partnership with the Apex Public School Foundation (APSF) to 

present the Peak S.T.A.R. Award to a deserving Apex school staff member, teacher, or someone in school 

administration.  This award will be presented quarterly by the Apex Town Council and the APSF. 

 

Attachments 

 N/A 

 

- Page 393 -



Proclamation 
  Asian American and Pacific Islander Heritage Month 2023 

from the Office of the Mayor 

 WHEREAS, During Asian American and Pacific Islander Heritage Month, we acknowledge 
AAPI individuals and communities who have lived and worked in the United States for more 
than 200 years, and have made an indelible impact on our nation and town; and, 

 WHEREAS, Asian American and Pacific Islander Heritage Month recognizes the significant 
contributions of individuals and groups of Asian and Pacific descent to the history and culture of 
the United States; and, 

 WHEREAS, The month of May was selected as a way to honor the immigration of the first 
Japanese residents to the United States in 1843 and the completion of the Transcontinental 
Railroad in 1869, which was constructed by predominately Chinese immigrants; and, 

 WHEREAS, President Jimmy Carter issued Presidential Proclamation 4650 in 1979, which 
designated the week of May 4, 1979 as Asian American and Pacific Islander Heritage Week, and 
President Barack Obama issued Presidential Proclamation 8369 in 2009, proclaiming May as 
Asian American and Pacific Islander Heritage Month; and, 

 WHEREAS, Asian Americans and Pacific Islanders are some of the fastest growing ethnic 
populations in the nation, comprising 6.2% of the United States, and 9.9% of the Town of Apex. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, I, Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor of Apex, North Carolina, do hereby 
proclaim, the Month of May 2023, Asian American and Pacific Islander Heritage Month in the 
Town of Apex, and call upon all residents to reflect on the contributions and achievements of the 
Asian American and Pacific Islander communities, and to show appreciation for their continued 
strengthening of our town. 

I hereby set my hand and have caused the Seal of the Town of Apex,  
North Carolina, to be affixed this the 9th day of May 2023 

 

 

Jacques Gilbert, Mayor 

- Page 394 -



Proclamation 
  National Police Week 2023 

from the Office of the Mayor 

 WHEREAS, Congress and the President of the United States have designated May 15, 2023 as 
“Peace Officers’ Memorial Day” and the week in which it falls as “National Police Week”; and, 

 WHEREAS, There are approximately 900,000 law enforcement officers serving in 
communities across the United States, including the 99 dedicated officers of the Apex Police 
Department; and, 

 WHEREAS, The members of the Apex Police Department play an essential role in 
safeguarding the rights and freedoms of the residents in our town; and, 

 WHEREAS, It is important that the members of our law enforcement agency recognize their 
duty to serve the people of this town by safeguarding life and property, and protecting against 
violence and disorder, and, 

 WHEREAS, It is equally important that residents know and understand the hazards our 
officers face and the sacrifices they make in order to keep each of us safe; and, 

 WHEREAS, The service and sacrifice of all officers killed in the line of duty will be honored 
during the National Law Enforcement Officers Memorial Fund’s 35th Annual Candlelight Vigil 
on the evening of May 13, 2023; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, I, Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor of Apex, North Carolina, do hereby 
proclaim, the week of May 14th through May 20th, 2023, National Police Week, in the Town of 
Apex, and recognize all officers who have dedicated their lives in service of their communities. I 
further proclaim May 15th, 2023, Peace Officers’ Memorial Day, to honor our law enforcement 
heroes who have been killed or disabled in the performance of their duties. 

I hereby set my hand and have caused the Seal of the Town of Apex,  
North Carolina, to be affixed this the 9th day of May 2023 

 

 

Jacques Gilbert, Mayor 

- Page 395 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: PUBLIC HEARING 

 Meeting Date: May 9, 2023 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Angela Reincke, Parks Planning Project Manager 

Shweta Naneker, Project Manager, McAdams Co. 

Department(s): Parks, Recreation and Cultural Resources 

Requested Motion 

Possible Motion to adopt the Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Greenways and Open 

Space 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

In 2021, The Town of Apex, Parks, Recreation and Cultural Resources staff began an update to the Parks, 

Recreation, Greenways and Open Space Master Plan (PRGOS Master Plan).  The PRGOS Master Plan was 

adopted in 2014.  The newly-titled Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Greenways and 

Open Space (Master Plan) was prepared for the Town by McAdams Co. to span the 2023-2033 timeframe. 

The purpose of the public hearing is to consider adoption of the proposed Master Plan.   

 

Attachments 

 PH1-A1: Staff Report - Master Plan for Parks and Rec Staff Report 
 PH1-A2: Executive Summary for Parks and Rec Master Plan 
 PH1-A3: Implementation + Action Plan for Parks and Rec Master Plan 

 

- Page 396 -



STAFF REPORT 
Town of Apex Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Greenways and  
Open Space 

May 9, 2023 Town Council Meeting  
 

 

Prepared by: Angela Reincke, Parks Planning Project Manager 

In 2021, The Town of Apex, Parks, Recreation and Cultural Resources staff began an update to the Parks, 
Recreation, Greenways and Open Space Master Plan (PRGOS Master Plan).  The PRGOS Master Plan was 
adopted in 2014.  The newly-titled Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Greenways and Open 
Space (Master Plan) was prepared for the Town by McAdams Co. to span the 2023-2033 timeframe. The 
purpose of the public hearing is to consider adoption of the proposed Master Plan.  
 
The Master Plan serves as the guide for the Parks, Recreation and Cultural Resource (PRCR) Department for the 
10-year planning horizon. The Master Plan Map amendments would remove the existing Land Acquisition areas 
identified in the 2014 Master Plan Map, as amended, and add two new categories for the identification and 
acquisition of property for future parks and indoor recreation facilities. The Master Plan Map amendments are 
proposed to address shifts in demographics, growth patterns, and recreation trends; contextualize these trends 
for the Town; and provide a visionary guide for the future. The Master Plan Map amendments identify locations 
that will transform recreation for Apex residents and visitors through 2033. The amendments will inform 
enhancements to current parks and recreation services and guide investments in new initiatives. The Master 
Plan Map does not require a schedule for implementation nor does it set aside funding for the 
recommendations.   
 
The planning process for the Master Plan began in late 2021 with data collection and analysis of existing 
conditions. The process included establishing goals, developing guiding principles and recommendations, and 
developing an action plan. It was guided by Town staff; Apex residents; Town Council; the Parks, Recreation and 
Cultural Resources Advisory Commission (Advisory Commission); County staff; and adjacent municipality staff, 
among others.  
 
The Apex community was engaged through social media posts, signage, direct mail invitations, and the project 
webpage, along with numerous opportunities for public input including the following: 
 

 
 
 
The resulting draft Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Greenways and Open Space 
(Executive Summary and Implementation + Action Plan) is attached for review and consideration.  
 

Type of Event

Number of 

Events held

Focus Group Meetings 4

Asset Mapping Sessions 3

Visioning Workshops 3

Draft Recommendations Sessions 3

Open Houses 2

Special Events 2

Online Questionnaire Survey 1

Scientific Survey 1

West Street Park Community Engagement 1

- Page 397 -



STAFF REPORT 
Town of Apex Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Greenways and  
Open Space 

May 9, 2023 Town Council Meeting  
 

 

Prepared by: Angela Reincke, Parks Planning Project Manager 

Staff Recommendation: 
Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources Department staff recommend approval of the proposed Master Plan. 
 
Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources Advisory Commission Recommendation: 
 
The Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources Advisory Commission considered and unanimously 
recommended approval of the proposed Master Plan at their November 30, 2022 meeting. 
 
Planning Board Input: The Master Plan was presented to the Planning Board as a New Business item during 
their May 8, 2023 meeting. Any substantial comments and resulting recommended changes will be shared 
during the staff presentation. 
 
Attachments: 
Attachment 1 - Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Greenways and Open Space- 
 Executive Summary  
Attachment 2 - Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Greenways and Open Space- 
Implementation + Action Plan  

- Page 398 -



- Page 399 -



- Page 400 -



EXECUTIVE 
SUMMARY

- Page 401 -



Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Greenways, and Open Space
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Town of Apex
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

- Page 402 -



The Town of Apex embodies its slogan, ‘The Peak of Good Living’. Apex is 
a rapidly growing town, committed to its small-town charm, community 
connections, and civic pride. Its beautiful parks provide active recreation 
coupled with an immersive experience in nature. Visitors flock to Apex to 
enjoy unique amenities like the Rodgers Family Skate Plaza, Elevate Fitness 
Course, special events like PeakFest, and facilities like the Halle Cultural Arts 
Center. It is no surprise that the Town has consistently received accolades 
such as Best Place to Live, and Top Ten Best Towns. The Parks, Recreation 
and Cultural Resources Department plays a major role in making the town 
the ideal place to live, work, and play.

The Town of Apex is a desirable place to put down roots—which has led 
to its rapid growth. As Apex has grown, the demographic make-up has 
changed, creating new interests and needs for recreation and cultural 
offerings beyond traditional programming. The Town is enthusiastic about 
expanding traditional recreation with more contemporary, forward-looking 
opportunities that serve all Apex residents, attract visitors, and create 
experiences that are uniquely Apex.

  Figure ES.2 - Greenway Trail

Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Greenways, and Open Space
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Town of Apex
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1
- Page 403 -



The Town of Apex completed the previous Parks, Recreation and Cultural Resources (PRCR)
Master Plan in 2013. In 2021, the Town embarked on the journey to update the previous plan and 
guide the vision for the Department over the next 10-year planning horizon. 

The updated master plan acknowledges the shifts in demographics, growth patterns, and 
recreation trends and contextualizes these trends for the Town of Apex. It proposes a visionary 
path to enhance current parks and recreation services, ways to invest in new initiatives, and 
identifies projects to transform the scene of recreation for Apex residents and visitors by 2031.

 › Replace the 2013 PRGOS Master Plan 

 › Identify community values

 › Define the parks system’s role in the future of the Town of Apex

 › Develop a resource for elected officials, other town 
departments, and the public to guide future actions

 › Provide a framework for the PRCR Department 

 › Guide improvements to current parks system 

 › Accommodate additional demand by new residents 

 › Develop the action and implementation plan 

 › Qualify to access certain state and national funding sources

The 2023-2033 comprehensive 

master plan for parks, recreation, 

cultural resources, greenways, and 

open space  identified eight (8) goals 

for the planning process. 

Envision the Future of Parks, Recreation and Cultural Resources 

Goals

Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Greenways, and Open Space
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Town of Apex
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

2
- Page 404 -



The Town of Apex initiated the planning process in 2021 to answer three critical questions: 

 › Where are we currently as the PRCR Department?

 › Where do we want to go?

 › How do we get there?

Through this process, the Department identified gaps and uncharted opportunities, and 
set up aspirational goals to be achieved over the next ten-year planning horizon. The goals 
and recommendations are validated through a robust community engagement process and 
feedback from the Town Council, Advisory Commission, and PRCR Department Staff. 

1800+
The planning process included more 

than 1,800 touch points with the 

community, advisory commission, Town 

staff, and Town Council combined.

3- Asset Mapping Sessions

2- Open Houses

2- Special Events 

1- Online Questionnaire Survey

1- Scientific Survey

4- Focus Group Meetings

3- Visioning Workshops

3- Draft Recommendations Sessions

1- West Street Park Community Engagement

Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Greenways, and Open Space
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Town of Apex
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

3
- Page 405 -



RESEARCH FINDINGS RECOMMENDATIONS

COMMUNITY 
ENGAGEMENT

GUIDING 
PRINCIPLES ACTION PLAN

FINAL PLAN

Community 
Engagement 
by Numbers

513 
Households
Scientific Survey

56
Participants

Virtual Open House 

200+
Participants

Pop up Event
Peakfest 2021

748 
Participants

Online Questionnaire 
Survey

COMMUNITY 
ENGAGEMENT

RESEARCH

GUIDING 
PRINCIPLES

FINDINGS

Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Greenways, and Open Space
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Town of Apex
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

4
- Page 406 -



  Figure ES.3 -Planning Process

  Figure ES.4 Community Engagement by Numbers

20
Participants
West Street Park

23 
Participants

Focus Groups

40+
Participants

Visioning sessions

50+
Participants

Draft Recommendations 
Work Sessions

37
Participants
Asset Mapping 

Sessions

300+
Participants

Pop up Event
Peakfest 2022

RESEARCH FINDINGS RECOMMENDATIONS

COMMUNITY 
ENGAGEMENT

GUIDING 
PRINCIPLES ACTION PLAN

FINAL PLANFINAL PLAN

ACTION PLAN

RECOMMENDATIONS

Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Greenways, and Open Space
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Town of Apex
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

5
- Page 407 -



GREENWAYS ASSESSMENT
 › Evolving and expanding system
 › Town’s and community’s central focus on connectivity to 

destinations
 › Development-constructed greenways as new projects are 

built in Town
 › Challenges upkeeping older sections and managing new ones
 › Design standards are being implemented on new sections

State of 
the 

System

ACCESS TO FACILITIES

53% - Residents drive to access greenways and parks

DESIRE FOR DESTINATIONS 

68% - Other Greenways

65% - Natural areas + Open Space

64% - Parks + Playgrounds

REASONS FOR NOT USING GREENWAYS

38% - Lack of safe connections

32% - Lack of information

32% - Lack of destinations

What We 
Heard...

Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Greenways, and Open Space
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Town of Apex
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

6
- Page 408 -



PRIORITY INVESTMENT RATING FOR FACILITIES

PARKLAND ASSESSMENT
 › Equitable park distribution 
 › Acquisitions in high growth areas
 › Well-maintained high-quality park amenities with diverse 

programming
 › Well loved, high demand, and aging facilities
 › High demand for rentals and organized activities 

[102] Miniature golf

[162] Greenway and trails with trailheads

[147] Aquatic facility

[136] Water sports access

PRIORITY INVESTMENT 

99% - Agree that parks add to the quality of life

91% - Agree that Apex parks are safe

91% - Are supportive of improving / upkeeping  
 existing facilities

What We 
Heard...

State of 
the 

System

Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Greenways, and Open Space
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Town of Apex
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

7
- Page 409 -



PRIORITY INVESTMENT RATING FOR PROGRAMMING

INDOOR RECREATION SPACE + PROGRAMMING 
ASSESSMENT

 › Town of Apex currently has 86, 294 sq. ft. of indoor 
recreation space concentrated in the town core and 
current level of service is 1.37 Sq.Ft/ capita.

 › These facilities include a community center, a senior 
center, and a historic cultural arts center.

 › The senior center was opened at Town campus in 
November 2021.  

 › The community center is in great condition. As most senior 
programs shift to the senior center, there is an opportunity 
to expand programming at the community center. 

 › The renovated Halle Cultural Arts Center is a unique 
destination in downtown Apex.

[200] Outdoor movies and concerts

[177] Aquatic programs

[166] Fitness + wellness programs

[148] Arts programs

[146] Water sports

[141] Special events + festivals

State of 
the 

System

What We 
Heard...

97% - Rate programs/ events high quality

55% - Prioritize developing sense of   
  community through parks and recreation

Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Greenways, and Open Space
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Town of Apex
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

8
- Page 410 -



Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Greenways, and Open Space
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Town of Apex
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

9
- Page 411 -



The Town of Apex community places high value on 

aspirational goals. This plan’s recommendations and 

implementation strategies are based on the aspirations, 

expectations, and priorities shared by the community. 

The year-long planning process was established on 

the tiered framework of themes, guiding principles, 

recommendations, and action items, all rooted in 

the community values that Apex residents shared 

throughout the planning process. 

Plan 
Framework

TH
EM

ES

G
U

ID
IN

G
 P

RIN
CIP

LE
S

REC
OM

M
EN

DAT
IO

N
S

ACTI
O

N
IT

EM
S

Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Greenways, and Open Space
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Town of Apex
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

10
- Page 412 -



perience pand cel

perience pand cel

perience pand cel

Apex residents would like to Expand 
the Town’s offerings with additional 

parkland, recreational programming, and 

a more connected greenway system while 

developing environmental stewardship 

programs and opportunities to strengthen 

the culture of belonging. 

Residents want to Experience unique amenities 

and programs for all ages, abilities and interest that 

encourage a healthy lifestyle, explore cultural avenues 

and provide a strong sense of community. 

Residents want to see the PRCR 

Department Excel in operational 

efficiencies, outstanding 

customer service, and best-in- 

class programming and facilities. 

Themes
Three themes emerged from the robust community engagement: 

 › Expand

 › Experience

 › Excel

Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Greenways, and Open Space
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Town of Apex
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

11
- Page 413 -



CONNECTIVITY

Prioritize interconnected public realm through Prioritize interconnected public realm through 
greenways, bikeways, and transportation. greenways, bikeways, and transportation. 

Apex residents have expressed a strong desire for expanding the 
greenway system and connectivity to destinations including parks, 
natural areas, and open space. 

Nine guiding principles emerged through the robust community engagement process. The 

guiding principles provide the roadmap for the future of Apex Parks, Recreation and Cultural 

Resources. Because the themes and guiding principles are rooted in the community values, 

they rarely change over the 10-year planning horizon set for the project. The project priorities 

may change, but the guiding principles are the foundational elements for decision-making. 

pand › THEME -

 › Implement the proposed greenway network plan to improve 
access to parks, nearby greenways, and other local and regional 
destinations. 

 › Prioritize completion of greenway corridors that meet the highest 
levels of criteria established in the prioritization matrix.

 › Encourage and support greenway use through placemaking 
strategies.

 › Evaluate performance of the greenway network annually.

Guiding 
Principles

Each guiding principle is tied to a particular theme. These guiding 

principles were derived from the needs and desires of the 

residents shared during the community engagement process, 

along with the input received from the Advisory Commission, 

Town Council, and PRCR Department staff. 

Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Greenways, and Open Space
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Town of Apex
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

12
- Page 414 -



ENVIRONMENTAL STEWARDSHIP

Expand efforts to protect the natural assets and Expand efforts to protect the natural assets and 
collaborate on town-wide sustainability efforts. collaborate on town-wide sustainability efforts. 

Apex residents value access to natural areas and understand the 
positive health outcomes it provides. A desire for environmentally 
sustainable operations and a need for environmental education 
programming was mentioned. 

RECREATION OFFERINGS

Expand recreation offerings to attract new participants, Expand recreation offerings to attract new participants, 
retain current ones, and meet the needs of diverse retain current ones, and meet the needs of diverse 
demographics of Apex.demographics of Apex.

Apex residents have expressed a strong desire for a variety of 
program offerings that inspire people to try something new and 
provide opportunities for varying interests. 

 › Acquire 65 acres of conservation lands by 2031. 

 › Promote environmental stewardship through park and facilities 
design and focus on environmentally sustainable operating 
practices.

 › Continue to support town-wide initiatives for energy conservation 
through parks and recreation.

 › Focus on nature-based programming to generate environmental 
awareness.

 › Acquire 193 additional acres to continue to provide 10 ac/ 1000 
pop. Level of Service standard. 

 › Build 39,084 sq. ft. of additional indoor facility space by 2031.

 › Develop the existing vacant parkland to continue to provide 
recreation offerings for the growing population.

 › Continue to invest in existing parks and facilities to meet 
community priorities.

 › Continue to offer diverse recreation programs for growing and 
changing demographics of Apex.

 › Effectively manage and operate the core program areas.

Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Greenways, and Open Space
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Town of Apex
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

13
- Page 415 -



HEALTH + WELLBEING

Support health and wellbeing of Apex residents 
through parks and recreation. 

Apex residents ranked fitness and wellness programs as one of the 
top priorities for investment and there is a town-wide consensus 
that parks and recreation has a positive effect on the community’s 
health and quality of life. 

perience

CULTURE OF BELONGINGCULTURE OF BELONGING

Nurture the culture of belonging by prioritizing Nurture the culture of belonging by prioritizing 
inclusion, diversity, equity, and accessibility. inclusion, diversity, equity, and accessibility. 

Apex residents consider diverse parks and recreation offerings for 
all ages and ability levels as an asset to the community. Expanding 
cultural events to celebrate the diversity of demographics was 
indicated as a future need.

 › Achieve equitable access to parks, facilities, and programs for all 
Apex residents. 

 › Support special events and programs that represent diverse 
cultures in Apex.

 › Continue to provide age targeted recreation programs that appeal 
to diverse interest groups.

 › Prioritize PLAY opportunities for all ages and abilities.

 › Prioritize placemaking strategies to create welcoming spaces that 
attract a wide range of participants.

 › Encourage development of amenities and programs that provide 
physical, social, and mental health benefits.

 › Promote access to healthy lifestyle choices.

 › THEME -

Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Greenways, and Open Space
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Town of Apex
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

14
- Page 416 -



SENSE OF COMMUNITYSENSE OF COMMUNITY

Provide a chance for people to socialize, form Provide a chance for people to socialize, form 
friendships, and discover common grounds. friendships, and discover common grounds. 

Apex residents indicated creating connections and developing 
a sense of community should be one of the most important 
considerations when prioritizing parks and recreation investments. 
Parks provide a chance for social cohesion where people get to 
know each other and feel inspired. 

UNIQUE TO APEX

Reflect on Apex’s culture and history through the design Reflect on Apex’s culture and history through the design 
of spaces that are unique, innovative, and imageable. of spaces that are unique, innovative, and imageable. 

Apex residents want to see innovative programs and amenities that 
attract out of town visitors to Apex as a way to generate economic 
impact. 

 › Provide opportunities for residents to connect with each other 
and encourage social interaction.

 › Continue to offer cultural arts programming to appeal to diverse 
interest groups and cultural backgrounds. 

 › Promote “unique to Apex” theme while designing new parks and 
amenities.

Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Greenways, and Open Space
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Town of Apex
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

15
- Page 417 -



cel

OPERATIONS EFFICIENCY

Achieve organizational excellence by implementing Achieve organizational excellence by implementing 
business practices that enhance efficiency, staff business practices that enhance efficiency, staff 
satisfaction, and economic vitality. satisfaction, and economic vitality. 

Apex residents recognize that as the town continues to grow, there is 
a need for additional staff, resources, and a desire to be competitive 
with other recreation providers in the area. 

CUSTOMER SERVICE

Provide outstanding customer service through Provide outstanding customer service through 
streamlined communication and marketing efforts. streamlined communication and marketing efforts. 

Apex residents consider PRCR staff an asset to the community 
for excellent customer service. PRCR staff indicated the desire for 
streamlined marketing efforts, enhanced online presence, and staff 
empowerment to excel in customer service. 

 › Streamline recreation program management through best 
practices, tracking, and fees policy updates. 

 › Achieve operations efficiency through sound maintenance and 
management practices. 

 › Invest in staffing resources and staff satisfaction to achieve 
departmental operations efficiency.

 › Seek strategic partnerships with third party providers to expand 
Department’s capacity to provide competitive services.

 › Implement capital improvements and operations through 
responsible funding sources.

 › Provide high quality customer service through enhanced 
communication and outreach. 

 › Establish a volunteer program to engage residents in parks and 
recreation services and develop a sense of ownership within the 
community.

 › THEME -

Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Greenways, and Open Space
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Town of Apex
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

16
- Page 418 -



 › Guiding Principles Compatibility

 › Community Needs

 › Parks System Advancement
 › Degree of Urgency

 › Economic Impact

 › Compatibility with Town policies and planning efforts 

including Advance Apex

PRIORITIZATION 

CRITERIA

The Master Plan for Apex’s Parks, Recreation and Cultural Resources, Greenways, and 
Open Space aims to expand the opportunities for parks and recreation amenities and 
programming for the Apex community.  Through a reality-based planning approach, 
the plan balances the current needs and desires of the residents with visionary and  
aspirational goals. 

As the Town continues to grow, it must proactively plan to ensure the needs of the 
community will be met. Strategic planning that involves appropriate staffing allocation, 
funding resources, and effective business decisions will be required to implement the 
recommendations and action items suggested in this plan. Secondly, it will require 
systematic and regular assessment of current recreation provision, asset management, 
and management practices to ensure Department’s sound operations. Thirdly, the 
Department will need to continue to collaborate with other Town departments, adjacent 
jurisdictions, Wake County, local businesses, special interests groups, and third-party 
recreation providers. Above all, the Department will require focus on its aspirational goals 
which will be achieved through visionary decisions, innovative actions, and measured 
risk-taking to support its motto ‘The Peak of Good Living.’

Imple-
mentation

This plan sets forth implementation guidelines for use as 

a decision-making tool for staff and elected officials.  This 

approach informs and validates decisions through data and 

community values, leading to defendable and high performing 

projects implemented through consensus among stakeholders. 

Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Greenways, and Open Space
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Town of Apex
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

17
- Page 419 -



SNEAK PEEK AT TOWN OF APEX’S FUTURE PARKS 

SYSTEM TRANSFORMATIVE PROJECTS
APEX
2033

GUIDING PRINCIPLE TRANSFORMATIVE PROJECTS

E
X

P
A

N
D

CONNECTIVITY

 › Start Design Development on the three recommended 
prioritized corridors.

 › Complete Beaver Creek Corridor.
 › Continue partnership with Wake County and Town of Holly 

Springs to complete Middle Creek Greenway Corridor.

RECREATION OFFERINGS

 › Complete master plans for two new parks in western Apex and 
start construction.

 › Complete plans for 2- recreation centers and the nature center 
and start construction on at least one.

 › Acquire parkland per Veridea Park Master Plan for a new park 
and a recreation center in SE Apex.

CULTURE OF BELONGING
 › Update fees and charges policy for programs and include need-

based component. 
 › Update Kelly Road Park playground as  inclusive play area. 

ENVIRONMENTAL 
STEWARDSHIP

 › Establish Department goals for sustainability within the 
framework of Town-wide initiatives.

E
X

P
E

R
IE

N
C

E

HEALTH + WELL-BEING
 › Develop options for in-person and online health and fitness 

programs. 
 › Promote park amenities that encourage active lifestyles. 

SENSE OF COMMUNITY
 › Complete renovations of Depot Plaza as downtown social hub 

destination. 

UNIQUE TO APEX
 › Complete renovations of historic Tunstall House. 
 › Develop town-wide Public Art Plan. 

E
X

C
E

L OPERATIONS EFFICIENCY  › Develop formal volunteer program for PRCR Department. 

CUSTOMER SERVICE  › Develop Marketing Plan. 

Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Greenways, and Open Space
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Town of Apex
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

18
- Page 420 -



Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Greenways, and Open Space
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Town of Apex
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

19
- Page 421 -



- Page 422 -



- Page 423 -



11 | IMPLEMENTATION +
ACTION PLAN

IN THIS CHAPTER
Introduction

Prioritization Guidelines

Implementation + Action Plan

- Page 424 -



Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Green ways and Open Space
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION 

Town of Apex 
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION

11 | 4
- Page 425 -



The Town of Apex Parks, Recreation, Greenways and Open Space Master 
Plan proposes recommendations and action items that align with the 
themes and guiding principles developed through a robust community 
and staff engagement process and based on the strong foundation of 
community values. The action items address enhancements to existing 
services and implementing new amenities and programs over a ten-year 
planning horizon.  

As the Town continues the implementation process over the next decade, 
many projects will evolve based on changing recreation trends, availability 
of funding, and the needs of a growing community. When there are 
many opportunities and competing interests, it is difficult for decision 
makers to prioritize and implement projects. Hence, this plan sets forth 
implementation guidelines for use as a decision-making tool for staff and 
elected officials.  This approach informs and validates decisions through 
data and community values, leading to statistically-based projects and 
consensus among stakeholders.  

  Figure 11.1- Downtown Deport Plaza

Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Green ways and Open Space
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION 

Town of Apex 
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION

11 | 1
- Page 426 -



PRIORITIZATION GUIDELINES

The proposed prioritization guidelines for project implementation described below encompass the master plan 
guiding principles, community needs, and parks system advancement. There are series of questions added to 
each section to help the Town make an informed decision as projects are identified or new projects emerge for 
implementation. 

1. Guiding Principles Compatibility

This criterion will ensure that the projects considered for implementation are consistent with the guiding 
principles of the plan. Overlapping multiple guiding principles will generate benefits that span across the system 
covering all elements from environmental sustainability to economic impact. The following questions can help 
evaluate this criterion: 

a. Does the project meet the needs of the growing community by providing recreation programs, 
special events, and unique amenities that are not currently available?  

b. Does this project provide equitable access to parks and facilities for people of all ages and abilities 
and create inclusive environments for people of different cultures and ethnicities? 

c. Does this project support health and wellbeing of the community members by providing amenities 
that encourage physical activity or reduce mental stress? 

d. Does this project fill in the identified gaps to create a recreation system that connects key 
destinations within the Town via greenway trails and side paths? Does this project protect natural 
resources for its ecological and environmental benefits?

e. Does this project elevate the quality-of-life experience for Apex residents by strengthening the 
sense of community, identifying key partnerships, and achieving operational efficiency? 

2. Community Needs

This criterion leverages the findings from the community engagement process undertaken during this project. 
Two major components of this criterion are findings from the scientific survey and the feedback received from 
various other groups as noted below: 

a. Scientific survey results PIR ratings based on the unmet needs and the level of importance given to 
these needs by the participants

b. Public, focus groups, and advisory commission feedback received through various platforms

Following questions can help evaluate this criterion: 

1. Is this project listed on the priority investment rating scale as mentioned in the scientific survey?

2. Is this project identified as a need by various groups in the public engagement process? 

Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Green ways and Open Space
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION 

Town of Apex 
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION

11 | 2
- Page 427 -



3. Parks System Advancement

The parks system advancement criterion is related to providing an 
excellent parks and recreation service and high-quality amenities and 
programs by addressing the detail technical project implementation 
questions. These questions are divided into following three categories 
as follows: 

1. Degree of Urgency

a. Does this project need attention to ensure public health, 
safety, and welfare?

b. Does this project need attention to comply with current 
building codes and regulations? 

c. Will this project protect natural resources which otherwise 
may be lost if not addressed immediately? 

d. Is this project a unique opportunity resulting from other 
projects that may be lost if not taken as priority?

2. Economic Impact

a. Will this project create long term operational efficiency and financial loss if not addressed promptly?

b. Does this project generate revenue for the parks and recreation department? 

c. Does this project generate revenue through strategic partnerships or time sensitive grant funding 
opportunities?

3. Compatibility with Town policies and planning efforts

a. Is this project compatible with the Future Land Use Plan? 

b. Does this project build upon other regional planning efforts to connect Apex residents to regional 
and state level recreation opportunities? 

c. Does this project address existing gaps in the system to achieve cohesive parks and recreation system?

FROM RECOMMENDATIONS TO ACTIONS + IMPLEMENTATION

The implementation plan is considered a 10-year work plan or a road map for the Town. The framework for the 
implementation plan is designed to show roles and responsibilities of the staff accountable for action items, actions 
from elected officials, and overall documentation of implementation progress. 

There are three primary pathways to implement recommendations and action items- through policy guidance 
(PG), Development Ordinance (DO), and identification of capital projects and associated funding mechanisms (CF).  
Additionally, the fourth pathway suggested for this plan is Operational Advancements (OA) for the recommendations 
that refer to changes or improvements in departmental operations. Each action below is supported by the types of 
pathways the Town needs to take to implement the same. The majority of the recommendations and action items 
are supported by policy guidance, followed by identification of projects that need capital funding investment. The 
Unified Development Ordinance is referenced where the Town has established the codes that relate to action items. 
Furthermore, the responsibility section notes the department group responsible for implementation and identifies 
other departments the PRCR Department should continue to collaborate with. 

Degree of 
Urgency

Economic 
Impact

Policies + 
Planning 

Compatibility

  Figure 11.2- Park System Advancement 

Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Green ways and Open Space
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION 

Town of Apex 
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION

11 | 3
- Page 428 -



The implementation plan also includes a status update on each of the action items to keep track of the progress 
and remove the action items from the plan once they are completed. The status categories include Perpetual, 
In Progress, On Hold, Not Started, and Completed. The Town can consider developing an “implementation plan 
team” to ensure accountability and consistent progress over the ten-year planning horizon. The implementation 
team will be responsible for congruency with other town-wide planning efforts, identifying priority capital 
projects and funding sources, and developing annual progress reports.  An annual progress report is helpful 
for the Department’s internal operations and staff motivation as well as communicating the success to 
elected officials and public at large. It also sets the stage for next year’s project priorities, staffing, and funding 
allocations. The implementation team will also take account of any emerging issues, trends, community’s 
changing desires etc. in the annual report. 

RESPONSIBLE PRCR GROUPS 
TOWN DEPARTMENTS COLLABORATION
OPPORTUNITIES

PRCR Administration Town Administration

Cultural Arts Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion (DEI Department) 

Recreation Programs (includes Community Center) Economic Development

Senior Center Planning and Community Development

Marketing Public Works

Athletics Programs Transportation Engineering

Parks and Planning (includes Pleasant Park) Water Resources 

Park Operations

STATUS DESCRIPTION EXPLANATION

Perpetual The action item does not have an end date. It may be currently under progress and 
will continue to be implemented in perpetuity of this master plan. 

In Progress The action item is currently under progress and will have a definite end date. 

On Hold The action item is on hold.

Not Started The action item implementation has not started. 

Completed The action item implementation has been completed.

  Figure 11.3- Pleasant Park (Under Construction) 

Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Green ways and Open Space
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION 

Town of Apex 
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION

11 | 4
- Page 429 -



THEMES/ 

GUIDING 

PRINCIPLES

RECOMMENDATIONS ACTION ITEMS
ACTION

PATHWAY
RESPONSIBILITY STATUS

1. EXPAND
1.1 Connectivity: Prioritize interconnected public realm through greenways, bikeways, and transportation.

1.1.1 Implement 
the proposed 
greenway network 
plan to improve 
access to parks, 
other greenways, 
and other local 
and regional 
destinations. 

a. Build additional 12 plus miles 
of greenways in the next ten 
years to achieve a minimum level 
of service of 0.46 miles/ 1,000 
population.

PG, DO, 
CF

Parks and 
Planning, 
Transportation 
Engineering, 
Planning & 
Community Dev., 
Public Works

In 
progress 

b. Continue inter-departmental 
collaborations on the bike-ped 
plan, transportation plan, and the 
PRGOS Master Plan to improve 
system-wide connectivity, 
implement recommended 
infrastructure, amenities, and 
policies outlined in adopted plans

PG

Parks and 
Planning and 
Parks, Recreation 
& Cultural 
Resources 
Advisory 
Commission

Perpetual 

c. Continue inter-jurisdictional 
collaborations to improve regional 
connectivity.

PG
Parks and 
Planning

Perpetual

d. Address current gaps in the 
system to expand the network 
connectivity through side path, 
street side trail, and greenway 
development.

PG, DO, 
CF

Parks and 
Planning, 
Transportation 
engineering, 
Planning & 
Community Dev., 
Public Works

Perpetual

e. Identify ‘commuter corridors’ 
to offer regional connectivity with 
major employment destinations.

PG
Parks and 
Planning

In 
Progress

f. Coordinate with NCDOT Division 
5 on future STIP projects to 
prioritize and construct sidepaths 
or greenways, safe connections, 
and intersection treatments in 
roadway projects. Construct 
grade-separated crossings or  
barrier protected bike/ped lanes 
on bridges as a betterment on 
NCDOT projects.

CF

Parks and 
Planning, 
Transportation 
engineering, 
Planning & 
Community Dev., 
NCDOT Div. 5, 
NCDOT IMD

Perpetual

Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Green ways and Open Space
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION 

Town of Apex 
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION

11 | 5
- Page 430 -



1.1.1 Implement 
the proposed 
greenway network 
plan to improve 
access to parks, 
other greenways, 
and other local 
and regional 
destinations. 

g. Develop a greenway work 
plan and construct greenway 
development as part of essential 
infrastructure development 
across the Town. Designate Town 
staff to lead implementation of 
plan recommendations.

PG, DO, 
CF

Parks and 
Planning, 
Transportation 
engineering, 
Planning & 
Community Dev., 
Public Works

Perpetual

h. Develop a greenway work 
plan and construct greenway 
development as part of essential 
infrastructure development 
across the Town. Designate Town 
staff to lead implementation of 
plan recommendations.

OA, CF

Parks and 
Planning, 
Transportation 
engineering, 
Planning & 
Community Dev., 
Public Works

Not 
Started

i. Develop funding strategies and 
allocate funding for greenway 
development annually and seek 
funding opportunities for right-
of-way acquisitions, easement 
acquisitions proactively.

CF

PRCR 
Administration, 
Town 
Administration, 
Parks and Planning, 
CAMPO, Wake 
County, NCDOT IMD

Perpetual

1.1.2 Prioritize 
completion of 
greenway corridors 
that meet most 
criteria established 
in the prioritization 
matrix.

a. Use the prioritization criteria 
(Step 1: Feasibility; Step 2: 
Prepare cost analysis) to inform 
decisions regarding prioritization 
for project implementation.

PG
Parks and 
Planning

In 
Progress

b. Conduct feasibility studies 
for the high priority greenway 
projects.

PG, CF

Parks and Planning, 
NCDOT, regional 
partners, adjacent 
municipalities

In 
Progress

c. Following feasibility study 
completion, score high-priority 
greenway corridors for design 
development and construction 
funding using the prioritization 
criteria developed through the 
Master Plan update. 

CF

Parks and 
Planning, 
Transportation 
engineering, 
Planning & 
Community Dev., 
Public Works

Not 
Started

d. Staff should analyze budget 
annually using the two-step 
prioritization criteria. 

PG, CF
Parks and 
Planning

Not 
Started

1.1.3 Encourage and 
support greenway 
use through 
placemaking 
strategies.

a. Use placemaking strategies to 
enhance user experience along 
greenway nodes and trail head 
locations.

PG, CF
Parks and 
Planning

Perpetual

Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Green ways and Open Space
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION 

Town of Apex 
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION

11 | 6
- Page 431 -



1.1.1 Implement 
the proposed 
greenway network 
plan to improve 
access to parks, 
other greenways, 
and other local 
and regional 
destinations. 

g. Develop a greenway work 
plan and construct greenway 
development as part of essential 
infrastructure development 
across the Town. Designate Town 
staff to lead implementation of 
plan recommendations.

PG, DO, 
CF

Parks and 
Planning, 
Transportation 
engineering, 
Planning & 
Community Dev., 
Public Works

Perpetual

h. Develop a greenway work 
plan and construct greenway 
development as part of essential 
infrastructure development 
across the Town. Designate Town 
staff to lead implementation of 
plan recommendations.

OA, CF

Parks and 
Planning, 
Transportation 
engineering, 
Planning & 
Community Dev., 
Public Works

Not 
Started

i. Develop funding strategies and 
allocate funding for greenway 
development annually and seek 
funding opportunities for right-
of-way acquisitions, easement 
acquisitions proactively.

CF

PRCR 
Administration, 
Town 
Administration, 
Parks and Planning, 
CAMPO, Wake 
County, NCDOT IMD

Perpetual

1.1.2 Prioritize 
completion of 
greenway corridors 
that meet most 
criteria established 
in the prioritization 
matrix.

a. Use the prioritization criteria 
(Step 1: Feasibility; Step 2: 
Prepare cost analysis) to inform 
decisions regarding prioritization 
for project implementation.

PG
Parks and 
Planning

In 
Progress

b. Conduct feasibility studies 
for the high priority greenway 
projects.

PG, CF

Parks and Planning, 
NCDOT, regional 
partners, adjacent 
municipalities

In 
Progress

c. Following feasibility study 
completion, score high-priority 
greenway corridors for design 
development and construction 
funding using the prioritization 
criteria developed through the 
Master Plan update. 

CF

Parks and 
Planning, 
Transportation 
engineering, 
Planning & 
Community Dev., 
Public Works

Not 
Started

d. Staff should analyze budget 
annually using the two-step 
prioritization criteria. 

PG, CF
Parks and 
Planning

Not 
Started

1.1.3 Encourage and 
support greenway 
use through 
placemaking 
strategies.

a. Use placemaking strategies to 
enhance user experience along 
greenway nodes and trail head 
locations.

PG, CF
Parks and 
Planning

Perpetual

1.1.3 
(cont.)

Encourage and 
support greenway 
use through 
placemaking 
strategies.

b. Develop a hierarchical system 
of trail heads and identify 
amenities associated with each 
such as restrooms, weather 
shelter, parking, drinking water, 
public art etc. 

PG, CF
Parks and 
Planning

Not 
Started

c. Provide easy access to 
amenities (e.g., rest rooms, 
drinking water, seating areas, mile 
markers etc.) to encourage fitness 
and health outcomes.

OA, CF

Parks and 
Planning, Public 
Works, Parks 
Operations

Not 
Started

d. Develop a Greenway 
Maintenance & Operations 
Plan and allocate resources for 
maintenance of aging sections 
as part of the asset management 
plan.   

PG, CF

Parks and 
Planning, 
Recreation 
Programs, 
Marketing

Not 
Started

e. Incorporate digital capabilities 
such as QR codes on greenway 
signage, bike rentals, and phone 
apps to encourage greenway use

CF

Parks and 
Planning, 
Recreation 
Programs

Not 
Started

f. Facilitate and participate in 
programs and events such as bike 
rodeos, traffic gardens, and other 
educational programming, group 
walks and bike rides, nature hikes, 
etc. to attract new users 

PG, DC, 
CF

Parks and 
Planning, 
Planning & 
Community Dev.

Perpetual

g. Ensure connectivity to internal 
parks trails from greenway 
corridors. 

CF
Parks and 
Planning

Perpetual

h. Continue to implement the 
current wayfinding signage along 
new greenway corridors.

PG, CF
Parks and 
Planning

Not 
Started

1.1.4 Evaluate 
performance of 
the greenway 
network annually.

a. Use placemaking strategies to 
enhance user experience along 
greenway nodes and trail head 
locations.

OA
Parks and 
Planning

Not 
Started

b. Coordinate with NCDOT IMD 
to participate in the Bicycle and 
Pedestrian Count Program.

OA
Parks and 
Planning

Not 
Started

Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Green ways and Open Space
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION 

Town of Apex 
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION

11 | 7
- Page 432 -



1. EXPAND

1.2 Recreation offerings: Expand recreation offerings to attract new participants, retain current ones, and 
meet the needs of diverse and growing demographics of Apex.

Parks and Facilities Recommendations

1.2.1 Acquire 193 
additional acres 
to continue to 
provide 10 ac/ 
1000 pop. Level of 
Service standard.

a. Adopt the LOS standard of 10 
acres/1,000 population. 

PG, DO
PRCR 
Administration

Not 
Started

b. Target land acquisition in 
the areas identified in the parks 
search areas map. 

PG
Parks and 
Planning

Not 
Started

c. Encourage developable land 
dedication instead of fee-in-lieu 
provision within the park search 
areas

PG

PRCR 
Administration, 
Parks and 
Planning

Not 
Started

1.2.2 Build 39,084 sq. 
ft. of additional 
indoor facility 
space by 2031.

a. Conduct feasibility 
studies to determine indoor 
programming needs at the 
existing undeveloped parkland 
and investigate partnership 
opportunities to allow flexibility 
in the number of new indoor 
facilities.  

CF
Parks and 
Planning

Not 
Started

b. Build Nature Center per Nature 
Park plans to meet demands 
for environmental educational 
programming and community 
space.  

CF
Parks and 
Planning

In 
Progress

c. Develop business plans 
prior to developing new indoor 
facilities to identify amenity and 
programming needs, staff needs, 
office spaces, and fees.

CF
Parks and 
Planning

Not 
Started

1.2.3 Develop the 
existing vacant 
parkland to 
continue to 
provide recreation 
offerings 
for growing 
population.

a. Develop master plans for the 
two recently acquired vacant 
parkland properties.

CF
Parks and 
Planning

Not 
Started

b. Complete full build out 
of Pleasant Park facility per 
approved plans.

CF
Parks and 
Planning

Ongoing

c. Leverage community input, 
PIR findings, and level of service 
standards to provide additional 
park amenities such as new 
sports courts and additional 
playgrounds.

CF
Parks and 
Planning

Not 
Started

Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Green ways and Open Space
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION 

Town of Apex 
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION

11 | 8
- Page 433 -



1. EXPAND

1.2 Recreation offerings: Expand recreation offerings to attract new participants, retain current ones, and 
meet the needs of diverse and growing demographics of Apex.

Parks and Facilities Recommendations

1.2.1 Acquire 193 
additional acres 
to continue to 
provide 10 ac/ 
1000 pop. Level of 
Service standard.

a. Adopt the LOS standard of 10 
acres/1,000 population. 

PG, DO
PRCR 
Administration

Not 
Started

b. Target land acquisition in 
the areas identified in the parks 
search areas map. 

PG
Parks and 
Planning

Not 
Started

c. Encourage developable land 
dedication instead of fee-in-lieu 
provision within the park search 
areas

PG

PRCR 
Administration, 
Parks and 
Planning

Not 
Started

1.2.2 Build 39,084 sq. 
ft. of additional 
indoor facility 
space by 2031.

a. Conduct feasibility 
studies to determine indoor 
programming needs at the 
existing undeveloped parkland 
and investigate partnership 
opportunities to allow flexibility 
in the number of new indoor 
facilities.  

CF
Parks and 
Planning

Not 
Started

b. Build Nature Center per Nature 
Park plans to meet demands 
for environmental educational 
programming and community 
space.  

CF
Parks and 
Planning

In 
Progress

c. Develop business plans 
prior to developing new indoor 
facilities to identify amenity and 
programming needs, staff needs, 
office spaces, and fees.

CF
Parks and 
Planning

Not 
Started

1.2.3 Develop the 
existing vacant 
parkland to 
continue to 
provide recreation 
offerings 
for growing 
population.

a. Develop master plans for the 
two recently acquired vacant 
parkland properties.

CF
Parks and 
Planning

Not 
Started

b. Complete full build out 
of Pleasant Park facility per 
approved plans.

CF
Parks and 
Planning

Ongoing

c. Leverage community input, 
PIR findings, and level of service 
standards to provide additional 
park amenities such as new 
sports courts and additional 
playgrounds.

CF
Parks and 
Planning

Not 
Started

1.2.3 
(cont.)

Develop the 
existing vacant 
parkland to 
continue to 
provide recreation 
offerings 
for growing 
population.

d. Update current land 
acquisition and fee-in-lieu policy 
and conduct a fee study for 
identifying and prioritizing land 
acquisition for future parks and 
open space and recreational 
amenities including greenways. 

PG

PRCR 
Administration, 
Parks and 
Planning, Athletic 
Programs, 
Recreation 
Programs

Not 
Started

e. Consider recreation trends 
amongst diverse Apex 
populations to plan for new 
amenities in parks. 

PG, OA
Parks and 
Planning

Perpetual

1.2.4 Continue to invest 
in existing parks 
and facilities to 
meet community 
priorities. 

a. Regularly assess existing parks 
and facilities for renovations 
and park activation through new 
innovative amenities and programs 
to continue to attract visitors. 

CF

Parks and 
Planning, Athletic 
Programs, 
Recreation 
Programs

Perpetual

b. Adopt total cost of service/ 
ownership model to anticipate 
capital investment and operations 
+ maintenance costs for aging 
facilities.

PG

PRCR 
Administration, 
Parks and 
Planning

Not 
Started

c. Implement the site specific and 
facility specific recommendations 
outlined in this plan to respond to 
diverse recreation interests.  

CF
Parks and 
Planning

In 
Progress

d. Consider revenue generating 
potential of facilities such as the 
Halle Cultural Arts Center through 
provision of concessions. 

PG, CF
Parks and 
Planning, Cultural 
Arts

Not 
Started

e. Streamline the reservation 
processes for sports fields to 
optimize their use for league play 
and open play. 

CF, OA Athletic Programs
Not 

Started

f. Consider developing business 
plans for existing and future parks 
and facilities. 

CF
Parks and 
Planning

Not 
Started

Programming Recommendations

1.2.5 Continue to offer 
diverse recreation 
programs for 
growing and 
changing 
demographics of 
Apex.

a. Continue to provide existing 
programs: special events and 
festivals, senior programs, athletic 
sports and non-athletic fitness 
programs, arts, environmental 
education, and age-appropriate 
interests.

CF

Athletic 
Programs, 
Recreation 
Programs, 
Cultural Arts

Perpetual

Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Green ways and Open Space
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION 

Town of Apex 
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION

11 | 9
- Page 434 -



b. Consider nation-wide 
recreation trends to test new 
programs offerings.

CF, OA

Athletic 
Programs, 
Recreation 
Programs

Perpetual

c. Partner with community groups 
and volunteers to offer small scale, 
neighborhood level special programs 
such as arts and crafts, movies, 
pop-up play, and fitness programs.    

CF
Recreation 
Programs

Not 
Started

1.2.6 Effectively manage 
and operate the 
core program 
areas. 

a. Evaluate core program areas 
and individual programs annually 
to ensure offerings are relevant to 
evolving demographics and local 
recreation trends. 

OA

Athletic 
Programs, 
Recreation 
Programs

Not 
Started

b. Establish Program lifecycle 
analysis process to ensure 
balanced distribution of programs 
annually. 

OA

Athletic 
Programs, 
Recreation 
Programs, 
Cultural Arts

Not 
Started

c. Establish annual performance 
measures for each core program 
area to track program success. 

OA

Athletic 
Programs, 
Recreation 
Programs, 
Cultural Arts

Not 
Started

d. Develop sound fees and 
charges policy based on program 
service level.

OA

PRCR 
Administration, 
Athletic Programs, 
Recreation 
Programs, 
Cultural Arts

Not 
Started

e. Balance cost recovery goals 
with seeking funding through tax 
dollars, grants, and sponsorships.

OA

PRCR 
Administration, 
Athletic Programs, 
Recreation 
Programs, 
Cultural Arts

Not 
Started

1. EXPAND

1.3. Culture of Belonging: Nurture the culture of belonging by prioritizing inclusion, diversity, equity, and 
accessibility.

1.3.1 Achieve equitable 
access to parks, 
facilities, and 
programs for all 
Apex residents. 

a. Ensure equitable geographic 
distribution of parks and facilities 
throughout Apex. 

PG
Parks and 
Planning

Perpetual

Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Green ways and Open Space
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION 

Town of Apex 
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION

11 | 10
- Page 435 -



b. Consider nation-wide 
recreation trends to test new 
programs offerings.

CF, OA

Athletic 
Programs, 
Recreation 
Programs

Perpetual

c. Partner with community groups 
and volunteers to offer small scale, 
neighborhood level special programs 
such as arts and crafts, movies, 
pop-up play, and fitness programs.    

CF
Recreation 
Programs

Not 
Started

1.2.6 Effectively manage 
and operate the 
core program 
areas. 

a. Evaluate core program areas 
and individual programs annually 
to ensure offerings are relevant to 
evolving demographics and local 
recreation trends. 

OA

Athletic 
Programs, 
Recreation 
Programs

Not 
Started

b. Establish Program lifecycle 
analysis process to ensure 
balanced distribution of programs 
annually. 

OA

Athletic 
Programs, 
Recreation 
Programs, 
Cultural Arts

Not 
Started

c. Establish annual performance 
measures for each core program 
area to track program success. 

OA

Athletic 
Programs, 
Recreation 
Programs, 
Cultural Arts

Not 
Started

d. Develop sound fees and 
charges policy based on program 
service level.

OA

PRCR 
Administration, 
Athletic Programs, 
Recreation 
Programs, 
Cultural Arts

Not 
Started

e. Balance cost recovery goals 
with seeking funding through tax 
dollars, grants, and sponsorships.

OA

PRCR 
Administration, 
Athletic Programs, 
Recreation 
Programs, 
Cultural Arts

Not 
Started

1. EXPAND

1.3. Culture of Belonging: Nurture the culture of belonging by prioritizing inclusion, diversity, equity, and 
accessibility.

1.3.1 Achieve equitable 
access to parks, 
facilities, and 
programs for all 
Apex residents. 

a. Ensure equitable geographic 
distribution of parks and facilities 
throughout Apex. 

PG
Parks and 
Planning

Perpetual

1.3.1 
(cont.)

Achieve equitable 
access to parks, 
facilities, and 
programs for all 
Apex residents. 

b. Consider nation-wide 
recreation trends to test new 
programs offerings.

PG
Parks and 
Planning

Perpetual

c. Improve accessibility to all 
parks and recreation facilities for 
all abilities.  

CF, PG
Parks and 
Planning

Perpetual

d. Develop need-based fees and 
charges policy to ensure fair and 
equitable access to high quality 
programs for all residents.

PG

PRCR Admin., 
Athletic Programs, 
Recreation 
Programs, 
Cultural Arts

Not 
Started

e. Consider multi-modal 
transportation options such as 
greenway access, side paths, 
and public transport to improve 
access to parks and programs 
including special events. 

CF, PG
Parks and 
Planning

In 
Progress

1.3.2 Support special 
events and 
programs that 
represent diverse 
cultures in Apex. 

a. Evaluate if the needs of all 
segments of populations are 
being met through programming 
and marketing plan through 
community feedback, annual 
surveys, program participation 
evaluation forms, etc. 

OA, PG

Athletic Programs, 
Recreation 
Programs, 
Cultural Arts, 
Senior Center, 
Marketing

Not 
Started

b. Continue to expand culturally 
diverse programs for Town’s 
growing population.

PG, CF
Recreation 
Programs, 
Cultural Arts

Perpetual

c. Offer new outdoor special 
events and festivals to expand on 
the current offerings. 

PG, CF
Recreation 
Programs, 
Cultural Arts

In 
Progress

d. Partner with DEI Department 
to find common goals to reach 
minority and underserved 
population in Apex. 

OA
PRCR 
Administration, 
DEI Department

Not 
Started

e. Ensure diverse demographic 
representation on Boards and 
Commissions.

OA Cultural Arts
Not 

Started

Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Green ways and Open Space
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION 

Town of Apex 
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION

11 | 11
- Page 436 -



1.3.3 Continue to 
provide age 
targeted 
recreation 
programs that 
appeal to diverse 
interest groups.

a. Expand multi-generational 
programs to attract wider range 
of age groups. 

CF

Athletic Programs, 
Recreation 
Programs, 
Cultural Arts, 
Senior Center

Perpetual

b. Prioritize teen programs 
that are fun, educational, and 
encourage positive social 
interaction. 

CF

Athletic Programs, 
Recreation 
Programs, 
Cultural Arts

Perpetual

c. Provide opportunities for teens 
to volunteer, earn community 
service hours for high school 
and educate on professional 
opportunities. 

CF

Athletic Programs, 
Recreation 
Programs, 
Cultural Arts

Perpetual

d. Offer trending recreation 
programs to attract new teens to 
participate. 

CF

Athletic Programs, 
Recreation 
Programs, 
Cultural Arts

Not 
Started

e. Involve teens in community 
engagement process for 
designing new parks and 
amenities. 

CF
Parks and 
Planning

In 
Progress

f. Expand indoor and outdoor 
recreation opportunities for 
seniors through the recently 
developed senior center facility. 

CF Senior Center
In 

Progress

g. Develop new fitness and sports 
programs for active adults.  

CF Senior Center
In 

Progress

h. Develop virtual, after hours, 
and weekend programs to allow 
flexibility to participate. 

CF

Athletic Programs, 
Recreation 
Programs, 
Cultural Arts, 
Senior Center

In 
Progress

i. Evaluate youth camp options as 
additional facility space becomes 
available. 

CF

Athletic Programs, 
Recreation 
Programs, 
Cultural Arts, 
Senior Center

Not 
Started

1.3.4 Prioritize PLAY 
opportunities 
for all ages and 
abilities.

a. Renovate existing play areas to 
address the needs of all ability users.

CF
Parks and 
Planning

Not 
Started

b. Use inclusive and universal 
design principles to design play 
areas to allow use by all ages and 
abilities.

CF, PG
Parks and 
Planning

Perpetual

Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Green ways and Open Space
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION 

Town of Apex 
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION

11 | 12
- Page 437 -



1.3.3 Continue to 
provide age 
targeted 
recreation 
programs that 
appeal to diverse 
interest groups.

a. Expand multi-generational 
programs to attract wider range 
of age groups. 

CF

Athletic Programs, 
Recreation 
Programs, 
Cultural Arts, 
Senior Center

Perpetual

b. Prioritize teen programs 
that are fun, educational, and 
encourage positive social 
interaction. 

CF

Athletic Programs, 
Recreation 
Programs, 
Cultural Arts

Perpetual

c. Provide opportunities for teens 
to volunteer, earn community 
service hours for high school 
and educate on professional 
opportunities. 

CF

Athletic Programs, 
Recreation 
Programs, 
Cultural Arts

Perpetual

d. Offer trending recreation 
programs to attract new teens to 
participate. 

CF

Athletic Programs, 
Recreation 
Programs, 
Cultural Arts

Not 
Started

e. Involve teens in community 
engagement process for 
designing new parks and 
amenities. 

CF
Parks and 
Planning

In 
Progress

f. Expand indoor and outdoor 
recreation opportunities for 
seniors through the recently 
developed senior center facility. 

CF Senior Center
In 

Progress

g. Develop new fitness and sports 
programs for active adults.  

CF Senior Center
In 

Progress

h. Develop virtual, after hours, 
and weekend programs to allow 
flexibility to participate. 

CF

Athletic Programs, 
Recreation 
Programs, 
Cultural Arts, 
Senior Center

In 
Progress

i. Evaluate youth camp options as 
additional facility space becomes 
available. 

CF

Athletic Programs, 
Recreation 
Programs, 
Cultural Arts, 
Senior Center

Not 
Started

1.3.4 Prioritize PLAY 
opportunities 
for all ages and 
abilities.

a. Renovate existing play areas to 
address the needs of all ability users.

CF
Parks and 
Planning

Not 
Started

b. Use inclusive and universal 
design principles to design play 
areas to allow use by all ages and 
abilities.

CF, PG
Parks and 
Planning

Perpetual

1.3.4 
(cont.)

Prioritize PLAY 
opportunities 
for all ages and 
abilities.

c. Consider pop-up play 
opportunities in areas where 
there are gaps in providing play 
opportunities. 

CF, PG
Parks and 
Planning

Perpetual

d. Provide access to natural areas 
to encourage unstructured play 
opportunities. 

CF
Parks and 
Planning

Not 
Started

c. Provide opportunities for teens to 
volunteer, earn community service 
hours for high school and educate 
on professional opportunities. 

CF
Parks and 
Planning

Not 
Started

1.3.5 Prioritize 
placemaking 
strategies to 
create welcoming 
spaces that attract 
wide range of 
participants.

a. Continue to facilitate meaningful 
community engagement on parks 
and recreation initiatives. 

CF, PG
Parks and 
Planning

Perpetual

b. Recognize the needs of different 
cultures on the use of outdoor 
spaces and allow flexibility in the 
design to address their needs. 

CF, PG
Parks and 
Planning

Perpetual

c. Enhance user experience and 
comfort by ensuring balance of 
sunny and shaded areas, seating 
options, places for socialization 
and solitude, access to restrooms 
and water, and incorporating Crime 
Prevention Through Environmental 
Design (CPTED) principles to 
increase the perception of safety.

CF
Parks and 
Planning

Perpetual

1. EXPAND

1.4 Environmental Stewardship: Expand efforts to protect the natural assets and collaborate on town-wide 
sustainability efforts.

1.4.1 Acquire 65 acres 
as conservation 
lands by 2031.

a. Adopt the level of service 
standard 70:30 ratio of developed 
parkland to conservation lands. 

c.

Undertake cross-
departmental 
efforts to develop a 
connected network 
of conservation 
lands to preserve 
ecological 
functionality, 
habitat protection, 
and biodiversity.  

In 
Progress

b. Work with the development 
community to identify strategic 
areas for conservation land 
acquisition. 

CF

Athletic Programs, 
Recreation 
Programs, Cultural 
Arts, Senior Center

Not 
Started

Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Green ways and Open Space
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION 

Town of Apex 
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION

11 | 13
- Page 438 -



1.4.1 
(cont.)

Acquire 65 acres 
as conservation 
lands by 2031.

c. Undertake cross-departmental 
efforts to develop a connected 
network of conservation lands to 
preserve ecological functionality, 
habitat protection, and biodiversity.  

CF, PG
Parks and 
Planning

Perpetual

d. Implement best practices in 
environmentally sustainable site 
and building design and natural 
resources protection. 

PG, CF
PRCR 
Administration

Perpetual

e. Improve ecological value of parks 
through native vegetation, tree 
canopy protection, and protection 
of creeks and wetland areas.

PG, CF
Parks and 
Planning, Water 
Resources

Perpetual

f. Adopt green infrastructure 
elements to improve water quality.

PG, CF
Parks + Planning, 
Water Resources

Perpetual

g. Incorporate solar power and 
other renewable energy sources 
in the design where appropriate 
to provide energy sources such 
as charging stations, low voltage 
lighting, as well as park buildings.

PG, CF
Parks and 
Planning, Park 
Operations

Perpetual

c. Enhance user experience and 
comfort by ensuring balance of 
sunny and shaded areas, seating 
options, places for socialization 
and solitude, access to restrooms 
and water, and incorporating Crime 
Prevention Through Environmental 
Design (CPTED) principles to 
increase the perception of safety.

CF
Parks and 
Planning

Perpetual

1.4.2 Continue to 
support town-
wide initiatives 
for energy 
conservation 
through parks and 
recreation.

a. Encourage and incorporate 
waste reduction strategies 
through provision of recycling and 
composting options.

PG, CF
PRCR 
Administration, 
Park Operations

Perpetual

b. Develop department-wide goals 
to reduce resource consumption 
and carbon emissions. 

PG, CF
PRCR 
Administration, 
Park Operations

Perpetual

c. Continue to invest in tools 
and equipment that reduces 
dependency on petroleum products.

PG, CF
PRCR 
Administration, 
Park Operations

Perpetual

d. Identify and implement 
best practices in the area of 
sustainable design, development, 
and maintenance.

PG, CF

Parks & 
Planning, PRCR 
Administration, 
Park Operations

Perpetual

Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Green ways and Open Space
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION 

Town of Apex 
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION

11 | 14
- Page 439 -



1.4.1 
(cont.)

Acquire 65 acres 
as conservation 
lands by 2031.

c. Undertake cross-departmental 
efforts to develop a connected 
network of conservation lands to 
preserve ecological functionality, 
habitat protection, and biodiversity.  

CF, PG
Parks and 
Planning

Perpetual

d. Implement best practices in 
environmentally sustainable site 
and building design and natural 
resources protection. 

PG, CF
PRCR 
Administration

Perpetual

e. Improve ecological value of parks 
through native vegetation, tree 
canopy protection, and protection 
of creeks and wetland areas.

PG, CF
Parks and 
Planning, Water 
Resources

Perpetual

f. Adopt green infrastructure 
elements to improve water quality.

PG, CF
Parks + Planning, 
Water Resources

Perpetual

g. Incorporate solar power and 
other renewable energy sources 
in the design where appropriate 
to provide energy sources such 
as charging stations, low voltage 
lighting, as well as park buildings.

PG, CF
Parks and 
Planning, Park 
Operations

Perpetual

c. Enhance user experience and 
comfort by ensuring balance of 
sunny and shaded areas, seating 
options, places for socialization 
and solitude, access to restrooms 
and water, and incorporating Crime 
Prevention Through Environmental 
Design (CPTED) principles to 
increase the perception of safety.

CF
Parks and 
Planning

Perpetual

1.4.2 Continue to 
support town-
wide initiatives 
for energy 
conservation 
through parks and 
recreation.

a. Encourage and incorporate 
waste reduction strategies 
through provision of recycling and 
composting options.

PG, CF
PRCR 
Administration, 
Park Operations

Perpetual

b. Develop department-wide goals 
to reduce resource consumption 
and carbon emissions. 

PG, CF
PRCR 
Administration, 
Park Operations

Perpetual

c. Continue to invest in tools 
and equipment that reduces 
dependency on petroleum products.

PG, CF
PRCR 
Administration, 
Park Operations

Perpetual

d. Identify and implement 
best practices in the area of 
sustainable design, development, 
and maintenance.

PG, CF

Parks & 
Planning, PRCR 
Administration, 
Park Operations

Perpetual

1.4.3 Focus on 
nature-based 
programming 
to generate 
environmental 
awareness.

a. Promote Apex Nature Park as the 
hub for environmental education 
and nature-based programs and 
expand programming at other park 
locations.

CF, OA

Parks and 
Planning, 
Recreation 
Programs, 
Marketing

Not 
Started

b. Implement best practices in 
environmentally sustainable site 
and building design and natural 
resources protection.

CF, OA

Parks and 
Planning, 
Recreation 
Programs, 
Marketing

Not 
Started

c. Encourage nature connection 
and interaction through nature 
trails, interpretive signage, and 
designated areas to observe 
natural processes.

CF

Parks and 
Planning, 
Recreation 
Programs

Not 
Started

d. Provide outdoor classrooms, 
small garden areas, and access to 
educational material to encourage 
stewardship efforts. 

CF

Parks and 
Planning, 
Recreation 
Programs

Not 
Started

e. Collaborate with private and 
Wake County schools to encourage 
students’ participation in programs.  
Identify potential partners in the 
environmental education field to 
develop innovative programs.

CF

Parks and 
Planning, 
Recreation 
Programs

Not 
Started

2. EXPERIENCE
2.1 Unique to Apex: Reflect on Apex’s culture and history through the design of spaces that are unique, 
innovative, and imageable.

2.1.1 Continue to offer 
arts and cultural 
programming to 
appeal to diverse 
interest groups 
and cultural 
backgrounds.

a. Continue to provide programs 
such as downtown sculpture walk 
and expand through partnerships 
with local arts and cultural 
organizations. 

CF
Recreation 
Programs, 
Cultural Arts

Perpetual

b. Diversify programs to include 
events focusing on music, theater, 
fine arts, and other forms of arts.

CF
Recreation 
Programs, 
Cultural Arts

Perpetual

c. Consider art walks in parks and 
small-scale pop-up weekend 
performances in the downtown 
area to attract out-of-town visitors.

CF
Recreation 
Programs, 
Cultural Arts

Not 
Started

Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Green ways and Open Space
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION 

Town of Apex 
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION

11 | 15
- Page 440 -



2.1.2 Promote “unique 
to Apex” theme 
while designing 
new parks and 
amenities. 

a. Leverage technology and 
innovative approaches to parks 
design and programming to create 
unique experiences for users.

CF

Parks and 
Planning, 
Recreation 
Programs

Not 
Started

b. Implement placemaking 
strategies to create distinct 
character for each park while 
ensuring consistency of features 
that promote Apex PRCR branding. 

CF
Parks and 
Planning

Perpetual

c. Celebrate the history of Apex 
through design and programming 
of parks and amenities.

CF
Parks and 
Planning

Perpetual

d. Prioritize preservation and 
restoration of Town’s historic 
assets within the parks system, 
such as the Tunstall House and 
Depot Plaza. 

CF, PG
Parks and 
Planning

Perpetual

e. Develop a public arts plan 
and dedicate 1% of construction 
budget on projects to public arts 
initiative.

PG, DO

Town 
Administration, 
PRCR 
Administration, 
Parks and 
Planning, Cultural 
Arts

Not 
Started

f. Engage community members, 
local artists, and arts and cultural 
organizations in the planning and 
design process of new parks and 
facilities.

PG
Parks and 
Planning, Cultural 
Arts

Not 
Started

g. Incorporate interpretive 
elements within parks system 
that include fun and engaging 
storytelling components about 
Apex.

CF
Parks and 
Planning

Perpetual

2. EXPERIENCE

2.2 Sense of Community: Provide a chance for people to socialize, form friendships, and discover common 
grounds.

2.2.1 Provide 
opportunities 
for residents to 
connect with 
each other and 
encourage social 
interaction.

a. Develop “social hubs” in the 
parks where people connect with 
other like-minded people (For 
example: Dog Park Playdates, 
Court Games Lessons, iPhone 
Photography, etc.)

CF, PG

Parks and 
Planning, 
Recreation 
Programs

Not 
Started

Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Green ways and Open Space
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION 

Town of Apex 
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION

11 | 16
- Page 441 -



2.1.2 Promote “unique 
to Apex” theme 
while designing 
new parks and 
amenities. 

a. Leverage technology and 
innovative approaches to parks 
design and programming to create 
unique experiences for users.

CF

Parks and 
Planning, 
Recreation 
Programs

Not 
Started

b. Implement placemaking 
strategies to create distinct 
character for each park while 
ensuring consistency of features 
that promote Apex PRCR branding. 

CF
Parks and 
Planning

Perpetual

c. Celebrate the history of Apex 
through design and programming 
of parks and amenities.

CF
Parks and 
Planning

Perpetual

d. Prioritize preservation and 
restoration of Town’s historic 
assets within the parks system, 
such as the Tunstall House and 
Depot Plaza. 

CF, PG
Parks and 
Planning

Perpetual

e. Develop a public arts plan 
and dedicate 1% of construction 
budget on projects to public arts 
initiative.

PG, DO

Town 
Administration, 
PRCR 
Administration, 
Parks and 
Planning, Cultural 
Arts

Not 
Started

f. Engage community members, 
local artists, and arts and cultural 
organizations in the planning and 
design process of new parks and 
facilities.

PG
Parks and 
Planning, Cultural 
Arts

Not 
Started

g. Incorporate interpretive 
elements within parks system 
that include fun and engaging 
storytelling components about 
Apex.

CF
Parks and 
Planning

Perpetual

2. EXPERIENCE

2.2 Sense of Community: Provide a chance for people to socialize, form friendships, and discover common 
grounds.

2.2.1 Provide 
opportunities 
for residents to 
connect with 
each other and 
encourage social 
interaction.

a. Develop “social hubs” in the 
parks where people connect with 
other like-minded people (For 
example: Dog Park Playdates, 
Court Games Lessons, iPhone 
Photography, etc.)

CF, PG

Parks and 
Planning, 
Recreation 
Programs

Not 
Started

2.1.1 Provide 
opportunities 
for residents to 
connect with 
each other and 
encourage social 
interaction

a. Continue to provide programs 
such as downtown sculpture walk 
and expand through partnerships 
with local arts and cultural 
organizations. 

CF
Recreation 
Programs, 
Cultural Arts

Perpetual

b. Diversify programs to include 
events focusing on music, 
theater, fine arts, and other forms 
of arts.

CF
Recreation 
Programs, 
Cultural Arts

Perpetual

c. Consider art walks in parks and 
small-scale pop-up weekend 
performances in the downtown 
area to attract out-of-town 
visitors.

CF
Recreation 
Programs, 
Cultural Arts

Not 
Started

b. Develop outdoor classrooms/ 
workstations to offer people 
an opportunity to “work 
from anywhere” and develop 
community spirit through 
spontaneous networking 
opportunities. 

CF, PG

Parks and 
Planning, 
Recreation 
Programs

Not 
Started

c. Develop creative seating 
opportunities in parks for small 
group gatherings and solitary 
places for quiet work. 

CF
Parks and 
Planning

Not 
Started

d. Partner with other 
organizations to provide high 
quality and innovative special 
events and programs.

CF, OA

Recreation 
Programs, 
Cultural Arts, 
Senior Center

Not 
Started

e. Partner with HOAs to develop 
smaller, neighborhood scale social 
events. 

CF
Recreation 
Programs, 
Cultural Arts

Not 
Started

f. Support programs and classes 
led by private partners in parks 
and on greenways. 

CF
Recreation 
Programs

Not 
Started

g. Authorize funding for 
conducting programming 
and additional staff needed to 
organize events.

CF, OA

Town 
Administration, 
PRCR 
Administration

Not 
Started

Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Green ways and Open Space
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION 

Town of Apex 
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION

11 | 17
- Page 442 -



2. EXPERIENCE

2.3 Health and Wellbeing: Promote fitness and active lifestyles to support health and wellbeing of Apex 
residents.

2.3.1 Encourage 
development of 
amenities and 
programs that 
provide physical, 
social, and mental 
health benefits.

a. Develop park amenities or 
“wellness hubs” that support and 
encourage health and wellness 
opportunities using NRPA’s new 
toolkit for Health and wellbeing- 
Community Wellness Hub 
development. 

CF, PG

Parks and 
Planning, 
Recreation 
Programs

Not 
Started

b. Enhance access to natural 
areas and connection to nature 
for its mental health benefits.

CF, PG
Parks and 
Planning

Perpetual

c. Provide diverse fitness and 
wellness programs for different 
interest groups.

CF
Parks and 
Planning

Perpetual

d. Promote multigenerational 
health programming such as 
mommy and me classes.

CF
Recreation 
Programs

Perpetual

e. Leverage online platforms such 
as Zoom to provide flexibility for 
people to engage in programs at 
their convenience.

CF, OA
Recreation 
Programs

Not 
Started

f. Proactively identify barriers 
to participate in health-related 
programs and prioritize removing 
those barriers. 

CF, OA
Recreation 
Programs

Not 
Started

g. Partner with HOAs to develop 
smaller, neighborhood scale social 
events. 

CF
Recreation 
Programs

Not 
Started

h. Develop incentives for people 
to engage in health and wellness 
programs.

CF

Recreation 
Programs, 
Athletic 
Programs, Senior 
Center

Not 
Started

i. Develop partnerships with 
healthcare providers to support 
fitness and active recreation.

CF, OA

Town 
Administration, 
PRCR 
Administration

Not 
Started

Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Green ways and Open Space
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION 

Town of Apex 
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION

11 | 18
- Page 443 -



2.3.2 Promote access 
to healthy lifestyle 
choices. 

a. Leverage opportunities such 
as farmers markets to advocate 
access to healthy and local food. 

PG, CF
Recreation 
Programs

In 
Progress

b. Expand community gardening 
efforts to educate residents about 
fresh produce and ‘farm to table’ 
concept.

PG, CF
Recreation 
Programs

In 
Progress

c. Incorporate culinary arts 
programs to encourage people to 
try new healthy food options and 
learn about nutrition. 

CF
Recreation 
Programs

Not 
Started

d. Promote local businesses that 
support local farmers through 
special programs and events.

CF
Recreation 
Programs, 
Marketing

Not 
Started

2.1.1 Continue to offer 
arts and cultural 
programming to 
appeal to diverse 
interest groups 
and cultural 
backgrounds.

a. Continue to provide programs 
such as downtown sculpture walk 
and expand through partnerships 
with local arts and cultural 
organizations. 

CF
Recreation 
Programs, 
Cultural Arts

Perpetual

b. Diversify programs to include 
events focusing on music, 
theater, fine arts, and other forms 
of arts.

CF
Recreation 
Programs, 
Cultural Arts

Perpetual

c. Consider art walks in parks and 
small-scale pop-up weekend 
performances in the downtown 
area to attract out-of-town 
visitors.

CF
Recreation 
Programs, 
Cultural Arts

Not 
Started

Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Green ways and Open Space
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION 

Town of Apex 
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION

11 | 19
- Page 444 -



3. EXCEL
3.1 Operations Efficiency: Achieve organizational excellence by implementing business practices that 
enhance efficiency, staff satisfaction, and economic vitality.

3.1.1 Streamline 
recreation program 
management 
through best 
practices, tracking, 
and fees policy 
updates. 

a. Regularly update program 
offerings according to cost 
recovery model.

OA

Recreation 
Programs, 
Athletic 
Programs, Senior 
Center

Not 
Started

b. Develop and regularly update 
the cost recovery goals for 
programs and fee structure.

OA

PRCR 
Administration, 
Recreation 
Programs, 
Athletic 
Programs, Senior 
Center

Not 
Started

c. Continue to track full cost of 
service for programs to make 
informed decisions regarding 
pricing policy that balances market 
conditions and community values. 

OA

Recreation 
Programs, 
Athletic 
Programs, Senior 
Center

Not 
Started

d. Track community feedback on 
program satisfaction levels and 
need for new programs.

OA

Recreation 
Programs, Athletic 
Programs, Senior 
Center

Not 
Started

3.1.2 Achieve operations 
efficiency 
through sound 
maintenance and 
management 
practices. 

a. Invest in high quality 
equipment that can withstand 
level of use. 

CF, OA
Park Operations, 
Public Works

In 
Progress

b. Update maintenance shops to 
provide adequate space for staff 
and storage.

OA
Parks and 
Planning, Park 
Operations

Not 
Started

c. Update maintenance 
technology to include use of 
digital tools (laptops and tablets) in 
the field for easy documentation. 

CF, OA Park Operations
Not 

Started

d. Develop a maintenance 
management plan to adequately 
forecast the true cost of 
delivering a high-quality park 
experience.

CF, OA Park Operations
Not 

Started

e. Develop key performance 
indicators to track the efficiency 
and quality of the work.

OA Park Operations
Not 

Started

Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Green ways and Open Space
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION 

Town of Apex 
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION

11 | 20
- Page 445 -



3.1.1 Streamline 
recreation program 
management 
through best 
practices, tracking, 
and fees policy 
updates. 

f. Leverage the full capacity of 
CityWorks software and other 
technology to track work orders.

OA Park Operations
Not 

Started

g. Equipment replacement 
schedules should be revised 
based on hours of operations. 

OA Park Operations
Not 

Started

h. Establish life cycle assessment 
for each park and set aside 
annual budget for deferred 
maintenance. 

OA
Parks and 
Planning, Park 
Operations

Not 
Started

i. Train the staff responsible for 
caring for the environmentally 
sensitive areas such as green 
infrastructure components, native 
vegetation management, and 
wildlife habitat areas. 

OA Park Operations
Not 

Started

j. Involve maintenance staff 
during park planning and design 
process.

OA, PG
Parks and 
Planning, Park 
Operations

Perpetual

k. Establish maintenance plan 
and standards for conservation 
lands to maintain consistency 
across the maintenance staff.

OA
Park Operations, 
Public Works

Not 
Started

l. Develop a forestry plan 
that includes tree inventory 
within rights-of-ways and park 
properties and collaborate with 
Public Works.

CF Park Operations
Not 

Started

3.1.3 Invest in staffing 
resources and 
staff satisfaction 
to achieve 
departmental 
operations 
efficiency.

a.  Establish staffing requirements 
for full time, part time, and 
seasonal positions.

OA
PRCR 
Administration

In 
Progress

b. Streamline inter-departmental 
communications for better 
collaborations and effective 
organization. 

OA
PRCR 
Administration

In 
Progress

c. Support and invest in staff 
development and career growth 
to reciprocate their investment 
in the department and staff 
retention.

OA
PRCR 
Administration

In 
Progress

Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Green ways and Open Space
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION 

Town of Apex 
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION

11 | 21
- Page 446 -



3.1.3 
(cont.)

Invest in staffing 
resources and 
staff satisfaction 
to achieve 
departmental 
operations 
efficiency.

d. Recognize and use staff’s 
untapped talent to share 
responsibilities in more effective 
way. 

OA
PRCR 
Administration

In 
Progress

e. Offer competitive salaries and 
benefits for attracting new hires 
and staff retention.

OA
PRCR 
Administration

In 
Progress

f. Develop team culture through 
training and highlight staff 
accomplishments. 

OA
PRCR 
Administration

In 
Progress

g. Propose new staffing positions 
(Volunteer Coordinator, Public Art 
Coordinator, Marketing Supervisor, 
Business Development 
Coordinator, Pleasant Park 
Operations Supervisor, Assistant 
Director of Parks, and GIS Data 
Manager)

OA
PRCR 
Administration

In 
Progress

h. Develop a new staffing plan as 
the Town continues to add new 
facilities such as new parks and 
indoor recreation. 

OA
PRCR 
Administration

Perpetual

i. Establish a working goal to 
achieve CAPRA accreditation by 
adopting best practices that align 
with CAPRA standards.

OA
PRCR 
Administration

Not 
Started 

3.1.4 Seek strategic 
partnerships 
with third 
party providers 
to expand 
Department’s 
capacity to provide 
competitive 
services to 
residents. 

a. Ensure public-private 
partnerships are based on fair 
policy agreements for both 
parties.

PG, OA
PRCR 
Administration

Not 
Started

b. Establish measurable 
outcomes and tracking 
mechanisms for the services 
rendered through partnerships.

OA
PRCR 
Administration

Not 
Started

c. Identify other partners in the 
community to support the PRCR 
Department’s vision.

OA All PRCR Groups
Not 

Started

Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Green ways and Open Space
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION 

Town of Apex 
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION

11 | 22
- Page 447 -



3.1.3 
(cont.)

Invest in staffing 
resources and 
staff satisfaction 
to achieve 
departmental 
operations 
efficiency.

d. Recognize and use staff’s 
untapped talent to share 
responsibilities in more effective 
way. 

OA
PRCR 
Administration

In 
Progress

e. Offer competitive salaries and 
benefits for attracting new hires 
and staff retention.

OA
PRCR 
Administration

In 
Progress

f. Develop team culture through 
training and highlight staff 
accomplishments. 

OA
PRCR 
Administration

In 
Progress

g. Propose new staffing positions 
(Volunteer Coordinator, Public Art 
Coordinator, Marketing Supervisor, 
Business Development 
Coordinator, Pleasant Park 
Operations Supervisor, Assistant 
Director of Parks, and GIS Data 
Manager)

OA
PRCR 
Administration

In 
Progress

h. Develop a new staffing plan as 
the Town continues to add new 
facilities such as new parks and 
indoor recreation. 

OA
PRCR 
Administration

Perpetual

i. Establish a working goal to 
achieve CAPRA accreditation by 
adopting best practices that align 
with CAPRA standards.

OA
PRCR 
Administration

Not 
Started 

3.1.4 Seek strategic 
partnerships 
with third 
party providers 
to expand 
Department’s 
capacity to provide 
competitive 
services to 
residents. 

a. Ensure public-private 
partnerships are based on fair 
policy agreements for both 
parties.

PG, OA
PRCR 
Administration

Not 
Started

b. Establish measurable 
outcomes and tracking 
mechanisms for the services 
rendered through partnerships.

OA
PRCR 
Administration

Not 
Started

c. Identify other partners in the 
community to support the PRCR 
Department’s vision.

OA All PRCR Groups
Not 

Started

3.1.5 Implement capital 
improvements and 
operations through 
responsible 
funding sources.

a. Acknowledge and construct 
parks as essential infrastructure 
element for the Town. 

CF, PG
Parks and 
Planning

Perpetual

b. Explore alternate funding 
strategies to expand and excel in 
providing Department services. 

OA
PRCR 
Administration

Perpetual

c. Leverage the Friends 
Groups and other non-profit 
organizations for fundraising and 
awareness. 

OA
PRCR 
Administration

Not 
Started

d. Build on the current financial 
strengths.

OA
PRCR 
Administration

Perpetual

3. EXCEL

3.2 Customer Service: Continue to provide high quality customer service through streamlined 
communication and marketing efforts.

3.2.1 Provide high 
quality customer 
service through 
enhanced 
communication 
and outreach. 

a. Provide regular website 
updates to include new and 
upcoming events, programs and 
news. 

OA Marketing
Not 

Started

b. Continue to update marketing 
plan annually to stay up to 
date on community needs and 
demographics

OA Marketing
Not 

Started

c. Leverage social network 
applications’ capabilities for great 
user engagement.

OA Marketing Perpetual

d. Prioritize staff job training and 
skill development training to 
enhance customer experience 
and empower staff to connect 
with diverse demographics of 
Apex.

OA
PRCR 
Administration

Perpetual

e. Train the staff to be culturally 
competent and hire multilingual 
staff to connect with minority 
groups.

OA
PRCR 
Administration

Not 
Started

f. Streamline registration and 
rental processes via in-person, 
telephone, paper forms, or online 
platforms.

OA
PRCR 
Administration

Not 
Started

Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Green ways and Open Space
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION 

Town of Apex 
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION

11 | 23
- Page 448 -



3.1.5 Implement capital 
improvements and 
operations through 
responsible 
funding sources.

g. Track level of satisfaction 
feedback from users regularly to 
continuously improve customer 
service using online feedback 
surveys and survey 311 feedback 
system. 

i.

Consider 
establishing 
a marketing 
division to expand 
outreach efforts 
and maintain 
and develop new 
relationships with 
partners.

Perpetual

h. Leverage relationships with 
partners to enhance marketing 
efforts through cross-promotion.

OA
PRCR 
Administration

Perpetual

i. Consider establishing a 
marketing division to expand 
outreach efforts and maintain and 
develop new relationships with 
partners.

OA
PRCR 
Administration

Not 
Started

3.2.2 Establish volunteer 
program to engage 
residents in parks 
and recreation 
services and 
develop a sense of 
ownership within 
the community. 

a. Establish volunteer policy 
that encompasses cross-
departmental efforts to engage 
community members.

OA, PG
PRCR 
Administration

Not 
Started

b. Establish a volunteer 
coordinator position.            

OA
PRCR 
Administration

Not 
Started

c. Recognize and reward 
volunteerism.

OA
PRCR 
Administration

Not 
Started

d. Establish a training program 
for new volunteers to ensure 
high quality customer service 
experience.

OA
PRCR 
Administration

Not 
Started

e. Achieve the goal of 12-15% of 
total staffing hours to supported 
volunteer hours and use this 
resource as “in-kind” indirect 
revenue source.

OA
PRCR 
Administration

Not 
Started

Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Green ways and Open Space
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION 

Town of Apex 
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION

11 | 24
- Page 449 -



Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Green ways and Open Space
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION 

Town of Apex 
IMPLEMENTATION + ACTION

11 | 25
- Page 450 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: PUBLIC HEARING 

 Meeting Date: May 9, 2023 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Angela Reincke, Parks Planning Project Manager 

Department(s): Parks, Recreation and Cultural Resources 

Requested Motion 

Possible Motion to approve amendment to the Master Plan map for Land Acquisition 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

In 2021, The Town of Apex, Parks, Recreation and Cultural Resources staff began an update to the Parks, 

Recreation, Greenways and Open Space (PRGOS) Master Plan.  Included in the recommendation of the 

newly-titled Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Greenways and Open Space (Master 

Plan) is the identification of Parkland and Indoor Recreation Facility search areas. These areas are 

amendments to the current Master Plan Map. The purpose of the public hearing is to consider adoption of 

the proposed map amendments. 

Attachments 

 PH2-A1: PRGOS Park Search and Indoor Facility Map Amendment Staff Report 

 PH2-A2: Map of PRGOS Park Search and Indoor Facility Amendments 

 

- Page 451 -



STAFF REPORT 
Town of Apex Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Greenways and  
Open Space Map Amendment 

May 9, 2023 Town Council Meeting  
 

 

Prepared by: Angela Reincke, Parks Planning Project Manager 

In 2021, The Town of Apex, Parks, Recreation and Cultural Resources staff began an update to the Parks, 
Recreation, Greenways and Open Space (PRGOS) Master Plan.  Included in the recommendation of the newly-
titled Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Greenways and Open Space (Master Plan) is the 
identification of Parkland and Indoor Recreation Facility search areas. These areas are amendments to the 
current Master Plan Map. The purpose of the public hearing is to consider adoption of the proposed map 
amendments. The proposed map is available for viewing online at: 
https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/42989  
 
The Master Plan serves as the guide for the Parks, Recreation and Cultural Resource (PRCR) Department for the 
10-year planning horizon. The Master Plan Map amendments would remove the existing Land Acquisition areas 
identified in the 2014 Master Plan Map, as amended, and add two new categories for the identification and 
acquisition of property for future parks and indoor recreation facilities. The Master Plan Map amendments are 
proposed to address shifts in demographics, growth patterns, and recreation trends; contextualize these trends 
for the Town; and provide a visionary guide for the future. The Master Plan Map amendments identify locations 
that will transform recreation for Apex residents and visitors through 2033. The amendments will inform 
enhancements to current parks and recreation services and guide investments in new initiatives. The Master 
Plan Map does not require a schedule for implementation nor does it set aside funding for the 
recommendations.   
 
The planning process for the Master Plan began in late 2021 with data collection and analysis of existing park 
conditions as well as assessing the demand for parkland and facility space. The process included establishing 
goals; developing guiding principles and recommendations; determining a level of service for parkland, open 
space areas and indoor facility space; and developing an implementation plan.  The Master Plan update was 
guided by Town staff; Apex residents; Town Council; the Parks, Recreation and Cultural Resources Advisory 
Commission (Advisory Commission); County staff; and adjacent municipality staff, among others.  
 
The Apex community was engaged through social media posts, signage, direct mail invitations, the project 
webpage, along with numerous opportunities for public input.  As a result, seven areas were identified as 
Parkland Search Areas for Acquisition and four areas were identified for Indoor Recreation Facilities.  
 
List of Proposed Amendments 

1. Remove all five areas designated as Land Acquisition Areas.  
2. Add seven areas notated as Parkland Search Area for Acquisition. 

a. Area generally located adjacent and east of the future Wimberly Road parkland, east of Green 
Level Church Road, north of Jenks Road and south of White Oak Creek. 

b. Area generally located south of Hwy 64, crossing the American Tobacco Trail and Olive Chapel 
Road, east of the Wake-Chatham County line. 

c. Area generally located at the intersection of Humie Olive Road and New Hill Olive Chapel Road, 
west of the future Olive Farm Park. 

d. Area generally located along the Old US 1 Hwy/CSX Rail Corridor and south to US Hwy 1, east of 
New Hill Holleman Road and west of Friendship Road. 

e. Area generally located within the Veridea Sustainable Development (SD) Plan south of US Hwy 
1, east of NC 540, west of Hwy 55.  

f. Area generally located northwest of the future Felton Grove High School, southeast of Lufkin 
Road Middle School, and south of Ten Ten Road. 

- Page 452 -

https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/42989/PRGOS-Park-Search-Indoor-Facility-Amendments-?bidId=


STAFF REPORT 
Town of Apex Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Greenways and  
Open Space Map Amendment 

May 9, 2023 Town Council Meeting  
 

 

Prepared by: Angela Reincke, Parks Planning Project Manager 

g. Area generally southwest of Salem Elementary School, east of North Beaver Creek Greenway, 
and north of Hwy 64. 

3. Add four areas noted as Indoor Recreation Facility Area. 
a. Area generally located within property identified as future Wimberly Road parkland on the east 

side of Wimberly Road north of Jenks Road and south of Green Level West Road. 
b. Area generally located within the Apex Nature Park at 2600 Evans Road. 
c. Area generally located within property identified as the future Olive Farm Park near the 

intersection of Olive Farm Road and Humie Olive Road. 
d. Area generally located within the Veridea Project area south of US Hwy 1, west of Hwy 55 (E 

Williams St), and north and east of NC 540 as required per the Veridea Sustainable Development 
(SD) Plan.  

 
The map amendments were previously reviewed at work sessions for PRCR staff, the Advisory Commission and 
Town Council and are included in the proposed Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, 
Greenways and Open Space.  
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources Department staff recommend approval of the proposed 
amendments. 
 
Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources Advisory Commission Recommendation: 
At their April 26, 2023 meeting, the Parks, Recreation and Cultural Resources Advisory Commission made the 
following recommendations: 
approval to remove all five areas designated as Land Acquisition Areas of the map amendments as presented 
with a 3 to 2 vote,   
approval to add seven areas notated as Parkland Search Area for Acquisition as presented with a 4 to 1 vote, 
and unanimously recommended approval to add four areas noted as Indoor Recreation Facility Search Areas.  
 
Planning Board Input: 
The proposed amendments were presented to the Planning Board as a New Business item during their May 8, 
2023 meeting. Any substantial comments and resulting recommended changes will be shared during the staff 
presentation. 
 

- Page 453 -



Ç

Ç

Ç

Ç

7

7

7

7

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

Ç

Ç

Ç

7

7

7

2

2

2

Ç

Ç

Ç

Ç

Ç

Ç

Ç

Ç

Ç

Ç

7

7

7

7

7

7

7

7

7

7

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

O

O

O

Apex Community Park

Clairmont Park

Sue Helton
Memorial Park

West Street Park

Kelly Glen Park

Apex Jaycee
ParkKelly Road Park

Charleston Village
Open Space

Lexington Open Space

Apex Nature Park

Seagrove Farm
Neighborhood Park

Haddon Hall Open Space

Hunter Street Park

Salem Pond Park

Pleasant Park

Future Olive Farm Park

Future Wimberly
Rd Park

Greenm oo
r C

on
ne

ct
or

Milano

Connector

Haddon Hall Greenway

Am
er

ic
an

 T
ob

ac
co

 T
ra

il

Am
er

ica

n To
bac

co

 Tr
ail

Regency Swift C
reek Greenway

M
iddle C

reek G
reenw

ay

No
rth

 B
ea

ve
r C

ree
k G

ree
nway

Ea
st

 C
oa

st
 G

re
en

w
ay

White
 O

ak
 Creek / E

ast Coast Greenway

Beaver Creek Greenway

White

 O
ak

 C
re

ek
 G

re
en

wa
y

White Oak Creek / East Coast Greenway

Reedy Branch
 G

re
en

way

Reedy Branch Greenway

Buckhorn Preserve Greenway

Little Beaver Creek Greenway

S 
SA

LE
M

 S
T

Clark Branch Greenway

Big Branch G
reenw

ay

Sa
le

m
 P

on
d 

G
re

en
w

ay

Deer C
reek G

re
en

way

South White Oak
 C

re
ek

 G
re

en
way

N
E

W
 H

ILL H
O

LLE
M

A
N

 R
D

O
LD

H
O

LL
Y

S
P

R
IN

G
S

A
P

E
X

R
D

H
O

LL
A

N
D

R
D

N
C

540
H

W
Y

N SALEM ST

CENTER ST

N
C

 540 H
W

Y

HOLT RD

S SALEM ST

HIGH HOUSE RD

W
 C

H
AT

H
A

M
 S

T

S
M

IT
H

 R
D

N
C

 5
5 

B
Y

PA
S

S

KELLY R
D

N
C

 5
5 

H
W

Y

S
T

E
P

H
E

N
S

O
N

R
D

HORTON RD

MILANO AVE

SALEM

CHURCH RD

T
IN

G
E

N
R

D

S
U

N
S

E
T LA

K
E

 R
D

A
P

E
X

 P
E

W
Y

T
E

N
 T

E
N

 R
D

APEX PEWY

D
A

V
IS

 D
R

GREEN LEVEL

CHURCH RD

SW
 CARY PKW

Y

PENNY RD

OLD JENKS RD

SW
MAYNAR

D

RD

E
V

A
N

S
R

D

WOODS CREEK RD

CASTLEBERRY R
D

G
R

E
E

N
 L

E
V

E
L 

C
H

U
R

C
H

 R
D

HIGH HOUSE RD

N
W

 M
A

Y
N

A
R

D
 R

D

N
C

55
B

Y
PA

S
S

JE
NKS R

D

OLD
RALE

IG
H

RD

N
 M

A
IN

 S
T

RICHARDSON
RD

H
O

LL
Y

S
P

R
IN

G
S

R
D

BARKER RD
W

H
IT

E
O

A
K

C
H

U
R

C
H

R
D

ROBERTS RD

HUMIE OLIVE RD

BEAVER
CREEK

COMMONS
DR

HOLLY
SPRING

S

NEW
HILL

RD

BEAVERDAM RD

F
R

IE
N

D
S

H
IP

 R
D

N
E

W
 H

ILL R
D

WIMBERLY RD

O
LD

A
P

E
X

R
D

EDINBURGHSOUTH DR

S
H

E
A

R
O

N
H

A
R

R
IS

R
D

E
 W

IL
LI

A
M

S
 S

T

GREEN LEVEL WEST RD

E
 W

ILLIA
M

S
 S

T

E
W

ILLIA
M

S
S

T

LA
K

E
P

IN
E

 D
R

G
B

A
LF

O
R

D
H

W
Y

G
B

 A
LF

O
R

D
 H

W
Y

LA
U

R
A 

D
U

N
C

AN
 R

D

A
P

E
X

B
A

R
B

E
C

U
E

R
D

W
 W

ILLIAM
S ST

N
E

W
H

ILL
O

LIV
E

C
H

A
P

E
L

R
D

OLIVE CHAPEL RD

OLD U
S 1 H

WY

US 64 HWY W

US 64 HWY W

US 1 HWY

US 1 HWY

Jordan Lake

Bond Park

American
Tobacco
Trail Park

Tom
Brooks
Park

Regency Park

Annie
Jones Park

C
ar

y
V

ill
ag

e
P

ar
k

M
acA

rthur

P
ark

Davis
Drive Park

T
ar

be
rt

G
at

eh
ou

se
 T

ra
il

St. Mary
Magdalene

School

Olive Chapel
Elementary

School

Apex
Elementary

School

Apex Middle School

Salem
Elementary

School

Salem
Middle
School

Lufkin Road
Middle School

Thales
Academy

K-5

Laurel Park
Elementary

School

Penny Road
Elementary

School

Scotts Ridge
Elementary

School

Apex Friendship
High School

Apex Friendship
Middle SchoolApex Friendship

Elementary School

Green Level
High School

Thales Academy
Junior High/High

Peak
Charter

Academy

Felton Grove
High School

(Future)

Apex High
School

Baucom Elementary School

Pleasant
Plains ES
(Future)(Future

WCPSS
School)

Baucom Elementary School

Apex Middle School

Thales Academy K-5

0 5,000 10,0002,500

Feet ´
0 1 20.5

Miles

Parks, Recreation,
Greenways & Open
Space Master Plan

C
H

A
T

H
A

M
 C

O
U

N
T

Y

C
H

A
T

H
A

M
 C

O
U

N
T

Y

Plan Approved June 18, 2013

Map Amended February 23, 2016

Printed April 19, 2023

P
re

p
a

re
d

 b
y th

e T
ow

n of Apex -PR&CR Dept

The Town of Apex Geographic Information Services (GIS) shall not be held liable for any errors concerning content
or positional accuracy of this mapped information.  The user must consult the primary sources

from which the Town of Apex GIS compiled this product.

´

FutureParkSearch

Future Indoor Search

Proposed Multi-Use
Path

Existing Greenway

Proposed Greenway

Existing Multi-Use Path

Connecting paths outside of
Apex

ProposedO

ExistingO

Trailheads

Private Trail

Public Trail, Proposed

Public Trail

Sidewalk

Street-Side Greenway,
Proposed

Side Path, Proposed

Side Path

Equestrian Greenway,
Proposed

Equestrian Greenway

Private Greenway,
Proposed

Private Greenway

Public Greenway,
Proposed w/ Existing
Easement

Public Greenway,
Proposed

Public Greenway

Paths & Greenways

Bicycle Highway

Municipal Agreement
Line

As Developed Crossing

Future At Grade
Crossing

Existing Elevated
Crossing

Future NC 540
Pedestrian Crossing

Existing NC 540
Pedestrian Underpass

Land Acquisition Area

Schools

Historic District

Town Campus

Future Park

Park

*Side Path do not count toward Parks and Recreation credit,
 nor are they the responsibility of the Parks,

Recreation, and Cultural Resources Department.

Town Campus

Jaycee
Park

West St
Park

Hunter St
Park

Clairmont
Park

JMB
Community

CenterSenior
Center

Town Hall

- Page 454 -

areincke
Ellipse

areincke
Ellipse

areincke
Highlight

areincke
Ellipse

areincke
Ellipse

areincke
Ellipse

areincke
Ellipse

areincke
Ellipse

areincke
Pen
.

areincke
Pen
.

areincke
Ellipse

areincke
Ellipse

areincke
Ellipse

areincke
Ellipse

areincke
Rectangle

areincke
Rectangle

areincke
Callout
Delete Land Acquisition Area

areincke
Callout
Add Indoor Recreation Facility Area

areincke
Callout
Add Parkland Search Area for Acquisition



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: PUBLIC HEARING 

 Meeting Date: May 9, 2023 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Angela Reincke, Parks Planning Project Manager and Jenna Shouse, Senior Long 

Range Planner 

Department(s): Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources Department and Planning Department 

Requested Motion 

Public hearing and possible motion regarding amendments to the Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan Map 

associated with the Draft Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Greenways, and Open Space. 

  

Approval Recommended? 

Parks, Recreation and Cultural Resources staff recommend adoption of the proposed amendments. 

Planning Staff recommend adoption of the proposed amendments. 

The Planning Board will consider this item at their May 8, 2023 meeting and staff will present their 

recommendation at the Town Council meeting. 

 

Item Details 

The proposed amendments to the Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan Map fall into three main categories: 

(1) Additions to improve bicycle and pedestrian connectivity, (2) Changes based on the outcome of three 

feasibility studies completed on the priority greenway corridors, and (3) Additions based on existing or 

planned development.  

 

Attachments 

 PH3-A1: Staff Report - Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan Map Amendments 

 

- Page 455 -



STAFF REPORT 
Transportation Plan Amendments 

May 9, 2023 Town Council Meeting  
 

 

Prepared by: Jenna Shouse, Senior Long Range Planner 

The purpose of the public hearing is to consider the facts in order to formulate a decision. The Bicycle and 
Pedestrian System Plan map represents a network of current and future facilities that provide guidance on what 
is likely to be suitable for long term growth, connectivity, and recreation. The Plan does not require a schedule 
for implementation nor does it set aside funding for improvements. Instead, it helps the Town establish long term 
priorities and identify requirements for new development. The Plan was last amended on March 31, 2023.    
 
Numerous amendments are requested to the Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan Map to align with the proposed 
Draft Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Greenways, and Open Space (Master Plan). The Draft 
Master Plan will be presented to Town Council at the May 9, 2023 meeting. In 2021, the Town began the process 
to update the Master Plan to serve as the guide for the 10-year planning horizon.  
 
Proposed amendments to the Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan Map fall into three main categories: 
(1) Additions to improve bicycle and pedestrian connectivity, (2) Changes based on the outcome of three 
feasibility studies completed on the priority greenway corridors, and (3) Additions based on existing or planned 
development.  
 
The proposed amendments address alignment changes that were recommended based on public input and 
requests for greenway connectivity that provide opportunities to complete corridors that would not be possible 
based on existing development. In addition, the recommendations are proposed based on development patterns 
that have appeared through planned projects that might not have approvals, but that sufficient information or 
public input has been provided that identifies and opportunity for a connection or amends a proposed alignment 
to connect projects that might not have been available or identified as possibilities in the past. 
 
The proposed amendments below are organized by category rather than geography. The numbers associated 
with each amendment match reference numbers included on the attached exhibits. The exhibits are also 
available online at: https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/42949.  
 

Exhibit 
ID 

Proposed Amendment Amendment 
Category 

1 Wimberly Road near Castleberry Road – Add proposed greenway connection to 
the American Tobacco Trail from Wimberly Road. Add a proposed greenway 
connection to an existing section of greenway in Castleberry Trails. 

Improve 
Connectivity 

2 Wimberly Road at Future Park – Add a proposed greenway connection from 
Wimberly Road to the Future Park off Wimberly Road. 

Improve 
Connectivity 

3 Holt Road – Add proposed side path along the east side of Holt Road from Old 
Jenks Road to Howell Road. 

Improve 
Connectivity 

4 Apex Peakway near Mockingbird Lane – Realign South Walk proposed 
greenway north of the stream connecting to the Apex Peakway near the 
intersection with Grappenhall Drive.  

Existing or 
Planned 
Development 

5 Chapel Ridge Road – Add proposed east-west greenway connection from the 
proposed side path on Chapel Ridge Road to the proposed Beaver Creek North 
Greenway. 

Improve 
Connectivity 

6 Reedy Branch Greenway – Realign Reedy Branch Greenway, including a 
midblock crossing of Kelly Road south of Red Knot Lane. This would shift the 
greenway to the south of Reedy Branch from Kelly Road to Rothwood Way. 
Access is proposed to be added at: Creekside Commons proposed greenway 

Feasibility Study 
Results 

- Page 456 -

https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/42949


STAFF REPORT 
Transportation Plan Amendments 

May 9, 2023 Town Council Meeting  
 

 

Prepared by: Jenna Shouse, Senior Long Range Planner 

Exhibit 
ID 

Proposed Amendment Amendment 
Category 

access, Homestead Park proposed greenway access, and Stratford at Abbington 
proposed Greenway access at Rothwood Way.  Access is proposed to be 
removed within Abbington at Lyndenbury Drive and along Kellyridge Drive. 

7 Apex Nature Park – Add proposed greenway within Apex Nature Park, linking to 
existing trail near Evans Road, extending the corridor through the park. Realign 
proposed greenway connection from Bella Casa to Nature Park. 

Feasibility Study 
Results 

8 Richardson Road crossing – Add proposed grade-separated bicycle and 
pedestrian crossing at the intersection of Richardson Road and Beaver Creek 
Greenway.  

Feasibility Study 
Results 

9 Barker Road – Add proposed street-side greenway along the north side of 
Barker Road from New Hill Olive Chapel Road to the Chatham County line.  

Improve 
Connectivity 

10 Olive Farm Park – Add proposed greenway connecting the future Olive Farm 
Park to a proposed side path within the Retreat at Friendship Station project 
within dedicated parkland.  

Improve 
Connectivity 

11 Salem Village – Add proposed greenway that starts at the eastern terminus of 
Padstone Drive, extends southwest along the north side of the creek, then 
splits after crossing Flint Valley Lane, terminating at the proposed grade-
separated crossing of South Salem Street across from Depot 499 and at the 
proposed side path along the future extension of Widger Lane.  

Improve 
Connectivity 

12 E Williams Street – Add proposed side path along the east side of East Williams 
Street from Sunset Lake Road to NC 55 and along the eastern side of NC 55 to 
join the previously-proposed side path. This is consistent with the public 
hearing map for NCDOT’s project HL-0007, improvements at NC 55 and 
Technology Drive. 

Existing or 
Planned 
Development 

13 Felton Grove High School area – Add proposed greenway along the east side of 
a tributary of Middle Creek bordering the future Felton Grove High School 
north to Stephenson Road and Wild Blossom Drive. Add proposed side path on 
the south side of the Colby Chase Drive extension east of Smith Road 
continuing along Rhythm Drive to Stephenson Road.  

Existing or 
Planned 
Development 

14 Big Branch Greenway – Remove proposed Big Branch Greenway between 
James Street and Apex Peakway and remove Wake Acres proposed greenway 
access. Realign Big Branch Greenway to the west side of Big Branch, south of 
Apex Peakway. This greenway realignment would relocate Lexington proposed 
greenway access and add Bradley Terrace proposed greenway access. 

Feasibility Study 
Results 

 

Staff Recommendation: 
Planning Department staff recommend approval of the proposed amendments. Parks, Recreation, and Cultural 
Resources Department staff recommend approval of the proposed amendments. 
 
The Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources Advisory Commission considered and unanimously 
recommended approval of the proposed amendments at their April 26, 2023 meeting.  
 

- Page 457 -



STAFF REPORT 
Transportation Plan Amendments 

May 9, 2023 Town Council Meeting  
 

 

Prepared by: Jenna Shouse, Senior Long Range Planner 

Planning Board Recommendation: 
Staff will present these items to the Planning Board at their May 8, 2023 meeting. The Planning Board's 
recommendation will be presented by staff at the Council meeting. 

- Page 458 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: NEW BUSINESS 

 Meeting Date: May 9, 2023 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Jacques K. Gilbert and Councilmembers  

Department(s): Governing Body  

Requested Motion 

Receive as information an update on the Richardson Road Traffic Safety plans, discuss recommendations for 

addressing community concerns, and provide direction to staff, as appropriate.   

 

Approval Recommended? 

N/A 

 

Item Details 

Over the course of several months, residents from the Sweetwater Community and/or Richardson Road 

area have either provided verbal or written comments related to the speed limit (currently posted at 45 

mph).    

The purpose of this agenda item is to receive additional information from staff related to the traffic patterns 

and discuss recommendations for addressing community concerns.   

 

Attachments 

 N/A 

 

- Page 459 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CLOSED SESSION 

 Meeting Date: May 9, 2023 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Steve Adams, Real Estate and Utilities Acquisition Specialist  

Department(s): Transportation and Infrastructure Development  

Requested Motion 

Possible motion to go into closed session pursuant to NCGS 143-318.11(a)(5) to discuss the town’s 
negotiating position with respect to acquisition of real property. 
 

Approval Recommended? 

N/A 

Item Details 

N/A 

 

Attachments 

N/A  

 

- Page 460 -


	Apex Town Council  
Regular Town Council Meeting  
May 09, 2023 
REVISED AGENDA
	CN1	Agreement - North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) - Salem St and Chatham St - Review Traffic Signal Modifications
	CN1-Coversheet: NCDOT Traffic Signal Review and Inspection Agreement
	CN1-A1: NCDOT Traffic Signal Agreement

	CN2	Annexation No. 753 - 7612 Green Level Church Road - 1.74 acres
	CN2-Coversheet:  Annexation No. 753 - 7612 Green Level Church Road - 1.74 acres
	CN2-A1: Resolution Directing the Town Clerk to Investigate Petition; Certificate of Sufficiency by the Town Clerk; and Resolution Setting Date of Public Hearing
	CN2-A2: Legal Description – Satellite Annexation No. 753
	CN2-A3: Aerial Map – Satellite Annexation No. 753
	CN2-A4: Plat Map – Satellite Annexation No. 753
	CN2-A5: Annexation Petition – Satellite Annexation No. 753

	CN3	Council Meeting Minutes - Multiple
	CN3-Coversheet: Council Meeting Minutes - Multiple
	CN3-A1: DRAFT Minutes – April 18, 2023 – Town Council Work Session Meeting Minutes
	CN3-A2: DRAFT Minutes – April 25, 2023 – Regular Town Council Meeting Minutes

	CN4	Encroachment Agreement - 1718 Wimberly Road Lot 181
	CN4-Coversheet: Encroachment Agreement - 1718 Wimberly Road Lot 181
	CN4-A1: Encroachment Agreement - 1718 Wimberly Road Lot 181
	CN4-A2: Exhibit A - Encroachment Agreement - 1718 Wimberly Rd Lot 181

	CN5	Encroachment Agreement - 2918 Alderson Court Lot 259
	CN5-Coversheet: Encroachment Agreement - 2918 Alderson Lane Lot 259
	CN5-A1: Encroachment Agreement - 2918 Alderson Court Lot 259
	CN5-A2: Exhibit A - Encroachment Agreement - 2918 Alderson Court Lot 259

	CN6	Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between Wake Technical Community College and the Town of Apex - LaunchAPEX Educational Training
	CN6-Coversheet: Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between Wake Technical Community College and the Town of Apex - LaunchAPEX Educational Training
	CN6-A1:  Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between Wake Technical Community College and the Town of Apex – LaunchAPEX Educational Training

	CN7	Position Authorization - Additional 0.5 FTE - Public Works Department
	CN7-Coversheet: Position Authorization - Additional 0.5 FTE - Public Works Department

	CN8	Purchase of Real Property - 1125 Wimberly Road and Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 17
	CN8-Coversheet: Purchase of Real Property - 1125 Wimberly Road and Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 17
	CN8-A1: Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 17 FY 22-23

	CN9	Resolution - Designating Deputy Finance Officers
	CN9-Coversheet: Resolution - Designating Deputy Finance Officers
	CN9-A1: Resolution Designating Deputy Finance Officers for the Town of Apex

	CN10	Resolution - Right-of-Way (ROW) Road Closure Request - Set Public Hearing
	CN10-Coversheet: Resolution - Right-of-Way (ROW) Road Closure Request - Set Public Hearing
	CN10-A1: Plat Map of Requested ROW Closure Area
	CN10-A2 Resolution of Intent to Consider the Requested ROW Closure Area
	CN10-A3: Policy on Closing Public Rights of Way for Streets, Roads, and Alleys

	CN11	Rezoning Case No. 23CZ01 - Cash Corporate Revised Uses - Statement and Ordinance
	CN11-Coversheet: Rezoning No. 23CZ01 - Cash Corporate Revised Uses - Statement and Ordinance
	CN11-A1: Statement and Ordinance - Rezoning No. 23CZ01 -  Cash Corporate Revised Uses
	CN11-A2: Attachment A - Legal Description - Rezoning No. 23CZ01 - Cash Corporate Revised Uses

	CN12	Rezoning Case No. 23CZ02 - Triangle Home Services Phase II - Statement and Ordinance
	CN12-Coversheet: Rezoning No. 23CZ02 - Triangle Home Services Phase II - Statement and Ordinance
	CN12-A1: Statement and Ordinance - Rezoning Case No. 23CZ02 - Triangle Home Services Phase II
	CN12-A2: Attachment A - Legal Description - Rezoning Case No. 23CZ02 - Triangle Home Services Phase II

	CN13	Rezoning Case No. 23CZ03 - Veridea Expansion - Statement and Ordinance
	CN13-Coversheet: Rezoning No. 23CZ03 - Veridea Expansion - Statement and Ordinance
	CN13-A1: Statement and Ordinance - Rezoning No. 23CZ03 - Veridea Expansion
	CN13-A2: Attachment A - Legal Description - Rezoning No. 23CZ03 -  Veridea Expansion
	CN13-A3: Attachment B - Sustainable Development Plan for Veridea
	CN13-A4: Attachment C - Environmental Enhancement Plan for Veridea

	CN14	Tax Report - February and March 2023
	CN14-Coversheet: Tax Report - February and March 2023
	CN14-A1 Tax Report for February 2023
	CN14-A2 Tax Report for March 2023

	CN15 (ADDED) - 2023 Revised Council Meeting Calendar 
	CN15-A1: Revised - 2023 Council Meeting Calendar No. 5
	CN15-A2: Revised – 2023 Text Calendar No. 5

	PR1	Presentation by the Apex Public School Foundation - Quarterly Peak S.T.A.R. Awards
	Coversheet - Presentation by the Apex Public School Foundation - Quarterly Peak S.T.A.R. Awards

	PR2	Proclamation - Asian American and Pacific Islander Heritage Month - May 2023
	PR2:  Proclamation - Asian American and Pacific Islander Heritage Month - May 2023

	PR3	Proclamation - National Police Week and Peace Officers' Memorial Day Proclamation - May 14 through May 20, 2023
	PR3 - Proclamation - National Police Week and Peace Officers' Memorial Day Proclamation - May 14 through May 20, 2023 and May 15, 2023

	PH1	Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Greenways and Open Space
	PH1-Coversheet: Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Greenways, and Open Spaces
	PH1-A1 - Staff Report - Master Plan for Parks and Rec
	PH1-A2: Executive Summary for Parks and Rec Master Plan
	PH1-A3: Implementation and Action Plan for Parks and Rec Master Plan

	PH2	Master Plan Amendments for Parkland Acquisition and Indoor Facility Search Areas
	PH2-Coversheet: Master Plan Amendments for Parkland Acquisition and Indoor Facility Search Area
	PH2-A1: PRGOS Park Search and Indoor Facility Map Amendment Staff Report
	PH2-A2: Map of PRGOS Park Search and Indoor Facility Amendments

	PH3	Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan Map Amendments - Related to Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Greenways and Open Space
	PH3 - Coversheet: Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan Map Amendments - Related to Master Plan for Parks, Recreation, Cultural Resources, Greenways and Open Space
	PH3-A1: Staff Report - Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan Map Amendments

	NB1 Richardson Road - Traffic Safety 
	CS1 Closed Session 
	Amended 2023 Town Council Meeting Calendar - No. 5 - Approved 2023.05.09.pdf
	Table 1


